

 


 
 
 


 

 

 


 

 

 
 

 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 
	 
	 

Governor 
Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

January 17-18, 2017 

Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) – HQ2 

1747 North Market Boulevard, Emerald Room 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

(916) 575-7230 (LATC) 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) will hold a meeting, as noted 

above. The notice and agenda for this meeting and other meetings of the LATC can be found 

on the LATC’s website:  latc.ca.gov. For further information regarding this agenda, please 

see reverse or you may contact Tremaine Palmer at (916) 575-7230. 

The LATC plans to webcast this meeting on its website.  Webcast availability cannot, 

however, be guaranteed due to limited resources or technical difficulties.  The meeting will 

not be cancelled if webcast is not available.  If you wish to participate or to have a 

guaranteed opportunity to observe, please plan to attend at the physical location. For meeting 

verification, call (916) 575-7230 or access the LATC website at latc.ca.gov. 

Agenda 

January 17, 2017 

10:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

(or until completion of business) 

A. Call to Order – Roll Call – Establishment of a Quorum 

B. Chair’s Procedural Remarks and LATC Member Introductory Comments 

C. Public Comment on Items Not on Agenda 
(The Committee may not discuss or take action on any item raised during this public comment section, 

except to decide whether to refer the item to the Committee’s next Strategic Planning session and/or place 

the matter on the agenda of a future meeting [Government Code sections 11125 and 11125.7(a)].) 

D. Review and Possible Action on November 4, 2016 LATC Meeting Minutes 

E. Program Manager’s Report on Administration, Examination, Licensing, and 

Enforcement 

F. Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) 

1. Update on Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE) Administration 

2. Update and Ratify LATC’s Nomination for CLARB 2016-2017 Board of Directors 

and Committee on Nominations Elections 

(Continued) 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 • Sacramento, CA 95834 • P (916) 575-7230 • F (916) 575-7285 

latc@dca.ca.gov • www.latc.ca.gov 

http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
http:latc.ca.gov
http:latc.ca.gov


	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

 


 
 
 


 

	 

	 

	 

G. Discuss and Possible Action on Strategic Plan Objective to Review Title 16, California 

Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 2620 (Education and Training Credits) to Expand 

Credit for Education Experience to Include Degrees in Related Areas of Study 

H. Discuss and Possible Action to Recommend to the Board to Adopt Originally Proposed 

Language or Approve Modified Text to Amend Reciprocity Requirements of Title 16, 

CCR Section 2615 (Form of Examinations) 

I. Review and Possible Action to Amend Title 16, CCR Section 2620.5 (Requirements for 

an Approved Extension Certificate Program) and Add CCR Sections 2620.2 (Extension 

Certificate Programs – Application for Approval), 2620.3 (Suspension or Withdrawal of 

Approval), and 2620.4 (Annual Reports) 

J. Discuss and Possible Action on Draft Consumer’s Guide to Hiring a Landscape 

Architect 

K. Review Tentative Schedule and Confirm Future LATC Meeting Dates 

L. Recess 

Agenda 

January 18, 2017 

8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

(or until completion of business) 

M. Call to Order – Roll Call – Establishment of a Quorum 

N. Strategic Planning Session 

O. Adjournment 

Action may be taken on any item on the agenda.  The time and order of agenda items are subject to change 

at the discretion of the Chair and may be taken out of order.  The meeting will be adjourned upon 
completion of the agenda, which may be at a time earlier or later than posted in this notice. In accordance 

with the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, all meetings of the LATC are open to the public. 

Government Code section 11125.7 provides the opportunity for the public to address each agenda item 

during discussion or consideration by the LATC prior to the Committee taking any action on said item.  

Members of the public will be provided appropriate opportunities to comment on any issue before the 
Committee, but the Committee Chair may, at his or her discretion, apportion available time among those 

who wish to speak.  Individuals may appear before the Committee to discuss items not on the agenda; 
however, the Committee can neither discuss nor take official action on these items at the time of the same 

meeting [Government Code sections 11125 and 11125.7(a)]. 

The meeting is accessible to the physically disabled. A person who needs a disability-related 

accommodation or modification in order to participate in the meeting may make a request by contacting 

Tremaine Palmer at (916) 575-7230, emailing tremaine.palmer@dca.ca.gov, or sending a written request 
to the LATC. Providing your request at least five business days before the meeting will help to ensure 

availability of the requested accommodation. 

Protection of the public shall be the highest priority for the LATC in exercising its licensing, regulatory, 

and disciplinary functions. Whenever the protection of the public is inconsistent with other interests 

sought to be promoted, the protection of the public shall be paramount. (Business and Professions Code 
section 5620.15) 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 • Sacramento, CA 95834 • P (916) 575-7230 • F (916) 575-7285 

latc@dca.ca.gov • www.latc.ca.gov 

http://www.latc.ca.gov/laws_regs/pa_all.shtml#2620.
http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
mailto:tremaine.palmer@dca.ca.gov


Agenda Item A 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 

Roll is called by the Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) Vice Chair or, in his/her 

absence, by an LATC member designated by the Chair. 

LATC MEMBER ROSTER 

Patricia Trauth, Chair 

Marq Truscott, Vice Chair 

Andrew Bowden 

David Allan Taylor, Jr. 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Agenda Item B 

CHAIR’S PROCEDURAL REMARKS AND LATC MEMBER INTRODUCTORY 

COMMENTS 

LATC Chair Patricia Trauth, or in her absence, the Vice Chair will review the scheduled LATC 

actions and make appropriate announcements. 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Agenda Item C 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA 

Members of the public may address the Committee at this time.  The Committee Chair may allow 

public participation during other agenda items at their discretion. 

(The Committee may not discuss or take action on any item raised during this public comment 

section, except to decide whether to refer the item to the Committee’s next Strategic Planning 

session and/or place the matter on the agenda of a future meeting [Government Code sections 

11125 and 11125.7(a)].) 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 






 


 

 

Agenda Item D 

REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON NOVEMBER 4, 2016 LATC MEETING 

MINUTES 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) is asked to review and take action on the 

attached November 4, 2016 LATC Meeting Minutes. 

ATTACHMENT: 

November 4, 2016 LATC Meeting Minutes (Draft) 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 




 

 

Governor 
Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Meeting Minutes 

CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

November 4, 2016 
Sacramento, California 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) Members Present 
Andrew Bowden, Chair 
David Allan Taylor, Jr., Vice Chair 
Patricia Trauth 
Marq Truscott 

Staff Present 
Doug McCauley, Executive Officer 
Vickie Mayer, Assistant Executive Officer 
Trish Rodriguez, Program Manager 
Gary Duke, Legal Counsel, Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) 
Tremaine Palmer, Special Projects Analyst 
Kourtney Nation, Examination Coordinator 
Gretchen Kjose, Retired Annuitant 

Guests Present 
Jason Bisho 
Maureen Decombe, Association of Professional Landscape Designers (APLD) 
Fernando Galli, Board and Bureau Relations, DCA 
Amelia Lima, APLD 
Dustin Maxam 
Sarah Maxam 
Greg Melton, Melton Design Group 
Shawn Rohrbacker 

A. Call to Order – Roll Call – Establishment of a Quorum 

LATC Chair Andrew Bowden called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. and Vice Chair 
David Allan Taylor Jr. called roll.  Four members of LATC were present, thus a quorum was 
established. 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 • Sacramento, CA 95834 • P (916) 575-7230 • F (916) 575-7285 
latc@dca.ca.gov • www.latc.ca.gov 

http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov


 

B. Chair’s Procedural Remarks and LATC Member Introductory Comments 

Mr. Bowden noted that the October 4, 2016 LATC meeting had been postponed due to a 
procedural issue regarding the meeting notice period. 

C. Public Comment on Items Not on Agenda 

There were no comments from the public. 

(One public comment was received and acknowledged under Agenda Item F.) 

D. Review and Possible Action on May 24, 2016 LATC Meeting Minutes 

Mr. Bowden asked for comments concerning the May 24, 2016 LATC Meeting Minutes. There 
were no comments from the Committee members. 

• Patricia Trauth moved to approve the May 24, 2016 LATC Meeting Minutes. 
Marq Truscott seconded the motion. 
Members Trauth, Truscott, and Chair Bowden voted in favor of the motion.  
David Allan Taylor, Jr. abstained.  The motion passed 3-0-1. 

E. Program Manager’s Report on Administration, Examination, Licensing, and 
Enforcement 

Trish Rodriguez presented the Program Manager’s report.  She announced the LATC has a new 
Licensing/Administration Coordinator, Stacy Townsend.  Ms. Rodriguez noted that 
November 3, 2016 was Enforcement Analyst, Matt McKinney’s last day with the LATC and 
indicated recruitment to fill that position had begun. 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that since LATC’s last meeting in May, the Workload and Revenue 
report was completed and submitted to DCA in September.  She advised that the next Strategic 
Planning session would have annual updates from BreEZe staff and DCA’s Budget Office. She 
also noted that BreEZe is still in its release 3 phase, which was originally scheduled to begin in 
2016. She said that LATC would commence implementation of BreEZe once notified by DCA. 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that the proposed regulatory change to California Code of Regulations 
(CCR) section 2620 (Education and Training Credits), which allows teaching credit under a 
landscape architect, was approved by Office of Administrative Law and will take effect on 
January 1, 2017. 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that staff continues to work on proposed changes to CCR 2620.5 
(Requirements for an Approved Extension Certificate Program), noting that the Landscape 
Architectural Accreditation Board’s (LAAB) new Accreditation Standards and Procedures, 

- 2 



which were approved and implemented in March 2016, contain numerous changes in curriculum 
requirements. 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that LATC’s proposed revisions to the Disciplinary Guidelines are with 
the Board’s Regulatory and Enforcement Committee (REC). She continued that once revisions 
are approved by the REC and the Board, staff will incorporate them into LATC Guidelines so 
that they are aligned with the Board’s Guidelines. 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that staff had completed the Consumer’s Guide to Hiring a Landscape 
Architect, to be discussed today under a separate agenda item. Ms. Rodriguez continued that, if 
approved at today’s meeting, the Guide would be posted on LATC’s website. Mr. Truscott 
inquired how accessible the Guide would be to the public and Ms. Rodriguez responded that the 
Guide would be included in initial licensure packets, available in LATC’s lobby, at schools with 
landscape architecture degree programs, and as a PDF version on the website. 

F. Discuss and Possible Action on Public Comments Regarding California Code of 
Regulations (CCR) Title 16, Section 2615 (Form of Examinations) Reciprocity 
Requirements 

Ms. Rodriguez stated that the issue of reciprocity was first discussed by the LATC in 
December 2012, when a letter was received regarding California’s reciprocity requirements.  She 
continued that staff has completed a significant amount of work in assessing initial licensure 
eligibility and reciprocity requirements for all states, which is included for the LATC’s 
information today as attachments to this agenda item. 

She summarized that the national average of combined training or education for all states is 7 
years, that there are 4 states that provide an “education only” pathway and 27 that provide a 
“training only” pathway to licensure. 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that a proposed regulatory amendment to CCR section 2615 (Form of 
Examinations), which would allow reciprocity for candidates (licensed in another jurisdiction but 
who do not meet California’s education requirements) was approved by the LATC at its 
November 17, 2015 meeting.  She advised that the proposed regulatory amendment was noticed 
in August 2016, which began a 45-day public comment period that ended on 
September 27, 2016.  During the public comment period, 296 comments (291 were substantially 
similar) were received opposing the length of post-licensure experience being proposed for 
reciprocity candidates who do not meet California’s education requirement. Ms. Rodriguez 
concluded that at today’s meeting the Committee is asked to review the public comments on the 
proposed regulation and take action. 

Ms. Trauth began the discussion by asking for background information on a letter received from 
Kody Ryff after the close of the public comment period.  Mr. Bowden stated that Mr. Ryff’s 
letter was to be considered under Agenda Item C, Public Comments for Items not on Agenda. 
DCA Legal Counsel, Gary Duke, stated that although Mr. Ryff’s letter would not be part of the 
formal rulemaking record, it would be appropriate for the LATC to consider the issues he 
presented if it so chooses. 

- 3 



Mr. Bowden stated that Mr. Ryff’s letter suggests alternatives to the LATC’s proposed 
regulatory amendment by reducing the number of years of experience required, noting that as 
proposed, the number of years of experience required for a reciprocity candidate without a 
degree in landscape architecture, would prevent the individual from being licensed in California 
until the age of 35 or thereafter. 

Mr. Truscott reiterated that the proposed regulatory language allows a candidate who holds a 
valid license in good standing and who has been offering professional services for 10 out of the 
last 15 years to be eligible for reciprocity.  He also noted that the California Architects Board 
(Board) does not require an educational component for reciprocity.  Mr. McCauley stated that the 
Board’s only additional practice requirement is for candidates who have not completed the 
formal structured internship program (Architectural Experience Program (AXP)), and the 
requirement is three additional years of practice experience.  Mr. Bowden stated that since LATC 
does not have the Board’s structure of an internship program, it is limited to dealing with what is 
currently in regulation.  He suggested that LATC discuss the internship issue in Strategic 
Planning. 

Mr. Taylor expressed his opinion that the proposed time frame of 10 years of post-licensure 
experience appears to be excessive. Ms. Trauth stated that since California requires a 
combination of 6 years training and experience for initial licensure, 6 years of additional 
experience for those without a degree in landscape architecture seems more appropriate. 
Mr. Bowden stated that the intent was to allow the time frame to be non-continuous.  

Vickie Mayer reminded the Committee that it decided at a prior meeting that 10 years was 
appropriate based on extensive research of other jurisdictions’ requirements. Mr. Bowden stated 
that the number was based on reciprocity requirements in Arizona and New York, which have 
similar licensing populations.  

Mr. Bowden stated that in 2005, the LATC’s Education Subcommittee evaluated the education 
and experience requirements for examination, and their findings contain data pertinent to the 
discussion of reciprocity.  He recommended that the Committee take the findings of the 
Subcommittee into consideration and apply them to reciprocity. He also recommended 
discussing the reciprocity requirements during the upcoming Strategic Planning session and 
Ms. Trauth concurred. 

Mr. Truscott stated that the Committee has been addressing the reciprocity issue for years and 
that it should move forward.  Ms. Rodriguez noted that the LATC denied two applications in 
2014 and three in 2015 for not meeting the education requirements. She added that there are no 
current reciprocity applications pending that will be denied under the current reciprocity 
standards.  

Mr. Truscott inquired if the Committee could amend the previously approved regulatory 
language.  Mr. Duke responded that amending the proposed language would require publishing a 
15-day Notice thereby providing the opportunity for public comments on the proposed 
amendments.  Mr. Duke stated that if LATC would like to re-examine all of the requirements in 
order to make changes, he would recommend withdrawing the rulemaking package and starting 
over. 

- 4 



 

Ms. Trauth asked Mr. Duke about the drawbacks to modifying a provision of the regulation and 
then reviewing the rest of the regulation during Strategic Planning.  Mr. Duke responded that it 
would be a policy decision for the LATC. Mr. Bowden added that LATC would be considering 
alternate degrees, through the Education Subcommittee, during Strategic Planning. 

• Marq Truscott moved to proceed with the rulemaking file. 
Patricia Trauth seconded the motion. 
Chair, Andrew Bowden asked for discussion. 

The discussion opened with public comments from the audience.  Dustin Maxam introduced 
himself and expressed dissatisfaction with the LATC’s review of the public comments.  He 
stated that of the 296 comments received, only one was in support of the proposed amendments 
and the other 295 supported his opposition. 

Mr. Maxam stated that he felt the Committee did not understand his proposal and the reasoning 
behind it. He continued that his revised language is an alternative that is more equitable, less 
burdensome, and equally effective in ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of the public.  
Mr. Maxam indicated that the proposed language was taken out of context from Arizona’s and 
New York’s requirements. Mr. Bowden asked Mr. Maxam if he had anything new to add that 
was not included in his written comments.  

Mr. Maxam went on to note that out of 3,600 licensed California landscape architects on the 
2016 roster, nearly half were licensed prior to 1998, the year LATC was established. He 
continued that nearly 50% of California landscape architects have more than 18 years of 
professional experience, and that the majority are approaching retirement. Mr. Maxam stated 
that the LATC grants less than 100 new licenses every year, and with the current trend, it is not 
possible to replace those leaving the profession without major changes. He continued that 
LATC’s proposed regulatory language requires so much experience, 18 years in some cases, that 
most individuals who gained licensure under the previous Board of Landscape Architects and 
early years of the LATC, who were licensed under more inclusive educational requirements, 
would not qualify for licensure under current law. 

Mr. Maxam concluded by explaining that in his opinion, practicing or offering professional 
services for 10 of the last 15 years is excessive, while a more balanced approach, aligned with 
Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) and some other states, is 2 of 
the last 5 years and any college degree. He added that offering professional services for 6 of the 
last 10 years aligns with many other states. 

Amelia Lima, Jason Bisho, Shawn Rohrbacker, and Greg Melton introduced themselves and 
agreed with Mr. Maxam’s position.  Mr. Rohrbacker also stated that Committee members may 
have believed that 10 years was excessive, and would have been dismayed if the Committee 
decided to move forward. 

Ms. Lima inquired on the statistics Ms. Rodriguez provided earlier regarding the number of 
reciprocity applicants.  Ms. Rodriguez responded that the statistics were from research on the 
affected number of reciprocity applicants. Mr. Maxam stated that it is 2-3% or possibly more of 
the number of licenses granted a year. 

- 5 



 

Sarah Maxam agreed with Mr. Maxam’s position. Ms. Maxam stated that in an attempt to 
streamline the process, a defensible position was given. She continued that more public 
comments would not surface, as Mr. Maxam’s position is what the public desires.  Ms. Maxam 
added that by not taking action today, the LATC would be ignoring the will of the public. 

Mr. Truscott noted that Mr. Maxam’s letter and all information presented has been considered. 
Mr. Truscott again moved to proceed with the rulemaking file. Ms. Mayer suggested an 
amendment to have more discussion at the Strategic Planning session in order to address the 
public comments and Mr. Truscott agreed to amend his motion. 

Mr. Bowden stated a concern for the language of the motion.  He continued that by proceeding 
with the rulemaking file, there would be no further discussion or modifications.  Mr. Truscott 
clarified that the motion would grant time to make modifications to the approved regulatory 
language. Mr. Bowden indicated that he was no longer in favor of the proposed regulatory 
language because he felt the timeframe is no longer appropriate based on the public comments 
received. 

• Marq Truscott moved to amend the motion to withdraw the motion to proceed with 
the rulemaking file. 
Patricia Trauth seconded the amendment to the motion. 
David Allan Taylor, Jr. moved to table the item until the Strategic Planning session 
with the intent to vote on amendments to the regulatory language during Strategic 
Planning. 
Patricia Trauth seconded the motion. 

Maureen Decombe stated that in the agenda it states “discuss and possible action on public 
comments.”  She expressed confusion on why there was not a deeper discussion of the public 
comments and further analysis in front of the public.  Mr. Bowden reiterated that the public 
comments were reviewed and considered, but the Committee would like more time to analyze 
the public comments in order to discuss them further at the Strategic Planning session. 

Members Trauth, Truscott, Taylor, and Chair Bowden voted in favor of the motion.  
The motion passed 4-0. 

G. Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that she and Ms. Trauth attended CLARB’s annual meeting on 
September 22-24, 2016. 

She reported that the next administration of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination 
(LARE) would be December 5-17, 2016 and noted that prior LARE pass rates were included in 
the meeting packet for the Committee’s information. Ms. Rodriguez also noted that the results 
of CLARB’s recent task analysis, identifying knowledge, skills, and abilities required at the 
initial point of licensure, would be incorporated into the LARE beginning in April 2017. 

- 6 



 

Ms. Rodriguez stated that nominations for CLARB’s Board of Directors and Committee on 
Nominations were due in September and that, on behalf of the LATC, Mr. Bowden and 
Ms. Trauth had selected the following candidates under consideration: Christine Anderson, 
Nicole Cruchfield, Allison Fleury, Julia Gambrel, and Phil Meyer.  Ms. Rodriguez asked the 
Committee to vote on the elections ballot. 

• Marq Truscott moved to approve the elections ballot. 
Patricia Trauth seconded the motion. 
Members Trauth, Truscott, Taylor, and Chair Bowden voted in favor of the motion.  
The motion passed 4-0. 

H. Discuss and Possible Action on Strategic Plan Objective to Adopt New Methods and 
Identify New Resources to Effectively Educate Consumers Regarding Health, Safety, 
and Welfare Issues Within Landscape Architecture 

Ms. Rodriguez noted that, as part of its 2015-16 Strategic Plan, LATC members and staff worked 
in collaboration to develop two new consumer education publications, the Consumer’s Guide to 
Hiring a Landscape Architect and Consumer Tips for Design Projects which were provided 
today for the Committee’s review, comments, and possible approval. 

Mr. Bowden inquired as to how the publications would be distributed to consumers.  
Ms. Rodriguez stated that they would be sent to new licensees as part of their initial licensure 
packet, available in LATC’s lobby and at accredited schools associated with landscape 
architecture, and on the LATC website.  Mr. McCauley stated that the Board supplies building 
departments, firms, and local regulatory agencies with their Guide. Mr. Truscott suggested that 
the Guide and Consumer Tips be sent to planning and community development departments. 

Mr. Truscott also inquired, in terms of funding, what resources the LATC has to disseminate the 
publications. Ms. Rodriguez stated that mailing is an option, as well as distributing them at 
LATC meetings held at schools throughout the state. Mr. McCauley advised that there is a 
distribution list for planning departments that could be utilized and Ms. Mayer added that an 
email could be sent to LATC’s subscribers indicating the Guide and Consumer Tips are available 
on the website, or could be requested directly from the LATC. 

Ms. Decombe expressed concern that that the photographs and plant materials depicted in the 
proposed Guide show water features, high water use plant pallets, and lawn dominated designs 
that do not support water conservation.  Ms. Decombe also had comments on the table in the 
Guide that lists the professional qualifications of landscape architects, landscape contractors, 
architects, civil engineers, irrigation consultants, nurserypersons and unlicensed practitioners.  
She advised that she felt the qualifications of irrigation consultants and unlicensed persons could 
be misinterpreted by the information provided and landscape designers were not listed.  She 
opined that one of the goals of the Guide should be to clarify the differences between landscape 
designers and landscape architects, and that the postsecondary education and experience of 
landscape designers should be included to truly educate consumers.  She concluded by saying the 
Guide seems to imply the only persons qualified to engage in residential landscape design belong 
to the professions listed. 

- 7 



Mr. Taylor suggested including information on the California Landscape Contractors 
Association and APLD, stating that a description of what each profession can and cannot do, 
might be helpful to consumers.  Mr. Bowden stated that the table reflects the fact that an 
unlicensed individual is not required to have postsecondary education; therefore, the table is 
factual.  Ms. Trauth stated that landscape designers were previously included; however, the list 
became extensive and cumbersome.  Mr. Bowden added that listing all professions was not 
feasible. Mr. McCauley stated that as a regulatory agency, LATC’s publications must reflect 
what is in the Practice Act. 

The LATC agreed that the publications should contain pictures of compelling low water 
landscapes with California plant material and asked staff to obtain images for review at the next 
LATC meeting. 

I. Discuss and Possible Action on Strategic Plan Objective to Explore Methods for 
Developing a Teleconferenced Educator’s Roundtable Comprised of School 
Representatives to Increase Collaboration and Communication for Future LATC 
Strategic Plans 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that for the upcoming Strategic Planning session, staff would like 
direction from the Committee as to the topics to be considered under this objective. 

Mr. Truscott stated that he was in support of having educator roundtable discussions and 
Mr. McCauley indicated they could be held in conjunction with LATC meetings as a regular 
agenda item.  He continued that schools and landscape architect organizations would have an 
opportunity to report on changes to the degree programs, trends, and other related issues. 
Ms. Trauth noted the success the LATC has had holding Committee meetings at various 
landscape architect schools across the state. 

Mr. Bowden stated that each school program concentrates on different areas of landscape 
architecture and he felt, as part of Strategic Planning, the goal should be to prepare graduates for 
the LARE.  He expressed his opinion that one of LATC’s responsibilities is to determine how the 
quality of education graduates receive relates to licensure.  

Mr. Bowden suggested that a possible topic could be community college transfer agreements 
with LAAB accredited degree programs.  He continued that in architecture, there are reciprocal 
agreements between community colleges and schools of architecture where an associate degree 
earned grants entry into the school of architecture.  Mr. Bowden noted that there are no such 
agreements between community colleges and schools of landscape architecture.  

Mr. Bowden also suggested researching an integrated path to licensure for landscape architects 
similar to the one in place for architects. Mr. McCauley explained that this consists of 
integrating licensure components into the degree program. He advised that once enrolled in one 
of these programs, approved by the National Council of Architectural Registration Boards, 
students complete the required coursework and license requirements. He noted that this includes 
the Architectural Experience Program.  Mr. McCauley stated that hours are logged in various 
content areas in the internship phase, and that one begins early testing at an eligibility point 
determined by the school. Mr. McCauley added that once students graduate from the program, 

- 8 



they are positioned to become licensed. Mr. McCauley concluded that the program can reduce 
the amount of time it takes for individuals to become licensed. 

Mr. Bowden inquired as to how the LATC could facilitate a similar program, stating that 
CLARB and other organizations would have to be in support to move forward. He wondered if 
LATC could initiate the process. Ms. Trauth supported the concept and suggested it be placed 
on the agenda for Strategic Planning. Messrs. Bowden and Truscott agreed, with Mr. Truscott 
adding that it might be challenging to gain a concerted effort from all parties. 

J. North Carolina State Board of Dental Examiners v. Federal Trade Commission Case 
Review – Department of Consumer Affairs Legal Counsel 

Mr. Duke began by stating that the case involving North Carolina State Board of Dental 
Examiners and the Federal Trade Commission was an important Supreme Court case regarding 
occupational licensing. He noted that this case does not affect California licensing boards as 
much as other states because California has a well-developed and complex regulatory system 
with checks and balances in place. 

Mr. Duke reported that the basis of this case involved the North Carolina State Board of Dental 
Examiners sending cease and desist letters to businesses who were providing teeth whitening 
services, as well as property owners.  The letters were sent as the result of several complaints 
filed by dentists who were concerned about the impact on their businesses, as opposed to the 
health, safety, and welfare of consumers.  He stated that the United States has a history of 
promoting competitive and fair business practices through anti-trust and other statutes. 
Mr. Duke concluded that, due to the dental board’s reasoning for mailing the cease and desist 
letters, the Supreme Court ruled that they were engaging in anti-competitive conduct which 
restricted the free market. 

K. Election of LATC Officers for Fiscal Year 2016/17 
Discuss and Possible Action on LATC Officer Election Procedures 

Ms. Rodriguez reported that the Board holds elections for officers at the last meeting of the 
calendar year and the newly elected officers begin their terms at the first meeting of the new 
year.  In order to align with the Board’s procedures, LATC was asked to elect its Chair and Vice 
Chair for calendar year 2017.  Mr. Bowden noted that with this amendment to the procedures, 
the officers elected today would begin their roles at the January 2017 meeting. 

•  David Allan Taylor, Jr. moved to change the elections of officer positions (Chair and 
Vice Chair) to the last meeting of the calendar year, and who will assume roles on 
January 1 of the following year. 

Patricia Trauth seconded the motion. 
Members Trauth, Truscott, Taylor, and Chair Bowden voted in favor of the motion.  
The motion passed 4-0. 

•  Andrew Bowden moved to nominate Patricia Trauth as Chair for 2017. 

- 9 



	 

David Allan Taylor, Jr. seconded the motion. 
Members Trauth, Truscott, Taylor, and Chair Bowden voted in favor of the motion.  
The motion passed 4-0. 

• David Allan Taylor, Jr. moved to nominate Marq Truscott as Vice Chair for 2017. 

Andrew Bowden seconded the motion. 

Members Trauth, Truscott, Taylor, and Chair Bowden voted in favor of the motion.  
The motion passed 4-0. 

L. Review Tentative Schedule and Confirm Future LATC Meeting Dates 

Mr. Bowden indicated the next LATC meeting is scheduled for January 17, 2017, followed by a 
Strategic Planning session on January 18, 2017. The meeting will be held in Sacramento. 

M. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 1:53 p.m. 

- 10 



Agenda Item E 

PROGRAM MANAGER’S REPORT ON ADMINISTRATION, EXAMINATION, 

LICENSING, AND ENFORCEMENT 

The Program Manager’s Report provides a synopsis of current activities and is attached for the 

LATC’s review. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Program Manager’s Report 

2. California Architects Board December 15-16, 2016, Meeting Notice 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Attachment E.1 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
Program Manager’s Report 

January 2017 

ADMINISTRATIVE/MANAGEMENT 

Annual Reports 

Pursuant to Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 312(a), the Department of Consumer 

Affairs (DCA) submits an Annual Report to the Governor and Legislature.  The staff of the 

Office of Publications, Design and Editing (PDE) began working on the DCA Annual Report 

2015-2016.  The narrative portion which includes a summary of regulations, major studies and 

other new program developments was submitted by LATC staff on August 31, 2016.  Final data 

summaries of licensing and enforcement activities were submitted to PDE on November 30, 

2016.  

Applicant Tracking System (ATS)/Workaround System (WAS)  

Manual processes created in 2014 remain in place, using the temporary WAS until the transition 

to BreEZe. The WAS became a functional necessity upon regulatory approval of licensure 

requirements.  It was established after a freeze was put in place for any legacy system changes 

during DCA’s transition to BreEZe.  With no projected date for Release 3 of BreEZe, the hard 

freeze placed on legacy system changes was lifted on April 7, 2016.  However, staff will 

continue to use WAS in place of ATS. On September 15, 2016, the WAS database was shifted 

from desktop hardware to an existing server located at the Del Paso office to make it part of the 

enterprise database. Programming changes were also implemented to encrypt social security 

numbers and alter the user interface to simplify staff processes. Staff continue to work with the 

BreEZe team towards integrating WAS and ATS data with the BreEZe system.  

BreEZe Project 

The DCA has been working with Accenture, LLP to design, configure, and implement an 

integrated, enterprise-wide enforcement case management and licensing system (BreEZe).  This 

system supports DCA’s highest priority initiatives of job creation and consumer protection by 

replacing aging legacy business systems with an industry-proven software solution that utilizes 

current technologies to facilitate increased efficiencies for DCA board and bureau licensing and 

enforcement programs.  More specifically, BreEZe supports applicant tracking, licensing, license 

renewal, enforcement, monitoring, cashiering, and data management capabilities.  Additionally, 

the system is web-based which allows the public to file complaints and search licensee 

information and complaint status via the Internet. It also allows applicants and licensees to 

submit applications, license renewals, and make payments online.  BreEZe is being deployed 

department-wide via three separate releases.  Release 1 was implemented on October 9, 2013; 

Release 2 was implemented on January 19, 2016; and Release 3 was planned to begin 

development in 2016.  The Board and LATC are currently part of Release 3.  The State Auditor 

recommended that DCA conduct a cost-benefit analysis for Release 3 boards and bureaus.  

Absent any contrary finding in that analysis, DCA plans to bring the remaining boards and 



bureaus into BreEZe, but likely will do so in smaller groups.  DCA is developing a plan for the 

boards and bureaus that have not transitioned to the BreEZe system. The path forward will 

include business process planning, during which existing business processes will be mapped (and 

potentially re-engineered), use cases developed, and solution requirements will be defined. Next, 

the Department of Technology’s four-stage Project Approval Lifecycle will facilitate business 

analysis justification, alternatives and cost benefit analysis, solution development framework, 

and project approval. The final step of the process will be implementation, possibly following an 

agile or agile-hybrid development methodology. 

Budget 

Staff met with DCA’s Budget Office in February 2016 to determine whether the temporary 

reduction of biennial license renewal fees, from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017, would be 

sufficient to reduce LATC’s funds in reserve to the level required by BPC section 128.  The 

Budget Office projected that LATC’s months in reserve at the end of fiscal year (FY) 2016/17 

would still be in excess of 20 months and suggested extending the fee reduction for one more 

renewal cycle.  A regulatory proposal to amend California Code of Regulations (CCR) section 

2649 (Fees) would need to be completed in order to extend the reduction in license renewal fees 

(from $400 to $220 biennially) through June 30, 2019 (see “Regulatory Amendments” section in 

this report for additional information regarding the regulatory proposal). 

California Architects Board Meeting 

The Board held a meeting on December 15-16, 2016, in Sacramento, which included a Strategic 

Planning session on the 16
th

. Doug McCauley updated the Board on the November 4, 2016 

LATC meeting, explaining that LATC focused much of its time on the proposed reciprocity 

regulations.  He conveyed that LATC, much like the Board, supports flexible pathways to 

licensure in California and seeks to expand in the area of reciprocity. He also noted that the 

Board considered a number of enforcement issues, such as enhancing the written contract 

requirements and updating the citation regulations. 

Personnel 

Program Manager, Trish Rodriguez, accepted a promotion with the California Board of 

Pharmacy effective November 18, 2016.  Recruitment efforts to fill both the Program Manager 

and enforcement analyst positions are underway. In the interim, retired annuitant, 

Gretchen Kjose, has assisted in coordinating many of the duties of the Program Manager in order 

to prepare for today’s LATC meeting and Strategic Planning session. 

Regulatory Amendments 

CCR 2615 (Form of Examinations) – Reciprocity Requirements - At its meeting on 

February 10, 2015, LATC directed staff to draft proposed regulatory language to specifically 

state that California allows reciprocity to individuals who are licensed in another jurisdiction, 

have 10 years of practice experience, and have passed the CSE.  At the LATC meeting on 

November 17, 2015 the Committee approved proposed amendments to CCR 2615(c)(1), and 

2 



recommended that the Board authorize LATC to proceed with a regulatory change.  At its 

December 10, 2015 meeting, the Board approved the regulatory changes and delegated authority 

to the EO to adopt the corresponding regulations to amend CCR 2615 provided no adverse 

comments are received during the public comment period and make minor technical or 

non-substantive changes to the language, if needed.  

Following is a chronology to date, of the processing of LATC’s regulatory proposal for 

CCR 2615: 

November 17, 2015 Proposed regulatory language approved by the LATC 

December 10, 2015 Proposed regulatory language approved by the Board 

August 2, 2016 Notice of Proposed Changes in the Regulations submitted to OAL 

August 12, 2016 Notice of Proposed Changes in the Regulations published by OAL 

September 27, 2016 Public hearing, public comments received during 45-day period 

The LATC received extensive input during the public comment period expressing concern about 

the proposed length of post-licensure experience (at least 10 years, within the past 15 years) to be 

required of reciprocity candidates who do not meet California’s educational requirements 

(specifically, a degree in landscape architecture).  At its November 4, 2016, meeting, LATC 

reviewed and discussed the comments, heard from several members of the audience, and directed 

staff to provide additional research and possible options for its next meeting in January 2017. 

CCR 2620(a)(13), Expand Eligibility Requirements to Allow Credit for Teaching Under a 

Licensed Landscape Architect – At the LATC meeting on February 10, 2015, the Committee 

agreed that up to one year of experience/training credits should be granted for teaching under the 

supervision of a licensed landscape architect. At the May 13, 2015 LATC meeting, the 

Committee approved the proposed language to amend CCR 2620 by adding subsection (a)(13) 

which provides one year of teaching credit under the supervision of a landscape architect in a 

degree program as specified in CCR 2620(a)(1), (2), and (4). At the August 6, 2015 LATC 

meeting, the Committee recommended that the Board authorize LATC to proceed with a 

regulatory change.  At its September 10, 2015 meeting, the Board approved the regulatory 

changes and delegated authority to the EO to adopt the regulations to amend CCR 2620 provided 

no adverse comments are received during the public comment period and make minor technical 

or non-substantive changes to the language, if needed.    

Following is a chronology to date, of the processing of LATC’s regulatory proposal for CCR 

2620: 

August 6, 2015 Proposed regulatory language approved by LATC 

September 10, 2015 Proposed regulatory language approved by Board 

October 9, 2015 Notice of Proposed Changes in the Regulations published by OAL 

November 30, 2015 Public hearing, no comments received 

March 24, 2016 Final rulemaking file submitted to DCA Legal Office and Division of 

Legislative and Policy Review 

June 10, 2016 Final rulemaking file submitted to Business, Consumer Services and 

Housing Agency (Agency) for approval 

3 



July 25, 2016 Final rulemaking file approved by Agency 

August 2, 2016 Final rulemaking file submitted to OAL for approval 

September 13, 2016 Regulation approved by OAL and filed with the Secretary of State to 

become effective January 1, 2017 

CCR 2620.5, Requirements for an Approved Extension Certificate Program - LATC established 

the original requirements for an approved extension certificate program based on university 

accreditation standards from the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB).  These 

requirements are outlined in CCR 2620.5.  In 2009, LAAB implemented changes to their 

university accreditation standards.  Prompted by the changes made by LAAB, LATC drafted 

updated requirements for an approved extension certificate program and recommended the Board 

authorize LATC to proceed with a regulatory change.  At its December 15-16, 2010 meeting, the 

Board approved the regulatory change and delegated authority to the EO to adopt the regulations 

to amend CCR 2620.5 provided no adverse comments are received during the public comment 

period and make minor technical or non-substantive changes to the language, if needed.  The 

regulatory proposal to amend CCR 2620.5 was published by the OAL on June 22, 2012.  

In 2012, the LATC appointed the University of California Extension Certificate Program Task 

Force, which was charged with developing the procedures for the review of the extension 

certificate programs, and conducting reviews of the programs utilizing the new procedures.  The 

Task Force held meetings on June 27, 2012, October 8, 2012, and November 2, 2012.  As a 

result of these meetings, the Task Force recommended additional modifications to CCR 2620.5 

to further update the regulatory language with LAAB guidelines and LATC goals.  At the 

November 14, 2012 LATC meeting, the LATC approved the Task Force’s recommended 

modifications to CCR 2620.5, with an additional edit. At the January 24-25, 2013 LATC 

meeting, the LATC reviewed public comments regarding the proposed changes to CCR 2620.5 

and agreed to remove a few proposed modifications to the language to address the public 

comments.  The Board approved adoption of the modified language for CCR 2620.5 at their 

March 7, 2013 meeting. 

On July 17, 2013, a Decision of Disapproval of Regulatory Action was issued by the OAL. The 

disapproval was based on OAL’s determination that the regulatory package did not meet the 

necessity standard of Government Code (GC) section 11349.1, subdivision (a)(1).  GC 11349, 

subdivision (a), defines “necessity” as demonstrating the need for the regulatory change through 

evidence not limited to facts, studies, and expert opinion. Based on OAL’s disapproval, staff 

worked with DCA Legal Counsel and the Task Force Chair to refine the proposed language and 

identify appropriate justification that would meet OAL’s requirements.    

In May 2014, the LATC Special Projects Analyst prepared draft language for CCR 2620.5 

incorporating Legal Counsel’s recommendation that regulatory language be added to address the 

application, approval, denial, and annual review processes.  In June 2014, staff assignments 

changed.  The interim Special Projects Analyst began working on new proposed regulatory 

language in November 2014.  On December 8, 2014, staff was advised by LAAB that the 

accreditation standards are scheduled to be reviewed and updated beginning with draft proposals 

in the spring of 2015. LAAB anticipated adopting new standards in early 2016.  On 

December 30, 2014, staff met with the Task Force Chair to discuss proposed changes to 

4 



CCR 2620.5 and the probability that new LAAB accreditation standards will be implemented in 

2016. Staff also met with DCA Legal Counsel on January 14, 2015, to discuss justifications to 

proposed changes and again on January 28, 2015 to further review edits and justifications. 

Proposed regulatory language was presented to the LATC at its February 10-11, 2015, meeting. 

At this meeting, the Committee approved the appointment of a new working group to assist staff 

in substantiating recommended standards and procedures in order to obtain OAL approval.  

Linda Gates and Christine Anderson, former LATC members and University of California 

extension program reviewers, were appointed to the working group. 

On June 5, 2015, LAAB confirmed that they were in the process of updating their Standards and 

Procedures for the Accreditation of Landscape Architecture Programs.  The process included a 

public call for input and commentary that took place last fall (2014). LAAB met in the summer 

of 2015 to draft revisions to the Standards. In the fall 2015, additional public input and 

comments were received. 

On October 8, 2015, LATC received a copy of LAAB’s proposed revisions which included 

several suggested changes to curriculum requirements.  LATC staff began incorporating the 

proposed changes and drafting new proposed language that included many of LATC’s previously 

submitted modifications to CCR 2620.5. 

LAAB implemented its new Accreditation Standards and Procedures in March 2016, which 

incorporate numerous changes to curriculum requirements. Staff recommends that LATC review 

the new LAAB Accreditation Standards and Procedures and determine how to proceed. 

Following is a chronology to date, of the processing of LATC’s regulatory proposal for 

CCR 2620.5: 

November 22, 2010 Proposed regulatory language approved by LATC 

December 15, 2010 Proposed regulatory language approved by the Board 

June 22, 2012 Notice of Proposed Changes in the Regulations published by OAL 

(Notice re-published to allow time to notify interested parties) 

August 6, 2012 Public hearing, no public comments received 

November 30, 2012 40-Day Notice of Availability of Modified Language posted 

January 9, 2013 Written comment (one) received during 40-day period 

January 24, 2013 LATC approved modified language to address public comment 

February 15, 2013 Final rulemaking file submitted to DCA Legal Office 

March 7, 2013 Proposed regulatory changes of modified language approved by the 

Board 

May 31, 2013 Final rulemaking file submitted to OAL 

July 17, 2013 Decision of Disapproval of Regulatory Action issued by OAL 

August 20, 2013 LATC voted not to pursue a resubmission of rulemaking file to OAL 

February 21, 2014 Staff met with Task Force Chair to discuss justifications for proposed 

changes 

December 8, 2014 LAAB reported that accreditation standards are scheduled to be 

reviewed and updated in 2015 

5 



February 10, 2015 LATC approved the appointment of a new working group to assist staff 

October 8, 2015 LATC received LAAB’s suggested revisions to curriculum 

requirements 

March 2016 LAAB implemented its new Accreditation Standards and Procedures* 

CCR 2649 (Fees) – BPC 128.5 requires agencies within DCA to reduce license or other fees if 

the fund balance meets or exceeds 24 months in reserve at the end of any FY.  The LATC had 

24.7 months of funds in reserve at the end of FY 2012-13.  To address the fund condition, the 

LATC initiated fiscal management measures consisting of a negative budget change proposal to 

reduce LATC’s spending authority by $200,000, and implemented a temporary license renewal 

fee reduction from $400 to $220 for one license renewal cycle, July 1, 2015 through 

June 30, 2017, with the intention of extending the license renewal fee reduction for an additional 

renewal cycle if the fund condition did not drop below the 24-month reserve level. 

At the end of FY 2015-16, the LATC had 27.4 months of funds in reserve.  Based on projections 

including the current temporary license renewal fee reduction of $220, at the end of FY 2016-17, 

there will be approximately 20.6 months of funds in reserve.  At the LATC meeting on 

May 24, 2016, the Committee approved the extension of the license renewal fee reduction 

through June 30, 2019.  Once the reduction completes its term, the LATC is projected to have 

7.1 months of funds in reserve.  To extend the reduction of the license renewal fee, a regulatory 

change to amend CCR 2649 is necessary.  

This regulatory proposal would amend CCR 2649 subsection (f), to reduce the fee for the 

biennial renewal of a license from $400 to $220 for licenses expiring on or after July 1, 2017 

through June 30, 2019.  

Following is a chronology, to date, of the processing of LATC’s regulatory proposal for 

CCR 2649: 

May 24, 2016 Proposed regulatory language approved by LATC 

June 9, 2016 Proposed regulatory language approved by Board 

October 14, 2016 Notice of Proposed Changes in the Regulations published by OAL 

November 30, 2016 Public hearing, no public comments received 

December 14, 2016 Regulatory file sent to DCA for review and signatures 

CCR 2680 (Disciplinary Guidelines) – The LATC current Strategic Plan tasks the LATC with 

collaborating with the Board to review and update its Disciplinary Guidelines. The LATC’s 

Disciplinary Guidelines were last updated in 2000. 

The Board’s 2013 and 2014 Strategic Plans directed its Regulatory and Enforcement Committee 

(REC) to review and update the Board’s Disciplinary Guidelines. To this end, Board staff 

consulted with its Legal Counsel and Deputy Attorney General (DAG) Liaison and reviewed the 

Disciplinary Guidelines for both the Board for Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and 

Geologists and the Contractors State License Board to determine if changes were needed to the 

Board’s Disciplinary Guidelines. As a result, staff and Legal Counsel recommended revisions 

6 



which were provided to the REC for its consideration and ultimately approved by the Board at its 

December 10, 2014 meeting. 

Based upon the Board’s approval of its Disciplinary Guidelines and authorization to proceed 

with a regulatory amendment, LATC staff reviewed and revised its own Disciplinary Guidelines 

to mirror the Board’s wherever possible.  

At its February 10, 2015 meeting the LATC approved the edits to its Disciplinary Guidelines. 

Following that meeting, staff requested its DAG Liaison to review the approved Guidelines.  The 

DAG made several suggestions that were incorporated into the previously approved Guidelines.  

These amendments included: 1) Changes to the Factors to be Considered; 2) Increasing the 

length of suspension for Gross Incompetence in Practice, from 90 to 120 days; and, 3) Adding 

Conviction of Crime; Suspension, Revocation – Grounds as an offense. 

At its August 6, 2015 meeting, the LATC approved the DAG’s recommended revisions to its 

Disciplinary Guidelines, the proposed regulations to amend CCR 2680, and directed staff to 

present to the Board for approval.  Following the August 6, 2015 LATC meeting, DCA Legal 

Counsel advised staff of additional research necessary regarding Optional Conditions 9 (CSE) 

and 10 (Written Examination) of the Disciplinary Guidelines. Absent any additional 

recommended edits by DCA Legal Counsel, the amended Disciplinary Guidelines and proposed 

regulatory package was approved by the Board at their September 10, 2015 meeting.  

Staff subsequently discussed the issues regarding Optional Conditions 9 and 10 with DCA Legal 

Counsel on September 30, 2015.  On October 21, 2015 staff sent DCA Legal Counsel proposed 

edits to the Optional Conditions for review.  DCA Legal Counsel notified staff on 

November 12, 2015 that the edited portions were sufficient but substantive, and would require 

approval by the Board. On November 25, 2015, DCA Legal Counsel further advised staff to 

include the current version of the Board’s Quarterly Report of Compliance form (1/11) as 

“Attachment A” in the Disciplinary Guidelines. At its December 10, 2015 meeting, the Board 

approved the revised Disciplinary Guidelines and delegated authority to the EO to adopt the 

regulations to amend CCR section 2680 provided no adverse comments are received during the 

public comment period, and to make minor technical or non-substantive changes to the language, 

if needed.  Board staff prepared the proposed regulatory package for DCA Legal Counsel’s 

review and approval on March 15, 2016.  On April 8, 2016, DCA Legal Counsel advised staff 

that more substantive changes were necessary prior to submission to the OAL. 

Board staff developed recommended revisions to the Guidelines in response to Legal Counsel’s 

concerns, and presented those revisions to the REC for review and consideration at its 

November 8, 2016, meeting.  At the meeting, the REC voted to recommend to the Board that it 

approve the additional revisions to the Disciplinary Guidelines and authorize staff to proceed 

with the regulatory change to amend CCR 154 in order to incorporate the revised Guidelines by 

reference.  The additional revisions to the Guidelines and the proposed regulatory language to 

amend CCR 154 was approved by the Board at its December 15, 2016, meeting. 

7 



LATC staff is updating its Guidelines to include the changes recently approved by the Board that 

are appropriate to the program. The revisions will be presented to the LATC for its 

consideration at a future meeting. 

Following is a chronology to date, of the processing of LATC’s regulatory proposal for 

CCR 2680: 

August 6, 2015 Proposed regulatory language approved by LATC 

September 10, 2015 Proposed regulatory language approved by Board 

December 10, 2015 Proposed regulatory changes approved by Board (including DCA Legal 

Counsel recommended edits) 

Strategic Plan Objectives 

LATC’s Strategic Plan for 2015–2016 contains numerous objectives.  Below is a summary of 

status of some of the major objectives: 

Create and Disseminate Consumer’s Guide - to educate the public on the differences between 

landscape architects, landscape contractors, and landscape designers. At its November 17, 2015 

meeting, staff presented to the Committee a drafted Consumer’s Guide to Hiring a Landscape 

Architect, which is based on the Board’s Consumer’s Guide to Hiring an Architect. Following 

discussion, the Committee agreed to create a subcommittee to complete revisions to the guide. 

During discussion at its February 10, 2016 meeting, the Committee suggested editions to the 

guide including a chart for professional qualifications within the industry as well as information 

on drought conditions and the Model Water Efficiency Landscape Ordinance. The 

subcommittee worked with staff to revise the guide and create a chart on the professional 

qualifications of landscape architects, landscape contractors, and other related professions. At its 

May 24, 2016 meeting, the Committee approved the guide with minor edits to be made to the 

professional qualifications chart. Staff completed the edits and worked with DCA’s Digital Print 

Services to prepare the guide which was reviewed by the LATC at its November 2016 meeting.  

At the meeting, a member of the audience expressed concern that that the photographs and plant 

materials depicted in the proposed Guide show water features, high water use plant pallets, lawn 

dominated designs that do not support water conservation, and noted that the goal of the State is 

to conserve water, and that the goal of Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance is to reduce 

lawns and water features that evaporate water.  The LATC agreed that the publication should 

contain pictures of low water landscapes with California land material and asked staff to obtain 

images for review and possible approval of the Guide at its next meeting. 

Expand Credit for Education Experience - to include degrees in related areas of study, i.e., urban 

planning, environmental science or horticulture, etc., to ensure that equitable requirements for 

education are maintained.  At the November 17, 2015 LATC meeting, the Committee directed 

staff to agendize this objective.  At the February 10, 2016 LATC meeting, the Committee agreed 

to table the objective until its upcoming Strategic Planning Session in January 2017. 

Review Expired License Requirements (CCR 2624 and 2624.1) - to assess whether any revisions 

are needed to the regulations, procedures, and instructions for expired license requirements.  At 

8 



the August 6, 2015 LATC meeting, the Committee reviewed the procedures and expired license 

requirements contained in BPC 5680.2 (License Renewal – Three Years After Expiration) and 

CCR 2624 and 2624.1, and directed staff to assess whether the Board’s procedures and 

requirements should be considered for use by LATC.  At the November 17, 2015 LATC 

meeting, the Committee reviewed re-licensure requirements of various state landscape architect 

licensing boards and three DCA licensing boards and directed staff to research re-licensure 

procedures for additional state boards.  At the February 10, 2016 LATC meeting, the Committee 

directed staff to draft proposed language to amend the LATC’s re-licensure procedures to require 

an individual whose license has been expired for less than five years to pay any accrued fees, and 

to require the holder of a license that has expired for more than five years to reapply for licensure 

and retake the CSE. 

At its meeting on May 24, 2016, the Committee voted to amend BPC 5680.2 and repeal 

CCR 2624 and 2624.1.  Prior to the meeting, staff discovered BPC 5680.1 included language that 

would also need to be amended.  It was noted to the Committee that BPC 5680.1 would be 

included when presented to the Board for its consideration.  At its June 9, 2016, meeting, the 

Board voted to amend BPC 5680.1 and 5680.2 and repeal CCR 2624 and 2624.1.  Staff worked 

with DCA Legal Counsel to draft the amendment of BPC 5680.1 and 5680.2.  Once the 

amendments to BPC 5680.1 and 5680.2 are passed by the Legislature, staff will prepare the 

rulemaking file to repeal CCR 2624 and 2624.1. 

Training 

The following employees have been scheduled for upcoming training: 

2/14-16/17 Rulemaking (Stacy) 

Website 

LATC staff continues to publish the updated “Licensee Search” lists monthly. 

EXAMINATION PROGRAM 

Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE) 

The LARE was administered on December 5-17, 2016. Examination results will be released mid 

to late January 2017. 

California Supplemental Examination (CSE) 

Upon execution of the Intra-Agency Contract Agreement with the Office of Professional 

Examination Services, the LATC recruited subject matter experts to participate in examination 

development workshops to focus on item writing and examination construction.  Monthly 

examination development workshops were conducted from August 2016 until December 2016. 

9 



 

The questions developed have been added to the examination item bank and will be incorporated 

into the CSE beginning in September 2017. 

ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM 

Enforcement Actions 

Brock, Bonnie (Palo Alto) The Board issued a citation that included a $1,000 administrative fine 

to Bonnie Brock, an unlicensed individual, for an alleged violation of BPC 5640 (Unlicensed 

Person Engaging in Practice – Sanctions).  The action alleged that Brock provided services for a 

project in Menlo Park which is not an exempt project as described in BCP 5641.  Brock paid the 

fine, satisfying the citation.  The citation became final on October 10, 2016. 

Enforcement Statistics 

Complaints 

Received/Opened(Reopened) 

Closed: 

Average Days to Close: 

Pending:* 

Average Age (Pending) 

Citations 

Issued: 

Pending:* 

Pending (AG):*** 

Final: 

Disciplinary Actions 

Pending AG:* 

Pending DA:* 

Final: 

Settlement Reports (§5678)** 

Received/Opened: 

Closed: 

Pending:* 

Current Month 

November 2016 

3(0) 

1 

107 days 

5 

134 days 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

Prior Month 

October 2016 

0(0) 

0 

0 

3 

227 days 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

1 

* FYTD data is presented as a monthly average of pending cases. 

** Also included within “Complaints” information. 

*** Also included within “Pending Citations.” 

10 

FYTD 

2015/16 

5-FY Avg 

2011/12 – 
2015/16 

14(0) 

23 

368 days 

10 

162 

26(0) 

36 

360 days 

21 

301 days 

6 

2 

1 

3 

3 

2 

2 

2 

2 

0 

0 

1 

0 

1 

1 

1 

2 

1 

1 

1 




 


 

 




 


 


 

 


 

 

Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
GOVERNOR 

2420 DEL PASO ROAD, 

SUITE 105 

SACRAMENTO, 

CA 95834 

916-574-7220 T 
916-575-7283 F 

cab@dca.ca.gov 
www.cab.ca.gov 

CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD 
PUBLIC PROTECTION THROUGH EXAMINATION, LICENSURE, AND REGULATION 

Attachment E.2 


NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING 

December 15-16, 2016 
Stanley Mosk Library and Courts Building 

914 Capitol Mall, Room 500 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

(916) 651-6466 or (916) 575-7221 (Board) 

The California Architects Board will hold a Board meeting, as noted above.  The 
notice and agenda for this meeting and other meetings of the Board can be found 
on the Board’s website: cab.ca.gov.  For further information regarding this 
agenda, please see below or you may contact Mel Knox at (916) 575-7221. 

The Board plans to webcast this meeting on its website at cab.ca.gov.  Webcast 
availability cannot, however, be guaranteed due to limited resources or technical 
difficulties.  The meeting will not be cancelled if webcast is not available. If you 
wish to participate or to have a guaranteed opportunity to observe, please plan to 
attend at a physical location.  Adjournment, if it is the only item that occurs after a 
closed session, may not be webcast. 

Agenda 
December 15, 2016 

10:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
(or until completion of business) 

A. Call to Order/Roll Call/Establishment of a Quorum 

B. President’s Procedural Remarks and Board Member Introductory Comments 

C. Public Comment on Items Not on Agenda 
(The Board may not discuss or take action on any item raised during this 
public comment section, except to decide whether to refer the item to the 
Board’s next Strategic Planning session and/or place the matter on the 
agenda of a future meeting [Government Code sections 11125 and 
11125.7(a)].) 

D. Review and Possible Action on September 29, 2016 Board Meeting Minutes 

E. Executive Officer’s Report - Update on November 2016 Monthly Report on 
Board’s Administrative/Management; and Examination, Licensing and 
Enforcement Programs 

(Continued) 

http:cab.ca.gov
http:cab.ca.gov


	 

	 
	 

	 

	 

	 
	 

	 

	 

	 
	 
	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

F. Election of 2017 Board Officers 

G. Regulatory and Enforcement Committee (REC) Report 
1. Update on November 8, 2016 REC Meeting 
2. Update and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding Proposed Language to 

Amend Business and Professions Code Section 5536.22 (Written Contract) 
3. Discuss and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding Proposed Amendment to 

Title 16, California Code of Regulations (CCR) Sections 152 (Citations) and 152.5 
(Contest of Citations, Informal Conference) 

4. Update and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding Proposed Amendments to 
Board’s Disciplinary Guidelines and Title 16, CCR Section 154 (Disciplinary 
Guidelines) 

H. Communications Committee Report 
1. Update on November 10, 2016 Communications Committee Meeting 
2. Update and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding 2015-2016 Strategic Plan 

Objective to Collaborate with Professional Organizations and Universities to Raise 
Awareness at Community Colleges and High Schools About the Profession and the Paths 
to Licensure 

3. Update and Possible Action on 2015-2016 Strategic Plan Objective to Survey Recipients 
of the Board’s Educational Materials to Determine the Effectiveness of Outreach Efforts 

4. Update and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding 2015-2016 Strategic Plan 
Objective to Collaborate with Department of Consumer Affairs’ Office of Public Affairs 
to Improve Outreach and Communication 

I. Executive Committee Report 
1. Update on December 1, 2016 Executive Committee Meeting 
2. Discuss and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding 2016 Octavius Morgan 

Distinguished Service Awards 
3. Update and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding 2015–2016 Strategic Plan 

Objective to Review, Leverage, and Evaluate Effectiveness of Board’s Liaison Program 
to Build Stronger Relationships with Organizations 

4. Discuss and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding 2015–2016 Strategic Plan 
Objective to Annually Present Consumer Satisfaction Survey Data to Measure 
Performance and Identify Areas for Improvement 

5. Update and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding 2015–2016 Strategic Plan 
Objective to Analyze Fees to Determine Whether they are Appropriate 

6. Update and Possible Action on Recommendation Regarding 2015–2016 Strategic Plan 
Objective to Complete Sunset Review Process and Implement Recommendation(s) to 
Comply with Legislature’s Directives 

J. Update on Landscape Architects Technical Committee November 4, 2016 Meeting 

(Continued) 



	 
	 

	 


 

	 


 

 


 

 

	 

	 

K. Closed Session 
1. Review and Possible Action on September 29, 2016 Closed Session Minutes 
2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 11126(e)(1), the Board will Confer with Legal 

Counsel on Litigation Regarding Marie Lundin vs. California Architects Board, et al., 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing, 
Case No. 585824-164724 

3. Pursuant to Government Code Section 11126(c)(3), the Board will Deliberate on 
Disciplinary Matters 

L. Reconvene Open Session 

M. Recess 

Agenda 
December 16, 2016 

9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
(or until completion of business) 

N. Call to Order/Roll Call/Establishment of a Quorum 

O. Public Comment on Items Not on Agenda 
(The Board may not discuss or take action on any item raised during this public comment 
section, except to decide whether to refer the item to the Board’s Strategic Planning session 
and/or place the matter on the agenda of a future meeting [Government Code sections 11125 
and 11125.7(a)].) 

P. Strategic Planning Session 

Q. Review of Future Board Meeting Dates 

R. Adjournment 

Action may be taken on any item on the agenda.  The time and order of agenda items are subject 
to change at the discretion of the Board President and may be taken out of order.  The meeting 
will be adjourned upon completion of the agenda, which may be at a time earlier or later than 
posted in this notice.  In accordance with the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, all meetings of 
the Board are open to the public. 

Government Code section 11125.7 provides the opportunity for the public to address each 
agenda item during discussion or consideration by the Board prior to the Board taking any action 
on said item.  Members of the public will be provided appropriate opportunities to comment on 
any issue before the Board, but the Board President may, at his or her discretion, apportion 
available time among those who wish to speak.  Individuals may appear before the Board to 
discuss items not on the agenda; however, the Board can neither discuss nor take official action 
on these items at the time of the same meeting [Government Code sections 11125 and 
11125.7(a)]. 

(Continued) 



The meeting is accessible to the physically disabled.  A person who needs a disability-related 
accommodation or modification in order to participate in the meeting may make a request by 
contacting Mel Knox at (916) 575-7221, emailing mel.knox@dca.ca.gov, or sending a written 
request to the Board.  Providing your request at least five business days before the meeting will 
help to ensure availability of the requested accommodation. 

Protection of the public shall be the highest priority for the Board in exercising its licensing, 
regulatory, and disciplinary functions.  Whenever the protection of the public is inconsistent with 
other interests sought to be promoted, the protection of the public shall be paramount.  (Business 
and Professions Code section 5510.15) 

mailto:mel.knox@dca.ca.gov


	 
	 

	 
	 

	 

Agenda Item F 

COUNCIL OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURAL REGISTRATION BOARDS (CLARB) 

1. Update on Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE) Administration 

2. Update and Ratify LATC’s Nomination for  CLARB 2016-2017 Board of Directors and 

Committee on Nominations Elections 

The LARE was administered on December 5-17, 2016 and results will be released in mid to late 

January 2017. The next LARE administration will be held on March 27-April 8, 2017. The 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s (LATC) continues to track pass rates for the LARE.  

Pass rates for the August 1-13, 2016 LARE administration are attached (see attachment F.1).  

On November 22, 2016, CLARB provided a list of eligible candidates for the CLARB 2017 Board 

of Directors and Committee on Nominations Elections.  Since nominations were due to CLARB 

by January 13, 2017, LATC Chair Patricia Trauth and LATC Vice Chair Marq Truscott were 

asked whether they wished to nominate anyone.  Ms. Trauth advised that she would be interested 

in pursuing the Region 5 Director position. 

At today’s meeting, LATC is asked to ratify Ms. Trauth’s nomination for Region 5 Director.  A 

final slate of nominees will be available at least 60 days prior to the CLARB Annual Meeting on 

September 13-15, 2017, and LATC will have an opportunity to vote in this election by mail-in 

ballot prior to the CLARB meeting. 

Also attached is a copy of the most recent (December 2016) publication of CLARB Member 

Board E-News (see attachment F.2). 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. LARE California and National Pass Rates 

2. CLARB Member Board E-News (December 2016) 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Attachment F.1 


Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE) 
California and National Pass Rates 

LARE Sections 

1 - Project and Construction Administration 
2 - Inventory and Analysis 
3 - Design 
4 - Grading, Drainage and Construction Documentation 

2014 March 31-April 12 August 18-30 December 1-13 Total 
California National California National California National California National 

Section Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff. Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff. Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff. 
1 46 33 72% 351 260 74% -2% 59 40 68% 303 203 67% 1% 53 39 74% 296 219 74% 0% 158 112 71% 950 682 72% -1% 
2 47 26 55% 326 222 68% -13% 46 32 70% 271 192 71% -1% 58 40 69% 314 223 71% -2% 151 98 65% 911 637 70% -5% 
3 28 22 79% 275 215 78% 1% 34 17 50% 251 175 70% -20% 37 28 76% 250 180 72% 4% 99 67 68% 776 570 73% -5% 
4 48 28 58% 338 210 62% -4% 46 24 52% 271 159 59% -7% 37 14 38% 301 163 54% -16% 131 66 50% 910 532 58% -8% 

2015 April 6-18 August 3-15 November 30 - December 13 Total 
California National California National California National California National 

Section Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff. Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff. Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff. 
1 61 41 67% 420 327 77% -10% 42 27 64% 258 185 72% -8% 77 62 81% 373 283 76% 5% 180 130 72% 1051 795 76% -3% 
2 64 37 58% 380 269 70% -12% 45 32 71% 286 208 73% -2% 66 42 64% 349 258 74% -10% 175 111 63% 1015 735 72% -9% 
3 50 37 74% 343 260 75% -1% 39 22 56% 285 208 73% -17% 47 28 60% 317 228 72% -12% 136 87 64% 945 696 74% -10% 
4 50 25 50% 348 201 57% -7% 53 35 66% 301 201 67% -1% 52 32 62% 346 218 63% -1% 155 92 59% 995 620 62% -3% 

2016 April 4-16 August 1-13 December 5-17 
California National California National California National 

Section Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff. Total Pass % Total Pass % Diff. 
1 78 53 68% 426 307 72% -4% 52 38 73% 327 229 70% 3% 
2 78 44 56% 420 302 72% -16% 77 52 68% 323 249 77% -9% 
3 65 43 66% 377 271 72% -6% 55 39 71% 254 201 79% -8% 
4 54 19 35% 370 226 61% -26% 59 35 59% 281 180 64% -5% 



CLAJIB 

Board of Oi1ect00 

meet1n1 minutes 

are ■vail■ble 

COUN IL OF LAND CAPE AR! HLTE TURAL 
RECI TRATION BOARD 

embe Board E-News 

April Apn 
odmimstTation adm, rof1on April 

registration regiStra ion administration 
0 n doses 

DECIMBER27 MARCH 17 MARCH 'lJ -APRIL 8 

WEEK OF JANUARY 23 

December 
odminis1ralion 

results available 
to lloords 

Upcoming L.A.R.E. Dates 

Attachment F.2 


December 
2016 

Boards requiring pre-approval may submit their pre-approval 
lists any time prior to and during registration. 

Now Accepting Nominations 

The Committee on Nominations encourages you to 
nominate any eligible individual who you feel has 
distinguished himself/herself as a potential leader and 
who you believe would be an ambassador for the CLARB 
Community. 

Nominations are open for positions on the Board of 
Directors and Committee on Nominations. 

Please review the e-mail sent to members on December 
12 for detailed information regarding the nominations 
process as well as testimonials from two past 
presidents. Nominations will be accepted until Friday, 
January 13, 2017. 

If have questions about making a nomination or the 
nominations and election process, you may contact Randy Weatherly, Chair, Committee on 
Nominations, or Veronica Meadows. 

http://cl.exct.net/?qs=895c6b0f9ffbd03471ef672bea955ebe4deb5d8691236993942b1e0c75d03b5754b7605e259aa6ce
mailto:rdw@amblerarchitects.com?subject=CLARB%20Nominations
mailto:vmeadows@clarb.org?subject=Elections
http://cl.exct.net/?qs=895c6b0f9ffbd034b6e4f643a947ecddec6e4cc4c1b273ae3ad113a60272833fbb6965f4b7db4221
http://cl.exct.net/?qs=895c6b0f9ffbd034de01e76db18b18f0adc019630b2fc9bfc535f289b7f4b29e4862ae0e88edfab2


111 Corn )tf 
111 - ml'tr,tm 

The profession I sm, upport and talen of our volunteer Is 
~ and v~ ~ o CLARB. 

Pleas Join u In th nkln them all for th i time, effort nd service. 

FARB Requests Your Participation 

A note from FARB on their request for Member Board 
Executives and Member Board Members to complete this 
survey: 

On behalf of the Federation of Associations of Regulatory Boards (FARB), we request your 
participation in this important survey. 

FARB is gathering data with the intent to be a resource for the regulatory community and a 
positive voice regarding common sense regulation. Please answer the survey questions from 
your perspective as a participant with a regulatory board. We ask for candid comments to allow 
for an accurate reflection of the subject matter. These are important times and ripe for a critical 
analysis of regulation. 

The aggregate results will be reported at the 2017 FARB Forum in San Antonio, Texas, and will 
be made available on the FARB website. The survey should take approximately 20 minutes to 
complete. The deadline for response is January 3, 2017. 

Survey link: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/FARB2016Survey 

Again, thank you for your time and input with this valuable information. 

http://cl.exct.net/?qs=895c6b0f9ffbd034de053f6e734a680408d8513e38c8c2ee97e4c58ea6c305dfb878c40a0eaa0b1c
http://cl.exct.net/?qs=895c6b0f9ffbd034954de95a96fd0be91c49c350ebfc850d8e1381e6fecac0ff4e739bb3b76d55ea


Additions 
Alison Halter 

Council Records Coordinator 

Marisa Kushner 
Communications Specialist 

Juan~ Summers 
Accounting Assistant 

Title Updates & Promotions 
Veronica Meadows 

Senior Director of Strategy 
Rebecca Moden 

Director of Operations 

Emily Parker 
Exams Coordinator 

Morgan Parker 
Meetings Coordinator 

Missy Sutton 
Member Engagement Manager 

New York Develops New Practice Guidelines 

Over the past two years, the New York State Board for Landscape 
Architecture and the New York Education Department's (NYSED) 
Office of the Professions researched the profession and developed 
a set of practice guidelines for registered and licensed landscape 
architects in their state. 

The practice guidelines are intended to give licensed landscape architects useful information on 
good and recommended practices in the profession and are offered as a supplement reflecting 
current common practice areas and concerns. By knowing and understanding what is 
recommended, licensees will be positioned to minimize and eliminate practice that may lead to 
professional complaints. 

New York has developed the guidelines to address 23 areas of practice broken into three 
general categories: seal and signature; practice; and client relations. Each guideline describes a 
potentially problematic practice area and includes situations where landscape architects may 
face professional misconduct laws, rules, and regulations. Rob Lopez, New York's Member 
Board Executive and a member of CLARB's MBE Committee, gives one example his Board is 
asked almost every day and where it appears in the practice guidelines: "Guideline B.5 does a 
'deep dive' into the question of the types of permissible corporate entities that can be formed in 
New York and who needs to be licensed and registered within the practice." 

Congratulations to New York on a successful and collaborative effort. The practice guidelines 
provide valuable information to landscape architects in New York and demonstrates one 
example of increasing relevancy in the changing face of regulation. 

http://cl.exct.net/?qs=895c6b0f9ffbd034fec544be262556f9341ffbc563d1d8672ced1bd29d0f6687dcdc7620af514dc4
http://cl.exct.net/?qs=fe14a9b6577aa66c51ac8099cb25de3b8e047c462a830d1666106f6c438a8a0bbef4faebd504438a
http://cl.exct.net/?qs=895c6b0f9ffbd034c49877c077b7d6bc522d7e4fc0810b90e66d54d73f66e83d9ab1206563f3df24





 

Determining Student Success on the 
L.A.R.E. 

CLARB's Determinants of Success study, conducted in 2009, 
demonstrated that candidates were more successful on 
Sections 1 and 2 of the L.A.R.E. the closer they took it to 
graduation. This important finding shifted our thinking and 
ultimately resulted in many jurisdictions allowing earlier 
testing. With this in mind, CLARB would like to establish if 
students, currently enrolled in their landscape architecture 
programs, will be as successful as their recently graduated peers. To demonstrate this, CLARB 
will be conducting a study over the next two years with the support of the Ontario Association of 
Landscape Architecture. 

The research will begin in January 2017, and is being led by Kate Brown, CLARB's Student 
Outreach Consultant. Study participants will include third and fourth year undergraduate 
landscape architecture students at the University of Guelph. Participant success on the exam 
will be tracked over the course of the study and the results will be presented to the membership 
at the Annual Meeting in 2018 in Toronto, Ontario. 

Kate began working as a consultant with CLARB in 2016 to assist with the development and 
implementation of a strategy to effectively reach students on the importance of licensure. Kate is 
an Olmstead Scholar, she earned her Bachelors of Landscape Architecture from the University 
of Guelph and is currently enrolled as a student in the Masters of Urban Design program at 
University of Toronto. 

In addition, Kate was successful in passing Section 1 of the L.A.R.E in her third year of 
undergraduate studies, wrote a book about her experience and has mentored other successful 
students through the L.A.R.E. 

You can follow Kate's work on CLARB's Instagram channel. Periodic updates to the membership 
will also be provided over the course of the study. For more information about the research, 
please contact Veronica Meadows. 

http://cl.exct.net/?qs=fe14a9b6577aa66c73240e00a96e7abdd5ddd7d4bc90240f6bfd36f2d60d1e4798f0e120c7102e22
mailto:vmeadows@clarb.org?subject=L.A.R.E.%20Student%20Pilot%20Program%20Question
http://cl.exct.net/?qs=fe14a9b6577aa66c12e227abbadee903255ce5f0a0a53a7949582496ccd2f9cb0f28c95bb93d1337


Agenda Item G 

DISCUSS AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE TO REVIEW 

TITLE 16, CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS (CCR) SECTION 2620 

(EDUCATION AND TRAINING CREDITS) TO EXPAND CREDIT FOR EDUCATION 

EXPERIENCE TO INCLUDE DEGREES IN RELATED AREAS OF STUDY 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s (LATC) Strategic Plan contains an objective to 

“Review California Code of Regulations (CCR), section 2620 to expand credit for education 

experience to include degrees in related areas of study.”  Currently, credit is granted for degrees or 

approved extension certificates in landscape architecture and architecture degrees accredited by the 

National Architectural Accreditation Board.  Below is background information on the development 

of current educational requirements outlined in CCR 2620 (see attachment G.1) and a summary of 

the LATC’s prior evaluation of alternative degrees. 

Background Information 

Prior to January 1, 1997, CCR 2620 included a provision to grant credit for any bachelors or 

associates degree towards the required six years of training experience, allowed eligibility to 

applicants with six years of training experience under the direct supervision of a licensed 

landscape architect in lieu of requiring education, and also granted up to one year of training credit 

for experience as, or under the supervision of, a licensed architect, registered civil engineer, 

licensed landscape contractor or certified nursery person.  In March 1994, the California Board of 

Landscape Architects (BLA) began discussing the possibility of increasing the maximum amount 

of credit allowed for experience as a licensed landscape contractor.  The BLA reviewed CCR 2620 

and determined that, in order to grant additional credit for landscape contractor experience, the 

education requirement should be changed.  In November 1994, the BLA finalized revisions to 

CCR 2620 that would allow up to four years of training credit for landscape contractor experience 

and require all applicants to hold either a degree or approved extension certificate in landscape 

architecture in order to qualify for the licensing exams, and ultimately licensure.  These regulatory 

changes took effect on January 1, 1997.  

In August 2004, LATC formed an Education Subcommittee charged with evaluating California’s 

eligibility requirements for the national Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE) to 

ensure that applicants have appropriate educational and training/work experience before the 

examination is taken.  Specifically, the Subcommittee was to determine appropriate levels of 

experience as they relate to: 1) public health, safety, and welfare, and 2) successfully preparing 

applicants for the examination.  The Subcommittee met between October 8, 2005 and 

February 27, 2007.  

The Subcommittee discussed the acceptance of various “related” degrees that are either recognized 

by other states or were identified by Subcommittee members and/or LATC staff.  Consideration of 

accepting degrees related to landscape architecture was a result of the following: 1) Joint 

Legislative Sunset Review Committee (JLSRC) previously raised concerns regarding the fact that, 

prior to 1997, California applicants could receive educational credit for holding any type of 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



bachelor’s degree with a four-year curriculum; 2) Board grants educational credit for designated 

degrees related to architecture and unrelated degrees; 3) review of the neighboring and larger 

landscape architectural licensing jurisdictions (New York, Florida, Texas, Arizona, Hawaii, 

Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, and Washington) revealed that at least six out of those nine 

jurisdictions recognize degrees related to landscape architecture; and 4) at the time, Council of 

Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) allowed applicants to sit for the licensing 

examination with any type of bachelor’s degree, plus three years of diversified experience under 

the direct supervision of a licensed landscape architect. 

After extensive review of the research material and discussion at the June 17, 2005 meeting, the 

Subcommittee recommended that LATC accept accredited bachelor’s degrees in architecture and 

civil engineering to satisfy the education requirement for examination eligibility with a caveat of 

conducting further research on other related degree programs.  At the December 2, 2005 meeting, 

the Subcommittee discussed the additional research and agreed to recommend acceptance of 

accredited professional degrees in architecture and civil engineering (undergraduate and graduate 

degrees), as those degrees emphasize the acquisition of critical thinking and technical skills that 

are necessary to address health, safety, and welfare issues and are essential to the practice of 

landscape architecture.  Also at this meeting, the Subcommittee agreed to recommend one-year of 

educational credit be granted for completion of these degree programs.  One year of educational 

credit was agreed upon because the Subcommittee determined the curricula examined for such 

degree programs did not include sufficient specific exposure to landscape architecture related 

topics, but did address a certain measure of critical thinking and technical skills that are necessary 

to address health, safety, and welfare issues. 

The Subcommittee determined that there was not clear and/or comparable rationale for granting 

similar credit for other related degree programs based on their insufficient curriculum and/or lack 

of accreditation standards.  For example, urban design and horticulture degrees were considered 

and not included in this recommendation because they are either non-accredited or the coursework 

is not specifically related to the practice of landscape architecture.  

The Education Subcommittee’s findings and recommendations were approved by the LATC at its 

meeting on May 9, 2006 and presented to the California Architects Board (Board) at its meeting on 

June 7, 2006. At this meeting, the Board questioned education credit parity between architects and 

landscape architects. As a result of the Board’s parity question, the Education Subcommittee 

reconvened on November 8, 2006 and agreed to research the parity issue as it pertained to 

education curriculum for architects and civil engineers. At its February 27, 2007 meeting, the 

Subcommittee discussed the education curriculum research and decided to revise their earlier 

recommendation and recommend acceptance of accredited professional degrees in architecture, but 

not in civil engineering. Along with its earlier determination as to critical thinking and technical 

skills, the Subcommittee also noted that there were similar curriculum elements in the architectural 

degree programs in comparison to the landscape architecture programs and that it would warrant 

educational credit. The Education Subcommittee’s final recommendations (see attachment G.2) 

were approved by the LATC on May 4, 2007 and the Board on June 15, 2007. 

In July 2016, Department of Consumer Affairs legal staff reviewed Business and Professions Code 

section 5650 (Examinations - Qualifications, Application, Fee) and determined that it does not 

impose a degree requirement.  Instead, what it does impose is an experience requirement and 

allows a “degree from a school of landscape architecture approved by the board” to count as four 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



	 
	 

	 

	 

years toward California’s six-year experience requirement. Therefore, the LATC is not bound by 

statute to keep the current education requirement in place. 

Below displays the changes in qualifying educational credit: 

Maximum Credit 

Education Allowed Allowed Time Period Accepted 

Approved degree in Landscape Architecture 4 years Always 

Non-approved degree in Landscape 3 years Always 

Architecture 

Associate degree in Landscape Architecture 1 year Always 

Approved extension certificate in Landscape 2 years Always 

Architecture 

Any bachelor’s degree 2 years Prior to January 1, 1997 

Any associate degree 1 year Prior to January 1, 1997 

Accredited degree in architecture 1 year After March 7, 2012 

Partial completion of approved degree 1 year After March 7, 2012 

Partial completion of extension certificate 1 year After March 7, 2012 

Attachment G.3 is CCR section 2620 (Education and Training Credits), the Education 

Subcommittee Final Report, and a chart of degrees currently accepted by all CLARB jurisdictions.  

Of CLARB’s 52 member board jurisdictions, 31 grant educational credit for accredited 

engineering degrees and 28 grant educational credit for any bachelor’s degree. These jurisdictions 

require candidates to have additional experience credit in combination with their alternative degree 

to be eligible for licensure.  Among these jurisdictions, 12 grant credit for engineering degrees at 

the discretion of the licensing board and 9 grant credit for any bachelor’s degree in the same way.  

Of the jurisdictions that specify the amount of additional credit required in combination with an 

engineering degree, the average is 6 years (ranging from 2 to 10 years),   Of the jurisdictions that 

specify the amount of additional credit required in combination with any bachelor’s degree, the 

average is 5 years (ranging from 4 to 10 years),   

At today’s meeting, the Committee is asked to review the information provided and determine if 

additional degrees should be considered for credit towards California’s education requirement. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. CCR Section 2620 (Education and Training Credits) 

2. Education Subcommittee Final Report: The Evaluation of Education and Experience 

Requirements to Examine for Licensure (January 2010) 

3. Degrees Accepted by CLARB Jurisdictions for Initial Licensure 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



r•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••r•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••r••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

l ...................................................................................... i;:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::l .................................. i ....................................................................................... . ................................. . 

..................................................................................... .................................... ................................ . ...................................................................................... .................................... ................................. . 

-······················································································· -··································· .............................................................................................................................................................. 

..................................................................................... . ............................... . ...................................................................................... .................................... ................................. . 

-······················································································· .................................. . ...................................................................................... .................................... ............................... . 

·····················································································-·····································-··································· ......................................................................................................................................................... 

-······················································································· .................................. . 
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••r•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••r••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

II II I .......................................................................................................................................................... 

Attachment G.1 

California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26 

2620 Education and Training Credits 

The Board’s evaluation of a candidate’s training and educational experience is based on the following table: 

Experience Description 

Education 
Max. 

Credit 
Allowed 

Training 
and/or 
Practice 
Max. 
Credit 
Allowed 

(a) Experience Equivalent: 

(1) Degree in landscape 
architecture from an 
approved school. 

4 years 

(2) Degree in landscape 
architecture from a non-
approved school. 

3 years 

(3) Extension certificate in 
landscape architecture from 
an approved school. 

2 years 

(4) Associate degree in 
landscape architecture from 
a community college which 
consists of at least a 2-year 
curriculum. 

1 year 

(5) Extension certificate as 
specified in subdivision 
(a)(3) and a degree from a 
university or college which 
consists of a 4-year 
curriculum. 

4 years 

(6) Associate degree from a 
college specified in 
subdivision (a)(4) and an 
extension certificate as 
specified in subdivision 
(a)(3) of this section. 

3 years 

(7) Partial completion of a 
degree in landscape 
architecture from an 
approved school. 

1 year 

(8) Partial completion of an 
extension certificate in 
landscape architecture from 
an approved school where 
the applicant has a degree 
from a university or college 
which consists of a four-
year curriculum. 

1 year 



	

	 

	 

	 

·::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::··;:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::·::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::·· 

Experience Description 

Education 
Max. 

Credit 
Allowed 

Training 
and/or 
Practice 
Max. 
Credit 
Allowed 

(9) A degree in architecture 
which consists of at least a 
four-year curriculum that 
has been accredited by the 
National Architectural 
Accrediting Board. 

1 year 

(10) Self employment as, or 
employment by, a 
landscape architect licensed 
in the jurisdiction where the 
experience occurred shall 
be granted credit on a 100% 
basis. 

5 years 

(11) Self employment as, or 
employment by, a licensed 
architect or registered civil 
engineer in the jurisdiction 
where the experience 
occurred shall be granted 
credit on a 100% basis. 

1 year 

(12) Self employment as a 
California licensed 
landscape contractor or a 
licensed landscape 
contractor in another 
jurisdiction where the scope 
of practice for landscape 
contracting is equivalent to 
that allowed in this state 
pursuant to Business and 
Professions Code Section 
7027.5 and Cal. Code Regs. 
Title 16, Section 832.27 
shall be granted credit on a 
100% basis 

4 years 

(b) Education credits 
(1) Candidates shall possess at least one year of educational credit to be eligible for the 

examination. 
(2) A degree from a school with a landscape architecture program shall be defined as one 

of the following: 
(A) Bachelor of Landscape Architecture. 
(B) Bachelor of Science in landscape architecture. 
(C) Bachelor of Arts in landscape architecture. 
(D) Masters degree in landscape architecture. 

(3) The maximum credit which may be granted for a degree or combination of degrees 
from an approved school shall be four years of educational credit. 

(4) A degree from a school with a landscape architecture program shall be deemed to be 
approved by the Board if the landscape architectural curriculum has been approved by 



	 

	

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 
	 

	 

the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB) as specified in its publication: 
“Accreditation Standards And Procedures” dated February 6, 2010 or the Board 
determines that the program has a curriculum equivalent to a curriculum having LAAB 
accreditation. 

(5) For purposes of subdivisions (a)(7) and (8), “partial completion” shall mean that the 
candidate completed at least 80 percent of the total units required for completion of the 
4-year degree or extension certificate program. 

(6) Except as provided in subdivisions (a)(7) and (8), no credit shall be granted for academic 
units obtained without earning a degree or extension certificate under categories of 
subdivisions (a)(1), (2), (3) or (4) of this section. 

(7) A candidate enrolled in a degree program where credit earned is based on work 
experience courses (e.g., internship or co-op program) shall not receive more than the 
maximum credit allowed for degrees under subdivisions (a)(1), (2) or (3) of this section. 

(8) Except as specified in subdivision (a)(5) and (6) of this section, candidates with multiple 
degrees shall not be able to accumulate credit for more than one degree. 

(9) The Board shall not grant more than four years of credit for any degree or certificate or 
any combination thereof for qualifying educational experience. 

(c) Training Credits 
(1)(A) Candidates shall possess at least two years of training/practice credit to be eligible 

for the examination. 
(B) At least one of the two years of training/practice credit shall be under the direct 

supervision of a landscape architect licensed in a United States jurisdiction, and 
shall be gained in one of the following forms: 
1. After graduation from an educational institution specified in subdivisions (a)(1), 

(2), (3) or (4) of this section. 
2. After completion of education experience specified in subdivisions (a)(7) and (8) 

of this section. 
(C) A candidate shall be deemed to have met the provisions of subdivision (c)(1)(B) if 

he or she possesses a degree from a school specified in subdivision (a)(1) and has 
at least two years of training/practice credit as a licensed landscape contractor or 
possesses a certificate from a school specified in subdivision (a)(3) and has at 
least four years of training/practice credit as a licensed landscape contractor. 

(2) Candidates shall be at least 18 years of age or a high school graduate before they shall 
be eligible to receive credit for work experience. 

(3) A year of training/practice experience shall consist of 1500 hours of qualifying 
employment. Training/practice experience may be accrued on the basis of part-time 
employment. Employment in excess of 40 hours per week shall not be considered. 

(d) Miscellaneous Information 
(1) Independent, non-licensed practice or experience, regardless of claimed coordination, 

liaison, or supervision of licensed professionals shall not be considered. 
(2) The Board shall retain inactive applications for a five (5) year period. Thereafter, the 

Board shall purge these records unless otherwise notified by the candidate. A 
candidate who wishes to reapply to the Board, shall be required to re-obtain the 
required documents to allow the Board to determine their current eligibility. 

Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 5650, Business 
and Professions Code. 




 


 

LANDSCAPE 

ARCHITECTS 

1E CHN I CAL 

C OMMI TTEE 

Attachment G.2 


Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

THE EVALUATION OF 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS 

TO EXAMINE FOR LICENSURE 

January 2010 




 Credits and Contact Information 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee would like to thank the Education 
Subcommittee volunteers for all their time, effort, and long-term commitment to the report. 

Richard Zweifel, Chair 
Christine Anderson 
Linda Gates 
Steve Lang 
Alexis Slafer 

Contacting the Landscape Architects Committee and Copies of Report 

All communication should be addressed to: 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 • Sacramento, CA 95834 • P (916) 575-7230 • F (916) 575-7285 
latc@dca.ca.gov • www.latc.ca.gov 

Approved January 2010 

http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov



 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary 1 

List of Recommended Changes as Approved by Landscape Architects 

Technical Committee and California Architects Board 

Other Eligibility Issues Reviewed and Retained 

Intent of Recommendations 

Examples of Impacts 

Background/History 5 

History of Statutory and Regulatory Law 

The Practice of Landscape Architects 

Associated Professions 

Architects 

Civil Engineers 

Landscape Contractors 

Landscape Designers 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s Actions 

Current Licensure Standard and Recommended Changes 11 

Statutory Law 

Regulatory Law 

Education and Experience Requirement Comparison 15 

Landscape Architecture Examination 

Comparison with ‘Model’ Requirements used by CLARB for Examination Eligibility 

Synopsis of Current Paths to Qualify for Exam/Licensure 

Other CLARB Member Boards 

Other Board Requirements for Examination Eligibility 

California Architects Board 

Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors 




 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 

California Board for Geologists and Geophysicists 

Contractors State Licensing Board 

Education 21 

Education Equivalences 

Accredited Universities 

Extension Certificate Programs 

Community Colleges 

Out of State 

Foreign Education in Landscape Architecture 

Experience 25 

Types of Experience 

When is experience gained? 

How is experience verified? 

Is an Internship Required? 

Experience Summary 

Conclusion 27 

Improving Access to Licensure 

Growth and Demand in the Profession 

History of Licensees Chart 

Appendices & Notes 31 

Appendix A--Approved Recommendations and Justification 

Appendix B—Related Studies 

October 2004 - Landscape Architects Body of Knowledge (LABOK) 

December 2006 – DCA Office of Examination Resources, California Validation Report 

2006 - Thompson Prometric National Task Analysis 

Appendix C—Meeting Notes Summaries 

Notes 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) formed an Education Subcommittee 
in 2004 in response to the Joint Legislative Sunset Review Committee’s recommendation to 
further evaluate California’s eligibility requirements and access to landscape architecture 
licensure in California. The intent of the evaluation was to ensure that applicants have 
appropriate educational and training/work experience prior to taking the required 
examination. Specifically, the Subcommittee was to determine appropriate levels of 
landscape architecture education and training preparation as related to public health, safety, 
and welfare in California and successfully preparing applicants for the examination. 

As part of its charge, and with the assistance of LATC staff, the Educational Subcommittee 
also provides a comparative analysis of several related discipline’s eligibility requirements as 
part of their assessment and basis for recommendations that were then vetted, modified and 
approved by the LATC and the California Architects Board (CAB): 

∝ Council of Landscape Architectural Regulatory Boards (CLARB’s) national eligibility 
requirements 

∝ Eligibility requirements of neighboring and larger licensing jurisdictions 

∝ Eligibility requirements of other design professional boards (CAB and Board for 
Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors) 

∝ Eligibility requirements pertaining to the type and duration of training/work experience 

∝ Any additional licensure requirements of other jurisdictions that may pertain to the 
subcommittee’s charge including requirements for reciprocity 

∝ Curricula of California landscape architectural programs with specific attention to 
licensing examination subject matter 

List of Recommended Changes as Approved by Landscape Architects Technical Committee and 
California Architects Board 

The following are the summary recommendations that were initiated by the Education 
Subcommittee with subsequent review and approval by the LATC and CAB. They were 
developed in response to the Joint Legislative Sunset Review Committee’s findings regarding 
increasing access to landscape architecture licensure. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 
 
 
 
 

∝ Accept accredited professional architecture degree as meeting the education requirement 
for eligibility 

∝ Based on a transcript review of major and support courses, grant credit for partial 
completion of an accredited landscape architecture degree allowing minimum “education” 
eligibility for examination 

∝ Allow early eligibility to begin examination, prior to meeting work experience 
requirements, for candidates with an accredited degree or approved extension certificate 
in landscape architecture 

∝ Develop and implement a candidate education/ experience tracking system and 
reciprocity candidate tracking system to collect objective data regarding preparation and 
success for examination 

∝ Revise certificate of applicant’s experience form to include more specific information 
regarding the preparation recommended for California examination and licensure 

∝ Develop and communicate additional student/ candidate/educator/employer information 
regarding examination and California licensure 

Other Eligibility Issues Reviewed and Retained 

The LATC thoroughly assessed the full spectrum of education and experience requirements 
and determined that the following should remain unchanged. 

∝ Retain the six-year education/experience requirements 
∝ Retain credit for associate degrees in landscape architecture 
∝ Retain current reciprocity requirements 
∝ Not implement a rolling time clock to limit the number of years for a candidate to obtain 

licensure 
∝ Not allow licensure with work experience alone 
∝ Not provide credit for teaching and research experience 

As a result of the review, it was determined that further outcome assessment regarding 
candidate examination success and preparation would be needed to determine if additional 
modification to the eligibility requirements may be warranted. The Subcommittee 
recommended that additional candidate tracking procedures be implemented to provide the 
necessary data. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Intent of Recommendations 

The LATC anticipates that implementing the recommendations will improve access to 
qualified individuals interested in becoming landscape architects. Examples of expanded 
eligibility access include: 

∝ Applicants with an accredited degree in architecture will be determined to have met the 
educational access component for examination eligibility 

∝ Applicants who can demonstrate successful completion of a majority of an accredited 
landscape architecture degree, will be determined to have met the minimum educational 
access component for examination eligibility 

∝ Candidates will be allowed access to the multiple choice sections of the national licensure 
examination upon graduation thereby encouraging a clear and continuous path to 
licensure 

∝ LATC will be better able to identify specific correlations with education and work 
experience preparation requirements with examination success 

∝ Information guide(s) will identify preparation expectations for licensure success in 
California for candidates, educators and students 

∝ Candidates and employers will be better able to identify on-the-job duties that relate to 
LARE and California examination 




 BACKGROUND/HISTORY 

History of Statutory and Regulatory Law 

With the roots of the profession in North America dating back to 1860, California became the 
first U.S. jurisdiction to regulate the practice of landscape architecture in 1953 with the 
formation of the Board of Landscape Architects (BLA). In 1997, the BLA was sunset by the 
California Legislature and restructured in 1998 as the Landscape Architects Technical 
Committee (LATC) under the California Architects Board (CAB). Today, 49 states, two 
Canadian provinces, and Puerto Rico regulate the practice of landscape architecture. 
California has both a practice act, which precludes unlicensed individuals from practicing 
landscape architecture, and a title act, which restricts the use to the title “landscape 
architect” to those who have been licensed by the LATC. 

There are currently more than 20,000 licensed landscape architects in the United States. The 
LATC licenses more than 3,700 landscape architects, who are responsible for the design and 
planning of millions of dollars worth of public sector, private development, and residential 
projects. 

The Practice of Landscape Architects 

Landscape architecture is a profession that involves planning and designing the use, 
allocation and arrangement of land and water resources through the creative application of 
biological, physical, mathematical, and social processes. Based on environmental, physical, 
social and economic considerations, landscape architects produce overall guidelines, reports, 
master plans, conceptual plans, construction contract documents, and construction oversight 
for landscape projects that create a balance between the needs and wants of people and the 
limitations of the environment. Specific services include city planning and development, 
environmental restoration, regional landscape planning, urban/town planning, park and 
recreation planning, ecological planning and design, landscape design, code research and 
compliance, cost analysis, and historic preservation. The decisions and performance of 
landscape architects affect the health, safety, and welfare of the client, as well as that of the 
public and environment. Therefore, it is essential that landscape architects meet minimum 
standards of competency. 



The LATC’s regulation of the practice of landscape architecture protects both direct 
consumers of landscape architectural services and the public at large – the millions of people 
who use or visit the spaces designed by landscape architects.i 

The California Business and Professions Code defines the practice of landscape architecture 
as: 

§ 5615. "Landscape Architect" — Practice of Landscape Architecture 
"Landscape architect" means a person who holds a license to practice landscape architecture in this state under the 
authority of this chapter. 

A person who practices landscape architecture within the meaning and intent of this article is a person who offers or 
performs professional services, for the purpose of landscape preservation, development and enhancement, such as 
consultation, investigation, reconnaissance, research, planning, design, preparation of drawings, construction 
documents and specifications, and responsible construction observation. Landscape preservation, development and 
enhancement is the dominant purpose of services provided by landscape architects. Implementation of that purpose 
includes: (1) the preservation and aesthetic and functional enhancement of land uses and natural land features; (2) the 
location and construction of aesthetically pleasing and functional approaches and settings for structures and roadways; 
and, (3) design for trails and pedestrian walkway systems, plantings, landscape irrigation, landscape lighting, 
landscape grading and landscape drainage. 

Landscape architects perform professional work in planning and design of land for human use and enjoyment. Based 
on analyses of environmental physical and social characteristics, and economic considerations, they produce overall 
plans and landscape project designs for integrated land use. 

The practice of a landscape architect may, for the purpose of landscape preservation, development and enhancement, 
include: investigation, selection, and allocation of land and water resources for appropriate uses; feasibility studies; 
formulation of graphic and written criteria to govern the planning and design of land construction programs; preparation 
review, and analysis of master plans for land use and development; production of overall site plans, landscape grading 
and landscape drainage plans, irrigation plans, planting plans, and construction details; specifications; cost estimates 
and reports for land development; collaboration in the design of roads, bridges, and structures with respect to the 
functional and aesthetic requirements of the areas on which they are to be placed; negotiation and arrangement for 
execution of land area projects; field observation and inspection of land area construction, restoration, and 
maintenance. 

This practice shall include the location, arrangement, and design of those tangible objects and features as are 
incidental and necessary to the purposes outlined herein. Nothing herein shall preclude a duly licensed landscape 
architect from planning the development of land areas and elements used thereon or from performing any of the 
services described in this section in connection with the settings, approaches, or environment for buildings, structures, 
or facilities, in accordance with the accepted public standards of health, safety, and welfare.”ii 



Associated Professions 

Architects 

Architects are licensed by CAB. They research, plan, design, and administer building projects 
for clients, applying knowledge of design, construction procedures, zoning and building codes, 
and building materials. They consult with clients to determine functional and spatial 
requirements of new structure or renovation, and prepare information regarding design, 
specifications, materials, color, equipment, estimated costs, and construction time. They also 
plan the layout of the project and integrate engineering elements. 

The California Business and Professions Code defines the practice of architecture as: 

§ 5500.1 Practice of Architecture Defined 
“(a) The practice of architecture within the meaning and intent of this chapter is defined as offering or performing, or 
being in responsible control of, professional services which require the skills of an architect in the planning of 
sites, and the design, in whole or in part, of buildings, or groups of buildings and structures. 
(b) Architects' professional services may include any or all of the following: 
(1) Investigation, evaluation, consultation, and advice. 
(2) Planning, schematic and preliminary studies, designs, working drawings, and specifications. 
(3) Coordination of the work of technical and special consultants. 
(4) Compliance with generally applicable codes and regulations, and assistance in the governmental review process. 
(5) Technical assistance in the preparation of bid documents and agreements between clients and contractors. 
(6) Contract administration. 
(7) Construction observation.” 

Under the Landscape Architects Practice Act, a licensed architect is exempt from the 
provisions of the Landscape Architects Practice Act except that an architect may not use the 
title “landscape architect” unless he or she holds a landscape architect license as required. 

Civil Engineers 

Civil engineers are licensed by the Board for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors. 
They plan, design, and direct civil engineering projects, such as roads, railroads, airports, 
bridges, harbors, channels, dams, irrigation systems, pipelines, and power plants; analyze 
reports, maps, drawings, blueprints, tests, and aerial photographs on soil composition, 
terrain, hydrological characteristics, and other topographical and geologic data to plan and 
design a project. They calculate costs and determine feasibility of projects based on analysis 
of collected data, applying knowledge and techniques of engineering, and advanced 
mathematics.iii 

The California Business and Professions Code defines the practice of civil engineer as: 

§ 6701. Professional Engineer Defined 
“’Professional engineer,’ within the meaning and intent of this act, refers to a person engaged in the professional 
practice of rendering service or creative work requiring education, training and experience in engineering sciences and 
the application of special knowledge of the mathematical, physical and engineering sciences in such professional or 
creative work as consultation, investigation, evaluation, planning or design of public or private utilities, structures, 
machines, processes, circuits, buildings, equipment or projects, and supervision of construction for the purpose of 
securing compliance with specifications and design for any such work.” 

§ 6702. Civil engineer defined 




 



“’Civil engineer’ as used in this chapter means a professional engineer in the branch of civil engineering and refers to 
one who practices or offers to practice civil engineering in any of its phases.” 

Under the Landscape Architects Practice Act, a licensed professional engineer is exempt from 
the provisions of the Landscape Architects Practice Act except that a licensed engineer may 
not use the title “landscape architect” unless he or she holds a landscape architect license as 
required. 

Landscape Contractors 

Landscape contractors are licensed by the Contractors State License Board, and must install 
their own designs or the design work of landscape architects. Landscape contractors cannot 
prepare independent landscape plans they do not install. A landscape contractor constructs, 
maintains, repairs, installs, or subcontracts the development of landscape systems and 
facilities for public and private gardens and other areas. In connection therewith, a landscape 
contractor prepares and grades plots and areas of land for the installation of any 
architectural, horticultural and decorative treatment or arrangement. 

California Code of Regulations 
Title 16, Division 8, Article 3. Classifications: C27 - Landscaping Contractor 
“A landscape contractor constructs, maintains, repairs, installs, or subcontracts the development of landscape systems 
and facilities for public and private gardens and other areas which are designed to aesthetically, architecturally, 
horticulturally, or functionally improve the grounds within or surrounding a structure or a tract or plot of land. In 
connection therewith, a landscape contractor prepares and grades plots and areas of land for the installation of any 
architectural, horticultural and decorative treatment or arrangement.” 

Under the Landscape Architects Practice Act, a licensed landscape contractor may design 
systems and facilities for work to be performed and supervised by that landscape contractor. 
A licensed landscape contractor may not use the title “landscape architect” unless he or she 
holds a landscape architect license. 



Landscape Designers 

A landscape designer is unlicensed and may only prepare plans, drawings, and specifications 
for the selection, placement, or use of plants for single-family dwellings; and drawings for the 
conceptual design and placement of tangible objects and landscape features. Due to 
limitations provided in the Landscape Architects Practice Act regarding unlicensed 
practitioners, they may not prepare construction documents, details, or specifications for 
tangible landscape objects or landscape features or prepare grading and drainage plans for 
the alteration of sites. Unlicensed individuals may not use the title “landscape architect,” 
“landscape architecture,” “landscape architectural,” or any other titles, words or 
abbreviations that would imply or indicate that he or she is a landscape architect. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Actions 

During the 1996 Joint Legislative Sunset Review Committee (JLSRC) review, it was 
recommended that Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) review the six-year education 
and experience requirement to determine if it is justified. This review did not occur due to the 
sunset of the Landscape Architects Board in 1998. 

The JLSRC 2004 Recommendations and the 2004 LATC Strategic Plan directed the LATC 
to identify examination eligibility issues, propose solutions and report to DCA and the 
Legislature if changes should be made to this requirement. The Strategic Plan further directs 
the LATC to, if necessary, modify examination eligibility requirements under California Code 
of Regulations (CCR), Title 16, Division 26, Section 2620, and prepare “guidelines” for 
meeting examination experience requirements.iv 

An Education Subcommittee was formed August 2004 and charged with evaluating 
California’s eligibility requirements for the national Landscape Architects Registration 
Examination (LARE) to ensure that applicants have appropriate educational and 
training/work experience before the examination is taken.  Specifically, the Subcommittee’s 
charge was to determine appropriate levels of experience as they relate to: 1) public health, 
safety and welfare in California, and 2) successfully preparing applicants for the examination. 
The Subcommittee met between October 8, 2005 and February 27, 2007. After subsequent 
meetings with the LATC and the California Architects Board (CAB), the recommendations 
were shared with the California Council of the American Society of Landscape Architects and 
approved by the LATC on May 4, 2007 and CAB on June 15, 2007. A summary of the 
meeting notes is included in Appendix C. 




 CURRENT LICENSURE STANDARD AND RECOMMENDED CHANGES 

Statutory Law 

California Business and Professions Code Section 5650-Examinations-Qualifications, 
Application, Fee states: 

“Subject to the rules and regulations governing examinations, any person, over the age of 18 
years, who has had six years of training and educational experience in actual practice of 
landscape architectural work shall be entitled to an examination for a certificate to practice 
landscape architecture. A degree from a school of landscape architecture approved by the board 
shall be deemed equivalent to four years of training and educational experience in the actual 
practice of landscape architecture. Before taking the examination, a person shall file an 
application therefore with the executive officer and pay the application fee fixed by this chapter.” 

Regulatory Law 

California Code of Regulations are stated below with the impact of the LATC recommended 
changes in strike-out / underline format: 

§ 2615. Form of Examinations. 

(a) (1) A candidate who has a combination of six years of education and training experience as specified in section 
2620 shall be eligible and may apply for the Landscape Architect Registration Examination. 

(2) Notwithstanding subdivision (a)(1), a candidate who has a Board approved degree in landscape architecture in 
accordance with section 2620(a)(1) or an extension certificate in landscape architecture from a Board approved school 
in accordance with section 2620(a)(3) shall be eligible and may apply for the multiple choice sections of the Landscape 
Architect Registration Examination. 
(b) A candidate shall be deemed eligible and may apply for the California Supplemental Examination upon passing all 
sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination. 
(c) All candidates applying for licensure as a landscape architect shall pass all sections of the Landscape Architect 
Registration Examination or a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 
California, as determined by the Board, and the California Supplemental Examination subject to the following 
provisions: 
(a) (1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto 
Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California 
as determined by the board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination. 
(b) (2) A candidate who is not a licensed landscape architect and who has received credit from a U.S. jurisdiction, 
Canadian province, or Puerto Rico for a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter 
required in California shall be entitled to receive credit for the corresponding sections of the Landscape Architect 
Registration Examination, as determined by the Board, and shall be eligible for licensure upon passing any remaining 
sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination and the California Supplemental Examination. 

2620. Education and Training Credits-Operative on 
January 1, 1997 
The Board's evaluation of a candidate's training and educational experience is based on the following table: 

Experience Description 
Education 
Max. Credit 

Allowed 

Training and/or 
Practice Max. 
Credit Allowed 

(a) Experience Equivalent: 

(1) Degree in landscape architecture from an approved school. 4 years 



Experience Description 
Education 
Max. Credit 

Allowed 

Training and/or 
Practice Max. 
Credit Allowed 

(2) Degree in landscape architecture from a non-approved school. 3 years 

(3) Extension certificate in landscape architecture from an approved school. 2 years 

(4) Associate degree in landscape architecture from a city/community college which consists of a 
least a 2-year curriculum. 

1 year 

(5) Extension certificate as specified in subdivision (a)(3) and a degree from a university or college 
which consists of a 4-year curriculum. 

4 years 

(6) Associate degree from a college specified in subdivision (a)(4) and an extension certificate as 
specified in subdivision (a)(3) of this section. 

3 years 

(7) Partial completion of a degree in landscape architecture from an approved school. 1 year 

(8) Partial completion of an extension certificate in landscape architecture from an approved school 
where the applicant has a degree from a university or college which consists of a four-year 
curriculum. 

1 year 

(9) A degree in architecture which consists of at least a four-year curriculum that has been 
accredited by the National Architectural Accrediting Board. 

1 year 

(710) Self employment as, or employment by, a landscape architect licensed in the jurisdiction 
where the experience occurred shall be granted credit on a 100% basis. 

5 years 

(811) Self employment as, or employment by, a licensed architect or registered civil engineer in the 
jurisdiction where the experience occurred shall be granted credit on a 100% basis. 

1 year 

(912) Self employment as a California licensed landscape contractor or a licensed landscape 
contractor in another jurisdiction where the scope of practice for landscape contracting is equivalent 
to that allowed in this state pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 7027.5 and Cal. 
Code Regs. Title 16, Section 832.27 shall be granted credit on a 100% basis. 

4 years 

(b) Education Credits. 
(1) Candidates shall possess at least one year of educational credit to be eligible for the examination. 
(2) A degree from a school with a landscape architecture program shall be defined as one of the following: 

(A) Bachelor of Landscape Architecture. 
(B) Bachelor of Science in landscape architecture. 
(C) Bachelor of Arts in landscape architecture. 
(D) Masters degree in landscape architecture. 

(3) The maximum credit which may be granted for a degree or combination of degrees from an approved school shall 
be four years of educational credit. 

(4) A degree from a school with a landscape architecture program shall be deemed to be approved by the Board if 
the landscape architectural curriculum has been approved by the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB) 
as specified in its publication: "Accreditation Standards for Programs in Landscape Architecture" dated February 26, 
1990 or the Board determines that the program has a curriculum equivalent to a curriculum having LAAB accreditation. 

(5) For purposes of subdivisions (a)(7) and (8), “partial completion” shall mean that the candidate completed at least 
80 percent of the total units required for completion of the 4-year degree or extension certificate program. 

(36) No Except as provided in subdivisions (a)(7) and (8), no credit shall be granted for academic units obtained 
without earning a degree or extension certificate under categories of subsection (a)(1), (2), (3) or (4) of this section. 

(47) A candidate enrolled in a degree program where credit earned is based on work experience courses (e.g., 
internship or co-op program) shall not receive more than the maximum credit allowed for degrees under subdivision 
(a)(1), (2) or (3) of this section. 

(58) Except as specified in subdivision (a)(5) and (6) of this section, candidates with multiple degrees shall not be 
able to accumulate credit for more than one degree. 

(69) The Board shall not grant more than four years of credit for any degree or certificate or any combination thereof 



for qualifying educational experience. 
(c) Training Credits 

(1)(A) Candidates shall possess at least two years of training/practice credit to be eligible for the examination. 
(B) At least one of the two years of training/practice credit shall be under the direct supervision of a landscape 

architect licensed in a United States jurisdiction, and shall be gained in one of the following forms: 
1. Aafter graduation from an educational institution specified in subdivision (a)(1), (2), (3), or (4) or (9) of this 

section. 
2. After completion of education experience specified in subdivision under (a)(7) and (8) of this section. 

(C) A candidate shall be deemed to have met the provisions of subdivision (c)(1)(B) if he or she possesses a 
degree from a school specified in subdivision (a)(1) and has at least two years of training/practice credit as a licensed 
landscape contractor or possesses a certificate from a school specified in subdivision (a)(3) and has at least four years 
of training/practice credit as a licensed landscape contractor. 

(2) Candidates shall be at least 18 years of age or a high school graduate before they shall be eligible to receive 
credit for work experience. 

(3) A year of training/practice experience shall consist of 1500 hours of qualifying employment. Training/practice 
experience may be accrued on the basis of part-time employment. Employment in excess of 40 hours per week shall 
not be considered. 
(d) Miscellaneous Information 

(1) Independent, non-licensed practice or experience, regardless of claimed coordination, liaison, or supervision of 
licensed professionals shall not be considered. 

(2) The Board shall retain inactive applications for a five (5) year period. Thereafter, the Board shall purge these 
records unless otherwise notified by the candidate. A candidate who wishes to reapply to the Board, shall be required 
to re-obtain the required documents to allow the Board to determine their current eligibility.v 




 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENT COMPARISON 

In California, the LATC is the governing body over the practice of landscape architecture. In 
keeping with its highest priority of protection of the public, the LATC has established 
licensure eligibility and professional qualifications minimums that candidates must meet 
through a combination of preparation requirements. They include direct experience in the 
discipline, landscape architectural education and demonstration of knowledge through 
examination. 

Landscape Architecture Examination 

There are two separate examinations that candidates must successfully complete as a part of 
the licensure process in California. The first is the Landscape Architects Registration 
Examination (LARE). The LATC maintains a contract with the Council of Landscape 
Architects Registration Boards (CLARB) for them to develop, administer and grade the 
LARE. The LATC is a member of CLARB. CLARB is the sole provider for the LARE that is 
used by all 48 member boards throughout the United States and Canada. 

The second examination is the California Supplemental Examination developed and 
administered by the LATC. This examination consists of 100 multiple-choice questions 
designed to assess a candidate’s landscape architecture knowledge specific to California. The 
LARE must be successfully completed in order to be eligible for the California Supplemental 
Examination. 

The LARE is an inter-related, multi-section examination consisting of five interdependent 
sections covering landscape architecture competencies. There are three multiple-choice 
sections (A,B and D) and two graphic response sections (C and E) that require a drafted 
solution. 

∝ Section A - Project and Construction Administration 
∝ Section B - Inventory, Analysis and Program Development 
∝ Section C - Site Design 
∝ Section D - Design and Construction Documentation 
∝ Section E - Grading, Drainage and Stormwater Management 

As developed by CLARB and employed by the LATC in the execution of its regulatory 
duties the LARE “is designed to determine whether applicants for landscape architectural 
licensure possess sufficient knowledge, skills and abilities to provide landscape architectural 
services without endangering the health, safety and welfare of the public.” 

In 2004, CLARB computerized all multiple-choice sections and began administering them at 
centralized testing centers. As an efficiency measure in 2009, the LATC enacted regulatory 
changes to allow the ability to further contract the administration of the graphic sections of 
the LARE to CLARB. CLARB now administers all five sections of the LARE for California. 

Comparison with ‘Model’ Requirements used by CLARB for Examination Eligibility 



 

 

 

 

 

 

CLARB member licensing jurisdictions enforce their own eligibility requirements or delegate 
the responsibility to CLARB, who applies established model law identifying eligibility 
requirements to evaluate prospective applicants. 

∝ Hold a four or five year Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board [LAAB] or Canadian 
Society of Landscape Architects Accreditation Council [LAAC] accredited undergraduate 
degree in landscape architecture, or a LAAB or LAAC accredited graduate degree program in 
landscape architecture (or will complete by the exam administration date), or 

∝ Hold a National Architectural Accrediting Board [NAAB] accredited degree in architecture, 
and have completed (or will complete by the exam administration date) one year of diversified 
experience in landscape architecture under the direct supervision of a licensed landscape 
architect, or 

∝ Hold a Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology [ABET] accredited degree in 
engineering, and have completed (or will complete by the exam administration date) one year 
of diversified experience in landscape architecture under the direct supervision of a licensed 
landscape architect, or 

∝ Hold a non-accredited undergraduate degree in landscape architecture, or a non-accredited 
graduate degree program in landscape architecture, and have completed (or will complete by 
the exam administration date) one year of diversified experience in landscape architecture 
under the direct supervision of a licensed landscape architect, or 

∝ Hold a bachelor's degree in any subject and have completed (or will complete by the exam 
administration date) three years diversified experience in landscape architecture under the 
direct supervision of a licensed landscape architect, or 

∝ Have applied to and been approved by a CLARB member board. 

A side-by-side examination eligibility comparison between California education and 
experience requirements used by the LATC and model law used by CLARB was carried out 
in December 2008. This comparison identified the differences between the two standards. 
CLARB accepts applicants with no experience if they have an accredited landscape 
architecture degree. Unaccredited landscape architecture degrees, accredited architecture or 
civil engineering degrees are all accepted with only one year of experience under a landscape 
architect. CLARB also accepts any bachelor degree with three years experience under the 
direction of a landscape architect. 
In contrast, along with the recommended educational preparation of an accredited landscape 
architectural degree (four or five years), the LATC accepts candidates with a variety of other 
educational preparations including an associate degree with five years experience under the 
direction of a landscape architect or a certificate from a University of California Extension 
Program with four years experience under a landscape architect. In California, the UC 
Extension Program has two landscape architecture programs and four two-year colleges that 
offer associate degrees in landscape architecture. These programs are somewhat unique to 
California and provide a significant number of California citizens with access to an education 
in landscape architecture. The table below identifies the comparison: 

Synopsis of Current Paths to Qualify for Exam/Licensure 

LATC CLARB 

Education 
Max Ed 

Credit 
Education + Experience 

Combinations equals six credits Education 

Education + Experience 
Combinations equals five 

credits 

Accredited LA Degree 4 A 2 yrs as or under LA Accredited LA Degree no experience required 



After degree is awarded, one year 
training/experience under LA is 
required except for pattern E. 

B 
C 

D 

E 

1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr as or under an Arch 

1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr as or under CE 
1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 license 

2 yrs holding C-27 license 

Unaccredited LA Degree 
(includes approved Foreign 
degrees) 3 F 3 yrs as or under LA Unaccredited LA Degree 1 yr under an LA 

G 

H 

I 

J 

K 

L 

2 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under Arch 
2 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under CE 
2 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 
1 yr as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 
1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 
1 yr as or under Arch 
1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 
1 yr as or under CE 

Approved Extension 
Certificate in LA 2 M 4 yrs as or under LA not accepted 

After Certificate is 

awarded, one year 
training/experience under LA is 
required except for pattern V. 

N 

O 
P 

Q 

R 

S 

T 

U 
V 

3 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under Arch 
3 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under CE 

2 yrs as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 
2 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under Arch 
1 yr holding C-27 

2 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under CE 
1 yr holding C-27 
1 yr as or under LA 
3 yrs holding C-27 
1 yr as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 
1 yr as or under Arch 

1 yr as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 
1 yr as or under CE 

4 yrs holding C-27 

Approved Extension 
Certificate in LA + 4 yr 
degree in any Subject 4 A 2 yrs as or under LA not accepted 

After Certificate is awarded, one 
year training/experience under LA 
is required except for pattern E. 

B 
C 

D 

E 

1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr as or under an Arch 
1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr as or under CE 
1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 license 

2 yrs holding C-27 license 

Associate LA Degree 1 W 5 yrs as or under LA not accepted 

X 

Y 

Z 

AA 

BB 

CC 

DD 

EE 

4 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under Arch 
4 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under CE 
4 yrs as or under LA 
1 holding C-27 
3 yrs as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 
3 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 
1 yr as or under Arch 
3 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 
1 yr as or under CE 
2 yrs as or under LA 
3 yrs holding C-27 
2 yrs as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 
1 yrr as or under Arch 



FF 
2 yrs as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 
1 yr as or under CE 

GG 
1 yr as or under LA 
4 yrs holding C-27 

HH 
1 yr as or under LA 
3 yrs holding C-27 
1 yr as or under Arch 

II 
1 yr as or under LA 
3 yrs holding C-27 
1 yr as or under CE 

not accepted Accredited Arch Degree 1 yr as or under LA 

not accepted Accredited CE Degree 1 yr under LA 

not accepted Any Bachelors Degree 3 yr under LA 

Other CLARB Member Boards 

In 2002, the LATC discussed the need to review its current eligibility requirements for 
appropriateness, as well as compare the requirements of other CLARB member jurisdictions 
and other design profession boards. At that time, staff research revealed that California’s 
requirements were comparable to other licensing jurisdictions. For example, 45 licensing 
jurisdictions recommended that applicants have a degree in landscape architecture as a 
primary means of satisfying the educational requirement for the examination. Of those that 
did not specifically require a degree in landscape architecture, a range of between eight and 
twelve years of work experience was required. 

In addition, the LATC assessed that California candidates are offered flexibility in meeting 
the educational requirement, as accredited and unaccredited bachelors and masters’ degrees, 
extension certificates, and associate degrees in landscape architecture are recognized. 
Further, the extension certificate programs allow individuals the opportunity to more easily 
transition into a landscape architectural career by offering evening course schedules. 
Candidates are also able to satisfy the experience requirements with self-employment as a 
licensed landscape contractor, and self-employment, or employment by, a licensed architect 
or registered civil engineer. Therefore, upon reviewing its requirements, the LATC assessed 
that they remain appropriate for California, and that a more thorough evaluation should be 
conducted once data becomes available through the candidate tracking process. 

As a part of the examination eligibility review process, the LATC Education Subcommittee 
evaluated the acceptance of various “related” degrees that are either recognized by other 
states or were identified by Subcommittee members and/or LATC staff.  Consideration of 
accepting degrees related to landscape architecture was a result of the following: 1) the Joint 
Legislative Sunset Review Committee (JLSRC) previously raised concerns regarding the fact 
that, prior to 1997, California applicants could receive educational credit for holding any 
type of bachelors degree with a four-year curriculum; 2) CAB grants educational credit for 
designated degrees related to architecture; 
3) a review of California’s neighboring and the larger landscape architectural licensing 
jurisdictions (New York, Florida, Texas, Arizona, Hawaii, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, 
and Washington) revealed that at least six out of those nine jurisdictions recognize degrees 
that are related to landscape architecture; and 4) model law used by CLARB to determine 
eligibility currently allows applicants to sit for the licensing examination with any type of 
bachelors degree, plus three years of diversified experience under the direct supervision of a 
licensed landscape architect. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In addition, a survey sent out by LATC staff in May 2005 to the neighboring and larger 
landscape architectural licensing jurisdictions confirmed that:  1) many of the states accept 
various related degrees; 2) a few of the states accept any degree; and 3) most of the states 
that accept non-landscape architecture degrees accept architecture and civil engineering 
degrees. 

Other Board Requirements for Examination Eligibility 

California Architects Board 

To be eligible to begin the examination and licensure process, candidates seeking an architect 
license must provide verification of at least five years of education and/or architectural work 
experience. Candidates can satisfy the five-year requirement as follows: 

1) Providing verification of a three-year, five-year, or six-year professional degree in 
architecture through a program that is accredited by NAAB or Canadian Architectural 
Certification Board (CACB). 
2) Providing verification of at least five years of educational equivalents. Candidates are 
granted educational equivalents in various amounts pursuant to the Board's Table of 
Equivalents: 

∝ A maximum of four years for a non-accredited professional degree in architecture 
∝ Various amounts for other degrees and for units earned toward degrees, including: an 

undergraduate degree in architecture, a degree in a field related to architecture or in another 
field of study, and, to a limited extent, units earned toward some degrees 

∝ Work experience under the direct supervision of a licensed architectvi 

Board for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors 
To obtain a license as an engineer in training and civil engineer, applicants must: 

∝ Have completed three years of course work in a Board-approved engineering curriculum (any 
curriculum approved by the Engineering Accreditation Commission [EAC] of the Accreditation 
Board for Engineering and Technology [ABET]) or three years or more of engineering-related 
work experience anywhere in the world. 

∝ Successfully pass the first division of the examination. 
∝ The applicant shall be eligible to sit for the first division of the examination after satisfactory 

completion of three years or more of college or university education in a board-approved 
engineering curriculum or after completion of three years or more of board-approved 
experience. 

The applicant for registration as a professional engineer shall comply with all of the 
following: 

∝ Furnish evidence of six years or more of qualifying experience in engineering work satisfactory 
to the board evidencing that the applicant is competent to practice the character of 
engineering in the branch for which he or she is applying for registration. 

∝ The applicant must successfully pass the second division of the examination. The applicant for 
the second division of the examination shall successfully pass the first division examination or 
shall be exempt therefrom. 

Contractors State License Board 
To obtain a C-27 landscape contractor’s license a candidate must pass the written Law and 
Business Examination and a specific trade examination if required. Examination eligibility 



requires candidates to document at least four full years of journey-level or higher experience 
in the classification for which he or she is applying. This experience must have occurred 
within the last ten years. The Contractors State License Board may grant up to three years 
of credit toward the four-year requirement for completed education and/or apprenticeship 
programs.vii 




 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EDUCATION 

Education Equivalences 

The LATC determined that in order to best ensure the critical thinking skills necessary to 
appropriately provide public health and safety protection, landscape architects should 
continue to be required to have both a formal education and direct experience. Fortunately, 
in comparison with many other member boards, California provides a number of recognized, 
as well as non-traditional opportunities to obtain formal education in landscape architecture. 
The LATC offers candidates flexibility in meeting the educational requirement for a 
landscape architectural degree by accepting bachelors, masters, or associate degrees, as well 
as approved extension certificate programs in landscape architecture. 

As of January 2010, there are five accredited and four unaccredited landscape architecture 
bachelor and master degree programs in California. Additionally, there are two LATC 
approved UC Extension Programs, as well as four associate degree programs in landscape 
architecture from various community colleges. The following list illustrates the range of 
opportunities available within California to fulfill the education requirement: 

Accredited Undergraduate Programs: 
∝ California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo (BLA) 
∝ California State Polytechnic University, Pomona (BSLA) 
∝ University of California, Davis (BSLA) 

Accredited Graduate Programs: 
∝ California State Polytechnic University, Pomona (MSLA) 
∝ University of California, Berkeley (MLA) 

Unaccredited Undergraduate Programs: 
∝ University of California, Berkeley (BLA) 

Unaccredited Graduate Programs: 
∝ University of Southern California (MLA) (undergoing accreditation candidacy) 
∝ New School of Architecture and Design, San Diego (MLA) 

University of California Extension Programs: 
∝ University of California, Berkeley 
∝ University of California, Los Angeles 

Associate Degree Programs: 
∝ Mesa College, San Diego (AS) 
∝ Mira Costa College, Oceanside (AA) 
∝ Modesto Junior College, Modesto (AS) 
∝ Southwestern College, Chula Vista (AS) 
∝ West Valley College, Saratoga (AS) 



Accredited Universities 

The Landscape Architecture Accrediting Board (LAAB) recognized by the Council for 
Higher Education Accreditation, accredits educational programs leading to first professional 
degrees at the master’s or bachelor’s level. Therefore, in addition to assessing how well a 
program meets its own specific and institutional educational mission and objectives, LAAB 
evaluates all programs against standards that ensure programs contain the essential 
educational components leading to entry-level professional competence. These standards are 
developed by community-of-interest consensus and are regularly reviewed and assessed. 

Accreditation has four constituencies: the public, the students, the institution, and the 
profession.  To the public and to students, accreditation assures that the program has been 
independently reviewed and found to meet professional higher-education standards.  It also 
assists in transfer of credit and acceptance into other programs. To the institutions, 
accreditation provides a consultative peer review and stimulus to continually improve their 
educational offerings.  To the profession, accreditation provides the opportunity for 
participation in establishing entry-level skills. 

A degree in landscape architecture from an accredited school is granted four years of 
educational credit towards licensure. Some programs offered by California schools lead to a 
degree in landscape architecture although they are not accredited. The latter are granted 
three years of educational credit. The LAAB does not currently review extension or 
community college programs in landscape architecture. 

Extension Certificate Programs 

Candidates for licensure receive credit for University of California Extension Programs that 
are approved by the LATC. To gain approval, these programs are reviewed by site teams 
appointed by the LATC. The teams conduct site visits to determine the program’s 
compliance with California Code of Regulations Section 2620.5, Requirements for an 
Approved Extension Certificate Program. 

Candidates who successfully complete an extension program in landscape architecture are 
granted two years of educational credit. Extension program certificate holders receive four 
years of educational credit when combined with a four-year degree in any subject, and three 
years of educational credit when combined with an associate degree in landscape 
architecture. 



Community Colleges 

Candidates with an associate degree in landscape architecture are granted one year of 
educational credit. 

Out of State 

Candidates’ education degrees awarded outside of California are verified via the Accredited 
Programs in Landscape Architecture list and the Historical List of Programs Accredited by 
the LAAB. 

Foreign Education in Landscape Architecture 

Foreign education transcripts are submitted by the candidate to an approved foreign 
evaluation service for a general evaluation of the courses equating the degree to an accredited 
master or bachelor degree in the United States. Foreign education determined equivalent to 
an accredited master or bachelor degree in landscape architecture in the United States receive 
four years of educational credit. No credit is provided for unaccredited or other foreign 
degrees.viii 




 

 

 

 

 

EXPERIENCE 

Through its examination eligibility review, the LATC has determined that maintaining 
flexibility in the combination of formal landscape architecture education with directed work 
experience, provides the greatest access to licensure and preparation for examination. 

Types of Experience 

Education and work experience credits are combined to achieve the required total of six 
years credit towards eligibility to examine for the landscape architect license. There are 
multiple training/experience variations for a candidate to qualify in California; however, the 
LATC requires candidates to have completed a minimum of one year education credit and 
two years of recognized work experience. 

One year of training consists of 1,500 hours of qualifying employment. Training received 
under the following circumstances receives credit as indicated: 

∝ Employment by a licensed landscape architect equals up to five years credit 

∝ Self-employment as or employment by a licensed architect equals up to one year credit 

∝ Self-employment as or employment by a registered civil engineer equals up to one year 
credit 

∝ Self-employment as a licensed landscape contractor equals up to four years creditix 

When is experience gained? 

Candidates must possess a minimum of two years of training credits to be eligible for the 
examination. At least one year of training must be gained post graduation and under direct 
supervision of a landscape architect licensed in a United States jurisdiction. There is an 
exception to this post graduation requirement for candidates qualifying with experience as a 
self-employed landscape contractor and holding an extension certificate, master or bachelor 
degree in landscape architecture. 

How is experience verified? 

Candidates submit a Certification of Applicant’s Experience and Qualifications signed under 
penalty of perjury from each licensed supervisor verifying the candidate’s training and 
experience. The certifying person must have supervised the candidate directly and have 
knowledge of the candidate’s qualifications. The certifying individual must hold a valid 
license to practice landscape architecture, architecture and/or civil engineering. 

Is an internship required? 

There is no internship requirement for landscape architects at this time. The current work 
experience requirements shall be weighted with the same value as internships required for 
architects and civil engineers. 



Experience Summary 

As with the educational requirement, there are numerous variations of training experience 
permitted to achieve the minimum requirement. The LATC review and subsequent 
adjustment of California examination eligibility requirements has determined that at this 
time, the flexibility in training and education allowances that are provided, recognize a 
variety of personal and economic circumstances, and thereby offer wide access to licensure 
while maintaining the necessary assurances for public health, safety and well being. 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONCLUSION 

Improving Access to Licensure 

In 2004, the JLSRC recommended that the Department of Consumer Affairs review the six-
year education and experience requirement to determine if it is justified. The LATC formed 
the Education Subcommittee to research and respond to this request. The results are 
presented here and suggest opening up entry to the LARE for applicants with partially 
completed landscape architect degrees and those with accredited degrees in architecture. All 
recommendations were based on current knowledge. In attempt to improve candidate success 
and retention rates, the LATC also recommends allowing candidates to sit for the multiple-
choice sections of the LARE before acquiring the required experience. 

The LATC thoroughly assessed the full spectrum of education and experience requirements 
and assessed that the following should remain unchanged. Some requirements were 
determined to be adequate, while others could not be assessed due to insufficient data. To 
counter this deficiency in the future, the LATC began collecting data and plans to interpret 
information as it becomes available and determine the best course of action. 

∝ Retain the six-year education/experience requirements 
∝ Retain credit for associate degrees in landscape architecture 
∝ Retain current reciprocity requirements 
∝ Not implement a rolling time clock to limit the number of years for a candidate to obtain 

licensure 
∝ Not allow licensure with work experience alone 
∝ Not provide credit for teaching and research experience 

In addition to specific changes to the LATC education and experience requirements, 
outcomes of the review include several projects that have been identified for completion in 
the LATC strategic plan: 

∝ Development of a tracking system for candidate data that will allow assessments to 
demonstrate whether experience and type of education reflect on the success of California 
candidates taking the LARE. 

∝ Revision of the certificate of applicants experience form to provide both the candidate and 
the employer a better understanding of the experience required to pass the examinations. 

∝ Development of criteria and recommend curriculum for an associate degree in landscape 
architecture. 

∝ Development of a candidate/educator/employer expectations guide with the intent to 
improve examination success rates. 

The guide will be used in conjunction with the LATC’s strategic and communication plan 
objectives to communicate and provide outreach to university faculty, students, and 
practitioners in the field that mentor future licensees. By communicating required criteria, 
faculty, students and mentors will be able to better focus their efforts and assignments 
towards candidates’ success. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draft regulatory language incorporating the recommended changes to examination eligibility 
is prepared. Once the regulatory language is approved by the LATC and CAB, the State’s 
rulemaking process will ensue. 

Growth and Demand in the Profession 

The future holds the promise of new developments and challenges for the ever-broadening 
practice of landscape architecture. According to the December 11, 2008 of U.S. News & 
World Report, landscape architecture is projected to grow 18 to 26 percent by 2016 and is 
listed as one of the top thirty careers in 2009. Outside magazine (May 2008 issue) called 
landscape architecture one of the 50 best jobs in the United States in 2008. 

With environmental concerns becoming increasingly important, landscape architects are 
being called upon to solve complex problems. Rural concerns are attracting landscape 
architects to farmland preservation, small town revitalization, landscape preservation, 
energy resource development, and water conservation. Trends in computer technology have 
streamlined plan preparation and consultant communication and coordination for the 
practice. 

History of Licensees Chart 

New Licensees 1979-2008 

300 

250 

200 

150 

100 

50 

0 

81 

101 

69 

132 

95 
87 

69 73 70 

145 

176 

278 

63 

161 

177 

92 

54 
62 

23 

50 

87 

104 
95 

135 

157 

114 

129 

102 

141 

101 

number of new licenses 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

1999 

1998 

1997 

1996 

1995 

1994 

1993 

1992 

1991 

1990 

1989 

1988 

1987 

1986 

1985 

1984 

1983 

1982 

1981 

1980 

1979 

See endnotex 

In comparison, the total number of licensed landscape architects has continued to increase as 
indicated. 

Year - # of licensees: 
∝ 2009 – 3706 
∝ 2008 – 3501 
∝ 2007 – 3438 
∝ 2006 – 3338 
∝ 2005 – 3289 
∝ 2004 – 3189 



Landscape architects who develop strong technical skills, such as computer design; 
communication skills; and knowledge of environmental codes and regulations will capture the 
best opportunities. Those with additional training or experience in urban planning increase 
their prospects for employment in landscape architecture firms that specialize in site 
planning, as well as landscape design. 

The future also promises increased cooperation among landscape architects and other design 
professionals. As interest in the profession continues to grow, an increasing number of 
students desire to study the profession. Nearly 60 universities and colleges in the United 
States and Canada now offer accredited baccalaureate and post-graduate programs in 
landscape architecture. 

During the past decades, landscape architects have responded to the increased demand and 
professional responsibilities with new skills and expertise. More and more businesses 
appreciate the profession and the value that it brings to a project.  The public praises the 
balance achieved between the built and natural environments.xi 




 


 


 


 


 

APPENDICES & NOTES 

A - Approved Recommendations & Justification 32 

B - Related Studies 40 

C – Education Subcommittee Meeting Summaries 44 

Notes 46 




 APPENDICES & NOTES 

Appendix A 

Approved Recommendations and Justification - Approved by the California Architects Board 
(CAB) and the Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) 

After reviewing the multiple studies addressed and referenced within this report, the following 
recommendations were approved by the LATC on May 4, 2007, and received final CAB 
approval on June 15, 2007. 

1.  Accept Accredited Professional Architecture and Civil Engineering Degrees 

The LATC Education Subcommittee discussed the acceptance of various “related” degrees that are either 
recognized by other states or were identified by Subcommittee members and/or LATC staff.  Consideration of 
accepting degrees related to landscape architecture was a result of the following: 1) the Joint Legislative 
Sunset Review Committee (JLSRC) previously raised concerns regarding the fact that, prior to 1997, 
California applicants could receive educational credit for holding any type of bachelors degree with a four-
year curriculum;xii 2) CAB grants educational credit for designated degrees related to architecture and 
unrelated degrees; 
3) a review of the neighboring and larger landscape architectural licensing jurisdictions (New York, Florida, 
Texas, Arizona, Hawaii, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, and Washington) revealed that at least six out of those 
nine jurisdictions recognize degrees related to landscape architecture; xiii and 4) CLARB currently allows 
applicants to sit for the licensing examination with any type of bachelors degree, plus three years of 
diversified experience under the direct supervision of a licensed landscape architect. 

In addition, a survey sent out by LATC staff in May 2005 to the landscape architectural licensing 
jurisdictionsxiv listed above confirmed that:  1) many of the states accept various related degrees; 2) a few of 
the states accept any degree; and 3) most of the states that accept non-landscape architecture degrees accept 
architecture and civil engineering degrees. 

After extensive review of the research material and discussion at the June 17, 2005 meeting, the 
Subcommittee gave preliminary approval to accept accredited bachelor degrees in architecture and civil 
engineering to satisfy the education requirement for examination eligibility with a caveat of conducting 
further research on other related degree programs.  At the December 2, 2005 meeting, the Subcommittee 
discussed the additional researchxv and agreed to recommend acceptance of accredited professional degrees 
in architecture and civil engineering (undergraduate and graduate degrees), as those degrees emphasize the 
acquisition of critical thinking and technical skills that are necessary to address health, safety, and welfare 
issues and are essential to the practice of landscape architecture.  The Subcommittee agreed to recommend 
one-year of educational credit be granted for completion of these degree programs. 

The Subcommittee felt there was not clear and/or comparable rationale for granting similar credit for other 
related degree programs based on their insufficient curriculum and/or lack of accreditation standards.  For 
example, urban design and horticulture degrees were considered and not included in this recommendation 
because they are either non-accredited or the coursework is not specifically related to the practice of 
landscape architecture. One year of educational credit was agreed upon because the Subcommittee 
determined the curricula examined for such degree programs did not include sufficient specific exposure to 
landscape architecture related topics, but did address a certain measure of critical thinking and technical 
skills that are necessary to address health, safety and welfare issues related to the practice of landscape 
architecture. 

The LATC presented the Final Findings and Recommendations to CAB at its meeting on June 7, 2006. At this 
meeting, CAB questioned education credit parity between architects and landscape architects. As a result of 



	 

	

CAB’s parity question, the Education Subcommittee reconvened on November 8, 2006 and agreed to research 
the parity issue as it pertained to education curriculum for architects and civil engineers. At its February 27, 
2007 meeting, the Subcommittee discussed the education curriculum research xvi and decided to revise their 
earlier recommendation and recommend acceptance of accredited professional degrees in architecture and 
not in civil engineering. Along with their earlier belief in critical thinking and technical skills, the 
Subcommittee also believed there were similar curriculum elements in the architectural degree programs in 
comparison to the landscape architecture programs and that it would warrant educational credit. Accredited 
professional degrees in architecture would receive one-year of educational credit. 

Recommendation: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC accept accredited professional degrees in 

architecture towards satisfying the education requirement for examination eligibility and 
that one year of credit be granted for completion of such program. 

2.  Grant Credit for Partial Completion of an Accredited Landscape Architecture Degree 

At the March 4, 2005 Education Subcommittee meeting, it was noted that the LATC had previously granted 
credit for partial completion of accredited and unaccredited degrees in landscape architecture and that CAB 
currently grants credit for partial completion of various degree programs (i.e., accredited and unaccredited 
architecture degrees and related degrees with a four-year curriculum).  During the June 17, 2005 meeting, 
some Subcommittee members voiced an interest in granting credit for partial completion of accredited 
degrees in landscape architecture; however, it was noted that they would need to take a closer look at how 
credit would be determined.  At the December 2, 2005 meeting, the Subcommittee examined the issue further 
xvii and determined that one year of educational credit should be granted for partial completion of an 
accredited degree in landscape architecture.  In addition, the Subcommittee determined that an applicant 
applying for examination under such circumstances must demonstrate that he/she has completed at least 
80% of the total units required for the degree. 

In addition to the former regulatory provision granting educational credit for partial completion of degree 
programs, the Subcommittee recognized that CAB accepts partial completion of various degree programs (i.e., 
architecture degrees and related degrees) and that granting educational credits would provide an expanded 
avenue to licensure. 



	 

	

	 

	 

	

Recommendation: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC grant credit for partial completion of an 

accredited degree in landscape architecture, that one year of educational credit be granted 
for such, and that an applicant demonstrate that he/she has completed at least 80% of the 
total units required for such degree program. 

3.  Allow Early Eligibility for Examination with an Accredited Degree or Approved Extension 
Certificate in Landscape Architecture 

At the June 17, 2005 Education Subcommittee meeting, it was noted that, under Council of Landscape 
Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) current standards, candidates are allowed to take the multiple-
choice sections of the LARE with either an accredited undergraduate or graduate degree in landscape 
architecture and no work experience.  A number of CLARB member jurisdictions follow this standard and 
allow candidates to sit for the multiple-choice sections of the LARE upon receipt of an accredited degree in 
landscape architecture (a total of nine states were examined by the Subcommittee and staff, and four states 
allow candidates to sit for the examination under such circumstances xviii).  At the meeting, the Subcommittee 
indicated that they were open to considering this option for California candidates and directed staff to obtain 
additional background information from CLARB to assist with a recommendation with respect to this issue. 
The background information xix was reviewed and evaluated by two Subcommittee members and a 
recommendation to allow this option for California candidates was presented to the Subcommittee on 
December 2, 2005.  The Subcommittee discussed the benefits of offering this option to candidates, and in the 
absence of contrary data relative to pass rates, supported allowing candidates to sit for the multiple-choice 
sections of the LARE prior to meeting the experience requirement for examination. No quantifiable evidence 
regarding pass-rate success was found to support either position, but the Subcommittee felt this option 
would encourage graduates to continue the path to licensure immediately after attaining their accredited 
degree.  At the November 8, 2006 meeting, the Subcommittee agreed to also allow candidates with an 
approved extension certificate plus four-year degree to qualify for the multiple-choice sections of the 
examination based on the belief that extension certificate holders are equally qualified for early eligibility as 
accredited degree holders. 

Recommendations: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC allow candidates with an accredited degree 

in landscape architecture or approved extension certificate plus four-year degree to sit for 
the three multiple-choice sections of the LARE (Sections A, B, and D) prior to meeting 
training/work experience requirements. 

• If this option is approved, the Subcommittee recommends that the LATC closely monitor 
the success of these candidates on the examination via the proposed Candidate 
Education/Experience Tracking Chart (discussed under Recommendation 4). 

4.  Implement a Candidate Education/Experience Tracking System and Reciprocity Candidate 
Tracking System 

At the October 8, 2004 meeting, the Subcommittee directed staff to gather information pertaining to the most 
recent 100 individuals that became licensed in California and develop a chart to determine if there was a 
correlation between a candidate’s number of attempts to pass each section of the licensing examination and: 
1) the landscape architecture program attended; 2) the type of degree earned, and 3) the type of 
training/work experience earned.  This request was made to assist the Subcommittee with its evaluation of 
California’s eligibility requirements for examination.  After a review of this informationxx, it was noted by the 
Subcommittee that candidate data should be tracked on an ongoing basis so that the data is more readily 
available for future evaluation of eligibility requirements.  It was also noted by the Subcommittee that similar 



	 

	 
 

 

information pertaining to reciprocity candidates should be tracked.  At the December 2, 2005 meeting, the 
Subcommittee reviewed and approved the final Candidate Education/Experience Tracking Chart and the 
Reciprocity Candidate Tracking Chart.xxi The Subcommittee felt the candidate education/experience tracking 
charts would allow the LATC to analyze existing and future regulatory related decisions. The LATC would like 
the tracking to begin immediately, excluding candidates’ names and social security numbers from the charts. 

Recommendation: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that LATC staff implement a Candidate 

Education/Experience Tracking System and Reciprocity Candidate Tracking System and 
collect data by utilizing tracking charts. 

5. Revise Certificate of Applicant’s Experience Form 

As part of the Subcommittee’s charge, the eligibility requirements pertaining to the type and duration of 
training/ work experience were reviewed and discussed.  The Subcommittee reviewed the current certificate 
of applicant’s experience form, which is completed by a candidate’s supervisor(s) to meet the training/work 
experience requirement for examination eligibility. 

After discussion, the Subcommittee felt that, in an effort to aid candidates/employers with 
acquiring/providing appropriate knowledge and work experience for success on the examination, the form 
should be expanded to include a list or description of specific practice categories that are tested on the 
examination. This modification, as well as the new Candidate/Education/ Employer Brochure, would 
therefore be important tools in further ensuring success on the examination (discussed under 
Recommendation 6). 

Staff obtained samples of employment verification forms from other regulatory boards, which will assist with 
revising the LATC’s certificate of applicant’s experience form that will be developed in the future. 

Recommendation: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC revise the certificate of applicant’s 

experience form to include specific practice categories that are tested on the LARE. 



	 

	 

	

	 


 

	

6. Develop Candidate/Educator/Employer Information 

The Subcommittee discussed the need to create relatively detailed candidate/educator/employer 
information that discusses preparation for examination/licensure and recommends appropriate work 
experience in order to be successful on the examination.  The brochure would assist candidates, educators 
and employers to ensure that candidates successfully prepare for examination and licensure as well as 
understand what is expected for their success. The candidate/educator/employer information would be 
made available by hardcopy, the LATC’s website and email. 

Recommendations: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC develop Candidate/Educator/Employer 

Information. 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC reference CAB’s Comprehensive Intern 

Development Program Handbook when developing such information. 

7.  Retain Six-Year Education/Experience Requirement 

At the June 17, 2005 Subcommittee meeting, it was noted that: 1) the six-year combined education and 
experience requirement under Business and Professions Code Section 5650 has been in effect since 1953; 2) 
a review of the requirements of other states revealed that they have similar requirements with respect to 
combined education and experience xxii; 3) the traditional route to licensure in California, and in most other 
states, has been to obtain an accredited degree in landscape architecture and two years of experience under 
the direct supervision of a licensed landscape architect; 4) there appear to be no past or present issues with 
respect to the six-year requirement; and 5) the combination of education and experience appears to provide 
the greatest protection to the public’s health, safety, and welfare. 

Recommendation: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the six-year combined education/experience 

requirement be retained at this time. 

8.  Retain Existing Credit for Associate Degrees in Landscape 
Architecture 

A thorough review of California associate degree curricula xxiii was conducted by the Subcommittee at its 
March 4, 2005 meeting.  Although some discrepancies were noted between the programs with respect to 
subject areas and required units, it was determined the LATC should not assume the responsibility of 
reviewing associate degree programs and that the discrepancies were not serious enough to reconsider the 
one year of educational credit currently granted for completion of such programs. The LATC noted: 1) 
education is a necessary component of licensure, 2) all criteria for landscape architecture requirements 
cannot be met solely with experience, and 3) one year of educational credit for an associate degree in 
landscape architecture provides an additional opportunity for licensure. 

In the past, the California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office requested that LATC examine certification 
of their landscape architecture programs. The LATC determined as a consequence of the number of programs, 
variety, and indeterminate curricular approval and oversight, it was not practical for the LATC to review 
community college programs for purposes of educational eligibility standards. 

At the February 27, 2007 Subcommittee meeting, as part of CAB’s parity question and discussion on 
education credits, the Subcommittee agreed the LATC should monitor the success of candidates receiving 
educational credit and qualifying for the licensing examination with an associate degree. 

Recommendations: 



	 

	 

	 

	

	 
 

 

	 

• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC should not take on the responsibility of 
reviewing associate degree programs at this time. 

• The Subcommittee recommends that one year of educational credit continue to be granted 
for completion of an associate degree in landscape architecture. 

• If this option is approved, the Subcommittee recommends that the LATC closely monitor 
the success of these candidates on the examination via the proposed Candidate 
Education/Experience Tracking Chart (discussed under Recommendation 4). 

9.  Retain Current Reciprocity Requirements 

At the June 17, 2005 meeting, the Subcommittee reviewed and discussed California, Nevada, Texas and 
Washington’s current requirements for reciprocity xxiv to determine if changes to California reciprocity 
requirements should be considered. 

Currently, a reciprocity applicant must: 1) hold a current license in another U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian 
province, or Puerto Rico; 2) have passed a written examination equivalent to that which is required in 
California at the time of application; and 3) have passed the California Supplemental Examination if, at the 
time of application, it is required of all California applicants. 

However, it was noted by the Subcommittee that changes to the current requirements could potentially 
present barriers for out-of-state candidates wanting to gain licensure in California and that, to date, there 
have not been any issues or problems identified.  At the December 2, 2005 meeting, the Subcommittee 
confirmed its recommendation to retain California’s current requirements for reciprocity and institute a 
reciprocity tracking system as part of Recommendation 4. 

Recommendations: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC retain its current requirements for 

reciprocity. 
• The Subcommittee instead recommends that LATC staff track reciprocity candidate 

information via the proposed Reciprocity Candidate Tracking Chart (discussed under 
Recommendation 4) and, once enough data is gathered, bring this issue back for the LATC 
to reconsider its position. 



	 

	 

	 

	 

10. Rolling Time Clock for Examination Candidates 

At the June 17, 2005 Subcommittee meeting, it was noted that Texas and Washington have implemented a 
five-year time limit for candidates to complete the examination process and become licensed.  It was also 
noted that CAB plans to adopt a five-year “rolling time clock” that applies only to examination scores.  Finally, 
it was noted by LATC staff that, presently, most California landscape architectural candidates complete the 
examination process within a five-year period and that, currently, there does not appear to be a problem with 
respect to this issue. However, the Subcommittee agreed to recommend a tracking system to monitor this 
issue as part of Recommendation 4. 

Recommendations: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC not implement a “rolling time clock” for 

examination candidates at this time. 
• The Subcommittee instead recommends that LATC staff track candidates’ number of 

attempts to pass each section of the LARE via the proposed Candidate Education/ 
Experience Tracking Chart (discussed under Recommendation 4) at this time and, after 
two years, gather data from CAB and other CLARB member jurisdictions and have the 
LATC reassess whether implementing a “rolling time clock” would be appropriate at that 
time. 

11. Eligibility for Examination with Experience Only 

At the March 4, 2005 Subcommittee meeting, it was noted that a limited number of states allow candidates to 
sit for the examination with specified work experience alone (and no education).  Data relative to pass rate 
differences between candidates with university level education in landscape architecture and those without 
has not been available.  As comparative background, CAB allows architectural candidates to sit for its 
licensing examinations with work experience alone (and no education).xxv CAB has also recently 
implemented the national Intern Development Program (IDP) and Comprehensive IDP that require new 
candidates to obtain appropriate levels of work experience in specified areas of practice.  Upon considering 
this information, reviewing eligibility requirements for the other states that require licensing, and the 
absence of pass-rate data, the Subcommittee agreed to maintain requiring appropriate educational 
experience, obtaining appropriate work experience, and then testing for minimal competency through the 
LARE.  The Subcommittee felt that some form of formal education provides basic knowledge of landscape 
architecture and experience alone was not equivalent to that knowledge. 

Recommendations: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that candidates not be allowed to sit for the examination 

with work experience alone at this time and notes that education of some form is required to 
succeed. 

• The LATC recommends tracking data from reciprocal candidates and LARE success 
rates, then bringing this matter back for future consideration once enough data is gathered. 
In addition, data from other states should be analyzed if it is available. 

12. Credit for Teaching and/or Research 

At the March 4, 2005 Subcommittee meeting, it was noted that a few states accept teaching and/or research 
experience towards fulfilling examination requirementsxxvi. However, the Subcommittee felt teaching and/or 
research experience does not provide the same skills that are acquired while working under a licensed 
professional. Additionally, teaching and/or research experience varies significantly, thus making it difficult to 



	 

assess the equivalent relationship to the practice of landscape architecture and the health, safety and welfare 
of the public. 

Recommendation: 
• The Subcommittee recommends that credit not be granted for teaching and/or research 

experience at this time. 




 APPENDICES & NOTES 

Appendix B 

Related Studies 

October 2004 – Landscape Architects Body of Knowledge 

The Landscape Architecture Body of Knowledge (LABOK) study was designed to address 
the core competencies that help define the landscape architecture profession and the 
fundamental body of knowledge that should be expected of all graduates from accredited 
landscape architecture degree programs. The approach used to answer these two questions 
consisted of several iterative steps that required input from incumbents in the field of 
landscape architecture. During these steps both detailed knowledge and competency 
statements identifying the components of the Body of Knowledge for consideration by the 
academic community or for post-graduation on-the-job learning were developed. 

The LABOK Task Force was established in response to these questions raised through the 
Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board’s regular review of accreditation standards. 
The Task Force consisted of representatives of the American Society of Landscape Architects 
(ASLA), the Canadian Society of Landscape Architects (CSLA), the Council of Educators in 
Landscape Architecture (CELA), the Council of Landscape Architectural Registration 
Boards (CLARB), and the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB). The Task 
Force authorized The Chauncey Group International to perform the Body of Knowledge 
study described in this part of the report. Chauncey Group’s role was to facilitate the 
multiple interactions with landscape architect subject matter experts and/or incumbents in 
the field. 

By building upon the information from the earlier task analysis for landscape architects and 
input from the Task Force, then augmenting that information through consultation with 
multiple panels of subject matter experts, the Task Force developed a survey that covered 
the body of knowledge thoroughly. The distribution of the survey reached the varied groups 
desired and resulted in a strong indication of the knowledge and competencies that are 
required upon graduation from a degree program and those that should be developed on the 
job. It was necessary for each of the contributing organizations to carefully examine the data 
and make the most efficient use of the information that is available. As suggested in the 
cover letter to the survey respondents, this information may be used to make curricula 
determinations, to guide the development of continuing education activities, and to continue 
strong requirements for licensure through the regulatory bodies. Based on the apparent high 
agreement among the various subgroup responses and the process used to develop the Body 
of Knowledge in this study, it is reasonable to conclude that the goals of the study were 
obtained.xxvii 

2006 - Thompson Prometric National Task Analysis 



The Council of Landscape Architecture Registration Boards contracted with Thomson 
Prometric to conduct a job analysis in order to maintain the currency of the Landscape 
Architects Registration Examination. Job analysis refers to procedures designed to obtain 
descriptive information about the tasks performed on a job and/or the knowledge, skills, or 
abilities thought necessary to adequately perform those tasks. The specific type of job 
information collected for a job analysis is determined by the purpose for which the 
information will be used. For purposes of developing workplace certification examinations, a 
job analysis should identify important tasks, knowledge, skills, and/or abilities. The use of 
job analysis (also known as task analysis, practice analysis, or role delineation) to define the 
content domain is a critical component in establishing the content validity of certification 
examinations. Content validity refers to the extent to which the content covered by an 
examination overlaps with the important components (tasks, knowledge, skills, or abilities) 
of a job. A well-designed job analysis should include the participation of a representative 
group of subject-matter experts who reflect the diversity within the job. Diversity refers to 
regional or job context factors and to subject-matter expert factors such as length and type 
of experience, gender, and race/ethnicity. Demonstration of content validity is accomplished 
through the judgments of subject-matter experts. The process is enhanced, when feasible, by 
the inclusion of large numbers of subject-matter experts who represent the diversity within 
the relevant areas of expertise. The job analysis involved a multi-method approach that 
included meetings with subject-matter experts and the conduct of a survey. 

On November 12-13, 2004, a panel of landscape architects, selected by CLARB, attended a 
meeting with the primary purpose of developing an updated survey for distribution in first 
quarter, 2005. Prior to the meeting, participants received a Job Analysis Procedures Manual 
and selected information from the 1998 Job Analysis report and the Landscape Architecture 
Body of Knowledge Study. 

The first topic of discussion at the meeting was a general description of the successful 
licensee. The group then talked about the places where a licensee might work and gave 
examples of what they might do. The task force agreed that is was important to keep all 
approaches to practice in mind when we proceed to design the job analysis tool. The key issue 
is maintaining health, safety and welfare within the practice. The group then turned their 
attention to defining the major domains for the survey. Following the identification of the 
domains, the full group assigned the tasks from the 1998 survey to the new domains. Teams 
were then recruited to work on specific domains to review, edit, and/or delete the tasks. The 
next activity was to review the knowledge statements that appeared in the 1998 survey. 
Each of the task force members was asked to indicate whether the knowledge topic appeared 
in the 2004 LABOK study. Only those knowledge statements that were not included in the 
LABOK were added to the survey. The development of the skills list and the background 
questions completed the work of the group at the meeting.xxviii 

The contents of the proposed survey were shared with CLARB staff for initial review. 
Following approval of the components, Thomson Prometric staff created the survey using 
Web-based software. The survey was shared with the development committee for initial 
review. Their suggestions were incorporated and the revised survey was presented to a pilot 



group to take. The responses and individual comments were shared with CLARB staff and 
final revisions to the survey were made. 

In early May, the survey was officially closed and the data analysis begun. Preliminary 
results were shared with CLARB staff in preparation for the meeting to develop the test 
specifications. Decisions about the appropriate subgroup analyses were made prior to the 
meeting. 

The completion of the job analysis process consisted of a review of the job analysis results. A 
committee reviewed the background questions and began the review of the tasks. The 
respondents were offered opportunities to suggest additional tasks. The whole panel reviewed 
these and suggested additional examples for current tasks or noted those that are emerging 
topics. Following the review of the tasks, the committee proceeded to the review of the 
knowledge statements and the skills.xxix 



December 2006 – Department of Consumer Affairs Office of Examination Resources, California 
Validation Report 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee requested the Office of Examination 
Resources conduct a validation study to identify critical job activities performed by 
landscape architects licensed in California. The occupational analysis is part of the LATC’s 
comprehensive review of the practice of landscape architecture. The purpose of the 
occupational analysis is to define practice for California licensed landscape architects in terms 
of actual job tasks that new licensees must be able to perform safely and competently. The 
result of the occupational analysis serves as a basis for the examination program for 
landscape architects in California. 

OER followed testing standards and guidelines to develop a legally defensible examination 
outline for landscape architects in California and implemented a content validation strategy 
to describe the content of the landscape architect profession. OER conducted interviews with 
California licensed landscape architects, researched the profession, analyzed material 
prepared by CLARB, facilitated four focus groups California licensees, and sent a 
questionnaire surveying all California licensed landscape architects. 

The initial two focus groups reviewed and refined task and knowledge statements of the 
landscape architecture profession in California. Based on these specific task and knowledge 
statements of the profession, Office of Examination Resources was able to develop a 
comprehensive survey to be sent to landscape architects throughout the state. The third 
focus group reviewed and approved the survey results and links specific job tasks with 
knowledge statements in order to construct the examination outline. The final focus group 
evaluated the examination outline for concurrence and to prepare for the development of 
examination questions.xxx 




 

	 
 

 

	 
	 
	 
	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 
	 

APPENDICES & NOTES 

Appendix C 

Meeting Note Summaries 

May 9, 2006 – Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
• Voted on the preliminary approval of the Education Subcommittee’s response to the JLSRC 

recommendations. 
• Approved retaining the six-year education/experience requirement. 
• Approved maintaining eligibility for examination with current education requirements. 
• Approved initiate tracking upon candidacy. 
• Suggestions were made to look into accrediting standards and determining how schools are 

measured in order to clarify subject relationship to examination topics and into education standards 
as it relates to health, safety and welfare concerns.xxxi 

June 7, 2006 – California Architects Board 
• The LATC’s recommendations regarding the eligibility requirements for examination were presented 

to CAB. 
• All recommendations were approved under the condition that the LATC review recommendation 1, 

Accept Accredited Professional Architecture and Civil Engineering Degrees, and provide an analysis 
to CAB on parity of the requirements to apply for examination between licensure of architects versus 
landscape architects prior to the recommendations moving forward. As a result of the preliminary 
approval, Strategic Planning objectives to 1) begin identifying variables that impact LARE pass rates 
by tracking and maintaining data, and 2) investigating potential reasons for low examination pass 
rates and develop an appropriate response to issue to the JLSRC were initiated.xxxii 

August 25, 2006 - Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
• Discussed CAB’s action and various related issues identified.  The LATC voted to reconvene the 

Education Subcommittee in order to fully address all issues that were identified as a result of the 
proposed changes.xxxiii 

November 8, 2006 – Education Subcommittee 
• Met to discuss the renewed charges from the LATC, review existing reports and documentation, and 

develop a plan of action.  Staff was tasked with: 1) incorporating revisions to the Report, 2) updating 
CCR 2620 – Education and Training Credits to reflect the discussion, 3) providing curriculum data for 
accredited degrees in architecture and civil engineering and documenting data to compare the two, 
and 3) revising the charts outlining education and experience credits given to architects and 
landscape architects, and drafting narrative explaining the differences. 

• Finalize the Issues and Recommendations Report to proceed with preparing a draft report for the 
LATC and CAB to approve for forwarding to the DCA and the Legislature.xxxiv 

January 16, 2007 – Education Subcommittee 
• Held a teleconference and reviewed additional information illustrating the parity of educational 

requirements to architects and civil engineers. 
• Expanded the information substantiating the recommendations and began a review of CCR 2620. 
• Remaining agenda items to review: curriculum comparison for landscape architects with those of 

architects and civil engineers, completion of a review and proposed changes to CCR 2620, and a table 
of contents for the report to the Legislature were postponed.xxxv 



 
	 

	 

	 

	 

February 27, 2007 – Education Subcommittee 
• Finalized recommendations to the LATC. 
• Reconfirmed that education is a critical qualification in combination with work experience and 

examination. 
• Recommendations were to: 1) maintain the educational credit requirement, 2) continue one year of 

educational credit for an associate degree in landscape architecture, 3) continue four years of 
educational credit for foreign education equivalent to an accredited master or bachelor degree in 
landscape architecture in the United States, 4) maintain two years of educational credit for an 
approved extension certificate in landscape architecture, 5) institute one year of educational credit 
for an accredited degree in architecture, 6) not grant educational credit for a degree in civil 
engineering, and 7) not grant experience credit for foreign/international experience.xxxvi 

May 4, 2007 - Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
• Approved the Subcommittee’s recommended response and recommendations.xxxvii 

June 15, 2007 – California Architects Board 
• The parity issue and the recommendations were presented and approved by CAB. The full report to 

DCA and to the Legislature, containing the approved recommendations, will be presented for 
approval once complete.xxxviii 




 


 

NOTES 

NOTES 

i Landscape Architects Technical Committee 2003 Sunset Review Report response. Vol. 1, tab #4 
ii Landscape Architects Technical Committee, “Landscape Architects Practice Act with Rules and Regulations 2007”, includes amendments 
through October 3, 2007. Vol. 3, tab #56 
iii Professional Engineers Act (Business and Professions Code Section 6700-6799), includes amendments made during the 2009 legislative 
session (Effective January 1, 2010, unless otherwise noted), Vol. 3, #55 
iv 2004 Joint Legislative Sunset Review Committee Recommendations. Vol. 1, tab #5 
v Landscape Architects Technical Committee, “Landscape Architects Practice Act with Rules and Regulations 2007”, includes amendments 
through October 3, 2007. Vol. 3, tab #56 
vi California Architects Board, “Architects Practice Act”; effective January 1, 2009.  Vol. 3, tab #57 
vii http://www.cslb.ca.gov/Contractors, accessed November 2008, © 2008 State of California, Contractors State Licensing Board. Vol. 3, tab #39 
viii See endnote 5. 
ix See endnote 5. 
x Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s April 20, 2009, meeting agenda item C.3-C.4, Vol. 3, tab #58 
xi See endnote 5. 
xii 2005 Outline of Landscape Architecture Eligibility Requirements (AZ, CA, FL, HI, NV, NM, NY, OR, TX, and WA) – Examination/Licensure 
Requirements (Landscape Architects): Snapshot. (3/05, D.1), Vol. 2, tab #24 
xiii See endnote 12. 
xiv Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) member board jurisdictions; Arizona State Board of Landscape Architects; 
Florida Board of Landscape Architecture; Hawaii Board of Professional Engineers, Architects, Surveyors & Landscape Architects; Nevada 
State Board of Landscape Architects; New Mexico Board of Landscape Architects; New York State Board for Landscape Architects; Oregon 
State Landscape Architects Board; Texas Board of Architectural Examiners and Washington Department of Licensing, Landscape Architecture 
Division - 2005 Survey Results; Examination/Licensure Eligibility Requirements. (6/05, C), Vol. 2, tab #20 
xv Accrediting Boards for Architecture, Civil Engineering and Planning - 2005 Description, course outlines, number of years and units required 
to earn an accredited Planning degree in all seven California accredited planning degree programs. (12/05, D.1), Vol. 2, tab #17 
xvi Comparison of Curriculum for Accredited Degrees in Architecture and Civil Engineering (2/07, C.4)Vol. 2, tab #27 
xvii Transcripts and Course Requirements for Three Accredited Undergraduate Landscape Architecture Degree Programs. (12/05, D.2), Vol. 2, 
#28 
xviii 2005 Survey Results; Examination/Licensure Eligibility Requirements, see endnote 17. 
xix Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) - 2005 Information provided from the Council of Landscape Architectural 
Registration Boards (CLARB) regarding member board jurisdictions allowance of early eligibility to take the multiple-choice sections of the 
Landscape Architectural Registration Examination (LARE) (12/05, D.3), Vol. 2, tab #29 
xx Comparison of Education, Experience and Exam results of last 100 California Landscape Architects covering 11/2003 - 12/2004. (3/05, G), 
Vol. 2, tab #32 
xxi Final Candidate Education/Experience Tracking Chart and Reciprocity Candidate Tracking Chart. (12/05, C), Vol. 2, tab #33 
xxii2005 Outline of Landscape Architecture Eligibility Requirements (AZ, CA, FL, HI, NV, NM, NY, OR, TX, and WA) – Detailed Comparison of 
Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape Architects). (3/05, D.3), Vol. 2. tab #24 
xxiii California Community Colleges; Mesa, Modesto Junior, Southwestern and West Valley - 2005 Description, course outline and units required 
to earn an Associate Degree in Landscape Architecture in California. (3/05, E), Vol. 2, tab #35 
xxiv Detailed Comparison of Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape Architects), see end note 22 
xxv Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape Architects): Snapshot, see endnote 13 
xxvi Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape Architects): Snapshot, see endnote 13 
xxvii American Society of Landscape Architects, Landscape Architecture Body of Knowledge Study Report, published October 28, 2004, All 
Rights Reserved. Vol. 1, tab #8 
xxviii Council of Landscape Architecture Registration Boards, performed by Thompson Prometric, Job Analysis 2006.  Vol. 3, tab #37 
xxix 1996 Joint Legislative Sunset Review Committee Findings and Recommendations, Vol. 1, tab #5 
xxx California Department of Consumer Affairs, Office of Examination Resources, Validation Report Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 
December 2006, Vol. 3, tab #60fr 
xxxi Landscape Architects Technical Committee, May 9, 2006, Summary Report, Vol. 3, tab #46 
xxxii California Architects Board’s June 7, 2006, Minutes, Vol. 3, tab #47 
xxxiii Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s August 25, 2006,Summary Report-Final, Vol. 3, tab #48 
xxxiv Education Subcommittee’s November 8, 2006, Meeting Minutes, Vol. 3, tab#59 
xxxv Education Subcommittee’s teleconference January 16, 2007, Summary Report-Draft, Vol. 3, tab#50 
xxxvi Education Subcommittee’s February 27, 2007, Summary Report-Draft, Vol. 3, tab#51 

http://www.cslb.ca.gov/Contractors


xxxvii Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s May 4, 2007, Summary Report-Final, Vol. 3, tab#52 
xxxviii California Architects Board’s June 15, 2007, Minutes, Vol. 3, tab#53 



Attachment G.3 

Degrees Accepted by CLARB Jurisdictions for Initial Licensure 
(as of 1/12/16) 

Jurisdiction 
Accredited 

Architecture Degree 
Accepted 

Accredited 
Engineering Degree 

Accepted 

Any Bachelors 
Degree Accepted 

Non Accredited LA 
Degree Accepted 

Alberta Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Arizona Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Arkansas Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
British Columbia Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Colorado Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Connecticut Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Florida Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Georgia Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Hawaii Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Idaho Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Iowa Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Louisiana Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Maine Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Maryland Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Mississippi Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Montana Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Nebraska Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Nevada Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
New Hampshire Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
New Mexico Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
New York Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Oklahoma Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Ontario Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Oregon Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Pennsylvania Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
South Carolina Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Utah Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Virginia Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Washington Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience Yes, with experience 
Delaware Yes, with experience Yes, with experience No Yes, with experience 
Rhode Island Yes, with experience Yes, with experience No Yes, with experience 
California Yes, with experience No No Yes, with experience 
Alaska No No No Yes, with experience 
Illinois No No No Yes, with experience 
New Jersey No No No Yes, with experience 
Alabama No No No No 
Indiana No No No No 
Kansas No No No No 
Kentucky No No No No 
Massachusetts No No No No 
Michigan No No No No 
Minnesota No No No No 
Missouri No No No No 
North Carolina No No No No 
Ohio No No No No 
Puerto Rico No No No No 
South Dakota No No No No 
Tennessee No No No No 
Texas No No No No 
West Virginia No No No No 
Wisconsin No No No No 
Wyoming No No No No 



Agenda Item H 

DISCUSS AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD TO ADOPT 

ORIGINALLY PROPOSED LANGUAGE OR APPROVE MODIFIED TEXT TO AMEND 

RECIPROCITY REQUIREMENTS OF TITLE 16, CCR SECTION 2615 (FORM OF 

EXAMINATIONS) 

In December 2012, the Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) received a letter 

regarding California’s current reciprocity requirements.  As a result, at its May 2013 meeting, the 

LATC began discussing the issue of reciprocity with other jurisdictions and subsequent Strategic 

Plans included objectives to review this matter. 

The primary issue with reciprocity is that the Committee has received requests for reciprocal 

licensure from individuals licensed in jurisdictions where a degree in landscape architecture or 

architecture was not a requirement for initial licensure, as it is in California.  

At the March 20, 2014 LATC meeting, legal counsel advised the Committee that a regulatory 

amendment would be necessary to allow reciprocity for applicants who have not met California’s 

current education requirements. 

Staff researched reciprocity requirements in other states and found that 26 states accept any 

baccalaureate degree when combined with experience (ranging from 3 to 7 years); and 28 allow 

initial/reciprocal licensure on the basis of experience alone, with an average of 8 years required 

(see attachments 1, 2 and 3). 

At the February 10, 2015 LATC meeting, the Committee discussed the data presented and the 

LATC’s current six-year education and training/experience requirements that candidates must 

complete for licensure.  The Committee also noted that candidates can qualify for the examination 

with an associate degree in landscape architecture (one year of educational credit) and five years 

training/experience. Once a candidate has successfully passed the examinations (national and 

California Supplemental Examination [CSE]), he/she is deemed to be competent for entry level 

practice. During the discussion, LATC noted that licensed professionals continue to learn and gain 

expertise with each year of practice. Its determination was that a substantial number of years of 

post-licensure experience in another state would demonstrate an individual’s competence to 

practice safely, even though they may not have met California’s educational experience 

requirements. The Committee suggested a regulatory amendment to allow reciprocity to 

individuals who may not meet California’s education requirement but are licensed in another 

jurisdiction, have 10 years of practice experience, and have passed the CSE.  LATC directed staff 

to review the reciprocity requirements of Arizona and New York and draft proposed regulatory 

language for the Committee’s consideration.  

Research showed that Arizona allows reciprocity if the applicant’s education, experience, and 

examination are “substantially identical” to the requirements that existed in Arizona at the time 

they were originally licensed. New York allows reciprocity to an applicant who holds a current 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



license, has passed the written examination given in the jurisdiction in which they are licensed, and 

met New York’s requirements at the time their license was issued in the other jurisdiction.  Both 

Arizona and New York also accept 10 years of licensed experience in lieu of meeting their degree 

and experience requirements. 

Based on the LATC’s request, staff prepared proposed regulatory language to amend California 

Code of Regulations (CCR) section 2615 (see attachment 4).  The proposed amendment includes 

provisions that require a candidate for reciprocal licensure to either submit verifiable 

documentation of education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 

the time of application or submit verifiable documentation that the candidate has been actively 

engaged as a licensed landscape architect in another jurisdiction for at least 10 of the last 15 years. 

At the November 17, 2015 LATC meeting, the Committee approved proposed regulatory language 

for CCR section 2615.  Staff prepared and submitted the initial rulemaking package to the Office 

of Administrative Law (OAL) (see attachments 5 and 6) and the Notice of Proposed Changes in 

the Regulations was published by OAL on August 12, 2016, thereby beginning the 45-day public 

comment period.  On September 27, 2016, a public hearing was held and the public comment 

period officially ended. 

During the public comment period, 296 comments were received (see attachment 7); of which, 291 

were substantially similar, expressing concern that borrowing precedent from Arizona and New 

York is out of context because these states have a multitude of paths to licensure not available in 

California, including varying degrees and combinations of experience. Specifically, the 

commenters believe that requiring reciprocity applicants to verify 10 years of post-licensure 

experience is excessive. They offered proposed language that would allow reciprocity if the 

“candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants 

at the time of application; or, candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, 

possesses a bachelor’s degree from a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or 

offering professional services for at least 2 or the last 5 years; or, candidate holds a valid license or 

registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

6 of the last 10 years.” These comments were provided for the LATC’s review and consideration.  

As part of the formal rulemaking process under the Administrative Procedure Act, agencies are 

required to respond to any comments received during the public comment period as part of the 

rulemaking file. 

At its November 4, 2016 meeting, the LATC discussed the proposed regulation and heard from 

several members of the public in the audience who expressed opposition to the amount (10 years) 

of post-licensure experience being proposed.  After discussion, the LATC agreed to agendize this 

topic for its next meeting with the intent of allowing sufficient time to consider the submitted 

comments, and determine whether changes to the proposed language are warranted. 

After the November 4, 2016 LATC meeting, staff verified that both Arizona and New York accept 

any baccalaureate degree combined with additional years of experience for initial license and 

reciprocity candidates and also accept 10 years of licensed experience in lieu of meeting their 

examination requirements. 

At today’s meeting, the Committee is asked to consider the information presented and determine if 

changes should be made to the attached proposed regulatory language. Reports on examination 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 

	 

requirements and preparation, completed by the LATC and the Council of Landscape Architecture 

Registration Boards (CLARB), are provided as additional information for the Committee’s review 

(see attachments 8, 9 and 10). 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Requirements for Initial Licensure 

2. Landscape Architects - Initial Licensure and State Specific Reciprocity Requirements 

3. National Landscape Architects - Eligibility and Reciprocity Requirements 

4. Proposed Regulatory Language to Amend CCR Section 2615 (Form of Examinations) 

5. Notice of Proposed Changes in the Regulations 

6. Initial Statement of Reasons 

7. Public Comments Received During Public Comment Period 

8. Education Subcommittee Final Report: The Evaluation of Education and Experience 

Requirements to Examine for Licensure (January 2010) 

9. CLARB Determinants of Success Research Study - October 2011 

10. CLARB Standards of Eligibility for Council Certification 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Attachment H.1 

Requirements for Initial Licensure 

Education Years of 
Training States 

LAAB-accredited degree N/A (degree only) ID, MS, UT 
1 AL, FL, LA, WV (MLA) 

2 
AL, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, GA (18 MO), HI 
(MLA), IL, KY, ME, MD, MA, MT, NV, NM, PA, 
RI, SC, SD, TX, WV (BLA), WI 

3 HI( BLA), IN, IA, KS (MLA), MN (MLA), MO, 
NH, OH, OK, OR, TN, VT, VA, WA, WY 

4 KS (BLA), MN (BLA), NJ, NY, NC 
Non-accredited B.L.A. or 
M.L.A. 

1 NE 
2 HI (MLA), LA, RI 
3 CA, CO, FL, HI (BLA), ME, MT 
4 AR, IA, MD, NM, OR, VA 
5 AZ, MS, NH, SC 
6 DE, NY 
9 AL 

board determined CT, GA, ID, IL, NV, NJ, OK, PA, UT, WA 
Related 4-year degree 2 RI 

3 CO, FL, NE, NV 
4 AR, MD, MT, OR 
5 CA( NAAB), HI, ME, MS, NH, NM, SC 
6 DE, VA 
7 NY, WA 

board determined AZ, CT, GA, ID, IA, OK, PA, UT 
Any 4-year degree 3 NE 

4 LA, MT 
5 CO, FL, HI, ME, MS 
6 MD, OR, VA 
7 SC, WA 

board determined AZ, AR, CT, GA, ID, IA, NV, NH, NM, NY, OK, 
PA, UT 

Extension certificate in 
landscape architecture 4 CA 

AA/AS in LA 4 NV 
5 CA 

Any AA/AS 6 MT 
N/A (training only) 

Average = 8 years 
AL, AZ, AR, CO, CT, FL, HI, ID, IA, LA, ME, 
MD, MA, MI, MS, MT, NV, NM, NY, OK, OR, 
PA, RI, UT, VY, VA, WA, WV 

Requirements for CLARB Certification 

Education Years of Training 
LAAB-accredited degree 3 
Non-accredited B.L.A. or M.L.A. 4 
NAAB-accredited B.Arch. or M. Arch.  4 
ABET-accredited degree in Civil Engineering 4 
Any Bachelor's degree 6 



Attachment H.2 

Landscape Architects - Initial Licensure and State Specific Reciprocity Requirements 

Initial Licensure Reciprocity 
Required Years 

Combined Training 
and Educational 

Experience 

Credit for Years of 
Education 

Credit for Years of 
Training 

Allow 
Education 

Only 

Allow Years of 
Training Only 

State Specific Requirements for 
Reciprocity 

AL 6 4 -5 1 - 2 No Yes, 8 Must offer reciprocity with AL 

AK 8 - 12 1 - 6 2 - 12 No No Course in arctic engineering and 
accepts CLARB certification 

AZ 8 4 - 5 3 - 4 No Yes, 8 Accepts CLARB certification 
AR 6 - 8 4 2 - 4 No Yes, 7 Accepts CLARB certification 
CA 6 1 - 4 2 - 5 No No 
CO 6 1 - 4 2 - 6 No Yes, 6 
CT 6 - 8 4 2 - 8 No Yes, 8 CLARB certification required 
DE 6 2 - 4 2 - 4 No No CLARB certification required 
DC N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
FL 5 - 6 4 1 - 6 No Yes, 7 

GA 5.5 4 1.5 
Yes, BA 

plus MA in 
LA 

No Must offer reciprocity with GA 

HI 6 - 12 4 2 - 12 No Yes, 12 
ID 4 - 8 4 8 LA degree Yes, 8 Accepts CLARB certification 
IL 6 4 2 No No Accepts CLARB certification 
IN 7 4 3 No Yes, 8 prior to 2003 Accepts CLARB certification 
IA 7 - 8 4 3 - 4 No Yes, 10 
KS 8 4 - 5 3 - 4 No Yes, 8 prior to 1993 
KY 6 4 2 No Yes, 7 prior to 1994 
LA 5 - 6 2 - 4 1 - 4 No Yes, 6 No provision for reciprocity 
ME 6 - 12 3 - 4 2 - 12 No Yes, 12 Accepts CLARB certification 
MD 6 - 8 2 - 4 2 - 8 No Yes, 8 Must offer reciprocity with MD 
MA 6 4 2 - 6 No Yes, 6 Must offer reciprocity with MA 
MI 7 1 - 5 6 - 7 No Yes, 7 CLARB certification required 
MN 8 4 - 5 3 - 4 No No CLARB certification required 
MS 4 - 7 2 - 4 5 - 7 Yes, BA or MA Yes, 7 Accepts CLARB certification 
MO 7 4 3 No No 
MT 2 - 8 2 - 5 2 - 8 No Yes, 8 
NE 5 - 7 4 1 - 3 No No CLARB certification required 
NV 6 - 8 2 - 4 2 - 4 No Yes, 6 
NH 7 - 8 3 - 4 3 - 5 No No Accepts CLARB certification 
NJ 8 4 4 No No 
NM 6 - 10 4 2 - 10 No Yes, 10 
NY 8 2 - 4 4 - 12 No Yes, 12 
NC 8 - 10 4 4 - 10 No No 
ND N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
OH 7 4 3 No No Accepts CLARB certification 

OK 7 4 3 No Yes, at the board's 
discretion Must offer reciprocity with OK 

OR 7 - 10 4 3 - 6 No Yes, 11 
PA 6 - 7 1 - 5 1 - 6 No Yes, 8 
RI 6 4 2 No Yes, 6 
SC 6 - 9 4 2 - 5 No No 
SD 5 4 1 No No CLARB certification required 
TN 7 4 3 No No CLARB certification required 
TX 6 4 2 No No Accepts CLARB certification 
UT 4 - 8 4 - 5 8 Yes, BA or MA Yes, 8 
VT 7 3 - 4 3 - 9 No Yes, 9 Accepts CLARB certification 
VA 6 - 8 3 - 4 3 - 6 No Yes, 8 Accepts CLARB certification 
WA 7 2 - 4 3 - 8 No Yes, 8 
WV 4 - 6 4 - 5 1 - 2 No Yes, 10 Accepts CLARB certification 
WI 6 - 7 2 - 4 2 - 5 No No 
WY 7 4 3 No No Accepts CLARB certification 



National Landscape Architects - Eligibility and Reciprocity Requirements 

State - Acroynym Initial Education/Experience Requirements Reciprocity Requirements Education Experience Required 
for Purposes of Reciprocity 

Alabama - AL 
6 years combined education and experience which may include up to 5 years 
credit for education. In lieu of education, 8 years experience if that experience 
began prior to August 1, 2012. 

Passed a test prepared by CLARB and is from a state with similar 
qualifications for licensure that also offers reciprocity with AL. 

Yes, unless 8 years of practice experience 
was gained or began prior to August 1, 
2012. 

Alaska - AK 8 to 12 years combined education and experience, plus a course in arctic 
engineering. 

Licensed in a state that the board determines meets the requirements of 
law or, have a CLARB certificate. Must also complete an artic 
engineering course. 

Yes 

Arizona - AZ 8 years of active education or experience or both (not more than 5 years credit 
for education). 

Must meet the mimimum experience requirements or have CLARB 
certification. In lieu of meeting education, training and examination 
requirments, applicants may submit proof of licensure for at least 10 of the 
last 15 years. 

No 

Arkansas - AR Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years experience; or a degree in a field related 
to LA plus 4 years experience; or 7 years experience satisfactory to the board. 

Holds a current, valid license issued under standards equivalent to AR at 
the time of original licensure. May submit a valid CLARB certificate. No 

California - CA 
6 years combined education and experience. Minimum one year education and 
minimum one year experience under landscape architect post graduation. 
Multiple pathways. 

Licensed in another jurisdiction and meets initial eligiblity requirements 
for California candidates. Yes 

Colorado - CO 
Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years experience or 6 years practical experience 
or a combination of education and experience to meet the 6 year requirement. 
Educational credit is given for non-accredited programs. 

Holds a current, valid license in another jurisdiction with eligibility 
requirements substantially equivalent to CO. No 

Connecticut - CT Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years of experience or 8 years experience. CLARB certification or licensure in another state with standards 
substantially similar or higher than CT. No 

Delaware - DE Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years experience or 2 years coursework in LA 
from an accredited school plus 4 years experience. 

Proof of licensure in good standing in another state or territory and 
passage of a uniform national licensing exam for landscape architecture. Yes 

District of Columbia - DC N/A N/A N/A 

Florida - FL Accredited degree in LA plus 1 year of experience, or 7 years experience and/or 
education credit. 

Licensure by Endorsement if the applicant has passed a licensing exam 
substantially equivalent to that used by FL or who holds a valid LA license 
in a state or territory with substantially identical criteria to the 
requirements in FL at the time of issuance. 

No 

Georgia - GA BA/BS degree in LA plus 18 months of training or post graduate degree in LA. 
Legally registered/licensed by another jurisdiction where licensure 
requirements are substantially equivalent to GA and where the same 
privilege is extended to GA licensees. 

Yes 

Hawaii - HI 

MA in LA plus 2 years experience or undergraduate degree in LA plus 3 years 
experience or undergraduate degree in pre-LA or Arts and Sciences plus 5 years 
experience, or 12 years experience. Applicants with 15 years experience do not 
have to pass the L.A.R.E. 

Current licensure in a jurisdiction where the requirements for licensure at 
the time the license was issued are satisfactory to the Board. Must pass the 
national licensing exam and the HI supplemental exam. 

No 

Idaho - ID Graduation from a college or school of LA approved by the board or 8 years 
experience. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction whose requirements are substantially 
equivalent to ID or CLARB certification No 

alknati
Typewritten Text
Attachment H.3

alknati
Typewritten Text



Illinois - IL Approved professional degree in LA plus 2 years experience. Licensure in another state which has substantially equivalent requirements 
and/or CLARB certification. Yes 

Indiana - IN Accredited degree in LA plus 3 years of experience or, before January 2003, at 
least 8 years experience. 

Licensed in another jurisdiction with substantially equivalent requirements 
as IN and/or CLARB certification. 

Yes, unless 8 years of practice experience 
was gained before January 2003. 

Iowa - IA 4 year accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience, 4 year non-accredited 
degree in LA plus 4 years experience, or 10 years experience. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction whose requirements are substantially 
equivalent to IA. No 

Kansas - KS Accredited 5 year degree in LA plus 3 years experience or accredited 4 year 
degree in LA plus 4 years experience. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction whose requirements are substantially 
equivalent to KS. 

Yes, unless licensed in their home state 
before January 1993, may use 8 years 
experience in lieu of education. 

Kentucky - KY Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years experience. Licensed in a jurisdiction where the requirements at the time of licensing 
were equal to those required in KY at the time of application. Yes 

Louisiana - LA 
Professional degree from an accredited school or a degree which the 
commission has declared to be substantially equivalent plus at least 1 year 
experience, or 6 years experience. 

No provision for reciprocity. No 

Maine - ME 

Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years experience other than as a principal or 5 
years as a principal, or non-accredited degree plus 3 years experience other than 
a principal or 5 years experience as a principal, or bachelors degree in a non-
related field plus 5 years experience, or 3 years experience under the 
supervision of a licensed LA plus 5 years experience as a principal, or 12 years 
experience other than as a principal at least 6 of which was under the 
supervision of a licensed LA. 

Current and valid license from another jurisdiction where the requirements 
for licensure are equivalent to the requirements in ME or CLARB 
certification issued after examination. 

No 

Maryland - MD 
Accredited degree plus 2 years experience, or design-related degree plus 4 years 
experience, or non-related degree plus 6 years experience, or 8 years 
experience. 

Licensed in another jurisdiction with substantially equivalent requirements 
as MD and which offers reciprocity to MD licensees. No 

Massachusetts - MA Accredited degree and 2 years experience or, 6 years experience 
Licensed in another jurisdication whose requirements are at least 
substantially equivalent to MA provided the jurisdication extends the same 
privilege to MA licensees. 

No 

Michigan - MI 7 years of education and/or work experience. BS/BA degree equals 4 years of 
the 7 year requirement; MA equals 5 years of the 7 year requirement. 

Must meet the mimimum experience requirements or have CLARB 
certification. No 

Minnesota - MN 
5 year accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience or, 4 year accredited 
degree in LA plus 4 years experience or, related degree plus MA/Ph.d. in LA 
plus 3 years experience. 

CLARB certification. Yes 

Mississippi - MS 

Accredited degree in LA or one that is accepted by a CLARB recognized 
accreditation body. In lieu of education, 7 years experience in LA suitable to 
the board. A degree in a curriculum other than LA qualifies for 2 years credit 
toward the 7 year requirement. 

Licensed by another jurisdiction recognized by CLARB and/or CLARB 
certification. An applicant without CLARB certification must meet the 
education and/or experience requirements. 

No 

Missouri - MO Accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience. Must meet the mimimum education and experience requirements. Yes 

Montana - MT 
Accredited MA degree in LA plus 2 years experience or, non-accredited MA 
degree in LA and 3 years experience or, BA/BS degree plus 4 years experience 
or AA degree plus 6 years experience, or 8 years experience. 

Verification of licensure in another jurisdiction disclosing the laws and 
regulations in effect at the time of licensure, verification from CLARB of 
having passed all sections of the LARE. The board determines whether 
the education and experience requirements for original licensure are 
substantially equivalent to those in MT. 

No 



Nebraska - NE Accredited degree in LA or, non-accredited degree plus 1 year experience or, 
any bachelors degree plus 3 years experience. Licensure in another jurisdiction and has CLARB certification. Yes 

Nevada - NV 

Accredited or approved BA/MA degree in LA plus 2 years experience or, an 
AA in LA or BA in a related field plus 4 years experience or, an accredited BA 
in architecture or civil engineering plus 3 years experience or, any combination 
of education and experience the Board deems acceptable. A MA degree in a 
related field counts as 1 year of experience. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction and actively engaged in the practice of 
LA for 2 or more years or fulfilled the education and experience 
requirements of NV. 

No 

New Hampshire - NH Accredited degree in LA and 3 years experience or, non-accredited degree in 
LA or related field and 5 years experience. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction whose requirements are substantially 
equivalent to those in NH or, CLARB certification accompanied by 
verification of licensure in the other jurisdiction. 

Yes 

New Jersey - NJ Accredited or approved degree in LA plus 4 years experience of which at least 2 
years must have been full time. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction where the standards for licensing met the 
standards in NJ at the time of initial licensure, and passed the national 
examination or holds CLARB certification. 

Yes 

New Mexico - NM 

Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years experience or,  non-accredited degree in 
LA plus 4 years experience or, BA or MA in a related field plus 5 years 
experience, or 10 years practical experience in LA at least 1 of which must 
have been under the direct supervision of a licensed LA (each year of completed 
study in an accredited LA program counts as 1 year experience and a 
baccalaureate degree in any field counts as 2 year experience toward the 10 year 
requirement). 

Licensure in another jurisdiction with standards as stringent or higher than 
NM and meet the qualifications of a licensed LA in NM. No 

New York - NY 

Accredited or approved degree in LA plus experience to equal at least 8 years 
total or, 12 years experience in LA. Each complete year of study satisfactory to 
the board counts as 2 years toward the 12 year requirement, not to exceed 8 
years of credit. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction provided the applicant's qualification met 
the requirements in NY at the time of initial licensure. No 

North Carolina - NC Accredited degree in LA plus 4 years experience or, 10 years education and 
experience in any combination in LA. 

Licensure in a jurisdiction whose requirements are deemed equal or 
equivalent to NC. Applicant must provide proof of education, experience 
and examination. 

Yes 

North Dakota - ND N/A N/A N/A 

Ohio - OH Accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience. 
Licensure in another jurisdiction whose qualifications at the time of 
licensure were substantially equal to the requirements in OH and CLARB 
certification. 

Yes 

Oklahoma - OK Accredited or approved degree in LA plus 3 years experience. The board may 
accept "broad experience" in LA as meeting the educational requirements. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction with requirements substantially 
equivalent to OK and where reciprocity is granted for OK licensees. No 

Oregon - OR 
Accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience or, non-accredited in LA or 
related field plus 4 years experience or, degree in any field plus 6 years 
experience or, 11 years experience. 

Must meet the same requirements as OR applicants. No 

Pennsylvania - PA 

Accredited or approved degree in LA plus 2 years experience or, accredited or 
approved degree in LA plus 1 year of graduate school in LA plus 1 year 
experience or, 1 year of study in an approved program in LA plus 6 years of 
combined education and experience or, 8 years experience actual experience in 
LA. The board waives the examination requirements for individuals with a 
degree in LA and 10 years experience and for individuals with 15 years 
experience in LA. 

Must meet the education and experience requirements and hold a current 
license in LA in another jurisdiction. No 



Rhode Island - RI 

Accredited BS/MA degree in LA or, at the discretion of the board, a BS/MA 
degree in a field related to LA or completion of a non-accredited program, plus 
2 years experience in LA or 1 year experience in LA plus 1 year experience in a 
related field. In lieu of a degree, 6 years experience. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction with equal standards to those in RI and 
that grants equal rights to RI licensees, provided that the applicant passed 
a comparable examination and demonstrates comparable education and 
experience. 

No 

South Carolina - SC Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years experience or, non-accredited degree in 
LA or a related field plus 5 years experience. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction with substantially equivalent 
requirements to those in SC at the time of initial licensure. Yes 

South Dakota - SD Accredited degree in LA and completion of a council record from CLARB. 
Experience requirements are those required by CLARB. 

Must meet the mimimum education and experience requirements or have 
CLARB certification. Yes 

Tennessee - TN Accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience. Comity - must have accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience, 
current CLARB certification and be licensed in another jurisdiction. Yes 

Texas - TX Professional degree from a program accredited by the LAAB plus 2 years 
experience. 

Licensed in another jurisdiction with requirements substantially equivalent 
to those in TX, or where the jurisdiction has entered into an agreement 
with the Board that has been approved by the Governor of TX. Applicants 
must have passed the LARE or an equivalent exam approved by CLARB 
as conforming to CLARB's standards or as being acceptable in lieu of the 
LARE, and have 2 years of post licensure experience or have CLARB 
certification. 

Yes 

Utah - UT Degree in LA or no less than 8 years experience. Each year of education counts 
as 1 year of experience. No provisions for reciprocity cited in law or rules. No 

Vermont - VT 

Accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience or 9 years experience under a 
licensed LA. Up to 1 year of that experience may be under the supervision of 
an architect, professional engineer or land surveyor. Credits from an accredited 
degree program may be substituted for no more than 3 of the 9 year 
requirement. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction with substantially equal requirements as 
VT or CLARB certification. No 

Virginia - VA 
Accredited degree in LA plus 3 years experience or, non-accredited degree in 
LA plus 4 years experience or, any bachelors degree plus 6 years experience or, 
8 years experience. 

Licensed in a jurisdiction whose requirements were at least as rigorous as 
those in VA at the time of original licensure (must have passed an 
examinatiion) or CLARB certification. 

No 

Washington - WA 

Accredited degree in LA or an equivalent degree in LA as determined by the 
board plus 3 years experience, or 8 years LA experience, 6 of which must have 
been under the supervision of a licensed LA. Up to 2 years of experience may 
be granted for postsecondary education courses in LA if the courses are 
equivalent to those offered in accredited degree programs. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction if the applicant's qualifications and 
experience are equivalent to the requirements of WA. No 

West Virginia - WV 

Accredited degree in LA plus 2 years experience, or accredited graduate degree 
in LA plus 1 year experience, or, prior to December 31, 2006, 10 years 
experience in LA, 6 of which must have been under the supervision of a 
licensed LA or a person having similar qualifications as a LA. After January 1, 
2007, 10 years of experience under the supervision of a licensed LA or a person 
having similar qualifications. 

Licensure in another jurisdiction with substantially equivalent 
requirements to those in W.VA., or CLARB certification. No 

Wisconsin - WI 
Accredited degree in LA or an equivalent degree plus 2 years experience, or 7 
years training and experience in LA including at least 2 years of coursework in 
LA or an area related to LA and 4 years practical experience. 

Licensed in another jurisdiction with similar requirements to those in WI. Yes 

Wyoming – WY Accredited degree plus 3 years experience. Licensed in a jurisdiction with substantially equal requirements to those in 
WY or CLARB certification. Yes 




 

 


 




 




 




 


 

 







 






 


 






Attachment H.4 


CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

PROPOSED REGULATORY LANGUAGE 

Proposed language to amend California Code of Regulations section 2615 as follows: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(a)(1) A candidate who has a combination of six years of education and training experience as specified in 
section 2620 shall be eligible and may apply for the Landscape Architect Registration Examination. 

(2) Notwithstanding subdivision (a)(1), a candidate who has a Board-approved degree in landscape 
architecture in accordance with section 2620(a)(1) or an extension certificate in landscape architecture from 
a Board-approved school in accordance with section 2620(a)(3) shall be eligible and may apply for Sections 
1 and 2 of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE). Such candidates shall not be eligible 
for Sections 3 and 4 of the LARE until the candidate has a combination of six years of education and training 
experience as specified in section 2620. 
A candidate’s score on the LARE shall not be recognized in this State if at the time the candidate took the 

LARE, the candidate was not eligible in accordance with California laws and regulations for the examination 
or sections thereof. 

(b) A candidate shall be deemed eligible and may apply for the California Supplemental Examination 
upon passing all sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination. 

(c) All candidates applying for licensure as a landscape architect shall pass all sections of the Landscape 
Architect Registration Examination or a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject 
matter required in California, as determined by the Board, and the California Supplemental Examination 
subject to the following provisions: 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or 
Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter 
required in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California 
Supplemental Examination provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board 
indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants 
at the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 10 of the last 15 years. 

(2) A candidate who is not a licensed landscape architect and who has received credit from a U.S. 
jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico for a written examination substantially equivalent in scope 
and subject matter required in California shall be entitled to receive credit for the corresponding sections of 
the Landscape Architect Registration Examination, as determined by the Board, and shall be eligible for 
licensure upon passing any remaining sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination and the 
California Supplemental Examination. 

Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 5650 and 5651, Business 
and Professions Code. 



 
 

 


 

 


 

 


 

 




 

 

Attachment H.5 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN THE REGULATIONS 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the California Architects Board (Board) is proposing to take 

the action described in the Informative Digest. Any person interested may present statements or 

arguments orally or in writing relevant to the action proposed at a hearing to be held at: 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, California 95834 

Tuesday, September 27, 2016 

10:00 a.m. 

Written comments, including those sent by mail, facsimile, or e-mail to the addresses listed 

under Contact Person in this Notice, must be received by the Board at its office no later than 5:00 

p.m. on September 27, 2016 or must be received by the Board at the hearing. The Board, upon 

its own motion or at the instance of any interested party, may thereafter adopt the proposal 

substantially as described below or may modify such proposals if such modifications are 

sufficiently related to the original text. With the exception of technical or grammatical changes, 

the full text of any modified proposal will be available for 15 days prior to its adoption from the 

person designated in this Notice as the contact person and will be mailed to those persons who 

submit written or oral testimony related to this proposal or who have requested notification of 

any changes to the proposal. 

Authority and Reference: As a result of legislative reorganization, the Landscape Architects 

Technical Committee (LATC), established on January 1, 1998, replaced the former Board of 

Landscape Architects and was placed under the purview of the Board. Pursuant to the authority 

vested by section 5630 of the Business and Professions Code (BPC) and to implement, interpret, 

or make specific section 5650 of the BPC, the Board is considering changes to Division 26 of 

Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations (CCR) as follows: 

INFORMATIVE DIGEST 

A. Informative Digest 

Amend Title 16 CCR Section 2615 – Form of Examinations 

BPC section 5650 requires candidates for licensure to have a combination of six years education 

and training in landscape architecture to qualify for the licensing examination. BPC section 

5651 requires candidates to pass a written examination as a means of ascertaining their 

professional qualifications to practice, prior to receiving a license. 

BPC section 5651 allows the Board to waive the written examination for candidates currently 

licensed in a United States jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico who have passed a 




 

written examination equivalent to that which is required in California at the time of application, 

have submitted proof of job experience equivalent to that required of Californian applicants at 

the time of application, and have passed the California Supplemental Examination (CSE) if, at 

the time of application, it is required of California applicants. 

CCR section 2615(c)(1) allows candidates licensed in a United States jurisdiction, Canadian 

province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination equivalent in scope and subject 

matter required in California as determined by the Board, to be eligible for licensure upon 

passing the CSE. 

This proposal would amend CCR section 2615(c)(1) by adding the provision that candidates 

applying for California licensure based on licensure in another jurisdiction must submit 

verifiable documentation that they possess both education and experience equivalent to that 

required of California applicants or, if they do not meet the education requirement, that they hold 

a current license in good standing in another jurisdiction where they have been actively engaged 

in the profession for at least 10 of the last 15 years. 

B. Policy Statement Overview/Anticipated Benefits of Proposal 

This proposed regulation expands opportunities to become licensed in California while 

still protecting the health, safety, and welfare of California consumers because it allows 

candidates who are licensed and have extensive experience practicing in another 

jurisdiction but do not meet the education requirements of California candidates to obtain 

California licensure. 

C. Consistency and Compatibility with Existing State Regulations 

After conducting a review for any regulations that would relate to or affect this area, the 

Board has evaluated this regulatory proposal and it is neither inconsistent nor 

incompatible with existing state regulations. 

FISCAL IMPACT ESTIMATES 

Fiscal Impact on Public Agencies Including Costs or Savings to State Agencies or Cost/Savings 

in Federal Funding to the State: None 

Nondiscretionary Costs/Savings to Local Agencies: None 

Local Mandate: None 

Cost to Any Local Agency or School District for Which Government Code Sections 17500-

17630 Require Reimbursement: None 

Business Impact: 

The Board has made an initial determination that the proposed regulatory action would have no 

significant statewide adverse economic impact directly affecting business, including the ability 

of California businesses to compete with businesses in other states. 

2 




 


 


 

 


 


 


 

 


 


 




The following studies/relevant data were relied upon in making the above determination: NA 

Cost Impact on Representative Private Person or Business: 

The Board is not aware of any cost impacts that a representative private person or business 

would necessarily incur in reasonable compliance with the proposed action. 

Effect on Housing Costs: None 

EFFECT ON SMALL BUSINESS 

The Board has determined that the proposed regulation would not affect small businesses as it 

only affects landscape architect applicants. 

RESULTS OF ECONOMIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT/ANALYSIS: 

Impact on Jobs/Businesses: 

The Board has determined that this regulatory proposal will not have any impact on the creation 

of jobs or new businesses or the elimination of jobs or existing businesses or the expansion of 

businesses in the State of California. 

Benefits of Regulation: 

The benefit of the regulation is that it will continue to protect the health, safety, and welfare of 

California consumers by expanding opportunities for licensure in California to applicants 

currently licensed in other jurisdictions with extensive experience in landscape architecture but 

who do not meet the educational requirement of California’s laws and regulations. 

CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATIVES 

The Board must determine that no reasonable alternative it considered to the regulation or that 

has otherwise been identified and brought to its attention would be more effective in carrying out 

the purpose for which the action is proposed, would be as effective and less burdensome to 

affected private persons than the proposal described in this Notice, or would be more cost-

effective to affected private persons and equally effective in implementing the statutory policy or 

other provision of law. 

Any interested person may present statements or arguments orally or in writing relevant to the 

above determinations at the above-mentioned hearing. 

INITIAL STATEMENT OF REASONS AND INFORMATION 

The Board has prepared an initial statement of the reasons for the proposed action and has 

available all the information upon which the proposal is based. 

3 




 

TEXT OF PROPOSAL 

Copies of the exact language of the proposed regulations, and any document incorporated by 

reference, and of the initial statement of reasons, and all of the information upon which the 

proposal is based, may be obtained at the hearing or prior to the hearing upon request from the 

California Architects Board, Landscape Architects Technical Committee at 2420 Del Paso Road, 

Suite 105, Sacramento, California 95834 or by telephoning the contact person listed below. 

AVAILABILITY AND LOCATION OF THE FINAL STATEMENT OF REASONS AND 

RULEMAKING FILE 

All the information upon which the proposed regulations are based is contained in the 

rulemaking file which is available for public inspection by contacting the person named below. 

You may obtain a copy of the final statement of reasons once it has been prepared, by making a 

written request to the contact person named below (or by accessing the website listed below). 

CONTACT PERSON 

Inquiries or comments concerning the proposed rulemaking action may be addressed to: 

Name: Kourtney Nation 

Address: 2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Telephone No.:  (916) 575-7237 

Fax No.: (916) 575-7285 

E-Mail Address: kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The backup contact person is: 

Name: Trish Rodriguez 

Address: 2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Telephone No.:  (916) 575-7231 

Fax No.: (916) 575-7285 

E-Mail Address: trish.rodriguez@dca.ca.gov 

Website Access: Materials regarding this proposal can be found at www.latc.ca.gov. 

4 

http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:trish.rodriguez@dca.ca.gov


Attachment H.6 


CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

INITIAL STATEMENT OF REASONS 

Hearing Date: September 27, 2016 

Subject Matter of Proposed Regulation: Form of Examinations 

Section Affected: California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615 

As a result of legislative reorganization, the Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

(LATC), established on January 1, 1998, replaced the former Board of Landscape Architects and 

was placed under the purview of the California Architects Board (Board). Business and 

Professions Code (BPC) section 5630 authorizes the Board to adopt, amend, or repeal rules and 

regulations that are reasonably necessary in order to carry out the provisions under the 

Landscape Architects Practice Act. 

1. PURPOSE 

BPC section 5650 requires candidates for licensure to have a combination of six years education 

and training in landscape architecture to qualify for the licensing examination. BPC section 

5651 requires candidates to pass a written examination as a means of ascertaining their 

professional qualifications to practice, prior to receiving a license. 

BPC section 5651 allows the Board to waive the written examination for candidates currently 

licensed in a United States jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico who have passed a 

written examination equivalent to that which is required in California at the time of application, 

have submitted proof of job experience equivalent to that required of Californian applicants at 

the time of application, and have passed the California Supplemental Examination (CSE) if, at 

the time of application, it is required of California applicants. 

Currently, CCR section 2615(c)(1) allows candidates licensed in a United States jurisdiction, 

Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination equivalent in scope 

and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board, to be eligible for licensure 

upon passing the CSE. 

The problem being addressed is that the LATC receives applications for reciprocal licensure 

from individuals licensed in jurisdictions where additional years of experience could be 

substituted for education in meeting the prerequisites for taking the licensing examination. 

Under current California laws and regulations, these individuals are precluded from licensure 

here because they do not meet the education requirements of this state, even though they have 

been practicing in other jurisdictions and thus have additional years of training. 

This proposal would amend CCR section 2615(c)(1) by adding provisions that candidates 

applying for California licensure based on licensure in another jurisdiction must submit 

verifiable documentation that they have education and experience equivalent to that required of 



California applicants or, if they do not meet the education experience requirement, that they hold 

a current license in good standing in another jurisdiction where they have been actively engaged 

in the profession for at least 10 of the last 15 years. 

FACTUAL BASIS/RATIONALE 

The LATC has received and continues to receive reciprocal licensure requests from candidates 

licensed in other jurisdictions, many for several years, who do not meet the educational 

requirements of BPC section 5650. In 2013, LATC began discussing the issue of equitable 

reciprocal licensure with other jurisdictions and reviewing the education, training and 

examination requirements of other states. 

Research reveals that education and/or experience is required by all states to qualify for the 

licensing examination. Only 4 states allow candidates to take the licensing examination upon 

completion of an undergraduate or graduate degree in landscape architecture with no experience 

requirement; 31 states allow candidates to take the examination on the basis of experience alone, 

with a range of 6 to 12 years required; 5 states have specific provisions that allow reciprocity 

only if their licensees are granted reciprocity in return; and, 6 states grant reciprocity on the basis 

of having a Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards’ (CLARB) certification 

(which certifies education and/or experience, and passage of the licensing examination). 

At its November 2013 meeting, LATC discussed the fact that BPC section 5650 requires a 

combination of six years education and training as a prerequisite for licensure in California. 

Therefore, the law precludes licensing in California for candidates licensed in jurisdictions where 

education was not a component of initial licensure, even though they may have been practicing 

safely and competently for many years. 

LATC asked legal counsel if there is a way to make reciprocity requirements for education less 

prescriptive to allow more flexibility in evaluating the qualifications of candidates licensed in 

other states. At the March 2014 LATC meeting, Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) legal 

counsel advised that a regulatory change would be needed to consider reciprocity for applicants 

who have not met California’s education requirement. 

At its February 2015 meeting, LATC directed staff to provide the reciprocity requirements of 

Arizona and New York, states with similar licensing populations as California. LATC also 

discussed the current combination six year education and training requirements candidates must 

complete prior to taking the licensing examination and noted that candidates can qualify for the 

examination with an associate degree in landscape architecture (1 year of educational credit) and 

5 years training/experience. Once a candidate has successfully passed the examination, he/she is 

deemed to be minimally competent for entry level practice. During the discussion, LATC 

expressed the belief that licensed professionals continue to learn and gain expertise with each 

year of practice. Their opinion was that a substantial number of years of post-licensure 

experience would demonstrate an individual’s competence to practice safely, even though they 

may not have met California’s minimum educational experience requirements. 

2 




 

At its November 2015 meeting, LATC reviewed Arizona’s and New York’s reciprocity 

standards. Arizona allows reciprocity if the applicant’s education, experience and examination 

were “substantially identical” to the requirements that existed in Arizona at the time they were 

originally licensed. Arizona allows candidates to test, without education, if they have 8 years of 

experience. New York grants reciprocity to applicants who hold a current license, have passed 

the written examination given in the jurisdiction in which they were licensed, and met New 

York’s requirements at the time their license was issued in the other jurisdiction. New York also 

allows candidates to test, without education, if they have 12 years of experience. Both New 

York and Arizona accept 10 years of licensed experience for the purpose of reciprocity in lieu of 

meeting their degree and experience requirements. 

Before making a decision on whether to consider years of licensed experience in lieu of 

education for reciprocity candidates, the LATC discussed the importance of recent and current 

practice as they relate to competency in offering skills that are up to date with changes in the 

profession. One way to ensure that practitioners maintain their knowledge and skills is to require 

periodic license renewal. In California, BPC section 5680 mandates that licenses be renewed 

every two years and CCR section 2624.1 specifies that licenses that have been expired for more 

than five years, cannot be renewed. 

After discussion and based on the information provided above, LATC voted to approve an 

amendment to CCR section 2615(c)(1) to add provisions that candidates applying for California 

licensure based on licensure in another jurisdiction must submit verifiable documentation that 

they either possess both education and experience equivalent to that required of California 

applicants or, if they do not meet the education requirement, that they hold a current license in 

good standing in another jurisdiction where they have been actively engaged in the profession for 

at least 10 of the last 15 years. 

UNDERLYING DATA 

1. LATC Strategic Plans – 2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16 

2. Summary Report – LATC Meeting, November 17, 2015 

3. Summary Report – LATC Meeting, May 13, 2015 

4. Summary Report – LATC Meeting, February 10, 2015 

5. Summary Report – LATC Meeting, March 20, 2014 

6. Summary Report – LATC Meeting, November 7, 2013 

7. Arizona Administrative Code, Title 4, Section R4-30-203 (Waiver of Examination) 

8. New York Education Law, Article 148, Section 7324 (Requirements for a professional 

license) 

9. Landscape Architects - Initial Licensure and State Specific Eligibility Requirements 

10. National Landscape Architects – Eligibility and Reciprocity Requirements 

3 



	 

	 


 

	 

	 

	 

	 

BUSINESS IMPACT 

This regulation will not have a significant adverse economic impact on directly affecting 

business, including the ability of California businesses to compete with business in other states, 

because it affects only candidates for examination and licensure. 

ECONOMIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

This regulatory proposal will have the following effects: 

 It will not create or eliminate jobs within the State of California because it only affects 

candidates for examination and licensure. 

 It will not create new business or eliminate existing businesses within the State of 

California because it only affects candidates for examination and licensure. 

 It will not affect the expansion of businesses currently doing business within the State of 

California because it only affects candidates for examination and licensure. 

 This regulatory proposal will continue to protect the health and welfare of California 

residents because it allows individuals who have extensive experience practicing in 

another jurisdiction to obtain California licensure. 

 This regulatory proposal does not affect worker safety because it is not related to worker 

safety in any manner. 

 This regulatory proposal does not affect the state’s environment because it is not related 
to the environment in any manner. 

SPECIFIC TECHNOLOGIES OR EQUIPMENT 

This regulation does not mandate the use of specific technologies or equipment. 

CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATIVES 

No reasonable alternative to the regulation would be either more effective in carrying out the 

purpose for which the action is proposed or would be as effective and less burdensome to 

affected private persons than the proposed regulation. 

4 



Eu inooriu Cousultin 

C • ustru tion Eu ineerin0 CER Inc. 
t'cm,uu, lmn l I gi11l•,·ri 11 EI pert W ituess Servic a 

9-17- 16 
California Architects Board 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite I 05 
Sacramento CA 95834-9673 
Initial Statement of Rea ons 

Attn : Landscape Archite ts Technical Committee 
Subject: Business and Professional Code (BPC) 5650 

ffecting Californi a Code of Regulation (CCR). Title 16 Division 26, Section 2615 
General Provis.ion 2615 Form of Examinations (c ( 1) 
Bearing Date: September 27 :2016 

Dear ommittee Members; 

J pre ent the fo llowing for your consideration at the referenced hearing regarding changes to 

CR ection 261 S(c)( I) , The fa us of these chang are about educational requirements, 
experience requirements and reciprocity. 

I am a Ca li fornia Registered Engineer since 1981 . I received my Bachelor of cienc in C ivil 
Engineering by attending classe at m local junior colleg and the final 2 year at acramento 
State University. J have owned and operated 2 separate tale of ali forn ia Civ il engineeri11g 
firms. The first one was Id in 201.5 t an employee who gained an engineering license through 
a degree in ar hitecture and the second one i still in operation. Thru the second firm I work w ith 
a corp ration in Houston that operates engineering branches in 32 separate states. I hold 
engineering licen es in all of those states and 4 province in Canada. All of those Ii enses except 

alifornia were appli ed fo r thru reciprocity. I readi ly acknowledge thal Land cape Architecture 
is a different discipline than Ci ii Engineering and only p ak here to what I consid r to be 
common to the two disciplines. 

1 am currently 67 year old and have 35 years of experience in the practice of engineering. his 
experience has prov ided me with a thorough knowledge f issue regarding licensur recipr city. 
the value of education in engineering subjects versu the value of obtaining knowledge thru work 
experience. I also have a fu ndamental understanding of the economic and legal issue involving 
free trade, protectionism, inter late c mmerce. and Federal and AFT regulation governing 
these issues. 

I have reviewed the California Architect Board ", Land cape Arch itects Technical 
Comm ittee Initial Statement of Rea ons. This document is\ ell stated and clear. The f actual 
Basis/Rational is just that, factual and rational. I am not criticizing in anyway the findings of this 
document, I am just providing here what I believe is am re compelling and important view of 

hat needs to be consid r d at 1.he hearing stage. 

ou truction Engineering Resource 1837 Wright S reet Santa Rosa CA 95404 707 484-4 704 

jmt ngr2 aol.com 

alknati
Typewritten Text
Attachment H.7



2 CER Inc. 
Cun:-.tru.._ tion t=n~in · ·r111 g f t ' uurfl' 

En ineeriD Coneultin 

Construct· u Eu i.oeeriJJ 

E1pert Wituesa Services 

To summarize the language in rhe purpo e stat ment of this d cum nt essentially the purp e of 
the hearing and I gislative change is t · 

• Add provisions that candidates applying for California licensure based on licensure In another 

Jurisdiction, (reciprodty), have education and experience equivalent to that required of 

California applicants. 

The solution is to; 

• Add provisions to waive California education requirements and allow reciprocity applicants that 

have been engaged in in the industry in good standing for 10 years to take the California 

Supplemental Exam and thereby become a California Landscape Architect. 

To be clear the problem today is that there i no pathway to the California Landscape Architect 
License without with some form of approved formal ollege educati n. In fact ifth reciprocity 
applicant gets the initial exam waived due to having passed the test elsewhere he/she is currently 
faced with this irt order lo take the C - : 

( I ){A) Candidates shall possess at least two yi.;.irs of training/practice credit to be eligible for the 
examination. 

(B) At least one fthe M years oftrnining/practjce rcdit hall be under the direct supervision of a 
land cape architect licensed in o United States jurisdiction, and shall be gained in one of the following 
forms: 

I. After graduation from an educational institution pccified i,, subdivisions (a (1), (2) (3) or 4) o this 
section. 

2. After completion of education e perience specified in subdivisions ( (7) and (8) of this section. 
((a}( ) and ~ ~ refer to college > ·tension progrums.) 

This e s ntialJy doubles down the education requirements. he exam and education required 
here is upposed LO be on ·more complicated settings for the condu l of architectural pract'i e in 
the state speci fie to Cali fom ia . My observation of Lhis add iLional education and e am is that the 
bulk of it is a repeat of the material co ered jn the initial stat wide approved Licens d Landscape 
Architecture Exam. Granted that largt: population and seismic event are unique to a small 
handful of states and should b considered, h wever all of th supplemental tate exams l have 
taken for my reciprocity license have focused on state and local regulation ethic . climate and 
seismic variations that are not common in other states. All or the supplemental e ·am knowledge 
could be obtained thru on line course or purchased self- tudy material and easil learned in 
, eeks, not months or a year. In my opinion the curr nt requfrement · candidates hall po sess at 
least two years of training/practice credit' has been hijacked in ord r to direct all applicant to a 
California lnstiLution of higher education with lhe attendant financial benefits to the univer ities 
supply and demand benefits for current licensed landscape architects and exclusionary and 
financial effect that it has on the hard working talented young aspiring landscape architect 
doing th bulk f the work. Furthermore since when have lh words training/practice meant 

Construction Engineering Resource 1837 Wright Street, Santa Rosa, CA 95404 707 4 4-4704 

jmtengr2@aol.com 

mailto:jmtengr2@aol.com


3 CER Inc. 
tion l: n ~inct·rin, R '. ( ur ·~ .. 

En in rill ousul in 

E1perl Witness Services 

education requirements, wh re I come from first you learn lhe material (schooling) then you 
train (take what you learned and perfect it lo a standard of quality) and then practice, meaning 
do the ork as your profes ion on a dail basis. This is an e ·clusionary ta tic that should not 
have been be allowed when th requirement was penned back in the day. We have an 
opportunity to fix that now. We owe il t the citizen of California, and th working men and 
women in the land cape architecture indu try to take the t ime and effort to do it right. 
Thi take me to the propos d solution that wear nsiderin 0 • IO year is a long period of time 
after completing 4 years of college education and/or 3 to 12 years of essentially apprenticeship 
before licensure. That is 16 years before obtaining a reciprocity license in California. The other 
thing the olution does not cake into consideration i a 4 ear bachelor' degree in another 
discipline. To be fair, there should be at least 3 parhs co licen ure· 

1. college education in the discipline+ experience 6 years total 

2. college education In any discipline + experience Longer time than item 1, maybe 8 years 

3. experience longer t ime than items 1 and 2, maybe 10 years 

(not 16 years) 

The current tate f affairs i r tern I at 6 years, th proposed i item 3 at 16 to 22 ears 
depending experience requirements of the original state. 

College education with a degree signifi chat an indi idual h. 2 year of general education and 
2 years of education in a specific subject· howe er far more important] it signi 1es that the 
student is capable of accomplishing a major aduH task and can endeavor lo learh anything they 
take an interest in . ome individuals simply do not have the time or the money to attend college; 
however they do have the ability to learn anything they want. College educated people should 
understand that that degree does not make them any better or worse than any other human being, 
it simply means that they may have taken a different path to where they now stand equally b side 
another person. In my own practice of engineering\ orkjng \: ith many, man engineers I hav 
learned that college education or the institution th came from has little to do with Lheir ability 
rise up and do outstanding work within the field. They are go d at it because they ha e a passion 
for whac they do and self-educate beyond their college work. The idea that we are elevating the 
quality and workmanship of the California Landscap Indusrry by allowing only allege 
educated or non-college educated individuals aft ,. 16 year f practic t obtain a alifornia 
Landscap license is preposterous. 

Typically within the ngineering and other professional disciplines the three- path to licen ure J 
listed above are a ailable within the stat sand through recipro ity. I b lieve that these three 
paths are in keeping with Federal and NAFTA inlent to provide fair and equal treatment so that 
profes ionals can work travel, move and reside where they choose within the region . 

J urge you to con ider the following language that would resu lt in reasonable and fair approach 
to amending CCR ection 26 1 S(c)(l) , (Lhe change are in bold underlin ): 

onstruction Engineering Resource 1837 Wright Street Santa Rosa, CA 95404 707 484-4704 

jmtengr2 aol.com 



4 CER Inc. 
'o m.tru ·t ion En~irwcrin~ R1..-~ou r · · 

Engineering Consulting 

Coustructiou Engineering 

E1pert Witneaa Servicea 

(I) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction. 
Canadian province or Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination 
substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall. be eligible for licensure upon passing the California 
Supplemental Examination. Provided that the candidate submits verifiable 
documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A)Candidate possess education and experience equivalent to that required of 
California applicants at the time of application: 

Or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a 
Bachelor's degree from a recognized accredited institution, and has been 
practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years 

(C} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been 

practicing or offering professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years 

This language provides for three separate paths and reasonable amounts of experience. TI1is 
hearing and the work being done on this issue is important. Please get it right. 1 ask that th is 
change be approved at your next committee meeting. 

111 conclusion I would like to point out my reason for taking time here to offer this plea. As you 
might expect, I do have a horse in this race. The old adage follow the money and you will 
understand what you are being pressured to do, is true here. As I see it, in the name of public 
safety and quality of life Califomian ' s are being asked to spend more money on the product and 
bolster the coffers of our colleges that provide landscape archjtecture education at the expense of 
outsiders that apply for reciprocity and individuals without college education that earned 
landscape arcl1itect licenses outside the state. Excluded individuals with a four year degree in 
who have practiced engineering and been practicing landscape architecture for over IO years 
should be able to apply for the license. The future of our chi ldren and grandchildren are at stake. 
Furthermore, as a lifetime 67 year old California resident and business man lam part of a 
generation that has perpetrated the constant erosion of ethics, fairness, and opportunity that once 
existed here. College educations have become affordable to the privileged few our colleges have 
become businesses that prey on those that can and cannot afford them and our businesses have 
learned how to profit from exclusionary tactics of the less fortunate. I see here an opportunity to 
combat this trend and do the right thing for the youth of our State. 

Construction Engineering Resource 1837 Wright Street, Santa Rosa, CA 95404 707 484-4704 

jmtengr2@aol.com 

mailto:jmtengr2@aol.com


5 CER Inc. 
·on~lrut·tion Enti .._•in nirw Rl·:-1>UITl ... .... 

Engineering Con:mltillg 

Construction Engineering 

Eipert Witnel!s Services 

Please just ignore the rhetoric here and focus on the purpose of the hearing and consider the 
changed language I have proposed. 

Best Regards 
Joe Turner RCE 

Construction Engineering Resource 1837 Wright Street, Santa Rosa, CA 95404 707 484-4704 

jmtengr2@aol.com 

mailto:jmtengr2@aol.com


Elizabeth Turner 
1837 Wright Street 
Santa Rosa, CA 95404 
September 17, 2016 

Califorhia Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Board and LATC Members: 

I am writing to you as a third generation Californian who cares deeply about my state. I am very 
concerned regarding some of your proposed actions. It has been announced you will be holding a 
hearing on this matter on September 27, 2016; so, I have decided to share my thoughts with all of you. 

As a tax paying resident of the state of California, I would prefer to see a more inclusive set of 
requfrements for CA licensure in the field of landscape architecture. I would like to see your 
requirements include more varying types of approaches for entry into this field. The regulations you 
propose continue to severely limit the types of approach one might take to enter this field. These 
proposed regulations will create an additional 10 year requirement and look more like you are trying to 
keep eveh qualified people out, The only benefit t hese proposed regulations seem to have, for anyone, 
are for people already holding a CA state landscape architect license and a very limited number of 
educational institutions in the state of CA. Even people with no knowledge of economic theory do 
understand the effects and affects of artificial manipulation of the supply and demand curve. 

I do understand, and support, the need for industry standards and regulations; having run the business 
end, (i.e. bookkeeping, financing, HR, etc.), of my husband's engineering firm for several years. I just 
think the requirements you are proposing, for reciprocity and to even qualify to take the examination, 
are onerous and unnecessary. In my opinion, if people do not have the knowledge the state requires of 
them to pass an examination, then she or he should not be allowed to practice in the field. As to how a 
person acquires the knowledge to think, or feel, he or she is prepared to take the examination, that 
should allow for many approaches. 

Being pofitieof appointees to a board or committee asked to oversee rules, regulations, and laws, 
governing any industry or profession is -a huge responsibility. In the case of the Architects Board and the 
LATC, I understand this does involve safety of the general public, good stewardship of our land and our 
economy. I do understand that the regulations you adopt have a very real impact on people's lives, 
both in your industry and as members of the general publlc. It would be my guess, and it is just a guess, 
that possibly all of you have obtained your success through some degree of higher education. I came 
from a family where formal education is highly valued. My grandmother was one of the first women, to 
graduate from normal school in San Francisco. She took the boat from Elk, now usually called 
Greenwood, once a week. She taught school, public and private, for 70 years of her life. She lived to be 
93. I have been the recipient of higher education, for which I am grateful. I submit to you that not every 
intelligent, hard working person in our great state or country can avail themselves of this opportunity for 
a myriad of reasons . I am asking you not to burden an already cumbersome system with undue 
regulation. Thank you for your time, 



Associat ion of 

Professional 
Landscape 

-~iP::!.. Designers 
'418111 California Chapter 

September 26, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Re: Public Comment and Support for Revised Language to amend California Code 
of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615. 

Dear Landscape Architects. Technical Committee: 

I am writing to express the APLD California Chapter's support for the Revised Language 
to amend California Code of Regulations section 2615 Form of Examinations. We believe 
that in order to address the current environmental crisis in California, a diverse and well
qualified body of landscape professionals is needed. For this reason, we support the 
proposal of Dustin Maxam and other out-of-state registered landscape architects' 
alternative to the Committee s Proposed Regulatory Language amendment to § 2615. 

The revised language will expand pathways to Landscape Architecture Ucensure in 
California. Primarily, the proposed language further aligns the California Landscape 
Architects Practice Act with those in the 50 States and is inclusive to licensed individuals 
with diverse combinations of education and experience. 

The revised language takes important small steps toward correcting California s existing 
barriers to the legal, ethical, and responsible practice of landscape design in our state. 
We recognize the positive change the LATC has started by addressing these issues, and 
thank you for the opportunity to comment on thls improved language. We ask that you 
please accept the proposed language for approval at your next meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Mary Fisher, APLD 

Association of Professional Landscape Designers (APLD 

APLD California Chapter President 



         

   

      
   
    

      
   

     

                
           

               
                 
             
          

               
         

                 
            

            
                
                

   

              
              

                 
           

               
           

             
            

               
     

           
               




Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Dustin Maxam, RLA 
325 Carrillo Street, Santa Rosa, CA 95401 
707-569-6739 dmaxam@EBAgroup.com 
File #: 4021 (2012 Reciprocity Application) 

September 27, 2016 

Members of the Committee and Staff 
California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I applaud you for taking steps to correct the inequity in the current system. The existing 
regulatory language is exclusionary to professional level Landscape architects who gained 
licensure out of state and do not meet the precise education requirement of California’s first 
time candidates. As a result there are currently members of the public who are as qualified as 
their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining licensure due to 
these existing discriminative regulations. These out‐of‐state licensed individuals, having passed 
the national exam, are by definition competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public – the primary concern of licensure. 

In California (CA) a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 
year Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work 
experience and passing the national Landscape Architects Registration Exam (LARE). Currently a 
person with a 4 year Bachelor’s Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in 
another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not 
eligible for licensure. 

The current Business and Professions Code (BPC) and California Code of Regulations (CCR) are 
extremely narrow in the Path to Landscape Architect Licensure when compared to the Paths 
available to licensees in most other States as well as to the paths of Licensure for California 
Architects and Civil Engineers. California’s education requirement essentially cuts off whole 
swaths of potential candidates from ever being able to gain licensure. The fact that existing 
regulations allow architecture in place of landscape architecture education further illustrates 
how the governing regulations arbitrarily deem the education of one allied discipline more 
capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of Californians over another. 

Please refer to Appendix A of this letter for a summary of the existing regulatory 
background preceding the proposed change. 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s (LATC) proposed regulatory change to amend 
California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615, Form of Examinations is 

1 

mailto:dmaxam@EBAgroup.com


            
            
             

           
             
             

               
             

              
        

               
              
              

            
             

 

               
             

                 
                 

          
               

              
             

            
                 

     

 

            
              

      
	              

    
	            

         
              

              
        


 

a misguided step toward addressing the inequities created from increasingly restrictive policies 
over time. These progressively constraining licensure requirements are illustrated by the fact 
that many currently practicing CA Licensed Landscape Architects would not qualify for licensure 
under today’s policies. These professionals became licensed under the previous Landscape 
Architect’s Board (LAB) and have varied educational backgrounds, which are no longer deemed 
acceptable by the LATC. The fact that these California licensed individuals are currently 
competently practicing and contributing to the profession is proof not only that there are many 
successful ways to obtain the knowledge and experience to pass the national landscape 
architecture registration exams (such as the LARE), but that they are not compromising the 
public safety, the primary concern of the LATC. 

Per the LATC Notice and Initial Statement of Reasons, the purpose of the proposed regulation 
change is to expand “opportunities to become licensed in California while still protecting the 
health, safety, and welfare of California consumers.” The LATC would do this by allowing 
“candidates who are licensed and have extensive experience practicing in another jurisdiction 
but do not meet the education requirements of California candidates to obtain California 
licensure.” 

However, the proposal is a misstep because it only appears to expand “opportunities to become 
licensed” and when implemented would only benefit a few individuals. These individuals would 
already be established out of state, hold senior or principal positions, and be nearing the ends of 
their careers. It would do little to address the majority of licensed candidates who do not meet 
California’s initial licensure requirements due to existing exclusionary education requirements. 
These education requirements are not shared by the majority of other States or by California’s 
licensure pathways for Architects and Civil Engineers (who offer licensure to those with and 
without discipline specific education). The proposed change would do little for those individuals 
who unfortunately, like most people (myself included), did not even know Landscape 
Architecture (LA) existed when in college and as a result possess a bachelor’s degree in a subject 
not accepted by the LATC. 

Semantics 

Licensure requirements for Reciprocity are difficult to convey, partly because experience gained 
before and after licensure is treated differently. With this in mind the following analysis 
categorizes landscape architecture experience as either: 

1. Pre licensure, meaning experienced gained before licensure and used to satisfy a state’s 
requirements for initial licensure. 

2. Post (gaining) licensure, meaning experienced acquired after initial licensure and while 
holding a valid license and practicing or offering services. 

In addition, in the context of reciprocity between states, licensee, licensed, and licensure are 
assumed to be equivalent to registrant, registered, and registration in the field of landscape 
architecture – as is the industry standard practice. 

2 



    
 
      
 

            
              

              
                 

               
           

	            
          

	            
   

             
           

         
       

	                   
                    

               

          
       

	                   
                 

                 
           

                
             

         

	                    
                   

                  
                      

                    
             

               
           

                 
                  

                
        


 

The LATC’s Proposed Regulatory Language 
Relies on Precedent Taken out of Context 

The Committee’s proposed Regulatory Language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 
16, Division 26, Section 2615, Form of Examinations would allow reciprocity to Candidates who 
hold “a valid license in good standing, and [have] been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 10 of the last 15 years.” This language borrows precedent from New York 
and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude 
of paths to licensure not available in California; these states allow: 

1. Licensure for candidates with varying degrees and combinations of experience, while 
California fails to recognize education except Landscape Architecture & Architecture. 

2. Licensure for candidates with experience only, while California fails to recognize 
experience only pathways. 

The following code excerpts, from New York and Arizona, and commentary will demonstrate 
how the LATC has mistakenly applied precedent to its own regulations. 

Precedent Borrowed from New York Education Law, Article 148 
Section 7324. Requirements for a Professional License 

(3.) In lieu of degree, experience and examination requirements specified in subparagraphs (2), (3) and (4) of subdivision one 
of this section, ten years of lawful practice of landscape architecture outside the state satisfactory to the board may be 
accepted by the department upon the passing of a practical examination satisfactory to the board. 

Precedent Not Borrowed from New York Education Law, Article 148 
Section 7324. Requirements for a Professional License 

(4.) On recommendation of the board, the department may exempt from examination an applicant who holds a license or 
certificate to practice landscape architecture issued to him upon examination by a legally constituted board of examiners 
in any other state or political subdivision of the United States, provided the applicant`s qualifications met the 
requirements in this state at the time such license was issued. 

It is clear that borrowing precedent from New York’s paragraph (3.) for the 10 years licensed 
experience is taken out of context because paragraph (4.) allows licensure by alternate 
pathways (not available to CA applicants), as described below: 

(2.) In lieu of degree and experience requirements specified in subparagraphs (2) and (3) of subdivision one of this section, 
twelve years of practical experience in landscape architecture of a grade and character satisfactory to the board may be 
accepted by the department provided that each complete year of study satisfactory to the department may at the 
discretion of the board be accepted in lieu of two years of experience but not to exceed eight years toward the required 
total of twelve years. Eight years of such experience satisfactory to the board may be accepted by the department for 
admission to that portion of the examination related to fundamental landscape architecture theory. 

According to the New York State Office of the Professions, the Department upon review accepts 
education toward their 12 year education and/or experience requirement as follows: 

Units assigned to each educational category below are the maximum that the Department may grant. After evaluating 
the degree or courses you successfully completed, the Department may grant less than the maximum number of units. 
Credit will not be awarded for multiple categories; the highest professional education level attained determines the 
maximum credit to be awarded. If you completed: 

3 



             
   

   
   

                
           

	                 
  
 

  
 
  
 

	              
  

	                 
   

              
       

   
	                

       
   

	                
       

   
         
 

   
 
     
 

	             
 
 
 

	  

            
            

                  
             
                

  

                
               

            
               

              
               

          
            

              
      

        
     

                    
             

                  
                   


 

A. Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB) accredited undergraduate program and graduated with a 
degree from a: 

4‐year program ‐ 8 units 
5‐year program ‐ 9 units 

NOTE: Partial credit will be considered for incomplete degree‐granting LAAB accredited programs based on review of 
transcripts (2 units per year for a maximum of 6 units). 

B. A graduate degree in landscape architecture AND an LAAB accredited undergraduate program and graduated with a 
degree from a: 

4‐year program ‐ 9 units 
5‐year program ‐ 10 units 

C. A 4‐year non‐landscape architecture degree AND a degree from an LAAB accredited graduate program. 
‐ 8 units 

D. A degree in landscape architecture from an undergraduate or graduate curriculum that is NOT ASLA accredited 
‐ 7 units (maximum) 

An Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology (ABET) accredited civil engineering program or National 
Architectural Accrediting Board (NAAB) accredited architecture program 

‐ 6 units (maximum) 
E. A 2‐year landscape architecture‐related technical program, you will be awarded one unit for each year successfully 

completed (or the equivalent in course credit) 
‐ 4 units (maximum) 

F. A 2‐year landscape architecture‐related technical program, you will be awarded one unit for each year successfully 
completed (or the equivalent in course credit) 

‐ 4 units (maximum) 
G. A non‐landscape architecture program (other than above) and have earned: 

An Associate's Degree ‐ 2 units 
A Bachelor's Degree or higher ‐ 4 units 

H. A certificate of study or individual courses in landscape architecture, design or technology 
‐ 0 units 

Source: http://www.op.nysed.gov/prof/larch/larchlic.htm 

Using New York as precedent, in fact, supports accepting both ‘non‐landscape architecture’ 
degrees and experience only toward the combination of experience needed for licensure. 
However, this is not what the LATC is proposing. In my personal scenario, I could be given 4 
units for a ‘non‐landscape architecture’ Bachelor’s degree and using 8 years work experience 
under a licensed landscape architect would be eligible for New York Licensure by meeting its 12 
Year requirement. 

To further illustrate how New York’s paragraph (C.), borrowed by the LATC, is taken out of 
context: An individual with experience only would be eligible, in New York, for licensure upon 
demonstrating 12 years (including pre‐licensure) experience per paragraph (4.). Why would a 
candidate want to demonstrate 10 years lawful practice per paragraph (3.) in addition to 6‐12 
years pre‐licensure experience required for licensure in other states? The answer is simple: New 
York’s board uses this method to allow licensure, in lieu of degree and experience requirements, 
for unforeseen circumstances such as individuals licensed under currently non‐existent 
regulations that would not meet the initial experience requirements of paragraph (4.). 

The following code excerpt, from Arizona, will demonstrate how the LATC again has mistakenly 
applied precedent to its own regulations. 

Precedent Borrowed from Arizona Administrative Code, Title 4, 
Section R4‐30‐203. Waiver of Examination 

(A.) The Board shall grant a waiver of the professional examination requirement in A.R.S. § 32‐122.01 and R4‐30‐201 to an 
applicant for professional registration who holds a valid professional or registration, or license... 

(2.) The applicant submits verifiable documentation to the Board that the applicant has been actively engaged as a 
professional or occupational registrant, certificant, or licensee in another state or jurisdiction for at least 10 years in the 

4 

http:32-122.01
http://www.op.nysed.gov/prof/larch/larchlic.htm


                  
               

                     

         
     

	                    
             

	               
                

                 

                 
              

       
	                
 

     
 

	  

             
      

	                    
                 

                  
            

           

             
           
           

             
           

           

                 

                 
              
               

             
              

     


 

category for which registration, certification, or licensure is sought. For purposes of this subsection, “actively engaged as a 
professional registrant” means that the applicant holds a valid professional or occupational registration, certification, or 
license in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 10 of the last 15 years. 

Precedent Not Borrowed from Arizona Administrative Code, Title 4, 
Section R4‐30‐203. Waiver of Examination 

(A.) The Board shall grant a waiver of the professional examination requirement in A.R.S. § 32‐122.01 and R4‐30‐201 to an 
applicant for professional registration who holds a valid professional or registration, or license... 

(1.) The applicant submits verifiable documentation to the Board that the education, experience, and examination 
requirements under which the applicant was registered in the original state or jurisdiction were substantially identical 
to those existing in Arizona at the time of the applicant’s original registration, certification, or licensure; or 

As you can see the LATC again borrows precedent from paragraph (2.), but fails to account for 
paragraph (1.) which allows for licensure with 8 years experience only as outlined in: 

A.R.S. § 32‐122.01 Qualifications for professional registration 
2. Be actively engaged in education or experience, or both, in the profession for which registration is 

sought for at least eight years. 

Source: https://www.azleg.gov/FormatDocument.asp?inDoc=/ars/32/00122‐01.htm&Title=32&DocType=ARS 

To further illustrate this inconsistency, A.A.C. Section R4‐30‐203 also allows grants reciprocity to 
individuals with CLARB Council Records per: 

(B.) The Board shall grant a waiver of the professional examination requirement in A.R.S. § 32‐122.01 and R4‐30‐201 to an 
applicant for professional registration who submits verifiable documentation to the Board that the applicant holds one of 
the following professional records, issued by a national registration body, and is registered in good standing in another 
state or jurisdiction. The Board recognizes the following national registration body records: 

3. Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards Council Record and Certification. 

Individuals may obtain CLARB Council Certification with “any bachelor’s degree” and 3 years 
experience per CLARB Certification Standards (2.2) thus demonstrating how Arizona allows 
reciprocity candidates with bachelor’s degrees other than landscape architecture to gain 
licensure. Like New York, using Arizona as precedent, in fact, supports accepting both ‘non‐
landscape architecture’ degrees and experience only toward the combination of experience 
needed for licensure. However, this not what the LATC is proposing. 

Please refer to Appendix B of this letter for a copy of the CLARB Standards of Eligibility. 

The way the LATC is adopting these States’ as precedent to amend CCR § 2615 is dramatically 
different from the context in which they were created and implemented. The LATC’s proposed 
language requires candidates to demonstrate 10 years of lawful practice in conjunction with 6 to 
12 years pre‐licensure experience gained for initial licensure in another state. The proposed 
regulation change essentially results in a requirement of 16‐22 years of experience and is 
incongruent with every other state. 

5 

http:32-122.01
https://www.azleg.gov/FormatDocument.asp?inDoc=/ars/32/00122-01.htm&Title=32&DocType=ARS
http:32-122.01
http:32-122.01


             

     

             

              

      

      

       

            
           

               
               

               
               

              
                
               
     

             
            

               
             

             
                 
             

                
                
                  

              
       

             
              

            

    
 
     
 

               
              

             
              
               
               


 

The below chart illustrates the experience required by borrowing precedent out of context: 

The LATC's Proposed Reciprocity Requirement: 

Pre‐Licensure Experience Only Required by other States Post‐Licensure Experience Required Total Years of 

(for Initial, first time, Licensure by Examination) (Professional Practice, After Becoming Licensed) Experience Required 

6 Years  ‐Most lenient 10 Years 16 

8 Years (AZ)**  ‐Average 10 Years 18** 

12 Years (NY)  ‐Most conservative 10 Years 22 

**Thirty‐one states grant licensure to candidates on the basis of examination and 
experience alone, with an average of eight years of experience required. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure (there are four states that allow licensure 
with only a degree in landscape architecture and passing the LARE). The majority of states 
(thirty one) allow licensure on the basis of examination and experience alone. In these states 
persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 
years of experience prior to examination. The minimum experience requirement is 6 years and 
the longest is 12 years. As illustrated in the above chart the current proposed regulation will 
tack on an additional 10 year post‐licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 
years needed for California reciprocity. 

Please consider that the LATC’s proposed experience only pathway averaging 18 years, for 
reciprocity, is double the experience requirements of the California Architects and Civil 
Engineers I work alongside every day. To become a licensed Architect in California requires a 
combination of 8 years education and work experience (The Architect’s Board deems a 
multitude of combinations of time acceptable: including a high school diploma and experience 
or 1 yr of education credit for any ‘other four year accredited degree’ and the remainder credit 
for working under a licensed Architect and a Contractor, Engineer, or Landscape Architect). 
Also, please consider that it is less stringent to become a Licensed Civil Engineer in California 
than a Landscape Architect (the BPELSG outlines 3 years of experience to become an EIT and 
then 6 years to become a PE; a total of 9 years of experience with no degree). Reciprocity 
(comity) is granted to out of State applicants, with no engineering degree and proper 
experience, by simply retaking the FE Exam. 

The LATC’s proposed change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals and will 
do little to accomplish its intended purpose of creating “opportunities to become licensed in 
California while still protecting the health, safety, and welfare of California consumers.” 

The LATC’s Proposed Regulatory Language 
Would Not Accomplish its Intended Purpose 

Per the LATC, the purpose of the proposed regulation change is to expand “opportunities to 
become licensed in California while still protecting the health, safety, and welfare of California 
consumers.” However, the LATC’s proposal will not accomplish its intended purpose because it 
would only allow licensed candidates whose experience is so extensive that they would have 
already been eligible for Reciprocity in California at the time they gained initial licensure in 
another state. This is because Senate Bill 821 amended BPC, Section 5651, effective January 1, 

6 



              
            

               

        

                
                  

              
                  

                
              

            
           

           
             
              

             
            

              
         

               
            

         

     

             
             

              
              

             
     

                 
             

              
                

               
       


 

2010, “requiring both California initial and reciprocity candidates to qualify for licensure by the 
same standard of experience [including education].” Thus anyone with 10 years licensed 
experience (today, or in the near future) previously had an opportunity to gain CA licensure. 

Please see Appendix A for additional background information. 

In my personal experience, while I could currently gain licensure in both states upon which the 
precedent is based (NY and AZ) I would still not be eligible for Reciprocity in California under the 
proposed change. I would need to gain an additional 5 years professional experience ‐ I became 
a Registered Landscape Architect in the State of Nevada in 2011. In Nevada I was able to take 
the LARE by demonstrating the proper work experience and by having an accepted degree in a 
related subject to Landscape Architecture. I have a Bachelor’s Degree in Geography, from the 
University of California, which covered coursework in the physical and environmental sciences, 
spatial mapping and analysis, urban planning, and many other overlapping subjects. 

In addition, the LATC’s proposed regulation change essentially equates the minimum 
education requirement for CA initial licensure candidates (a 2 year Associates degree in 
Landscape Architecture) to 10 years licensed experience, as that is the only eligibility difference 
between CA initial licensure candidates and reciprocity candidates. I agree with the Committee’s 
past assertion “that a substantial number of years of post‐licensure experience would 
demonstrate an individual’s competence to practice safely, even though they may not have met 
California’s minimum educational experience requirements.” However, the proposal’s equation 
of 10 years of licensed experience equaling a two year degree in landscape architecture is 
unreasonable, lacks logic, and is unintentionally exclusionary. This again illustrates how the 
proposed language is unable to accomplish its intended purpose. 

Our Proposed REVISED Regulatory Language 

Great effort and thoughtful consideration have gone into the preparation of the following 
‘Revised Regulatory Language’ to present a reasonable and more equitable alternative to the 
change to California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615, Form of 
Examinations. The authors of the following have consulted or attempted to consult LATC staff, 
LATC appointed members, CA Architects Board staff, the Office of Administrative Law staff, 
CLARB, and private legal counsel. 

I believe I have worked diligently, in the spirit of collaboration, with LATC staff in order to 
prevent introducing any language that would result in eambiguity, require interpretation, or be 
burdensome. Along that vein, I spoke off the record with LATC Program Manager, Trish 
Rodriguez, and made every attempt to create an alternative that can be acceptable to all parties 
and move swiftly through review by the LATC, approval by the California Architects Board (CAB), 
and be implemented as soon as possible. 

7 



              
              

           

     
                
              

               
           

      

            
       

              
            

            
                

            

              
            

              
             

                 
  

       

            
                

              
    

     
         

            
            

               
              

               
      

                
                

             
            


 

I along with other past reciprocity applicants and hundreds of concerned CA residents request 
the following revised language, to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, 
Section 2615, be implemented and approved by the California Architect’s Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, 
or Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and 
subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure 
upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided that the candidate submits 
verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California 
applicants at the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor’s 
degree from a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or 
offering professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Our Proposed Revised Language adds one intermediary pathway (B) to grant reciprocity to those 
licensed candidates possessing an accredited bachelor’s degree and 2 years post licensure 
experience; and retains the LATC’s proposed ‘experience only’ pathway as (C) which has been 
modified to grant reciprocity to licensed candidates possessing 6 years post licensure experience 
rather than 10 years. Both options (B) and (C) are based on defensible precedent and logic as 
detailed below. 

Precedent for Our Proposed REVISED Regulatory Language 

Washington, Oregon, Nevada, and Arizona are our neighbors and share interstate commerce, 
clients, and climates. In addition, Texas is a significant partner in commerce and the State with 
the most similar population, size, and economy. Therefore these States seem like the most 
logical sources of precedent. 

Precedent for Revised (B) Option 
Reciprocity for Licensees with a Bachelor’s Degree & Experience 

Landscape architecture is a broad profession drawing from many different disciplines. Work 
undertaken by landscape architects bridges the gaps between planners and residents, architects 
and engineers, contractors and owners, as well as the bottom line and the public’s benefit. 
Because landscape architecture is such a vast field, overlapping many other disciplines, it makes 
sense to license those with diverse varying backgrounds in order to bring a more comprehensive 
breadth of knowledge to the profession. 

As a landscape architect I work with a multitude of consultants and interested parties every day; 
my diverse background of nearly 5 years Civil Engineering experience, over 9 years (pre and post 
licensure) Landscape Architecture experience, and my unique education all allow me to bridge 
gaps between disciplines and facilitate creative problem solving that occurs when multiple 

8 



               
              

     

               
     

               
                 

             
              

             
               
          

             

       
	               

                    
              

  
                  
               

           
	                  

           
	                  

     
                   

                   
                     

                    
   

                   
         

              
              

               
                  
           

             
           
            

         

       
                  

                
             
                   

             
 
  
 

    


 

disciplines work together. It is hard for colleagues to believe that, under the current and 
proposed regulations, I am more qualified to begin the process of Civil Engineering licensure 
than Landscape Architecture in CA. 

The following supports a reciprocity option based on holding any Bachelor’s degree and 2 years 
professional (post licensure) practice experience: 

The State of Nevada (NV) grants Reciprocity to those who are licensed in another jurisdiction, 
actively engaged in the practice of LA for 2 or more years, or who fulfil the (pre‐licensure) 
education and experience requirements of NV. Nevada statute accepts not only degrees in 
landscape architecture, but also bachelor’s degrees in related fields, as well as architecture and 
civil engineering. In addition, the State accepts CLARB council records which as previously 
described create a licensure pathway for those with any bachelor’s degree. In NV, matching our 
proposed Revised Regulatory Language, those who meet the pre‐licensure eligibility 
requirements are not subject to the 2 years of professional practice for reciprocity: 

N.A.C § 623A.222 Eligibility based on reciprocity 
1. An applicant is eligible for a certificate of registration by reciprocity if the applicant: 

(a) Holds an active certificate or license in good standing to practice landscape architecture in any other state of the 
United States, any province of Canada or any other jurisdiction approved by the Board: 
(e) Has: 

(1) Been actively engaged in full‐time practice as a registered landscape architect for 2 or more years; or 
(2) Fulfilled the requirements for education and work experience as set forth in NAC 623A.220. 

N.A.C § 623A.220 Eligibility based on combination of education and experience 
1. Except as otherwise provided in NAC 623A.222 and 623A.226, an applicant for a certificate of registration must: 

(a) Have 6 years of education and experience in landscape architecture: 
2. The Board will accept the following combinations of education and experience to fulfill the requirements contained in 

paragraph (a) of subsection 1: 
(c) A bachelor’s degree in architecture or civil engineering from an institution that is accredited by an accrediting body 
approved by the Board and 3 years of postgraduate work experience under the direct supervision of a landscape architect 
who is registered in this State, any other state in the United States, any province of Canada or any other jurisdiction 
approved by the Board. A master’s degree in architecture or civil engineering will be deemed equivalent to 1 year of 
postgraduate work experience. 
(d) Any other combination of education and experience which is deemed by the Board to be equivalent to the 
requirements set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c). 

While the State of Texas (TX) has similar restrictive initial licensure education requirements, as 
CA, they set precedent by offering additional paths to licensure specific to reciprocity applicants. 
In TX reciprocity applicants, who do not meet the requirements of initial licensure, must have 
passed the LARE or an equivalent exam and have 2 years of post licensure experience or have a 
CLARB certification. Though Texas’ pre‐licensure education requirements are similar to CA, 
Texas accepts CLARB council records and therefore allows a licensure pathway for any 
bachelor’s degree (as previously explained). In Texas, matching our proposed Revised 
Regulatory Language, those who meet the pre‐licensure eligibility requirements are not subject 
to the 2 years of professional practice for reciprocity: 

T.A.C § 3.22 Registration by Reciprocal Transfer 
(a) A person may apply for landscape architectural registration by reciprocal transfer if the person holds a landscape 

architectural registration that is active and in good standing in another jurisdiction and the other jurisdiction: 
(1) has licensing or registration requirements substantially equivalent to Texas registration requirements; or 
(2) has entered into a reciprocity agreement with the Board that has been approved by the Governor of Texas. 

(b) In order to obtain landscape architectural registration by reciprocal transfer, an Applicant must 
demonstrate the following: 
(1) the Applicant has: 

9 



             
              
               

            
 
    
 

               

               
             

             
               

            
          

             
              

            

               
           

                 
           

             
  

              
             

             
                 

            
                
       

             
             

                 
        

     
      

               
                   

               
            
            

                
             


 

---

(A) successfully completed the Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE) or another landscape architectural 
registration examination which the Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) has approved as 
conforming to CLARB's examination standards or as being acceptable in lieu of the LARE; and 
(B) acquired at least two (2) years of acceptable landscape architectural experience following 
registration in another jurisdiction; or 
(2) the Applicant currently holds a Council Certificate from CLARB that is in good standing. 

In addition, Oregon accepts degrees in related fields with experience for initial licensure and de 
facto allows the same requirements for reciprocity. The States of Washington and Arizona 
accept candidates with any bachelor’s degree and experience by accepting CLARB Certificates or 
using their own standards (§ W.A.C. 38‐13‐050). Also, because these States do not require the 
additional 2 years post‐licensure experience for reciprocity our Revised Language is more 
conservative, yet still closer in precedent than the LATC’s proposal. 

Furthermore, based on my verification of LATC Staff’s prior analysis, approximately 29 States 
grant reciprocity to those with degree’s other than Landscape Architecture this is done either 
explicitly in their licensure requirements or by their acceptance of CLARB certificates. 

From the perspective of the LATC, the most problematic State for this reciprocity solution is 
Nebraska, which allows those with any bachelor’s the shortest pre‐licensure experience 
requirement of 3 years. Our revised (B) option will offset this shortfall by requiring 2 years of 
post‐licensure experience and will essentially match the California 5 year experience 
requirement for CA initial applicants with 1 year education credit (meeting the LATC’s 
minimum standard). 

One other concern mentioned by the LATC was how those with unaccredited degrees or 
unrecognized foreign degrees, not accepted under the proposed (A) option (the education in 
landscape architecture path), will apply for reciprocity. This can be answered simply; reciprocity 
applicants have already been screened by other states and I was unable to find an example of 
one that accepts unaccredited or unrecognized bachelor’s degrees in any subject. Therefore 
those candidates, in this rare instance, will need to apply for reciprocity under the revised (C) 
option because those degrees cannot be verified. 

Using Texas and Nevada precedent, and with the majority of States accepting bachelor’s 
degrees and experience, the LATC should accept our Revised (B) Option for reciprocity 
applicants as it is more effective at achieving the goal of expanding pathways to licensure and it 
is more equitable to college educated licensed individuals. 

Precedent for Revised (C) Option 
Reciprocity for Licensees with Experience Only 

Pre LATC research “31 states allow candidates to take the examination [and gain licensure] on 
the basis of experience alone, with a range of 6 to 12 years required.” Not a single state grants 
licensure to candidates with zero experience; the only exception is a few states that allow 
examination upon completion of a degree in landscape architecture. In addition, California 
Architecture and Engineering licensing boards offer examples of pathways to licensure for non‐
college educated individuals. The LATC falls under the domain of the CA Architects Board and it 
only make sense that CAB would serve as precedent for its own Committee. 

10 



               
                   

              
             
 

         
	         
 

  
 

               
              

                 
                
               

                  

             
             

             
         

      

          
	        
 

    
 

                
                 

        

                   
             

               
               

                 
                 
                 

          


 

Our revised (C) option allows licensure eligibility to out of state licensed professionals if a 
Candidate had been practicing or offering services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. The basis of 
this rationale is that 6 years professional (licensed) experience would make up the difference 
between the states with the shortest and longest requirements for experience only initial 
licensure. 

Six years is the shortest initial experience only requirement 
- Twelve years is the longest initial experience only requirement 

Six year difference 

It is reasonable to argue that those individuals licensed in another state with the shortest pre‐
licensure experience of six years and who also possess an additional six years post‐licensure 
professional practice will be as qualified, if not more so, than a CA initial candidate with an 
Associate’s Degree in LA, four years of experience as a landscape contractor, and only one year 
experience under the supervision of a licensed landscape architect, as is currently allowed in CA. 

Under our revised (C) option: 6 years pre + 6 years post‐licensure = 12 total years of experience. 

The current minimum standard for Licensure in California is examination with an associate 
degree in landscape architecture (1 year of educational credit) and 5 years training/experience. 
Once a candidate has demonstrated this and successfully passed the examinations, “he/she is 
deemed to be minimally competent for entry level practice.” 
Therefore, another equation can be established: 

Twelve years of pre and post licensed experience for reciprocity 
- Five years training/experience required for CA initial licensure 

Seven years of additional experience 

In effect this seven years of additional experience (1 pre + 6 post‐licensure) equals the missing 
variable of 1 year of educational credit, such as an associate’s degree in LA. We can examine 
this even more detail by considering the following. 

At San Diego Mesa College, a school that recently hosted and presented to the LATC, to earn a 2 
year Associates degree in landscape architecture requires 9 classes totaling 31 (lower division, 
undergraduate) Units. Students earn credit for educational classes and work on the basis of the 
‘Carnegie Unit.’ California's Title V code, section 55002 defines a semester unit of credit as 
equal to a minimum of three hours of work per week for a semester. While semester lengths 
vary, the “Carnegie definition is based upon a minimum length of 16 weeks” and the “unit of 
credit equates to three hours of student work per week (1 hour lecture plus 2 hours of 
homework or 3 hours of lab) for the 16 weeks.” 

11 



           
 
      
 

          
   

             

           

         

           

             

              

           

           

            

            
   

               

                  
             

               
              

            
               

              
                 

              
   

                  
            

                
                 

  

       
 
     
 


 

                  
                

                   
               
                


 

The following chart summarizes the units needed for an Associate’s Degree in 
Landscape Architecture, excluding general education breadth requirements. 

San Diego Mesa College Approx. Estimated Estimated Estimated Total Min. 
No. of Study/ 

Units Course Required for the Major Weeks Lecture Time Lab Time Homework Hours 

2 ARCH 100  ‐ Graphic Design Communication I 16 0 6 0 96 

3 ARCH 135 ‐ Tree Identification 16 1.5 4.5 3 144 

3 ARCH 136 ‐ Shrubs, Vines, Groundcover Identification 16 1.5 4.5 3 144 

5 ARCH 155 ‐ Environmental Design I: Creating Exterior Spaces 16 3 6 6 240 

5 ARCH 190 ‐ Environmental Design II: Urban and Community Design 16 3 6 6 240 

2 ARCH 220 ‐ Graphic Design Communication I 16 0 6 0 96 

2 ARCH 221 ‐ Graphic Design Communication II 16 0 6 0 96 

5 ARCH 230 ‐ Sustainability in the Built Environment 16 3 6 6 240 

4 ARCH 250 ‐ Site Design, Topography and Grading 16 1.5 7.5 3 192 
Total Units: Total 
31 **Lecture & Lab times defined by CA Title V code, section 55002 Hours: 1488 

The total hours of lecture, lab, and homework sum to 1,488 hours – this the defined amount of 
time needed to acquire the knowledge specific to a Landscape Architecture associate’s degree. 

From the perspective of the LATC, the most problematic concern is how does an individual 
acquire this knowledge without defined study? The answer is yet again very simple, the 
knowledge is acquired exponentially over time. The fundamental skills and knowledge are 
learned by exposure and mentoring early on – with more abstract knowledge gained as one’s 
career responsibilities and experience grows. This was the method used for passing along a 
profession’s skills, knowledge, and ethics for the majority of our history. It is a tried and true 
model for producing great minds and talented individuals, some of whom founded the discipline 
of Landscape Architecture. 

To look at this concept in more depth: if one year of full time professional practice is 2,080 
hours (the accepted standard). Seven years of experience, as previously calculated, multiplied 
by 2,080 working hours per year is 14,560 hours of professional experience. Now we have the 
opportunity to look at a new equation, by creating a ratio of the education hours to the 
experience hours: 

1,488 hours of study for an AA degree 
/ 14,560 hours of professional experience 

10% 

We see that the education hours are equal to about 10% of the time required for the reciprocity 
candidates experience requirement. If we extrapolate this to a typical work day (10% of 8 hrs), 
we see that equates to about 45 mins. As a licensed professional I believe that I easily spend 45 
mins a day researching, learning, practicing and acquiring the skills listed in the Mesa College 
chart. In addition, this learning is directly related to practice at the highest levels of our 

12 



               
  

                
             

             
              
    

               
              
                 

                
                
                

             
         

      
     

           
               

              
  

	              
	           
	            

        

                 
              

                
              
                

             
              

             
           

               

               
              

              
              

             
            


 

profession – not undergraduate fundamentals; it is also in addition to the 5 years already 
accounted for. 

So, under our revised (C) option for reciprocity, a licensed professional’s twelve years of pre and 
post‐licensure experience will more than make up for any deficiency resulting between different 
states’ initial licensure requirements for experience only candidates. This is a more than 
reasonable and adequate amount of time to gain the knowledge found in a landscape 
architecture associate’s degree program. 

Precedent for using experience only as a path to licensure, without formal education, is readily 
available from the majority of States. Precedent can be borrowed from the LATC’s own 
examples of New York and Arizona, as well as Nevada, Oregon, and Washington – all states that 
allow licensure on the basis of experience only (with NY and OR having the longest requirements 
of 12 and 11 years). The LATC should accept our Revised (B) Option for reciprocity applicants 
as is for more effective at achieving the goal of expanding pathways to licensure, is more 
equitable to licensed individuals with experience only, and more closely matches the precedent 
set by the California Architects Board for its licensees. 

Our Proposed REVISED Regulatory Language is 
a More Effective Reasonable Alternative 

The California Architects Board and the Landscape Architects Technical Committee must 
consider reasonable alternatives to the proposed regulation. It is my objective, with the help of 
my colleagues and the public, to demonstrate that our proposed revised language for the 
regulation is: 

1. More effective at carrying out the purpose for which the action is proposed. 
2. Is as effective and less burdensome to affected private persons. 
3. Is more cost‐effective to private persons and equally effective in implementing 

the statutory policy or other provision of law. 

I believe it is a disservice to the public to exclude those capable of contributing to the 
profession, simply because of arbitrary requirements that have been proven not to be necessary 
in California and the majority of other jurisdictions. As stated, by the LATC, the purpose of 
amending § 2615 is to expand opportunities to become licensed in California while still 
protecting the health, safety, and welfare of the public. I have demonstrated how this can be 
accomplished with precedent and logic. Allowing multiple paths to reciprocal licensure is a 
more effective way of carrying out the purpose of the LATC’s proposed language change 
because it is inclusive of more individuals with diverse backgrounds. Allowing licensure for 
these individuals will increase our professions collective knowledge base, stimulate innovation, 
and increase the number of licensed landscape architects – all clear benefits to the public. 

Landscape Architects, such as myself, are needed in order to draw attention to and mitigate 
unintentional practices limiting fair competition and causing loss of benefit to the public and 
consumers. It has been mentioned in previous LATC meeting summary reports there is a 
concern that allowing reciprocity for those who recently gained licensure in other states, and 
who do not meet the requirements for initial licensure (i.e. education in Landscape 
Architecture), will somehow subvert the California process. This sentiment, along with the 

13 



             
              

                 
      

               
             
            

           
             

             
             

               
            
          

                 
                

                
              

             
                

 

             
           

               
            

                 
                

               
            

              
  

   
 
     
 

  
               

                 
               

              
               

    

  


 

proposed reciprocity requirement of 10 years professional experience, is a clear indication of 
the power the Committee wields to limit competition and benefit institutions of higher learning. 
It is also evidence of the pressing need for licensees with different backgrounds to be part of 
California’s professional practice and licensing regulations. 

Our revised regulatory language for § 2615 is as effective and less burdensome to affected 
private persons because individuals seeking reciprocity to California will no longer have to 
submit verifiable documentation that they have education equivalent to that required of 
California initial applicants. The LATC’s proposed language essential continues to exclude 
qualified candidates by equating 10 years professional practice to the education obtained from 
a two year degree in landscape architecture. This regulatory proposal is unreasonable, lacks 
defensible logic, and is unintentionally exclusionary. Our revised regulatory language is far less 
burdensome to affected parties and will continue to protect the health and welfare of California 
residents. Our revised language accomplishes this while also allowing “individuals who have 
extensive experience practicing in another jurisdiction to obtain California licensure.” 

While I’m in no way discounting the importance of higher education, we do live in a society 
where it is simply not obtainable, financially or otherwise, for all individuals to earn a degree, 
extension certificate, or even a second degree in the ‘proper’ major. I implore you to continue 
on the path of reducing this burden by bringing Landscape Architecture Licensure closer to 
those requirements adopted by our State’s Architects and Engineers whose disciplines have had 
much more time to evolve regulations that protect the public and are inclusive to all our 
Citizens. 

Our revised regulatory language is more cost‐effective to private persons and equally effective 
at implementing the statutory policy because reciprocity candidates are already experienced, 
licensed, and established in their careers and therefore should not have to bear undue expense 
and time pursuing education they, by licensure and examination definition, have already 
acquired. At this point in my career with financial obligations and a family it no longer makes 
sense or is feasible to spend $23,000 and countless hours driving to gain an Extension Certificate 
or $65,000 on an Online Master’s Degree from a private art university (currently the only 
landscape architecture education options available to working professionals) to learn what I 
already know and have demonstrated knowledge of by passing the LARE and engaging in 
professional practice. 

Our Proposed Regulatory Language 
Also Takes Into Account The Following 

Business Impact 
While there is no anticipated fiscal impact to Public Agencies our revised language considers the 
impacts to business and private persons not addressed by the LATC. We live in a time where 
“roughly 10,000 Baby Boomers will turn 65” every day for the next 13 years. California 
businesses will benefit from this regulation because they will be able to attract qualified 
individuals from other states in order to compensate for the loss of landscape architects leaving 
the field for retirement. 

Source: http://www.pewresearch.org/daily‐number/baby‐boomers‐retire/ 

14 

http://www.pewresearch.org/daily-number/baby-boomers-retire


   
              

             
                 

              
               

              

   
               

              
                 

            

 

               
             
               

                  
                  

               
        

                   
             

               
                

                 
          

                 
                 

               
              

                
                

            


 

Economic Impact Assessment 
Our revised language will encourage the creation of new businesses within the State of 
California because it will allow qualified out‐of‐state licensed landscape architects who are living 
and working in California to gain licensure and start businesses of their own. It will also allow 
for the expansion of businesses currently doing business within the State of California because, 
as is my personal case, the multidisciplinary firm I work for can begin offering Landscape 
Architectural services to its California clients if I am able to gain CA licensure. 

Consideration of Alternatives 
I have presented the case for a more “reasonable alternative to the regulation” and have 
demonstrated that our revised regulatory language for § 2615 Form of Examinations would be 
more effective at “carrying out the purpose for which the action is proposed” and “would be as 
effective and less burdensome to affected private persons than the proposed regulation.” 

Closing 

My colleagues and I are members of the public directly affected by the Committee’s Proposed 
Regulatory Language amendment to § 2615. We have presented a more equitable and 
reasonable alternative that must be considered. I have strived to work in partnership with as 
many affected parties as possible and I am dismayed by the LATC’s lack of public outreach in the 
form of meetings or mailers to those directly affected. I am sure reciprocity is a minor issue on 
the LATC’s plate, but I believe more discussion with those affected was warranted as evidenced 
by the public’s response to this important issue. 

I am concerned that over the years I have observed that the LATC and its members have had an 
understandably very close relationship with California colleges and universities. I would like to 
see more diversity of backgrounds appointed to the Committee in order ensure a fair regulatory 
environment for our small but important discipline. I urge you to consider the benefit to the 
public, the potential gain to the profession, the value to the industry and not just the potential 
loss in revenue to Institutions’ degree and extension certificate programs. 

I am a Registered Landscape Architect in the State of Nevada who lives and works in California; 
as a lifelong native Californian it is my goal to become a Licensed Landscape Architect here. I 
would like the proposed Regulations to be equitable to all reciprocity candidates and truly widen 
the path to licensure. With nearly 10 years of experience in Landscape Architecture, and 
significant experience in Civil Engineering and Planning, I know I am a valuable asset to the 
industry and our clients. I am as qualified as my California licensed counterparts and I should 
not be barred from obtaining licensure due to these existing discriminatory regulations. 

15 



I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto 
Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required 
in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California 

Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

With all things considered I commend the IJ\TC's effort to widen the path to licensure; it is 
clearly time to incorporate all the incredible talent and synergy available to the profession by 
broadening the acceptable reciprocity requirements for out of state licensed landscape 
architects. I respectfully request that you adopt our revised proposed language, approve it at 
your next meeting, and implement the change as soon as possible. 

Thank you very much for your t ime and consideration. 

Sincerely, 

:b~Y~ 
Dustin T. Maxam, RIJ\ 
Nevada #862 

325 Carrillo Street 
Santa Rosa, CA 95401 
707-569-6739 

16 



  

  
               

               
             

   

    

                    
            
               

                
                   
                    

                
                       

                 
                  

       
                  

               
               
 

                    
                

               
                    

                 
                

                   
         

             
              

             
             

             
              

         

    

                  
                     
          

                   
        
                  

                    
             

                   
 

           
                

             


 

Appendix A 

Regulatory Background 
Currently many landscape architects who are licensed or registered out of state and who apply 
for reciprocity per California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615, Form 
of Examinations, (c)(1) are ineligible for California Licensure even though they meet the 
following prescribed requirements. 

2615 Form of Examinations 

(a)(1) A candidate who has a combination of six years of education and training experience as specified in section 2620 
shall be eligible and may apply for the Landscape Architect Registration Examination. 
(2) Notwithstanding subdivision (a)(1), a candidate who has a Board‐approved degree in landscape architecture in 

accordance with section 2620(a)(1) or an extension certificate in landscape architecture from a Board‐approved school in 
accordance with section 2620(a)(3) shall be eligible and may apply for Sections 1 and 2 of the Landscape Architect 
Registration Examination (LARE). Such candidates shall not be eligible for Sections 3 and 4 of the LARE until the candidate 
has a combination of six years of education and training experience as specified in section 2620. 
A candidate’s score on the LARE shall not be recognized in this State if at the time the candidate took the LARE, the 

candidate was not eligible in accordance with California laws and regulations for the examination or sections thereof. 
(b) A candidate shall be deemed eligible and may apply for the California Supplemental Examination upon passing all 

sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination. 
(c) All candidates applying for licensure as a landscape architect shall pass all sections of the Landscape Architect 

Registration Examination or a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 
California, as determined by the Board, and the California Supplemental Examination subject to the following 
provisions: 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination. 
(2) A candidate who is not a licensed landscape architect and who has received credit from a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian 

province, or Puerto Rico for a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 
California shall be entitled to receive credit for the corresponding sections of the Landscape Architect Registration 
Examination, as determined by the Board, and shall be eligible for licensure upon passing any remaining sections of the 
Landscape Architect Registration Examination and the California Supplemental Examination. 

This is because BPC section 5651 which waived this examination requirement specified in 
section 5650 (which requires candidates for licensure to have a combination of six years 
education and training in landscape architecture to qualify for the licensing examination) was 
amended by Senate Bill 821, effective January 2010, changing Business and Professions Code 
Section 5651 (b)(1), to requiring reciprocity candidates to qualify for licensure by submitting 
proof of job experience equivalent to California first time (initial) applicants, thus creating an 
exclusionary loophole with § 2620, Education and Training Credits. 

5651. Examination of Applicants 

(a) The board shall by means of examination, ascertain the professional qualifications of all applicants for licenses to 
practice landscape architecture in this state and shall issue a license to every person whom it finds to be qualified on 
payment of the initial license fee prescribed by this chapter. 
(b) The examination shall consist of a written examination. The written examination may be waived by the board if 

the applicant meets both of the following requirements: 
(1) Is currently licensed by a United States jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico, has passed a written 
examination equivalent to that which is required in California at the time of application and has submitted proof of job 
experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of application. 
(2) Has passed the California supplemental examination if, at the time of application, it is required of all California 
applicants. 

This loophole occurs because the Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) interprets 
the job experience of § 5651 under § 2620 (c)(1)(b) which requires one year of ‘training/ 
practice credit’ to be gained after satisfying the education requirement which excludes those 

17 



                
                

       

     

                
      

   
                 
                   
     
       
       
      
                    

      
                      

              
                

             
                   

                
                   

                  
                   

                   
    

                     
       

                      
   

  
 
                
 

                    
                 

                  
               
                      

                   
                   

       
                       

   
               

                    
  

   
              

      
                    

                   
             


 

with other forms of education. It is interesting to point out that the experience requirement of 
(c)(1)(A) can be obtained under the supervision of a person licensed in any jurisdiction who may 
not be compliant with the education requirements. 

2620 Education and Training Credits 

The Board’s evaluation of a candidate’s training and educational experience is based on the following table: 
[Table omitted for brevity, see http://www.latc.ca.gov/laws_regs/pa_all.shtml#2620.] 

(b) Education Credits 
(1) Candidates shall possess at least one year of educational credit to be eligible for the examination. 
(2) A degree from a school with a landscape architecture program shall be defined as one of the following: 
(A) Bachelor of Landscape Architecture. 
(B) Bachelor of Science in landscape architecture. 
(C) Bachelor of Arts in landscape architecture. 
(D) Masters degree in landscape architecture. 
(3) The maximum credit which may be granted for a degree or combination of degrees from an approved school shall 

be four years of educational credit. 
(4) A degree from a school with a landscape architecture program shall be deemed to be approved by the Board if the 

landscape architectural curriculum has been approved by the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB) as 
specified in its publication: “Accreditation Standards And Procedures” dated February 6, 2010 or the Board determines 
that the program has a curriculum equivalent to a curriculum having LAAB accreditation. 
(5) For purposes of subdivisions (a)(7) and (8), “partial completion” shall mean that the candidate completed at least 80 

percent of the total units required for completion of the 4‐year degree or extension certificate program. 
(6) Except as provided in subdivisions (a)(7) and (8), no credit shall be granted for academic units obtained without 

earning a degree or extension certificate under categories of subdivisions (a)(1), (2), (3) or (4) of this section. 
(7) A candidate enrolled in a degree program where credit earned is based on work experience courses (e.g., internship 

or co‐op program) shall not receive more than the maximum credit allowed for degrees under subdivisions (a)(1), (2) or 
(3) of this section. 
(8) Except as specified in subdivision (a)(5) and (6) of this section, candidates with multiple degrees shall not be able to 

accumulate credit for more than one degree. 
(9) The Board shall not grant more than four years of credit for any degree or certificate or any combination thereof for 

qualifying educational experience. 
(c) Training Credits 
(1)(A) Candidates shall possess at least two years of training/practice credit to be eligible for the examination. 
(B) At least one of the two years of training/practice credit shall be under the direct supervision of a landscape 

architect licensed in a United States jurisdiction, and shall be gained in one of the following forms: 
1. After graduation from an educational institution specified in subdivisions (a)(1), (2), (3) or (4) of this section. 
2. After completion of education experience specified in subdivisions (a)(7) and (8) of this section. 
(C) A candidate shall be deemed to have met the provisions of subdivision (c)(1)(B) if he or she possesses a degree from 

a school specified in subdivision (a)(1) and has at least two years of training/practice credit as a licensed landscape 
contractor or possesses a certificate from a school specified in subdivision (a)(3) and has at least four years of 
training/practice credit as a licensed landscape contractor. 
(2) Candidates shall be at least 18 years of age or a high school graduate before they shall be eligible to receive credit 

for work experience. 
(3) A year of training/practice experience shall consist of 1500 hours of qualifying employment. Training/practice 

experience may be accrued on the basis of part‐time employment. Employment in excess of 40 hours per week shall not 
be considered. 
(d) Miscellaneous Information 
(1) Independent, non‐licensed practice or experience, regardless of claimed coordination, liaison, or supervision of 

licensed professionals shall not be considered. 
(2) The Board shall retain inactive applications for a five (5) year period. Thereafter, the Board shall purge these records 

unless otherwise notified by the candidate. A candidate who wishes to reapply to the Board, shall be required to re‐
obtain the required documents to allow the Board to determine their current eligibility 

18 

http://www.latc.ca.gov/laws_regs/pa_all.shtml#2620


  

       


 

Appendix B 

CLARB Standards of Eligibility for Council Certification 

19 



	 







	 




	

	

	




, 
~ . . . , 

Standards of Eligibility for Council Certification 

Certification by the Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards is formal recognition that the 
Certificate holder's education, experience, examination and professional conduct meet or exceed CLARB's 
Certification standards. These standards are approved by CLARB's member boards and are recommended 
nationally as the minimum standards for licensure. 

Certificate records consist of verified documentation of the qualifications of the Certificate holder and carry 
CLARB's recommendation to all registration boards that the individual be granted reciprocal registration without 
further examination. 

1. CLARB Certification Standards 

To be granted CLARB Certification, an applicant must demonstrate through current, verified documentation that 
he/she satisfies all of the following requirements in accordance with the evaluation criteria listed in Sections 2, 3, 
and 4. 

Note: Any applicant who does not satisfy the Certification standards listed in Section 1 may be issued a 
Certificate if he/she has sufficient other qualifications which, while not considered to be equal to the 
Certification requirements, are accepted in lieu of these requirements.  Alternative qualifications are identified 
in Sections 2, 3, and 4. 

•  Education: A first professional degree in landscape architecture from a program which has 
been accredited by the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB).   
(See Section 2.) 

•  Experience: 3 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture under the direct  
supervision of a licensed landscape architect. (See Section 3.) 

•  Examination: Successful completion of the CLARB registration examination where the 
examination administration and grading were conducted in accordance with CLARB's  
standards in effect at the time. (See Section 4.) 

•  Licensure: Current licensure by a CLARB member board. 

•  Professional Conduct: History of acceptable professional conduct as verified by employers, landscape 
architects, and member boards. Applicants may be denied Certification if, in the practice of 
landscape architecture, they have violated the law or if they have intentionally provided 
erroneous information on their application for Certification. 

1 



	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	




2. Education 

2.1 A first professional degree in landscape architecture from a program which has been accredited by 
the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB) or the Canadian Society of Landscape 
Architects Accreditation Council is required. 

2.2 In lieu of the degree specified in 2.1 above, satisfaction of 5.0 years of education credit as follows: 

                   Percent Maximum  
Activity  Allowed  Credit  

2.2.1  Non-accredited B.L.A. or M.L.A. 100%  4 years 

2.2.2  NAAB-accredited B.Arch. or M. Arch. 100%  4 years 

2.2.3 ABET-accredited degree in Civil Engineering 100%  4 years 

2.2.4  Any Bachelor's degree 100%  2 years 

2.2.5 Diversified experience in landscape architecture 100% 3 years 
under the direct supervision of a licensed 
landscape architect 

2.2.6 Diversified experience in landscape architecture 100% 5 years 
under the direct supervision of a licensed landscape 
architect if the applicant was licensed prior to 
January 1, 1991. 

2.3 Evaluation Criteria 

2.3.1 Degrees listed in 2.2.1 - 2.2.4 cannot be combined to satisfy the education credit 
requirement. 

2.3.2 The work experience applied as education credit may not also be used to satisfy experience 
requirements. 

2.3.3 Any degree awarded less than two years prior to the accreditation of the program will be 
accepted as an accredited degree. 

2.3.4 Any degree awarded after a program has ceased to be accredited will not be accepted as an 
accredited degree. 

2 

Sarah
Highlight

Sarah
Highlight

Sarah
Highlight



	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	




3. Experience 

3.1 Three (3) years diversified experience directly related to landscape architecture under the direct 
supervision of a licensed landscape architect is required. 

3.2 In lieu of 2.0 years of the experience in 3.1 above, 2.0 years of experience credit as follows: 

Percent Maximum 
Activity            Allowed  Credit  

3.2.1 Diversified experience in landscape architecture 100% N/A 
practicing as a principal 

3.2.2 Diversified experience directly related to 100%   2 years 
landscape architecture under the direct 
supervision of a civil engineer, architect or 
credentialed planner 

3.2.3 Teaching in an LAAB-accredited program 50%   1 year 

3.2.4 Experience in landscape architecture directly 50% 1 year 
related to on-site construction, maintenance or 
installation procedures 

3.2.5 Non-diversified experience in landscape 50%   1 year 
architecture under the direct supervision of a 
licensed landscape architect, civil engineer, 
architect or credentialed planner 

3.3 Evaluation Criteria 

3.3.1 Every applicant for Certification must have at least one year of diversified experience in 
landscape architecture (acquired after the satisfaction of the education requirement) under 
the direct supervision of a licensed landscape architect; or 

3.3.2 Applicants who have acquired six (6.0) years of diversified experience in landscape 
architecture after the satisfaction of the education requirement practicing as a principal shall 
be deemed to have satisfied the experience requirement. 

3.3.3 Work experience in category 3.1 above will only receive credit as follows: 

3.3.3.1 If it is at least 35 hours per week for at least 2 continuous months--100% 
3.3.3.2 If it is at least 20 hours per week for at least 4 continuous months-- 50% 

3.3.4 Work experience in any alternative category will receive the credit indicated only when the 
experience is at least 35 hours per week and at least 2 continuous months in duration. 

3 



	

	

	

	 

	

	

	 

	 

	

	

	

	 

	

	




3.3.5 No experience credit may be earned prior to satisfaction of the education requirement. 

3.3.6 Experience received outside the United States or Canada is limited to 1 year maximum. 

3.3.7 No additional education or experience credit will be awarded for obtaining more than one 
degree. 

4. Examination

 Note:  For candidates not licensed by January 1, 2008, any sections of the exam completed prior to 1992 will 
no longer be accepted for transition credit towards satisfaction of the examination standard for CLARB  
Certification. 

4.1 Successful completion of the CLARB registration examination where the examination administration 
and grading were conducted in accordance with CLARB's standards in effect at the time is required. 

4.2 In lieu of passing the CLARB registration examination, satisfaction of one of the following (4.2.1. - 
4.2.6): 

4.2.1 For applicants initially licensed without successfully completing a written examination, 
satisfaction of both 4.2.1.1 and 4.2.1.2: 

4.2.1.1 10 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture; at least 7 years of 
which 

must occur after licensure 
4.2.1.2 Successful completion of the CLARB Reciprocity Validation Examination 

       between the years of 1997 to 1999. 

4.2.2 Successful completion of written examination prepared by a member board prior to 1970 
and 10 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture after licensure. 

4.2.3 Successful completion of a written examination prepared by a member board between the 
years 1970 to 1975. 

4.2.4 Successful completion of the British Columbia Society of Landscape Architects= written 
examination, 5 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture after licensure and 
satisfaction of the education and experience requirements. 

4.2.5 Successful completion of the California P.E.L.A., satisfaction of the licensure, education and 
experience requirements, as well as successful completion of L.A.R.E. Sections D & E. 

4.2.6 For applicants initially licensed in British Columbia or Ontario without successfully 
completing the L.A.R.E., satisfaction of 4.2.6.1 and 4.2.6.2 as follows: 

4.2.6.1 10 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture; at least 7 years of which
 must occur after licensure. 

4.2.6.2 Successful completion of the CLARB Reciprocity Validation Examination between 
the years 1997 to 1999. 

4 



	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 




5. Requirements for Maintaining a CLARB Council Record/Certificate 

• A CLARB Certificate holder must maintain registration in good standing with a CLARB member 
board. If the Certificate holder fails to maintain registration with at least one CLARB member 
board, the Certificate will be revoked until such time as a verification of current registration from a 
member board is received. 

• The CLARB Council Record/Certificate is valid for one year from the date of the initial application 
and must be updated annually with a completed annual activity report and payment of the annual 
renewal fee. 

• Failure to renew the CLARB Council Record/Certificate will cause the Record/Certificate to 
become inactive and ineligible for transmittal. 

6. Revocation of CLARB Certification 

• The Council may revoke a landscape architect’s Certification when a member board revokes the 
landscape architect’s registration or when a member board or court issues findings of fact regarding 
the professional conduct of a Certificate holder that indicate a breach of the CLARB Standards of 
Eligibility for Certification. 

• The Council may suspend a landscape architect’s Certification when a member board suspends the 
landscape architect’s registration, issues findings of fact regarding the professional conduct of a 
Certificate holder that indicate a breach of the CLARB Standards of Eligibility for Certification or 
when the landscape architect fails to satisfy the other requirements for listed in the CLARB 
Standards of Eligibility for Certification. The suspension will remain in effect until such time as the 
cause for suspension has been removed, corrected, or otherwise remedied. 

• Such matters shall be inserted in the Council Record of the individual in question for the 
information of member boards who may consider the individual for registration and rely upon 
information in the Council Record or the recommendation of the Council Certificate. 

5 



Nation, Kourtney@DCA 

From; 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Stephanie Landregan <landregan@att.net> 
Tuesday, September 27, 2016 2:58 PM 
Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Amend Title 16 CCR Section 2615 - Form of Examinations 

Follow Up Flag: 
Flag Status: 

Follow up 
Completed 

Dear Ms. Nation, 

I am in complete support of the change to Title 16 CCR Section 2615, by adding the provision 
that candidates applying for California licensure based on licensure in another jurisdiction 
must submit verifiable documentation that they possess both education and experience 
equivalent to that required of California applicants or, if they do not meet the education 
requirement, that they hold a current license in good standing in another jurisdiction where 
they have been actively engaged in the profession for at least 10 of the last 15 years. 

My question is this, this will apply to good standing in Canada and the US or will foreign 
licensure count? 

Thank you for that clarification . 

All my best, 

Stephanie Landregan, FASLA 
CA Licensed Landscape Architect #4093 
Wild by Design 
phone: 818.967.8095 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed cit i1:en w ho understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulat ions. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are current ly CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of pat hs to licensure not available in California. California fai ls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Californ ia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring t he public's healt h, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual. regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post •licensure practice experience to be granted camornia reciprocity. These i ndividuals am already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and weltare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed L.lndscape Architect it they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work e>1perience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with 114 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who l s licensed in another state by having passed the same !exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for Ileen sure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

e>1perience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state lic.enwre upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on all addit ional 10 year post·licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Callfornla reciprocity. This change will continue to marglnallze many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college.educated or w ho halte degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their liccnsure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded lhat privilege. l l seems clear that if we deem our ArchltectS 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualifled as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Archit ect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape archit ect in a U.S. j urisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a w ritten examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in california as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
t he t ime of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredit ed institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

-~ 
Signature/ . 

'l-3 lie -Y,4A T'h ~ 7l 
Street Address (optional) Date City Slate Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily fives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
mult itude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or eJCperience, 10 obtain an 

additional to years of post •licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare ot public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect tf they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national h am. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

Lhe same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for i nitial llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are ge.nerally eligible for out of state licersure upon demonsu-ating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-ficensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed lor Caiifornla reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented profession~ls. 

While California Archit ects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obta in 

their flcensure. candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicat ing: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years: or 
(Cl Candi~date holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Prin ted Name .., Signature 

Z.2Jo (A.It.. H,11 1-3-/k, ~ <-()1' M:i 
Street Address (optfonal) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department or Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike M cGuire, senator.rnrguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim NielsCcn Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman JJmes Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are. being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crit ical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed indiVidual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of posHicensure practice experience to be granted California retiprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern ofllcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have l!arned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam, Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless or related subject maner, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same EJ<am and having 

the same work experience, is not ell(lible for licensure. 

Nearly all n ates require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basi_s of elCamination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post•licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciproclty, This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California ,Architects and CMI Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candfdates for landscape. Architecture are not afforded that prMlege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as Lhose who are, the s.ime should hold true for landscape ArchlLects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a w ritten examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidat e submits verifiable documentation t o the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

C\')2-Joy 
Zip Code 

Oepartmen1 or Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman Jnmes.Gallaiiher 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize educat ion outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed rl!gulation will require any out•of-state hcensed individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-liceosure practke experience lo be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable or ensuring the health, safety, and welfare o f public - the primary concern of Ii censure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed t..mdscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person withal\ year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same fxam and having 

the same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years e~perience 

prior to ex:il'lllnatlon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-liceMure ~perlence requirement for 
a total (average) or 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

Whlle California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related svbJects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. ll seems clearthat if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated lo be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Li!ndscape Architeru. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
det ermined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to t he Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re ·stration in 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, d erv s 
Pr{nted Narn~. , ,. t 1 !\: ,1) ~\) ~ I\J ,c (.,d')l ![Y_ 

ood standin 

t are qyqii 
Street Address (optional) City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Dcpartmem or Consumer Arfalrs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@se11ate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@se11ate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento. CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
current ly members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking st eps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of pat hs to licensure not available in California. California. fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Ovil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposC?d regulallon Will require any out-of-state lrcensed individual, regardless or educ.ation or experience, lo obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience lo be grant ed Calirom,ij reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of publk- the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In Catlfornla a person m;iy become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work ex-penence and passing the natlonal Exam. Currently a person wlth a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject mailer. who is licensed in another state by havlng passed the same Exam end having 

the same worlc axperience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all .states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llccnsure on the basis of ex.iminat ion and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out or state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years e~perience 

prior to examination. Tl'le current proposed regulation will t.ick on an additional 10 year post-licensure eicperlence requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change wlll cont inue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and C,vll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their liceosure, candldatcs for Landscape Architecture are oot afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 

provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 

the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. ...._ 

Sincerely, _cbx....1i...:~=...0\_:___..::.......)"""'--J-....l...l.L.Lab.£-J-1-b=-f;,-\------>,,---F=--'c:::::;rt1F-~-t.r--,'-'~-'6-.-c.-~~ 
Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) City State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator,mcsuire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due t o increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these .States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California falls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Llcensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulatiort will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post•licensure practice experlence to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definlt1on are competent ~nd capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a U~ensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certlffcate in 

l.artdscape Architecture aloog with proper work experience and passing the nalional Exam. Currently a person wlth a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in ano ther state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not ellglble for licensure. 

N!.'arly all states require experiencl? for lnitJal licensure and the majority or slates allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eliglble for out of sta te II censure upon demonst rating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Qvll Engineers who are not collese educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (opUonal) 

CC: callfornia Arch•tects Board, cab@dca.ca,gov Department or Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@sena1e.ca.go11 Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood A.ssemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 9S834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crit ical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out •of-state licensed individuill, regardless of educat ion or e~perience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience lo be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring 1he health, safely, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Cert ificate rn 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national E'llam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bad,elor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who ls llcensed In another state by having passed the same Ellam and having 

the same work experience, is not elieible for licensure, 

Nearly all states require experience for in1t1al licensure and the majority ol states allow llcensure on the basis o f examination and 
e~pericnce alone. Persons are ccnerallv eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to e~amination. The current proposed reaulatlon wlll tack on an addi tional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a toral (allerage) of 18 ye,irs needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many Wlented profcsslonals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear tt)at if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of !he Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their cafifomia licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in california. california fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilit ies as critical to ensuring the pubiic's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual. regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of ~t-licensure practice experience to be granted california reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring tlle health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Ucensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for litensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of stale licensure upon demonstrating an average or 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post -licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalile many talented prolessionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privflege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction. Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of california applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized acc.redited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 

currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation writ require any out-of-state licensed indivfdual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years or post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by de!inition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and wel fare of public - the primary concern of II censure. 

In Callfornla a person rtiay become ll Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assocfates Oei:ree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree. regardless of related subJetl matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is no\ eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for inlti;:il liconsure and the majority of states allow Hcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligiblo for out of slate licensure upon demonst ra ting an average of 8 years experlence 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a t otal (average) of 18 years needed for Callfornia reciprocity. This chan11e w ni continue to marginalize many t~lented professionals. 

Whtie California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In releted svbjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that prhlilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true ror Landscape Archltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Sect.ion 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits ver ifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses educat ion and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Qf f 517 1/J f 

Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, 

CC: callfornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen, M ike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Erlmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory l anguage Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Archftects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regard less of education or experience, to -obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reclprodty. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary conce.rn of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the natfonal Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's 0egree, reg.irdless of rel,ited subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experTence for initial Jicensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
e.Xperlence alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

pr.for to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-Ii censure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change wil l continue to marginalize many talented profesionals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. Ir seems clear that lfwe deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jur isdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valfd license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
\ . 

CR.I ST7/fµ V/ILLJ( 

q /o 
Date City State 

Cf'. 7hs-
zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department ot Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator· Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund •G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman Jame Gallagher 

https://conce.rn


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any ou1-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definit ion are competent and capable of ensuring the health, s.1fety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject malter, who is licensed In ,mother state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work e~perience, is not eligible for lict!nsure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for init ial !!censure and the majority of slates allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licenS'ure upon demonstrating an average of 8 yp~rs experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated Qr who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not aflorded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 

IA} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institut ion, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of t he last 5 years; or 
IC} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, a,{,\ 

Street Address (optional) State Zip Cpde 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmur,d G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman lim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape. Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who arc as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to e><lstlng exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Afizona, however this precedent Is out of context because these Stc1tes have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California falls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architec.ts and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed rcsul•llon will require art/ out•Of•state licensed lnd l\/ldual, rccardless or educauon ore•llt'rmnce. to obtain an 
additional 10 yc_ars or posi-lic.,nsure prattice expcrter,cc 10 be granted California rec,procily These individuals are alrudy licensed 
and by delini!Jon are c11mpe1ent and Cilpable of ensuring th~ health, safety, and well are o f public-the primary oot>Cetn of llcensure 

In California a person mav become a u c11nsed land:.c:ape /\rch,tect If they h~ve urned a 2 year Assoclat~s Degree or C<'rtificate 1n 
Landscape Architec.ture along with proper wort •••peroencc and passing th,• national Exam Currently a person with a d year 

Bachelor's Oegree, regardless ol related subject matter, who Is lic ensed on a110ther statP by havlng passed the same bnm and having 
the same work e•~rience, is not ehglble tor llcensure 

Nearly all states require eip~rlence for lnlt lal llcen\ure and lhc majority of state, allow lltt'nsurf' on lhe basis of ~~amlnatton ilnd 

e,porlence a lone, Persons are generally ehclble lor out of )tale licensurn upon d emons1r<1llng an ave race of 8 yPars e~perle ncc 

prior 10 examlnatiun. The current proposed reGulation will tack on an .oddltlonal JO year post-Ocensure o;xperlcnce rcqulreme.nl ror 
a t otal (average) or 18 years ne .. ded for California re.oororny. This chang .. will continue to marginali!e many :alented pro fess,onals 

• Whole California Arthnect, and Civil Engineers who a re not tolle,ie educated or who have decrees ln related subjects mov obtain 
rhe,r 1,c~n<ure, candidate, for L~nd5cape Architecture are not afforded that prlvll~ge. Ir ~cems clear that II we deem uur Architect s 

and F.nglncer> who are not college educated to be as quallOcd as those who are. the s;ime should hOld true for Landscape Archltcc!S. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Californ ia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate subrnits verifiable documentation lo the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(8) candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate h_olds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, l- {;" -
Street A\ldrcss (optional) D••~ City State Zip Code 

CC C.i_lifornla Architects Boarll, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer A/fairs Offlce or the Govrrnor 
Sen. M,ke McGuire; senatur.rnctuorc@senate.ca .gov Senator Jim Nlclscn Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Asseml.Jlym3n James Gallagh~r 

https://rcqulreme.nl
https://Architec.ts


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 201(;; 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of l andscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure t oday. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilit ies as crit ical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• Tl\e proposed regulaHon Will requlri, anyout •or-state r.cen5ed iod,v"Jual. regardless ol eduC<ltion or experiet1c:e, 10 o btain an 

additional 10 years of post•licensure practice experit:>nce to be sranted Cififomra rectproclly. These individuals are already ltcenw d 

and by delin1l,on a•t- co1r1petent and capable of erm iri ng the health, saf ety, and welfare of public - the prlmaty co11cern ot tlcensure. 

• In catttornia a, person may become a Llcensecf· l ondscape Architect if they have earned a 2. year As.~ucl ~t<'S Degree or C<'rtlficate In 

Landscape Archl t t-cture al011g with proper work experience and pa5.;fng the national E•am. Currently a person with a 4 yc.1r 

Bachelor's Degree, rCRardless of relaled subject maner, who is l icensed ln another state by having passed the same l:.xam and h,oving 

the same work expencna,, i s not eligible for Ileen sure. 

• Nearly ;ill stat es require experience for Initial Ileen sure and the mnjor ity o f slates allow llcensure 0 11 the basis o f examination ;ind 

experience alone. Persons are eenerally elfgibl!' for out ofstatc lice11sure upon demonstrating a,1 average of 8 years experience 

prior 10 ewamlnation. The current proposed regulation will t ack on an additional LO yf.'ar post-licensure e,perience requirement far 
a total (ilverage) ol 18 years needed for California rec/pruci\V. This change w ill co111lnue 10 marginall1e many talented professlonals. 

While C:JHron,la Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educutc d or wt,o have degrees In relnled subject s may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for l andscape Architecture are not affnrded th;,1 privilege. It seems dear that 1rwe deem our Ard11tects 

and Engineers who are not college ed ucat ed to be as quallfled iJS those who are, the sa me should hold true l or L,,ndsrape Ar~hitcx:t s. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, D L _ D. • 
f&L•rn'ct &L or-, e / 

Print ed Na mi, /) 

17 SM KMb OY\ f)v. q I 10 I he C,t 
Strel'.'l Address (optlor,al) Date City St.ite Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Bo.,,d, cab@dca.ca.gov Oepar1nwnl of Consumer Affairs Office ol the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, ~enator mcguire@lsenat e.ca.gov SE!nator /Jm Nit'lsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

A~emblyrnan Jim Wood Ass1?mblyma,1 J~me, Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly rest rictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing wtio would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent frorri New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Llcensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulattons: 

• The proposed regulation \viii require anv out-of•Srnte licensed individual, regardless of education or experience. to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licer,sure practice experience to be granted California redprocily. These individuals ,ire already licensed 
and by definition are competent and tapable of ensuring the heallh, safety, and welfare.of publfc- the primary conc;,rn Qf tici,11\ure. 
lr1 Callfornla a perSon may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assllciates Degree or Certificate 111 

1.~nd$cape Architecture along wilh proper work experi1•nce and passing the r1atlonal Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of rclllted subject matter, wllo Is licensed In ariothcr state by having pass-ed the same EJ<am and h11vlng 
the same work cxperieoce. ls not eligible for lkensu1e. 

• Near ly all state~ '"quire e,q,erie11ce for initial llcensure and the majority of stat e< allow licensure on rhe basis of e xamination and 
exrcrience alrwc Persons are geuorally ellsible for out of stale llcensure upon demonstrath1B an av erase of 8 year~ experlenc1i 
pri,., to examination. The current proposed reeula1lon will tack or, ~11 additional .10 year post-llcensure experi('nce require ment for 
a total (averuce) of lll years needed for California reciprocity. nus change will co1111nue to marglnall1e many t.ilented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineen who are not college educated or who have degrees 111 related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Archit~ct• 
and Engineers who are not colleuc educaterf to be as qualified a, those who an:. rite same should hold true for landscape ArchlteC1s. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istratlon in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

~nalUre 

Street Addre~i (opt io11all G¼ (D) CA Date City State 7fp Code 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr 

CC: Ca lifo rnia Architects Board, cab@dCil.ca.gov {;J5'TJ--~epartment of Consumer Affai,s 
Sen. Mike McGuire, sel1dtor.mcguirc@5enate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen 
AsseflliJlyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallasher 

http:require.me
mailto:sel1dtor.mcguirc@5enate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dCil.ca.gov
https://welfare.of


Cf/tS /ly; 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27. 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterpam that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent ls out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change Is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as criticaJ to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will requ!ro any out-of-stare licensed Individual, rer,ardless of educallO'l or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 vears of post-licensure practice experience lo be granied California reciprocity. These lndMduals are already llccmsed 

and bv definition are competenl and capable of ensuring the health, safetv, and welfare of public- the primary concern of liceMure. 

• In Californ,., a person may bew11w a Licensed L;Jndscape A rt.hitect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
landsoi!pe Architecture alone with proper work experience and paHlng t he rrnllonal Exam. Curren tly a person with a 4 year 
Rnchclor's Decree. regardless of rela ted subjec1 matter, who 15 licensed in another slate by having pa~sed the same Exam and having 

the same work eKperlcnce. is not eligible for llcen<u1e. 

• Nearly .ill states require e~pcrience for initial llcensure and thl' maJ0r;1y o f states allow licensurc on the basis of cx.imfnation and 

e~perlcnce alone. Persons are generally eliglbte for oul of state llcensure upon demonstrating an avcr.ige of 8 y~Ms e>1per;e11,e 

prior to f'Xar11lnn1lon . The current proposed rc~ulati on will tack 011 an additloMI 10 year po<t-lircnsure experience requirement lor 
a loral (average) of 18years nt>eded for callfornla ,eciproclly, This change will continue to marsinalize many talented professionals. 

• While Calflornla Architects ahd Clvll Engineers who arc not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects mav obt.1in 

their I/censure, candidates tor l..lndsc-dpe Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems cl ear that ii we detim our Arch,tects 
and Engineers who are not college educ.ited 10 be as qualitled a~ lliose who ar<', lire same should hold true for landseape Arch1tecrh 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and exoerience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of apolication: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, Sb l"- 'l)hu- sJ.~ 
l'rlnted ~ ,e Signature 

t}JD WMJ bJ?: CbUJ CA q~L-¾ 
Street Address (optfonal) City Stale Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Allalrs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire. ,ena\or.mcgulrc@sen.ite.ca.gov Si,n,uor Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wnod Ass.•mhlyman J~me~ Gallaeher 

mailto:senator,mcgulrc@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


~1 (I s/1 ~ 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not quality for licensure today, 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. Calrfornia falls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Archi tecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language ls based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crit ical to ensurihg the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

TI,e propos<1d regulation will require any out-of-state licensen Individual, regardless ot educatlori or experience, to obtain-an 

addition/JI 10 years of post-If censure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are a lready licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of-ensurine the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of ncensure. 

• 01 Calito(nfa a person may become a Licensed Landscape Arthl tect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate l11 

Landscape Architecture along wfth proper work experience and pass1ng the national Exam. Currently a person w it h J 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is l icensed in another state by having passed the s-ame Exam and having 
1he same Work experrence, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all stales require experience for Initia l llcensure and the majorltyotstales allow licensure 0or 'the basi~ o f examination and 

e~perience alone. Person s are genernffy eligible for out of state licefl~\JrC upon demonstrating a11 aver~ge ol S years e>cperieriee 

prior to examination. fhe cmrent proposed reeulatlon will tack on Jn additional 10 year post-licenstlre expNience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years nePded for California r<.'clprocity, This chanee will rnnllnue lo margini!lize many t~ lenl ed µrofes,sionals. 

Whlle California Architects and Civil Engineers who are nor college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privile@e. It seems dear that if we deem our Archftects 

and l'nglncers who are not college educated to be as quallf"ied ,is those who ure, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of E>caminations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a l.J.S. jurisdiction, Canadian provlnce, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent ih scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds _a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional servtces for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

~ 
Stahl 

17703 
Zip Code 

CC: Ca li fornia Architect:; BQard, ~ab@dca.ca.gov Depart rnent of Conr.urner Affairs Office of the Governor 
5Qn, Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.eov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallaeher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 

from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking step.s in t he right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however,this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available In California. califomia fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon whic~ the proposed language is based allow L!censure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combrnations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The pro1>0sed regulation will require. any out-or-state llcen5ed lndMdual, regardless or education or e1perience, 10 obtain .n 

'additional 10 ye~rs of post-1\censure Prl!Cllte ci<perlenceto be granted CallfomlJ reciprocity. These lndMduals are already licensed 
and by deOnitloo are competent al!d capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare cf public- the primary conce,n of llcensufe. 
In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect Ir thl!Y ha•-e earned a 2. year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with prope, wO(I< e.<perlence and pa11ins the national ~m. CuHently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subjeCI matter, who Is litcnied In another mte by having passed the same Exam and havlng 
the same work experience, ls not erigible for llcensure. 
Nearly ;all mtes require expetlence forlnltial llet>nsure-and the majority of mtes allow llcensure on the basis of ~mlnatlon and 
expl!fience alone. Persons are generally eligible {Of' out of state Ucen.sure upon demonstrating an aVl'rage of 8 years e,cpenence 
prior to Vtllmination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an addllional 10 year post·lil:ensure e,rperiel!ce requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Callfornla rec,procl!y. This change will continue to mare1nall2e many talented profe$Sionals. 
While California Architects and (:iv,I Engineers who are not college educ.ated or who have degrees In related subJem may obtain 
theJr llccnsure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that prMlege. It seems clear that If we deem our Arch.tecu 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Undscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language t o amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section ;2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Ci!lrfornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the Californfa Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation t o the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and exper ience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of app!fcation: or 

(81 Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good st anding, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practiclllg or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or regist.ratlon in good standing. and has been oracticing or offeri ng 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name ? Slcnature 

(JtfrUJ /LOIi MrOtuA'f 
Street Addre5s (optional) City State Zfp Code 

CC: <:alifornla Architects Seard, c.ab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire.senator,mq:u1re@senate.ca.gov 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 

Office of the Govt111or 
Govemor Edmund G. erown 1,. 

Assemblyman Jlm Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road. Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who arc as qualified as t heir California licensed counterparts t hat arc being barred 
from obtaining lkensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to Increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there arc currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the r ight direction, borrows 
precedent lrom New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese Slates have a 
multitude of paths to liccnsure no t available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Liccnsure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of st ep with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
arc entrusted w ith r<?sponsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposl'ti regulation will require any out-ol-st,1te licenied individual, regardless o l education or experience, to ob1~in an 
additional 10 years of post•licensurc practice c•pcrience 10 be grJnted Calilorn1a reciprocily. These indlvlduals are already licenstd 
and by definition Are competent and capable of ensuring thl' hNlllt, ufoty, and welldrc ot public - the p11mary concern ol hccn,ure 

In CJHfornla a pcr,on may become a Licensed Landscape Arc.hltecr if they have earned a 2 year Associates 0l!grce or Ccrtlfirate in 
landscape Architecture along wilt) proper work e•PNiencc and passing 1he national Exum, Currently a per1on with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, rcgardlcu of related subject matter, who Is li<l!nsed In another stale by having pa,,ed the .ame uam and h.ivmg 

the s->me work e•pernmce, i• not eligible for llce1nure. 

Ncadv all s tates require eiperk!nce for 1nit1al lkcn1ur~ and the maJority ol st.ues allow licensure on the bas!, of e•amlna1ion and 
experience alone. Per1ons are generally dlglbh, for out of St->te llcemurc upon demonstra rmg an average of 8 years experience 
prior to eitaminatfon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an add1t1onal 10 year pos'Hkcmsure e• perlence requirement for 

a total (average) ol 18 years netded for Cahlornl., tedpro<ity Th~ change will (ontinue to marginall1e manv talented professionak. 

Wh,le Californ•a Archltecu and CM! Engineers whoa re nor college "ducated or who have degree, ,n tcl.:Jtcd ,ublects may obt.1ln 
t heh llccn,ure, cand1da te1 for Lu11dscape Architecture a•~ not atforded thJI prlv~cgc. It ,ecm, d t>ar that it wr, deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are nol rnllegc cduc,ned to bras quallficd ~s those who are, the same Sh01Jld hold true for Landscape Archite tls 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 261S be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who 1s licensed as a land$c.ape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examinatlon substantlally equivalent fn scope and subject matter required i n California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submit s verifiable documentation to the Board indicat ing: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 

the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been pract1dng or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Srrcet Addre,, (optional) Date City 5t-alf.' Z\p Code 

CC· Cahforn~, A,chitects Board. cab@d~a.c-a.gov 0epanmcnt of Consul!'ter Affous Oftlce or the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGu,re, sena1or.mcgu1re@scnate.ca.gov Senator lim Nlt.>lscn Gover nm Edmund G. Brown Ir 
Assemblvman J•m Wood Ancmblvman James Gallaglwr 

http:Ucen!.Cd


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite .105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will ,.,_quire any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or t'xpcrience. to obtain an 
additronal -io years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
dnd by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare ot publlc- the primary concern of lia>nsure. 
In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect it thc:y have earned a 2 year AsrnciatesDegrne or Certificate In 
l•ndscape Architecture along with proper work experience and p~sslng the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter. who is Hcensed In anothNstate by having patted the sctme Eleam and having 
the same work experience. ls not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for lnitral licensure and the m;ijorlty of states allow licensure on the ba.sls of examinatlon and 
e~perience alone Persons are generally eligible for out of state tlcensure upon d"rnonstfating an average of 8 years experience 

~rlor to ex-1mlnation. The current proposed reeulallon will tar.k on an additional 10 year post·llcensur<! experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed fur California reciprocity. 1hls change wnl continue to marglnal/ze many talented professionals. 

• While Califorhia Architects and CMI Englneets who are not college educated or who have. degrees In related sub/eru may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture ,3re not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects.. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who ls licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, o r Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by t he Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplementcll Examinat ion 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicat ing: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience egufvatent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at feast 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Add res~ (optional) Date City Sta te Zfp Code 

CC: o,11rornla Architects Board. cab@dca.ca.gov Oepartme~t of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though takfng steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available In California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulatlon will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtaln an 
.Klditlonal 10 years of post-llcensure practice e,cpelienc:e to be.g,.anted California reciprocity. These lndMduals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfa,e of publ!c- the primary conc:t>rn of licensure, 

• In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a i year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Archlteeture along with proper work experience and passing the nallonal Exam. Curre.r,tly a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who lo licensed In another state by havlnl! passed the ,amo Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for lfcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for inillal llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone . Persons are generally elleible for out of otate llccnsure upon demonstrating an averatie of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current propos~ re11ulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensare experience requfrement for 
a total (aver~ge) of 18 years needed for callfornra reciprocity. This change will continue to marglnall2e many talented profes:.lonals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
thefr llcen!i'llre, Cilndldates for Landscape Archltecrure. are not afforded that privllcge. It seems dear that if we deem our Arcl,ftect~ 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true lor Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who Is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

V7/{c 9:s1.?'f·l 
Street Address (optional) Date Sta te Zip Code 

Printed Name 

fl 2 I 

CC: California Architects Board, c.ib@dca.ca gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office or the Governor 
Sen. Mike Mruuire, senator.mcgulre@henate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman Jamei; Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Archlte.cts Technical Cotnrnittee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members ot the public who ar.e as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due t o increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Ucensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Commit tee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though takirig st eps In the right dtre::tlon, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however th is precedent is out of context because these States have a 
111ult itude of pat hs to llcensure notovailable In California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed langu.ige is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of st ep with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in t he current and proposed regulations: 

Ttie pro!l<Jse<l r egul~tion wlll ·aqulre dOY out-of-stat!! licensed lndlvidual, regard less.of education or exl}erie,i;e, to obtain ao 

addltlor al JO year5 of post-llcensvre pr;:ictlce axpe[ll!noe to be granted Calllornla recip riicity. Tha$e lndlvld~als ore alre6dy llcen; ed 

end by ilenn1t1on ;:ire competent and capable ol ensuring th!! health, sarety, a,1<J welfare o f publ ic - the primary concern of lk ensure. 
In ca11rornia a peison mav oecorne t1 Licensed Landm ipe Archilec~if they have earnl?d a 2 yeJr ,\l'soclates Degree or Cert[flc.ne in 

Lardscape Architecture ·alone with proper wcrk experience anc.t passing the naOonal Exam. Curr~ntly a person wilh i3 4 year 
Bachelor's l)egree, regardless of rel~tcd subject matter, who Is licensed in ano ther stole by havfni! pasm l the same Exain and h~vine 
the same work experience, Is not eligible lor Ileen sure. 

Nearly all sta1es ,-equlro experience ror lnltial llcensure and ttie majority of states allow licensure on the basis of Glramlnauon and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible tor out of ;tate lirensur~ upon dernorutrat111g an average of 8 years experfence 
prio r l o el<ilrn)natlon. 1he currem proposed regulation wH! tac~ on an addnional 1 0 year post -llceosure experlence requirement for 
a tot.ii (average) of 18 years needed for C.1\ifomia rcclprccltv Th i~ chijnge w ill contlnue to marginalize many m lcnted profcssronals. 

• w11He cal1fornlu Archltect5 and Civil Engineers who are nol coll~ge educ.ited or wno have degrees In rci~ted sullJects may obtal11 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded ,het privilege. It seems ,lear t hal lf we dee,n our Arci11tects 
and Engineers who are mrt colleae educated to !Je as qualified as those wl10 are. tile same ;houid hold true for L.Jnd51:ape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
{1) ·A candidate who is licensed as a landscape .irchitect in .a U.S. Jurisdict ion, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a wriLten exami11ation subst anti;;illy equivalent In scope and strbfect matter required In California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the C;1lifornia Supplemental Examination 
provided that the. candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board ind!catl ng; 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experjence equival ent to that required of Californ ia apolicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C} Candidate holds si valid license or registration in good standing, and ha~ been pra.ctictng or offering 
professiona

Printed Name 

l services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Slncerely, 

cc: Caliromla Art hltru:t$ Board, c-ab@oca.c.a.gov Department of Cons11rner Affalr; Oftlc,e of t he Governo, 
Seo. Mike McGuire, senator .mc&1Jire@sena1e.ca.gov senator Jim Nielsen Gove.roor t drnund G. flrow11 .1r. 
Assernbtymon Jim w ood AssM1b lyman Jarn~s Gallagher 

https://flrow11.1r
mailto:senator.mc&1Jire@sena1e.ca.gov
mailto:c-ab@oca.c.a.gov
https://Cert[flc.ne
https://regardless.of


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed cit izen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture irr our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
frorn obtaining licensure due to• el(isting exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restr ictive policies, over 
time, there are current ly CA LTccnsed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language ch;rnge, though taking steps In the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because the.se States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available tn California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying deg.re es and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• rhe proposed reeulation will req11lre any out-of-state 11censed Individual, regMdless of educatfon or experience, lo obtain an 

~dditlonal 10 years of post>llcensure practice experience lo be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and wejfareof public-the prlmary concern or llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Lan~scape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

B~ht!or's Degree, regardless of relatecJ subject matter, who ls licensed in another state by hav,ng passed the same E)(am and having 
the same work experience, \snot eligible for licensure. 

j'llearly all states require experience for lnltlal licenslire and the majority of stales allow licensure on lhe basis of examination and 

experoence alone. Persons a~ generally eligible for.out of state. Ileen sure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examrnat1on. Thi! current proposed regulallori will tack on an additional 10 ye-or post-licensure e~perlence requirement for 

a total (average) of 11! vears neede.d for California mclproclly. This chan~e wilt continue to m~rgrnaUze many talented professlonals. 

• While California Architects and CMI Engineers Who are not college ed11c;,1ed or who have degrees In related sub)ects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for landscape Arch,tecture are not afforded thnl privi lege. It seems clear that if we tleern our Archi tects 

and Engineers who are. not college educated to be as quali fied as those who are, the same should hold true for l;Jndscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Sect ion 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

{1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U,S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentatlon to the Board Indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B} Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recogni1ed accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 ofthe last S years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the. last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed, Name 

1-SS'<=> i..Ai'.~L..:ii,,- bit '5TI- s-o C--tt-1 ~ CA <-jS,Z.~ 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

q/1/1<.-
CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 0cpartment o f Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike. McGuire, senator.mcguirc@sena tc.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor fdrnurid G, Drown Jr , 
Assemblymen Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



1

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite lOS Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existfrig exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 

time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these St ates have a 
mllltitvde of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Arc~itects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted With responsi bilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed re11ulatio11 will require any oul-of-5tate licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to ubtarn an 

additional l0 vears of post• licensure praclice experience to be granted CaliJorn1a reciprocity. These tndivldual, are already licensed 
and by defln1tion arc compctel\t and capable of ensuring t~e health, safoty,.and well are or public. -tHc primary concern ot licensurc. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Arch,tcct if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree orCert!k ,ne in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passins tl\e national [icam. Currently a person with a 4 yhr 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed rn ;inother state by havlng pJssed the same E~am .and hav,ng 
the same work c• per1ence, is not eligible tor llccnsurc. 

Nearly all slates require experience for lnltial lirorisurcand lhc majority ol stalC'S allow ik(!J!su<c on the basis of e•amination and 
cxperii: 1ce alone. Persons are generally eligible for oul of sta te llcensure llpo!J demo nitrating an average of !l years !!xperience 
prior lo ex,amrnation. The current proposed rcgulalion will tack on an additional 10 year post •llcensurc experience requirement for 
a tolal (avcraec) of 18 years needed for Californ]a .reciprocity. This change will continue to marginaltze many talented pro fessionals. 

While Calilornia Ar-chiteqs and Qvil E'ngfrwers who arc (IOI college educated or who have degrees 1n rcfalcd subjects may o btain 
their licensure, candidates for ~and$cape Architecture are, nqtafforded that privilege. It seems cleanhat if we deem our Arch·,tects 

.ind Engincc~ who arc not college educated to be ~s qualified as those who arc, the same should hold true for Landscape ArchiteclS. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landsc3pe architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
hav1ng passed a written examination substantially equivalent In scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examinat ion 
provi ded that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istratlon in ood stand in or offerln 

profe.ssion<!I services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, ~Lt. 

Printed N~me --=--- Signature 

Street Address (op!Tonal) State Zip Code 

CC: California /lrthitccts Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Olftce of the Governor 
Sen, Ml~e McGuire, 5er,ator.rncgu1re@senate.Q .go~ Senator Ji m Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr , 
Assc,nblymanJr{TI Wood A$semblvman Jame. GallJgher 

http:state.by
mailto:5er,ator.rncgu1re@senate.Q.go
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Comm,llee 
2'120 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento. CA 9583.11 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterp,;Jrts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing excluslonc1ry reg11l,1 tions, Also, due to increasingly re~trictivc policies, over 
time, then~ are current ly CA licensed Landscape Architects pr;1ctic:1ng who would not qualify for licens1,rn today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though rnkfng steps 1n the right dirertion, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitt,.tde of paths to licensure not available in C,ilifornia. California fails to recocnlze education nut side of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed languc1ge 1s bilsed allow Licensure 
for individuals With varying degrees and combin.itions of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standnrds shilred by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, an<f welfare. 

I oppos!;! the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

Tim aroposcd reeulat,on w,11 «·nu,w ;u\y cu1-nH1,11c r,c~mvtl ,1,11r111Jua l. r~canJl~1~ o l i•1l11c.1llon nr c~pN,,•1\(,•, 10 obt,,.,, ,in 

,1tlrt,1ior1al JO vcars ol po11-l,c~n1urc pr,1ct,cc exocnenc,• \ll he ~r~ntciJ Calilorni,1 r('c1prou1y. lhc,e 111u1v,duJI, J1e J l1~.11ty l1c~med 
and by dcfmitlon are q 1111pete111 Jnd c~pable oi enrnrlng t he h ealth, safety, and welfare 91 public:- the pri111ary wnc.ir11 o l 1,rnnsure. 

In C~liforn,;i a per~on rnay lir.ro111c11 lirnmeo landscape /lrch,rnc1 if t hey have ca,nc,1 a 2 vr.nr A~sotlate~ De~r~e 01 Certlf1,,,w ' " 

L~ntli c~pe Architect""' a ton1: with 11rorcr wor~ C~JlC'ncn~c ,orlrf p n,slng tl1c n;,tim1,1) f K!IFII C,m rn!lv ,, nr rmn w,1 h ;, ,1 vt,u 
u~::t1clo(1 Oegree, re~3rtll.:,; oi rclah:LI su:liec1 ma11c1, wh~ " ltcl'l1,cd 1n a1101ht•1 1tat ... 61· h.iv,n11 pa,s~U tht' 1,1n11' f ~,1111 an!l. h~ving 
tlJ,:, rnn1e No•K exper,cnre. II not ohgtbfe tor licensurc, 

NcJrly all srntc~ rcqu,rc c,pc1rl'llcc for i~itial 11censurc a,uJ t11r rna1011ty of ,1a1es allow r.rcn1u1~ on thJ• ba1i1 of c,an11nation and 

L1lp,,,,,l},l('t• ,.tlone. Personi ;ur tti•nrr~•II·( d 1t:1ble lr,r out of st.,,~ lrtt..'n,.ur~ Upor1 L1t!t110r1~0Jt111g Jn ;1v~1ar,~ gf ff )"C'1U-} l"~p,•ra1ncc 

u r101 to tXJmtnat lo11 Thi.: currc,1I pwposcd IQ&ulat,on w,111.,ck 1n1 ,,n JIJUft,c>nal 10 y,•,1r po11-lit ~n 1ur~ ecpcnMce rc11111teri•1"11 fo1 

,, tot JI (avcr~&.l') of l 8 ye~,~ nuod.,(J lor Califo,n,a 10,cl1,rooty, r1111 c~anee WIii con1lni,c 10 1nJrc111~~,1! ,)\br,y t alcnl~d profrs<ion~I~. 

Whilo California ArchitNl~ and c,v,1 t:11e1"ee1$ who ar1• 1101 co11~p.e educ3ted or \vho havll llc,p,rec~ in •~•Jtecl suhic(I~ rn~v ob1aln 
tfwir lirc1l$urc.>. 1 anclldatc s fnr l ;wdsr~pe /\rcl1llecturl' ,,re 1101 uflord<,J thJI !Jfivil<>p.e. II seer 11, cl1w that II wp d,•r111 0:11 /lrchitccts 

,inti l.n1:mt•l'1> Who ar<' no1 col ll'.P.<' rcJl•c~tcri lQ b e ,,j 1111:>l;flrtl .J\ ll10Sl' w~o arc, tit\' 1:1•11t• , t,<1, 1ld holn IJU<' for L,111thc ,,pc t\t chitcCI>. 

I request the following revised lahguage to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

( 1) A candidate who is licensed as a lands·cape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction. Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examin,ilion substantially equivalenL In scope and subjecl matter required in C.ilifornla as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examiniltio11 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indie<iting: 

(Al Candidate.possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
th·e time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or regi stration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering profession<JI services for at le<1st 
2 of the last 5 yea rs; or 
(C} Candidate holds a valid license or registration m good standing, and has bel!n practicinc or oHerinc 

profes~ional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. n / . ] 
Sincerely, ) 1.MJ![_c[, (A () \4tl,v j/1..fU(A~ 

,:~~lu!JfoJJe lJv:5td1l12 IJ.]!JI1.lo. _ _.Ctr 
sA;:,,t /lrlrlrt,~ (o plloll~I) "'/ 01• (' .. / City s1.,1,, 

"/ .. , 2,.U/ ip• 

cc: cat,fom,a /lrd111ens Board, cab@dcJ .c~.1,0, D~partmen1 o f Consumer AUa,rs Off,cc al l h,ll G.ivcrr1or 
Ser>, M,~c McGulce. 1e~ator rncgu1r~,a>,en~t ... ca.gov , ~nator Jtm l\llef1en Governor ldnwnct G. nrm•,n Jr 
A, ~cmUly111o1n J,m Wood M ~~1111Jlyn1,tn JJnit'~ O~!IJi;/1~1 

https://IJ.]!JI1.lo


r ((!S(ILfJ 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory lcinguage Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Land5capc Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Ro.id, Suire 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear l andscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in' our dally Jives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive rol icies, over 
time, there a1·e currenlly CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qu<1l ify For licensure today. 

rhe Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York ;ind Arizona, however this precedent is out of context becc1use these States have a 
multitude of paths Lo liccnsure not available in Cali forn ia. California fails to recognize education outside of 
L;rndscJpe Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is ba$ed allow licensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees .:ind combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Ccllifomia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
ilre entrusted with responsibilities JS criticill to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations : 

Th1.• propose.cl r~gulailon will require any ou l-of- slate llrnnscd 1ndiv1dual, regnrdless of !'ducat1on or experience, to obtain ~n 
addi tional 10 year, of post-licensu1e. pr~rl.fce e~perienw lo be ~rantt-d C.i ll forniJ reciprocity. These individuals are already lrce.nsc•d 

a11d by deiiriilio,1 Jre. cc,rnpetenl :ind c-apable of ~nsuring the hev lth, safely, and 1t,elf~re of public- thc prlmary co nee• n of hcen~ure. 

In C;i lifornia a per5on rnay berorne a I lcem ed Landscdpl' Architect ;r they h11ve earned :1 2 yea, Associates llegri:e orCertifitat,• in 
landscape Ard1itec tu1 e along with proper work experience iln<I passing the national Ex<1n1. Currently a person wll11 a 4 year 

B~chelor•~ Deeree, l'i'!gardlt:>ss of ,elat~tl ~ubject rnaLtcr. v!ho Is licensed in anolhPr s tate by havine passed the same E"xam ;ind having 
the san,e work experience. i, r1ot elie1ble for lict>nsure. 

Nearly all ~tat es require experience for Initial licr.11sure and the rnilJOrllv of stat es allow licensure on the basis or e~aminatlon and 
experTence alone Persons are j!enerally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average ol 8 yc•urS cxperlence 

prior to e~arnlnation. ,he current proposed •~gul,>tion will lack on an additional LO y..-.a r po5t llcensur'e expt•rie11ee requirt>ment to, 
~ total (OVl'rJge) of 18 ye.a rs needed for California redp,otity. This rh,mgc will ~ontinue to marginalize ma11y talented J)rofcssmnal1. 

While canro1nia Architects ,mo Civil Eng1neels IVho are 11ot college educated or who have. degrees ,n relatr d subJec ts may oblilln 
the], licenwre, candidates for Landscape /lrchitectu1c . ,., not 11lforded that pr1v,lcr,e. It ,ccm, clear that ,f 1ve deem our Architect; 

,md Engineers who are not college educated to be a1 4ualified as thosl? who MC, the sarne should hold true for La111Js,.ape Architr,cts. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Ex;iminations 
(1) A tc1ndidate. who is licensed as a landsc.ipe .:irchit ect in a U.S. j urisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equiv<llent fn scope and subject matter required ln Californi;:i JS 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate subrnit,5 verifiable document.ition to lhe Boc1rd indic<Hing: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of Jpplication; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree f rom 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a vJlid license or regi stration 1n good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 yea,·s. 

Sincerely, _ 7 ' 1 1? 1 ~ - - - ~ --:7:-r-
-fl {..4.Ji..;M..L..:.:c.....;<,,__.,,_.Y_•c..._;f:.,,,,J__.(...,,J_,\'_, ..... ---_'-..;;(_=----- ----'---il_:U-L--..c.,?_"'1_..,:;a.:=-;;...._------

Pr inted Na~n t I Signature 

., 6) 11 _ Yl r<o ~~ C;~& ·/6 1r}I 1CcJ trs12r:;. 
Delle City State 7.ip Code 

t.C: Cal1/01t1i.l /\rchitC'cts Ooud, cab@rJc;i.o.gov P~panrnent cf Consumer All.r1rs Clff1c~ or th~ Go11(lrn,,r 
Sen J'vlik:; McGuiro,, $LJnJIOr.mcguir-,@,cn,u~.ca.sov !ien,1tor Jim N1el5en GovN11or Fdmund G !lro·,in Jr. 
l\5semblyma n Jim Woocl Ass~111bly,na11 Ja ,nc.;; GallJglwr 

mailto:i.t�n.Jlor.mc1Juire@,~m1t!!.c;q;ov
mailto:cab@rJca.ca.gov
https://propose.cl


--

Public Comment; Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to Increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Lan dscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change; though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these St<1tes have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California falls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for indlv)du,;1ls with varving degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities ilS crltical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

•· The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state llcensed Individual; regardless of education or experfence, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice,e~perlence t o be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already \icensed 

and by definitron are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary c.oncern of licensure, 

• In California a person may become a Ucensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assoclates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architectu(e along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person wlth a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related s\1bject matter, who is licensed In another siate by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work ex~rlence, is not eligible for tic ensure, 

• Nearly all states require experience for tnitial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basfs of examination and 
experience alone, Persons are ge11erally eligiblef or out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experlence 
prior 10 exan,inatlon. The current proposed regulation Will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginaHze many talented orofess!onals. 

• While Callforriia Architects and Civil Enelneers who are nor coileee educated or who have degrees ill related subjects may obtai!l 
their II censure, candidates for L,mdscape Arch!tec;ture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that lf we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are• not college cxlucated to be as qualified as those who are, tile same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinatlons 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed-a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years: or 

!Cl Candidate holds a va_lid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

~ 7 r{A. SCA,.i Cl lu.V~ 
Signature 

~&'Yr i.\, s.e CA: q-s-qC:,q 
Street Address {optional) Date City St ate Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.rncguire@.;enate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jin, Wood Assemi>lyrnan James Gallacher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am ah informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. Ther e are 
currently members of the public who at'e as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 

time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for l icensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right d irection, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context bee.a use these States have a 

multitude of paths to licensure not avr1llable in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure. 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step wlth standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical t o ensuring the public's health, S,i:!foty, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regul;;1tlon will requ1re any out•of•state licensed individual, regardless of ed.ucation or e~pc,rieuce, to obt~in an 
additional 10 years of pos1•lic:ensure practfce experience to be ernntcd California redproc11y. The5e individual, an• already licensed 

;ind by definition arc cotnpercnt anti capable of ensuring rhe health, $<lfety, and welfale of PL!bllc -the prim;,,y cor,cern of !lccnswe. 

In California a person may become a licensed Lapdsc.ipe Archl\ect If t hey have e~rn!!.d a 2 yeor Associat~s Oeg1e .. oi' Certificate in 
Landscape ArchilP.cture a long wilh proper work el<pefl!!nce and poss in.: the nat iorial E;.am. Currently a per,on with a 4 y!!~r 

Bachelor's Oi.gree, regardless of relnted subject matter, whP ls lice med in another st~tl! by h~vtng passed the same Exam and t1a11ing 

tl\e. same work P.~perience, is not eligible for IJcensurc. 

• Neatly all states require experience for inftlal litensure-and the m~iority of st.ates a llow llcer1sur~ on the basis of ~.<arnination nnd 
expei ience alont!. Persons are generally eligible for out of st.ate Ii censure upon demonstrating an average ot 8 years experience 

prior to e~amination. The current proposed reeulatinn wtll tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensur~ e)(perien,,. requirement for 

a l l)tal (average) ot 18 yeJrs nceded fol C;!li.lornia redprodty. Thi~ changr- will contl~ue to rnarginaliz\! rr,ilnV talentr d profcs>lonol~. 

While Calffornia Architects and CMI Engineers who are nol college educnted or who have degrees in rel2ted subJects mav obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Lat,dscape A, chitc,cture a re oat afforded that prlvilcge. ll seems clear t hat ii WP. deem our Architects 
apd Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallfied as those who are, th~ same ,hnuld hold lrtJc for Limdscap" Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. judsdict ion, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Califor nia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental E'xamination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses edlrcation and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

11 Sincerely, ,...-r. I . / I 
'..I 4S J rJ Jc-. /-./-r,.J g J/( t e: IL 

Street Addfess {optional) City Stale Zip Code 

CC: c,lifnmla Architects !loard, cJb@dca.c.a.gmr Department of Consumer Affafrs Office of the Govl!tnor 
Sen. Mlke McGu;re, senJtor.mcguire@s~naw.r.;l.gov Senator Jim Ni~lseo Governor t drnund G Bi own Jr. 
Assumhfym;inJim Wood As~cmblvman Jame~ Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regu latory Language Hearing Sept ember 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear l andscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to Increasingly rest rictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps In the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available In California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil E;ngineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilit ies as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose t he following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-slate licensed individual, regardless of education or expP.rience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be. granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already Ucensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, ancl welfare,of public - the primary concern of ficerisure. 

• In calliornla a person may become a Licensed l.2ndsc.ape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Land~cape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Oegree, regardless of related s_ubJect matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the Silrne Exam and having 
ttie same work experience, ls not ellgible for licemure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial l\censure·and the m3jority of states allow llcensure on the basis of C><amination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensurn upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-Ileen sure experience requirement for 
a total {average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This chang!! will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college edµcated or who ha,ve degrees i n related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded tha\ prlvllegii, lt$eems clear that lf we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. __ ..... ~ 

I request the following revised language to amend california Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be Implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who ls licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a w ritten examination s1,.1bstantlally equivalent in scope and subj ect matter required in California as 
det ennlned by the Board shall be eliglblefor licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(BJ Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
Z of the last 5 years: or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, - l i) · r l {) . /J /J _;/· ,1 
- 0 B "" e I e. D , \MJQB::\ "=rJ::.t,bvu..&.KA ~ .J\rv\.-!Ai, tJ ~ 

/ Signature 7::: 
- 0 fe_, - - l e__ · 5 /a9 

_Sl.Jtr.::..e_etLA_d_dL.re-ss~(::i.op_t..;iioL-'nl...al-) t:Fcll..,;l...--=:::...t__-L._-1.--Q~--'--{w'--Jl-:-=--'6o--ca...1...~......,,=--1-...t__'---''---'""--+-z~ 

CC: Callfornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca,go11 Senator Jfm Nielsen Governor Edmund G, Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim wood Assemblyman James Gall;ighor 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate,ca,go11
mailto:cab@dca.ca.go11


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del P;1so Road, Suite iO:S Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen w ho understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualiffed as their Cali fornia licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining Ii censure due to. existing exclusionary regulations. Al.so, due to Increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language cnange, though taking steps In the right direction, borr.ows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent Is out of context because these Stales have 2. 

multitude of paths to llcensure not available in California, California fails to recognize education outside of 
Lan dscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Lice11sure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinat ions of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with st<1ndards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensl.lring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

1 oppose the following inequit ies in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed rceulallon w)II require any out-of, stote llcc,,ied indlv,duat. regardlcs~ ol education or e~perienr.e, 10 obtain J f'l 

additions• 10 year'>of post-licensure ~ractice experience to be granted Calltorola recJprocl!v. 1hese Individuals are already licensed 
anti by definition are competent a11d capable of ensuring the health, ~~few, and w.-[tare of publir. - the primary r.o11cern uf licensurn. 

• In California a person may become a Li censed Lantlscap~ Archllect lf thev have earned a 2 year A,,oclates Decree or Certlf!Cilte In 
Land5cape Ard1itecture along with proper work e,perrence and pa~stng the national Exam. Currently a person with ~ 4 year 
llachelor·s Dc31ec, reBardless of related s11b)eCi matter, who Is f1cemed In ano,her state by having pa,selt the ,~me Exam and tinvlrig 
the 5'lme work experience, Is not eligible for !lcensur~. 

Nearly all >lijte, require experience for initial If censure and vie majority of 51at~ allow Ii censure on lhe basis of examination 11nd 
experience alone. Penonsare generally eligible for 01,t of sta\e ttcensure upori demonstrating an average of 8 year~ experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed rngulation WIii tack on an i!dditlonal 10 ycM post-Ileen sure experience requirement for 
ii total (average) of 18 years needed for California reclp.rocily. This change will continue 10 marstnali,e many talented professionals. 

• While CallfornlJl Architects.and Civil E11g1neer5 who are not college educated or w~o have degrees In relat<!:d sub1ects may obtain 
their ffcensure, candidates for Landsrape Architecture are not afforded IMt pr,vllege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
a,nd Engineers who are not college ellucated to be as q1111ILOeo as those who are, the same should ~old true. for landscape Arctiltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdlctfon, Can.idlan province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject maller required in California as 
determined by the Boafd shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board lndic.ating: 

IA) Candidate possesses education and exoerience equivalent to that required of California aoplkants at 
the time of application; or 
{B} Candidate holds a valld license or regist ration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or~offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid .license or registrat ion. In good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

C~l.c.c:,,, cP.. ~ li"\l.6 
Street Address toptional) Cit•( State Zip Code ""'"''Date "' 

CC: California Architect5 Boa rd, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consvmcr Affai, s, OfflC'e of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, sen.;tor,mceulre@se.nate ca,f!OV Se~ator lim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Mscrnblyrnan James Gallaener 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscl)pe Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language c;hange, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California falls to recognize education ou tside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared .by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulatlon will requfre any out, of-state licerued Individual, regardless of eduC'iltion or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-lic;emure practice experfence to be granted Californi~ reciprocity. These indivlduals are a'lready licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and weltare ol public - the primary concern ol llcenslJre. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect ff they have earned a 2 year A$sociates Degree or Certmcate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Current ly a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject marter, who Is licensed in another state by having passe(ithe same Exam and having 
the same work experienc;e, ls not elfgible for licensure, 

Neatly all states require experience for 1nitial Ii censure and the majority of states allow lici!nsure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state lice,isure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experienc;e 

prior to examfnation. The. current proposed regulatlon will tack on an additional 10 year posHicensure experience requTrement /or 
a total (average) of 18 years n-eeded for Calffornla reciprocity. This change will continue to margiriallze many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensu(e, candidates-for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for LandsC'ilpe Arc;hitects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in g.ood standing, and has been practicing or ottering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) City State 

CC; California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen G,ivernor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment : Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27
1 
2016 

California Architects Board 
l andscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualrfy for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposijd Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available ih California. Califor·nia fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and 1:ombinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Cal!fornia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibili1ies as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare, 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any 011t-of-5tate licensed individual, regardless of educat ion or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-Ii censure practice experience to be granted California redprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definit ion are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licen5ed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper wor~ experience and passing the natfonal E~am. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by havlng passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licen5ure. 

Nearly all st ate'S require eMperience for Initial Ii censure and the majority of states allow licensure on the bas]s of e~an\ination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of st ate Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulatlonwill tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure e;cperlence requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will conHnue to marginalize many talented profes51onals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subiect s may obtain 

their llcensure, Cilndldates for Landst>ape Architec:ture are not afforded that privilege. IL seems clear that if we deem our Architect s 

and Engineers who are not coll·ege educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be elfgible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's de.gree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or .registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

I o, °Etlt.C.. N 
Street Address (optional) State Zlp Code 

CC; Coliforn.ia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office or the Governor 
Sen. M ike McGuire, senator.mcgui re@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nlelsen Governor Edmund G, !lrown Jr. 
A;semblyrnan Jim Wood l\ssemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives, There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there. are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
mult itude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibiliti.es as critical to ensuring the publi.c's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of.state licensed individual, regardless of education or el(perience, to obtafn an 

addrtlonal 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprodty. These Tndivlduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of publfc- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Lani:Jscape Architect if they have c.arned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certifl'cate in 
Landscape Architecture along wlth proper work experience and passing the national Exam_ Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another sta te by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is nor eligible for licensure_ 

• Nearly all states require e~perience for initial llcensure and the majority of statesallow1icensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of stale licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation w ill tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for C,1lifornla reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurfsdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. I r,. _ 

Sincerely, ~~ QQ}ttV\tu~rhu 
Printed Name ~ S~ na~ vt l (~ l L (0 j\ ofr 

- -------------'-------16J-=-'0i. ~' l 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: Callfornfa Architects Board, <:ab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affafrs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire.S'enator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://responsibiliti.es


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive l)olicies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though takihg steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the follow ing inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulat ion will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are cornpetenL and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of Ii censure. 

In California a person may become a Ucensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper workexperiencf:c ;ind passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a~ year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligTble for llcensure. -

• Nearly all slates require experience for initi;il licen~ure and the majodty of states allow licensure on tt,e basis of examination and 

experience alone. Per~ons are generally eligible for out o f sta te licensure upon demonstrating an ilVerage of B years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an add1tlonal 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocit y. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educatecl or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qual ified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 261'5 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the Californfa Supplemental E><amination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, ~ 
Pr inted Name 

Street Address (optional) ate City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless or education or e><perience
1 
to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

• lo California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently .a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow I/censure on the basis ef elGlmination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a tot;il (average) of J8 years needed for california recfprocity. This change wnl continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While Dlllfornla Architect s and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who l1ave degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded thar privilege. It seerris clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college eoucated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid lic;ense or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of t he public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
frorn obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulat ions. Also, due to increasingly restrfctive policies, over 
time, t here are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licehsure pr,ictice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern or Ileen sure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with prQper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 yea, 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for Hcensure. 

Nearly :ill states require experience for initial liccnsure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will t ack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for california reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qua!ified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent m scope and subject matter required in Calitornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

9 
CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Ml~e McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Asser,,blyman Jim Woo(! Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 10S Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California Hcensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, t here are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with v;1rying degrees a nd combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

J oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These indiViduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, ;ind welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regard!ess of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by havinc passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licens\Jre. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensurc on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to ex.iminat ion. The current proposed tegulation will tack on an additional 10 year post,licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years· needed for California reciprocity. This change Will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

Whfle California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented ahd approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses educatioh and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
t he. time of application; or 
{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

Sincerely, 

C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee# 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of land.scape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exdusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed landscape Architects practicing w ho would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educatfon or experience, to obtain ao 

additional 10 years of post-licensure,practice experience to be granted Callfo'"la reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of llcensure. 

• ln <:alifornia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the nat.ional Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regartlless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will taclc on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 

a total (ave.rage) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many tall!l1ted professionals. 

While California Architects and CMI Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not affortled that privilege. I t seems dear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, ,rtle 16# 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate w ho is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation 'to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of applicationj or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practidng or offering professional sentfces for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

r~,..,-,,,,Si•gn-11--a,..,ture ~ S (/(/1/ 
State Zip Code 

CC: <:alifornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 De l Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There a re 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California lice nsed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining lice nsure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precede nt fro m New Yo rk and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both State s upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experi!!~ce. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civii Engineers who 
are e ntrusted with responsibilities as critical to e nsuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring tile tiealth, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure ahd the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginali2e many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege . . It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who an~ not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a wri tten exami nation substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Ca!ifornia as 
determined by t he Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifia ble documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of application; o r 
(B) Candidat e holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredite d institution, a nd has been practicing or offering professional services for at le ast 
2 of the last 5 years: or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike M cGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, t here are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right dlrectlon borrows 
1 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of pat hs to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed reg,ulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure,practlce experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience anc! passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related Stlbject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not ellglbfe. for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state If censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional lO year post-llcensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will rontinue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not rollege educated to be as qualified as those wt,o are, the same should hold tn.le for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Eleam I nations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

IA) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practldng or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer A~irs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Sincerely, 

Printed Na me 

tCt.J'1 9/~ / r r., i ll.9- . CAL . '15 L/3 le 
Date City State Zip Code 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

califomia Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their califomia licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to Ii censure not available in California. California falls. to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out•of-:.tate licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10years of post-licensure-practice experience to be granted Califomia reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In (alifomia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have eamed a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in anotherstate by having passed the same Exam and having 
the $lime woric: e)lperience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority or states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally el{gible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for callfornia reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While C.illfornia Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualffled as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I tequest the following revised language to amend Califomla Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent In scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating; 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
IC) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CC: californla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any ou.t-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

addftional 10 years of post-licensure-practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health. safety, and welfare or public-the primary concern of II censure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states reqllire experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
e><perience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experien~e 

prior to eKamlnation. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educ;ited or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that II we deern our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend <:alifornia Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the Californ'ia Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who Is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last S yearSi' or 

{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

1gnale q O<j 
City Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen, Mike McGuire, senator,mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagtier 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen wt,o understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed couhterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted w ith responsibilit ies as crftical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regul'ation will require any out-of-state licensed fndividual, regardl'ess of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional l0years of post-licensure practice e.xperience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another-sta te by having passed the same Exam and hav1ng 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial lice.nsure and the majority of states allow Ileen sure on the basis of examination anct 

experience alone. Persons are !lenerally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experie,.1ce 

prior to examination. The current proposed rei:ulation will lack on an additional 10 year post-I/censure experience requirement for 
a total (averageJ of 18 years needed for California reciprodty. This change w ill continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. tt seems clear that if we deem our Archltects 

and tngineers who are not. college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) 

CC: callfornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:Archltec.ts


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Heating September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definitfon are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed ln another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
lhe same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
\/'Jc..<, '-

Printed Na e 

J 4 b A Q<-xb-:<: S +- 45lfoc.., 
Street Address (opt ional) State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgu1re@senate.ca.gov Governor fdmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Date City 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgu1re@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


1

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language H~aring September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the publrc who are as qualified as their California licensed counterpa(ts that are being barred 
from obtaining !icensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increaslngly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
mult[tude of paths to If censure not available in Californla. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for indfviduals With varying degrees and combinations o.f experience, 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by CaHfornia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state license<) individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post·licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, The:,e individuals are already licensed 

and by dellnitlon are competent and capable of e.nsurlng the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a per5on may become a Licensed La11dscape Architect if they have earned a 2·year Associat es-Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exa111. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subJect matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, Is not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial !,censure and the majority of states allow licensure on tt,e basis of exam,nalion and 
e~perience alone. Pe, sons a, e ge11~r~lly· ttligibh: fm uul uf .sidle licensure upon demonstrating an average or 8 years experience 
prior to exaniinatlon. The wrren1 proposed regulation will tack on an additional lO ye~r posl-llcensure e~perience requirement for 

a total (average) ol 18 years needed lor California reciprocity. Thl5 change will continue to marginalize manv talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Ctvil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects niay obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. 1 seems clear that If we deeni our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallfled as those who are, the sanieshould hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required In California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicat ing: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience egu_ivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredit ed inst itution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, ~ l (' ~m 
1 

PrintedfJrt~ Y--

~0/ 
Street A<Jdress (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: Ca lifornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator,nicgulre@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department or Consumer Affafrs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
ASsemblyman James-Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edniund G, l!rown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technica l Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landsca pe Architecture in our daily lives. There a re 
currently members of t he public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure. today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed cha nge is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects a nd Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilit ies as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain aij 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experie11ce to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensurl.ng the. health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper war~ experience and passing the national Exam. Curre11tly a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same war~ e)(perience, is not ellgible for Ii censure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persoqs are generally eligible for out or state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architect~ and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape· Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

{l) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, o r Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written exami'nation substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Cal:fornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable docume ntation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized. accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.,gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.,gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
https://ensurl.ng


~ublic Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a n i'nformed citizen who unde rstands t he importance. of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. , here are 
current ly members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due t o existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, t here are current ly CA Licensed Landscape Architects .practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough t aking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multit ude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals wit h varying degrees and combinations of experience. · 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards share.d by California's Architects a nd Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilit ies as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, a nd welfa re. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed reg(Jlation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practjce experience to be granted California redprocity. These individuals are already lrcensed 

and l,y definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public.- the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along w itll proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow Ii censure on the basis of ·exarT1ination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally elieible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experl ence 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total {average) of 18 years needed for California recfprocfty. This thange will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

WhTie California Architects and CivU Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their !icensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem o ur Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinat ions 

(1) A candidate who ls licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Ca lifornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Suppleme ntal Examination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifia ble documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses educatton and experience equivale nt to t hat required of California applicants at 
the t ime of applicat ion; or 1 

{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 
c ~tgn1 ~ PO- P 11 .:tS3 I (o 

Street Address {optional) City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jitn wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York. and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public' s health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

addit ional 10 years of post -llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.go11 Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory l anguage change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multit ude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and havlng 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licens\Jre. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a l otal (average) of .18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginal ize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 f orm of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good s
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

tanding. and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, Q Yv\ 
Printed Name 

2--
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance-of landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language ls based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experien~e, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensur&practice experience to be granted ear,fornia reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable o.f ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they !lave earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter. who Is licensed in anotherstate by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of stare lkensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and CMI Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qitallfled as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 

provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid llcense or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practldng or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
As5emblyman Jim Wood 

Zip Code 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will requi re any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional lQ years of post-licen~ure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In Californi~ a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certifitate in 
Landscape Architecture along With proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam ;ind having 
the same war~ experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examjnatiQn and 

expe.rience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state iicensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Californla reciprocity. This change will continue. to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Englneers who are not college ec!ucated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Enginee~ who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 yea rs. 

Sincerely, 

0 ;I\ 
Street Address (optional) Date 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office ofthe Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senatot.nicgujre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown.Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 yea rs. 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Oear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as t heir California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licens1.1re due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposec! change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The. proposed regulaliori Will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted C;ilifornia reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of erisuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of Ileen sure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certif'lcate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, fegardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in anotherstate by having passed the same Exam and hav'ing 
the same work experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow Ii censure on the basis of examinatiqn and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

thefr licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Cahadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination sub:;tantic:1lly equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a re cognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining ficensure due to existing exdusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will requ'ire any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensurepractice experience t.o be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Ucensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certlficate in 

landscape Architecture afong with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for lfcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and uie majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Cillifornia reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While calitornla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects m ay obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend califomla Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the califomia Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
t he time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerel 

I (o Sign 

Street Address (optional) Date dty State Zip Code 

CC: Cillifornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Oepartment of Consumer Affairs Office of the Goverrior 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulat ory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Commit tee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrict ive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona., however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequit ies in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post.-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In Califomia a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same wor~ experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of- examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• Whfle California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the s-ame should hold true for Landscape Architect s. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidat e holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Printed Name b 
~ure~ 

//_53 ExeiZ&_R. ,ve 5?-1~-1? ~M?,( .! 
Street Address (optional) Date City State 

CQ California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of- Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 

currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
a;e entrusted w ith responsibl:ft1es as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

ac!ditional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, ls not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow lice!\sure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold. true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 

determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
/C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, f-1 e) ./:vi )(oc.hen cl-e ,,..-
Printed Name 

'J1![CIP5f /)rive,~ 
Street Address (optional) 

7 
aty State 

9.Ft/oy 
Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



.:ublic Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
1 ;indscaoe Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available In California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both St.ites upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure. 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state llcensed fndlvidual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already l!censed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of publ!c - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a oerson mav ber.ome a licensed Laodscaoe Archit ect if thev have earned a 2 vear Associates Oeeree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture.ilong with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, recardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, ts not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states reauire eKoerience for initial licensure and the ma[oritv ofstate.s allow licensureon the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for oul of state licensure upon demonstrating an .iverage of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed rei:ulat ion will tack on an additional 10 year post- licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize m~ny talented professionals. 

While California Architeas and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same st,ould hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible fot licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin and has been ract· in or offerin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. / 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) Date City 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov ;7 /,.gi~ment of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@sena1e.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
http:P_!;r:~;:...dL


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
cvrrently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Archite£ture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-sta~e licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensuie practice e,cperience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable Qf ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of putilic - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 ye.ar Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work.experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject rnauer, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same E.>Cam and liaving 
the same work experience, is not eligible for If censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating.an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocfty. This change will continue to marginalize. many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college edUc.iled or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear ihat if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Arcliitects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid li.cense or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

1'-lfoi 
Street Address (optional) Dale City State Zip Code 

CC: Califomia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nfelsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
Assemblyman Jfm Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://demonstrating.an


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Oel Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Aritona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths t o licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure pract,ice experience to be granted California redprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definltron are competent and capable of ensuring the health. safety, and welfare of public - the pfir'nary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with prope.r work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licemed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the-same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addition al 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of18 years needed for California redprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals, 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Lanoscape Architec~. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 11-, Lu I s~+-h 
pd?~ 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory l anguage Hearing Sept ember 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 

from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensute today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilit ies as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require a ny out-of-state licensed individual, regard less of education•or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years ofpost-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health,'safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of ltcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates- Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proP.er work experience and passing the.national E'xam. Currently a person wlth a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states requlre experience for initial licensure and the majorltv of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstr.iting an avera.ge of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-Ii censure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candtdates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college·educated to beas qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a w ritten examinat ion substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California. as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Boa.rd indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last ·s years; or 
(C) Candidate holds· a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Date ' City State Zip Code I 
CC: Ca!ifornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Aflair,5 Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jlm Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jlm Wood Assemblyman James G~llagher 

https://avera.ge


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though t aking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fa ils to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health,.safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-ot,state licensed individual, regardless of education or el(perience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-Ii censure pr.ictice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are. already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of lkensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
l;;indscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the.same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require eMperience for initial licensure and the majority o f states allow licensure on the basis of examinatio~ and 
experiencee;Jlone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrat1ng an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wrll tack on an additional 10 year post-Hcensure experience requirement for 

a total {average) of 18 years needed for Callfornia reciprocfty. This change will continue to marginali~e many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil- Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtaln 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that ,privilege. It Seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engine en who are not college educated to be as .qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the follow'ing revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect 's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the. time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration ih good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Dae 

CC: California Architect.s Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mi~e McGuire, senator.mcguire@senaie.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblymari fames Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architect s practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience, 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation wrll require any out-of-slate licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, arid 11/elfare of public- the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In Callfo rnia a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect 1f they have earned a 2 year Associat es Degree or Certificat e in 

~ndscape Architecture along with proper work e~perience arid passing the national Exam, Currently a person with a '1 year 

Bachelor's Degree, re11ardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another stat e by having passed the same E~am and having 
the same work experfence, Is not eilgible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for lnitfal llcensure and \he majority of states allow licensure on the basis of el<arr,ination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eliglble for out of sta\e licensvre upon demonstrating an average of 8 years expedence 

prior to el(amination. The current proposed regulation w ill tack on an additional W year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change wlll continue to margfnalize many talented professfonals. 

While California Archfteets and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or w ho have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or -offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 'signature -........:..::: 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen, M ike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department or Consumer Affairs 

Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 

Governor Edmund G. Browo Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Def Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking $teps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees -and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional l0 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person rnay become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earoed a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person w ith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in anotf1er state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same wofk experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Ne.arly all States require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination ond 

experience alone. Persons are generally eliglble for out of state If censure upon demonstrating an average .of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tacl( on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will conlinueto marglrialize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated er who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 261S be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
Z of the last 5 years; or 

{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in .good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

s;ocerely, ~ -{ /_;c fJ:zvZ J'J? / •/"l.A.L-1 • ~ 1 
Pr nted Name Signature 

Street Address (optional) Date City St;He Zip Code 

CC: Califomiil Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Se,n. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblym~n Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen w ho understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly rest rictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory l anguage change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educat ion or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure pract ice exper ience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring ihe health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of Ii censure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out o f state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 yearpost-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Englneers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of california applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institut ion, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of t he last 5 years; or 

Sincerely, 

racticin or offerin 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. M1ke McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Lahdscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. california fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibil it ies as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educat ion or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree o r Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work ei<perience and passiog the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matt er, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Init ial licensure and the majority of states.allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regula tion will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure ei<perience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California rec.iprocity. This change will continue to rnarginallze many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It St;!ems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, tt)('e..S-\' 
Printed Name Signature 

~ o. .... -1-1\ ~OS"'- cA--
Street Address (optional} Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Arch1tects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



.

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crit ical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In Callfornia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for Ii censure . 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request t.he following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or , 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a1Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or / 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has be'en practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Date 

,, 
Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affa irs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del l>aso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exdusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for ficensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensurepractlce experience robe granted California reciprocity. These individuals are alreadv licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person mav become a Licensed landscape Architect If thev have earned a 2 vear Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial lfcensure and the majority of stales allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
eicperience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an avernge of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will rack on an additional 10 year posr-llcensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who ls licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination sub~antially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standi
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

ng, and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

i s-r I 11~ U (."" i \) 
Street Address 

0 
(optlonal) 

0 

Date State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed cit izen who understands the ~mportance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
current ly members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though ta.king steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• ihe proposed regulation will require a.riv out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experfence to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensurlng the heal th, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern ofllcensure. 

• In Californla a person may bec9me a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate rn 
Landscape Architecture olong with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person w ith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subJect matter. who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states requlre experience for initial licel'ISure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

eJ<perience alone. Persons are generally eltgible for out of state licensllre upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examfnation, The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in re.lated subjects may obtatn 

their licensure, candidates. for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems cle·ar that if we deem our Architects 
and Eng'ineers- who are riot college educated to be as qualified as those who• are, the same should hold true lo'r Lane!scapeArchitects. 

l request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

·33q Cforr1 J lo ~.J- q/Jd./Ji, 
1 

Street Address (Optional) 6ate City I State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affair, Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire. senator.mcguire.@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Oel Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of t he public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to-existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are current ly CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee' s proposed Regulatory language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-.of-state licensed individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individual~ are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable or ens-uring the health, safety, and welfare or public - the primary concern of l jcensure, 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Archlrecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Current ly a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states requl re experience for1nitial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of sta te llcensule 4pon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licenswe experience requirement for 
ii total (average) or 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to margfnalize many talented professfonals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated er who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examinat ion 
provided that the candidate submit s verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
fB) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Bo~rd, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying de~rees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-Ii censure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and weir are of public - the primary concern of Ii censure. 

In california a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certfficate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national E.xam, Currently 3 person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state. by having passed the s.ame Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

Nearly all states require experience for inltial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally elfgible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 year5 experience 

prior lo examinatlon. The current proposed regulation will tac~ on an additional 1-0 year post-Ii censure experience requirement for 
a total {average) ol 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change w ill continue to marginali(e m<1ny talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtarn 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems Clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those w/lo are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Boa,d: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has be.en practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, -
-.j /.\Kt 
Printed Name Signature 

Street Address {optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire·, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the. Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of pat hs to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as cr itical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or e~perlence, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These indiv[duals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regard less of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the.same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professlonals. 

• While California Arch itects arid Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should t,old true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been pract icing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dc.a.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language. change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also cut of step with standards shared l::y California's Architects and C:vil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. ihe current: proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (avera.ge) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity, This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates tor landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
e, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
 Wood 

Sen. Mike McGuir
Assemblyman Jim

Department of Consumer Affairs Offke of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
https://avera.ge


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are current ly CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to l icensure not availaple in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any ou t-of-state lrcensed indivldual, regardless of education ore~perience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-lite}1Sure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These indlviduals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In Callfornia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate Tn 
landscape Architecture along w ith proper work experience and passing the natfonal Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of rela ted subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for liceosure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial Hcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
e~perience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ileen sure upon demonstrating an average o f 8 years experienm 

prior to examinat ion. The current proposed regulat ion will tack on an additional 10 year post-licemure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

Wh,le California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtafn 

thejr llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear tha t ff we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated t-o be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

S1ncerely, 

rofessional services for at least 6 of the last 10 ears. 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtalnlng licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
,1ddition;il 10 years of post-licensure practice experience lo be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring lhe health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of Ii censure. 

In California a per~on may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assocfates Degree or Certfficate in 

landscape. Architecture along with proper work experience and passihg the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of relat ed subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible forlicensure. 

Nearly <1II states require experience for initial licensure and the majorl ty of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of sta te Ir censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experjence 

prior to ex-amination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post -lice.nsure e)Cperience requirement for 

a tot~I (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. Tliis change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or w ho have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape. Arch1tecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we.deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter re.quired in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, pos_sesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last S years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, 

S4. { 0..... 
Zip Code 

rofessional services for at least 6 of the last 10 ears. 

tCV(Q 
Printeci,Name ,,,,. ... ,.,_ .... 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
senator Jin, Nielsen 
AssemblymanJame5 Gallagher 

Ol~lft>°l 
CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Office or the Governor 

Sen. Mike, McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:sena1or.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educat1on or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure praot ice e~perience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already Hcensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of Ii censure. 

In California a person may become ;i Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along wl th proper work experience and passing the nal(onal Exam. Currently a person Witt\ c1 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is nol eligible for ticensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for inillal licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience atone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addltional 10 year post-licens1Jre experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This ch.inge w ill continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• Whtie California Ar,hltects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Archttecture are not afforded that privllege. It seems dear that ii w e deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the ·same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to. the Boa.rd indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good st
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

anding, and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgufre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G_ Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to Increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any oLlt•of-.state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-ilcen~ure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, Tnese individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licerisure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape. Architect if they have earned a 7. year Assocfate.s Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national [xam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work e~perience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority at st.ites allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensute llpofl demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examinatro ... Th" current proposed regulallon will tack on an additional 10 year post-Ii censure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 year5" needed for C;,iliforoia reciprocity. This change w111 continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Arthltects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subJects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems t;lear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers wlio are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape.Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years: or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Printed Name Signature 

_______ l\ l ""-==-_ fu mM~A: __ OA vl~ _._1~I ?Q 1 _\o_______.-'--"-"~ _ ~ , __ V:>~ 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mlke McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affair5" 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office or the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca,gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regu latory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento., CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of c;:ontext because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects ahd Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post,licensure practlce experience to be granted Calffornia reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by defini tion are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Archltecture along wit!, proper work experience and passfng the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter. who is licensed In another state by having pas~ed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all stal e!> reqvire experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow lltensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state If censure upon demonstrating ari <Jverage of 8 years experfe.nce 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocit y. This change will continue to margi1Ja1i~e many talented professionals. 

Whne California ArchHects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their If censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that prlvllege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same Should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinat ions 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a wtitten e><amination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicat ing: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of t he last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

l}//~/J lR CA q 'f '5?:J" 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Offfce of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmond G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations_ Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-o f-state licensed indfvldual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

addit ional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These indiv1dualsare already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Cenificate In 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the nat tonal Exam. Currently a person w ith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subfect matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority ot states allow licensure on the basis of examinat ion and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eHgible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addil(onal 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of l 8 years needed for California reciprodi:v, This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While Callfomla Archltec~ and Civil Engineers Who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obta1n 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privi lege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold tr ue for l andscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination subst antially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits ver ifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services 

Pr inted Name 

for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office o f the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguife@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor fdmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent Is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation w ill require any out-of-state lfcensed individual, regardless of education or experience·, to obtain an 

.additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by <;lefinition .,re competent and capable of ensuring the health, safely, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure, 

• In California a person may be~ome a licemed Landscape Architect if they have.earned a 2 year Assocfates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly-all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will tack 011 an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a tol'al (average) of 18 years needed for California retiprocily. This change WIii continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in re)atecl-subjects may obtain 
their licel'\sure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. tt seems clear that if w e deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate. submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good st
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

anding, and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) Date City State 

CC. California Architect$' Board, cab@dca.ca,gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, ser,ator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jfm Nfelsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licehsed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California . California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shar'?d .by C;iliforni<1's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definit ion are competent .and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, ls not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis. of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not coilege educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examinatioh 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) 

2-.. 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator .mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entn,.1stec;l with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education o r experience, to obtain an 

-additional 10 years of post -licensure practice experience to be grant ed Cali fornia recfprocity, These individuals are already licensed 

and by definitfon are competent and capable o f ensuring the health, safety, and welfa re of publ'ic- the primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Arch itect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Cert ificate in 

Landscape Archit ecture alo ng with proper work experience and pa·ssing the r:iatfonal Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachel or's Degree, regardless of relat ed subject matter, who is licensed in another st ate by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work ~perience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly .all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow II censure on the basis of ex-amination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state II censure upon demo nstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior t o examinatlon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addit ional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocit y. T his change w ill cont in1,1e to marginalize many t alented professionals, 

While California Archftects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who tiave deg,ees in related subjects may obt ain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Arch itecture are not afford ed that prlv1Iege. It seems clear that i f we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in california as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentatlon to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Dat e City Stat e Zip Code 

~11r,(tt 
CC: California Arcl1itects Board, cab @dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike M cGuire, senato r.mcgufre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgufre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 
• r 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in•ou r,dally lives: ThMe arJ 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparfstth;t 'are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive. policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals wit h varying degrees and combinat ions of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These indivlduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is n.ot eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addit ional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocfty. Thls change will con ti hue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Archit.ects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to t he Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
t he t ime of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood sta 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
l --=:.D 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mlke McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilit ies as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain ari 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be.granted CaHfornia reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of rtcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regard less of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average} of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees iri related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jur isdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional setvices for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or , , l 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing1 and has been practicing or .offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name S)gnature 

n .. } 5cww.-.. Aw. 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jjm Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless o f education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

el(perience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

priorto examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or \ 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood stan 

Sincerely, a,// Nu rm 
k Signature Pri;1zm8(;YUWlu / f11,4,ll(j( 

~4¼L~ - I~, C/i 
Street Address (optional) Date Oty Zip Code 

CC; California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

addrtional 10 years of post-licensure pract ice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

priot to examihation. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from . ' a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature 

r2..uh,w 1- Po.rit- CA 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

http:v\-Po.rj


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or eMperience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure pract ice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and w elfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all slates require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states- allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience a!one. Per$om Me generally eligible for out of state lic:ensure upon demonst rating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for·at least_ 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, G ii BC e CA \3. L 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

Printed Name Signature 

3&3 C.A j~fstlf~ q l11-1Ub 5 err/a fro s o Ce 15 £/DI 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer A Hairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical c;ommittee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands t he importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee' s proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibi lities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of educa tion or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and we.lfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed l andscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national E.xam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at I · 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degteef rom! 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services foraf least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering • ~ 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
-:j. 

., ·\C ,\ 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jlm Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road1 Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of educ.ition or experience, to obtain an 

addit ional 10 year.s of post-Ii censure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definit ion are competent 'ilnd capable or ensuring the health. safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Oegree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Current ly a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another s tate by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eHgible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow ltcensure on the ba.sis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of sta te If censure upon demonst rating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a tot~I (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will cont inue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• White California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees fn related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architect.s 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalP 1t in scope and subject matter required in California as 

cie'ceiin·meci by the i3oarci snaii oe eligibli? for li1:eflsure upr >assing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants. at 

the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years: or _ ~ 
(C) candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or•offenflg 

professional services for at least 6 o f the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
I~ TJ.-JLEe.t\J ""' · cur LE:.'/ 
Printed Name 

5 o G ILC.1-1/c-l.!:;7 l~M l) C/ II I(, 

Street Address (optional) ate City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. l;!rown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
http:applicants.at


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there. are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequit ies in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

addlt lonal 10 years of post-Ii censure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Indi viduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the prfmary concern of 11censure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certiflcate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person wjlh a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another stale by having passed the .same Exam and having 
the same \vork experience, is not elrgible for lrcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for inftial licensure and the majority of .states.allow II censure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of sta te Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wltt tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experlence requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to ma,ginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded l ~at privilege. It s.eems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not cottege educated to be as qualified as those who are, \he same should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the follow ing revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Sect ion 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of t he last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board. cab@dca.ca.gov 
Se.n. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senale.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senale.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulatlon will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern ol licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate fn 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not elig)ble for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experien&e alone, Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years exp@ri@nc.@ 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to margl nalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicahts at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good st anding, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or I ~ Jr:. 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Pri~ted NamiJ J & ± rt /OJL ( 1At1-t /JD . 
Strei:t Addr~ s (optlonal) 

CC: Ca li fornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affa irs Office of the Governor 
Sen, Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



ood standin 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtaln an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern oflicensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 y@ars experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wl/1 tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) or 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers Who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited inst itution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

to 
Street Address (optional) Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language ls based allow Li censure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of~state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additfonal 10 years of post-licensure practice experience lo be granted Californfa reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definitron are competent and capable. of ensuring the health, 5afety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licens:ure. 

In California a person may become a Ucensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experfence and passing the nat ional Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is-licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for in(t1al licensurn and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation Will tack on an additional 10 year p.ost-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue lo marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

artd Engineers who are not college educated to be-as qualified as those who are, lhe same should hold t rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable. documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or I 
.J (C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 1 

Sincerely, 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mGguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assernblyman Jlrn Wood 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining Ii censure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed l andscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation wlll require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Archltecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's De&ree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensur-e on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon oemonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprodty. This change writ conrinue ro marginillize many talented professionals, 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

thejr licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written e><amination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants.atL 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or .J -, 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering.: • ~ 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senato,r.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr_ 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:applicants.at


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory l anguage Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precede.nt from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation Will require any out-of-slate licensed indivfdual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

addttional 10 years of po6t-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals ¥e already licensed 

and by definition are competent and eppable of ensudng the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject rmller, who is licensed 1n another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require e)Cperience for initial licensure and the majority o( states allow Ii censure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 year~ experience. 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure. experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity, This change will continue to marginalize mariy talented professionals. 

While California Architect~ and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ileen sure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services .for at least 

,.... ... 
2 of the last 5 years; or , 
( C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmuod G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://precede.nt


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Archftects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 

from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Ar izona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

l,pndscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who, 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regularion will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These lndlviduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of Ii censure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or tertlficate in 
landscape Architecture along wit(l proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by !laving passed the same Exam and having 
the same worlt experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state II censure upon demonstrating art average of 8 years e~perience 

prior to examinat ion. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals, 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecturl! are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated lo be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 

provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application: or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, ·and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signatu/e 

~87C, OQ'; t D FA)):t.\L, IC~ q- ,;;;-1(,p S[;-(!)1]3,-0?UL Cf ) 7c;1:z2 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.e<1.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jfm Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out -of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definit ion are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for init ial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis o f examinat ion and 

experiente alone. Persons are generally eligible for out ofstate licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their Ileen sure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the ~ame should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional serviceslor at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or .... ' 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering. 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) Date Sr<1te 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.go11 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgu1re@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA l icensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Californi;i reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become <1 Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along With proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states requi re experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginal'ize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated lo be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or ~ -
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or off~ring1. _\ ,I 

, ... 
prnfe,;s;onal serukes to, ,rt least 6 of the last 10 yea cs. ~ , '/. " 

Slnmely, P-e_l-ec u C ["I t-e-e u tJ/rjJ;; ": , ·Hi.~;, _ 
_ Pr_i~-d ;_am r.R___._".\_4 __ (~l--'---Lff u -=--- _.:.'lf_i_ _ _C/'(~ =--...,_~__,_CZ'_¼"-,/-h--"--1.'-- 1/.(/--· _JJ....L./-'--=-- t __ <:;___;;_~.1.......:n~"-'-'~"--J----'- · r~ • ,r _ _.;.. l..-Z._ 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jrm Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
http:P-e_\.er


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands t he importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for- licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obl.Jlin an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in a11other state by havlng passed the same Exam and having 
t he same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experiehce for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow /!censure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to exami11ation. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure el<perience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize n,any talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated pr who have degrees fn related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Tit le 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of t he last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or r-egistration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature 
v1 r t1 t ,.c,, (L, h. ,-'-( p (,A,{'/,..., 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.m~guire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
AssernblymanJim Wood Assemblyman Jarnes Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landsca,pe Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee' s proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognite educat ion outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare .. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-stale licensed individual, regardless of education or e~perience, lo obtain an 

addltional 10 years of post -licensure pract ice experience lo be granted Californ1a reciprocity. These in(1ividuals are already lfcensed 
and by definition are competent ~nd Capable of ensuring the heallh, safety. and welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

In Calffornia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person 1.Vith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is lfcensed in ano ther state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, ls not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Init ial licensure and the majority o f states allow Ii censure on the basis of examinat ion and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for our of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (averi,ge) of 18 years needed for Californ)a reC?iprocrty, This change will continue to marginalize rriany talented professionals. 

While C'a lifomla Architects and Civfl Engineers Who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subfects may obtain 

their Jicer,sure, candidates for Landscape Architecture ar e not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, tQ/ {.{)ff) ,A}i vJ · /JS &wuphullv 
Printed Nam~ , / J., 

/301 JLul/1 J~ nJ/ IS l)? ~/;2'/!& Ea'sevlll& er+ 1 Street Address (optional) Zip Code 

CC C.-lifornia Archi tects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office or the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
A5semblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman Jarries Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 3:13 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing Septern·ber 27, 2016 

Please add to spreadsheet 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 

(916) 575-7285 Fax 

www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the servke you received using our Customer Service 
Survey Thank you 

From: Todd Peddicord [mailto:toddpeddicord@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 21, 2016 11:20 AM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: CAB@DCA; Dca@DCA; senator.nielsen@senate.ca .gov; Assemblymember. Gallagher@assembly.ca .gov; 
senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov; assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov; Shawn Rohrbacker 
Subject: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Attn: Kourtney Nation 
California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
latc@dca.ca.gov 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 
I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining licensure 
due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over t ime, there are currently CA Licensed 
Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent from New 
York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available 
in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the 
proposed language is based allow Licensure 

mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
mailto:wood@assembly.ca
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:mailto:toddpeddicord@hotmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


for individuals with varying. degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards sha.red by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are ent rusted with 
responsibi lit ies as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 
• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an additional 10 years ofpost-

licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of 

ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a llcensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certrncate in l andscape Architecture 

along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject 

matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work ,experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for init ial llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basts of examination and experience 

alone, Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to examfnation. The current 

proposed regulation will tack on an additfonal 10 year post•licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California 

reciprocity. Thls change· will continue to marginalfze many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain their llcensure, 

candidates for Landscape Architect ure are not afforded that priv1Iege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college 

educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same siiould hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a 
written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as determined by t he Board shall be 
eligible for licensure upon passing t he Cali fornia Supplemental Examination 

provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 
(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license. or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degre e from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

IC) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
Todd Peddicord 

1025 Folsom Ranch Drive, #301 
Folsom, CA 95630 

TODD PEDDICORD DESIGNS 
916.996 7641 
www.toddpeddicord.com 

2 

http:www.toddpeddicord.com


From: Scott Hayes [mai1to:shayes236@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 21, 2016 3:32 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: CAB@DCA; Dca@DCA; senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov; Assemblymember.Gallaqher@assembly.ca.goy; 
senator.mcguire@ser:iate.ca .. qov; assembfymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov; Shawn Rohrbacker 
Subject: Testing for l.icensure - Landscape Architects 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Attn: Kourtney Nation 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Techn ical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

latc@dca.ca.gov 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

J am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining licensure due 
to existing exclusionary regulations. AJso, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are currently CA Ucensed 
Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today: 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent from New 
York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a tnultitude of paths to licensure not available in 
California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed 
language is based allow Licensure 

for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted with 
responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public' s health, safety. and welfare. 

J oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• 171c proposed regulation will require any out-of-slate licensed individual. regardless of education or cxp1:rknce, tu obtain an additional IO years of pos t;licensure 
practice e~pcricncc to, be granted California redprodty. These individuals are already licensed and by definition arc competent and capable of ensuring the health. 
safety, and welfare of public-the primury concern ofliccnsurc. 

• In California u person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have cnmcd a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture 
along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless uf related subject matter, who is 
licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having the Same wbrk cxperience1 is not eligible lb r liccnsurc. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial liccnsu1e and the majorily of states allow Ii censure on the basis of examination and experience alone. Persons arc 
generally eligible for out of state liccnsure upon demonstraling an average ·of 8 years experience prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will tack on an 
ndditional. to year post-Ii censure experience requirement for a total (average) of I 8 years needed for California reciprocity, This change will continue to mnrginaliic 
many talented professionals. 

2 

mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
mailto:assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.mcquire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:mailto:shayes236@gmail.com


• While California Archi1cc1s and Civil l;ngirtecrs who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtuin lheir liccnsure, candidates for 
Landscape Architecture are not afforded U1111 privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who arc nut college, educated to be as qual ified as 
those who are, the same should hold true for LandscaJle A.rchitccts. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(I) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a 
written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Cal ifornia as determined by the Board shall be 
eJigible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 

provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience eguivalent to that reguired of CaHfomia applicants at 

the time of application: or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last S years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

professionaJ services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Scott Hayes 

1400 Egbert Ave. 

Saa Francisco, CA 94124 

Scott R. Hayes, M LA 
530.520.7514 
sha:yes23 6@gmai I .com 

3 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citiz.en who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regu)ations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 

time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these Stales have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize educat ion 01.Jtside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Llcensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as c:ritical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and wel fare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

Tile proposed regulallon wlll reqlllre any out-ot•stilte licensed lnd,vldual, regardless of educatlnn or e~µerience, to obta,n an 
additional 10 yeMs or post-licensure practrci: experience to be gran ted California reclproclt-1. These Individuals are a lready llcensPd 

and b\' deflntlion .:,re competent and r.pable of e,i,u,tng the health, saftlty, ;ind wel(,1re or p11bllc-1he primary concer11 off,censure. 
In California a person may become a Llcemcd Land5capc Arctlltcct If they hnve earned a 2 ~ear Assat;latcs Degree or Ccrtrflca\C' lo 
Land,c.ipe Archlteuure along with proper work expenence and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardlP,s of related subject maner, who Is licensed In another state by hov,ng passed the same Exam and having 
the .same work expcrtenc!!, Is not elieible for licensure. 
Nearly all Slates require experlcnce for Initial licensore and the m~jority of 'It ates all9w licen~ure on the basil of examination ann 
experience alo11e. Pcrso,1s are gencr~lly eligible far out of state lie ensure unon demonstrating an average at 8 years exper,tnte 
prior to e,aminatlon. The current proposed regvl~ti(HI will t~ck on an ddc!ltional 10 year post-licenwre e~p~rlence reoulrernent for 
a tot.ll (average} of l 8 yea~ needed forCallforn,a reclprcclty. This change will co11t tnue tu marginalize many t, lented professionals, 

While California Architect, and Civil Engineers who are not college educ;itcd or who have dewees In related subjects •n~v obtam 
their llcensure, candidate, for Laridscape Archi!ectw e Me not afforded that priVilege. Ir seems rlear that If 1,e deem ou.r Ardiitects 
and !'.ngmeers who .re not college educated to be as quahfie.tl as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape /\rchltect~. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be imJjlemented and approved by the California Architect's Board; 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
( 1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equfvalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a. valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years, 

Street Addres~ (optional} City Stale Z,p Code 

CC: Califorrla Architem Board, cab@dc;i.'3.£0v Dei;artment of Consumer At!d,rs Office of the Governor 
S~n. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguirc@senate.ca.go11 Senaror Jim Nl<?hen Governor Fdmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jrm Wood Ass~mbly!Jlan James Gallagher 

http:citiz.en
https://quahfie.tl


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 3:13 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: P-roposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please add to spreadsheet 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del P-aso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Ma.in Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.lat c.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 

we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey, Thank you 

From: Michael Cook [mailto:MCook@riverpartners.org] 
Sent: Thursday, September 22, 2016 10:39 AM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA; LATC@DCA 
Cc: 'shawn@meltondg.com'; CAB@DCA; Dca@DCA; senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov; 
Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov; senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov; 
assemblymember. wood@assembly.ca .gov 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language. Hearing September 27, 2016 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Attn: Kourtney Nation 
California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
latc@dca.ca.gov 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importanc•e of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining llcensute 
due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are currently CA Licensed 
Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent from New 
York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available 

1 

mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
mailto:wood@assembly.ca
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:shawn@meltondg.com
mailto:mailto:MCook@riverpartners.org
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


in California. California fails to recognize education outside· of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the 
proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted with 
responsibilit ies as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state lfcensed indiv1dual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an additional lQ years of post· 
licensur.e practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These ind ividuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of 
ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of Ii censure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Oegree or Certificate in Landscape Archltecture 
along with proper work experfence and passln_g the national Exam. Currently a person w ith a 4 year Bachelor' s Degree, regardless of related subject 
matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licens.ure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and experience 

alone, persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an averag.e of 8 years experience. prior 10 examination, The current 
proposed regulatfon will tack on an additional l O year post-llcensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California 
reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in relate ct subjects may obtain their Ileen sure, 

candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems cl.ear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college. 
edµcated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request -the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Boa.rd: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect 1n a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a 
written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required In California as determined by the Board shall be 
eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standin_g, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

4;1/d/ 
Michael Cook, MLA 
148 West 3rd Avenue 
Chico, CA 95926 

CC: 
Cal ifornia .Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Department of Consumer Affairs, dca@dca.ca.gov 
Senator Jim Nielsen, senator.n1elsen@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman James Gallagher, Assemblymember.Galiagher@assembly.ca.gov 
Senator Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood, assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov 
Office of the Governor, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

2 

mailto:assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.g:ov
mailto:senator.nlelsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:dca@dca.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licenseq counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to rec-0gni2e education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted w ith responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educat ion or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Californi.i reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• in California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assocfates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all sta.tes require experience for initial ficensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-iicensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is !icer.secl as a landseape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application: or 
{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, R b -.-- Q '- "'[ 
o ey I ~AH' (.7 ' '\ 

Printed Name , 
Sign:w f/ 

~tf(;, Sc-lwol Sr. ~ -/l;z - /b wa~ re ~ qs=t;90 
Street Address (optional} Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim NTelsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Archrtecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape. Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however tnis precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change Is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The. proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educalion or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experlence to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licens1Jre. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless or related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same l:xam and having 
the same work experience, is not eliglble for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of ex;1mtnation and 
experience alone, Persons are Benerally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California redprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• Wtiile California Architects and Civil Erigi11eers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 111ay obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege... It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering'professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

3sl 
Date 

(!,,/ f s.--z/O/ 
Street Address (opt ional) State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Alfairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senalor.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing excJusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibi lities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation wfll require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post -llcensure practice experience to be granted California rec1procity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable or ensuring the health, safety, and welfare or public - the primary concern of Ii censure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 ye.ir Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along wllh proper work experience and p;issing the national Exam. Currently a person with a II year 

.Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same EKan, and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial lkensure and the majority of states allow llcensure. on the basis or examinatro11 and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure Upon demonstrating an average of 8 years eitperience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an -addft ional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (averatie) of 18 years needed for California reciprocit y. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

whne. California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landstape Arc-hitects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape arch itect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

I Sincerely, 
l./.Ll?ri... ·/-v, l{ I U,✓ / b- ~ 

Printed Name ,'/ SI f t/ --:::-_.. I //A ~ .. -- z,;,/ ~/ 
--~~~c....,_ _ _._=.L.-'..L....,=~~~'-------~c...=-+-.L...L--',rc_----~-------~~- ·/(".1' 

Street Address (optional) State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs bffice of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



State Zip Code 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as the.ir California licensed counterparts that are being barred 

from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architect s practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize educat ion outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, 10 obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of ltcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Curre-ntly a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same EJCam and having 
the same work exj)erlence, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state II censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to morginallze many tolented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obta fn 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded thar privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the s-ame should hold true for Landscape Architec:ts. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate w ho is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the. Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
t he time of applicat ion; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, Got 
Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate,ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://senator.mcguire@senate,ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an i nformed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 year5 of post-licensure practice experience. to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In C;i lifornia a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing1he national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for II censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow If censure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to e,camination. The current 1-'•oposed regula l lon will lac~ on an additional 10 year posHicensure experience requirement for 

a total (averaee) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professlonals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It. seems dear that if we deem our Architect5 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering profe.ssional services for at least 
2 of t he last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Sincerely, 

✓ 

Department ol Consumer Affairs omce of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen w ho understands the importance of l andscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California l icensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, t here are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibil ities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regard less of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed l andscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor'5 Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for licenswe, 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wl ll tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Land5cape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified .is those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgu1re@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing Septernber 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years-of post-licensure practice experience to be grant ed California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject. matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same E~am and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of siat~ allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstratlng an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-iicensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California A(chitects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related sub/ects may obtain 

their Ii censure, cand idates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicat ing: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application: or 

(B} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature 
e, , 2.. 'f fl 1+ i I r 11.. ~11-t. 5' _,.y1'''1. ~ '"" '1Sf./oY 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fa ils to recognize educatlon outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The .proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civ11 Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional l0years of post-l jcensure practice experience 10 be granted Californla reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable or ensuring the healtli, safety, and welfare or public -the primary concern of lkensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certmcate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person wi th a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, ls not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority or states allow licensure on t!ie basis of eJCamination anct 

experience alone. Persons are generally eliglble for out of state licensure upon demonstratfng an average. of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience reguirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdlctioh, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to t he Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, -r I \ 
'--' t'.tl Vt -e. e. 

City State 

q9-1:o; 
Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. M ike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technkal Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regu lotion will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California recfproclty. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensurfng the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of llcerisure. 

• In California a perso,i may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assodates Degree or Certificate 1n 
Landscape Architecture along wllh proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person wfth a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in ·another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on 'the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally ·eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years expedence 

prior to examination. The cUFrent proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure eleperience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change Will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

Whlle California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if w e deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the s,>me st,ould hold true for l andscape Archrtects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(l) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been p~acticing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood stand in or offerin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature 

Street Address (optional) Date City State 'Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as t heir California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out -of-state licensed individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health. safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow lie.ensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are. generally eligible for out of state lie.ensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack. on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change. will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
7?xtrfr1,iA J... D ,'on 
Printed Name Signature 

14, IVJC.J'ie.o.r- '2>,,-- ~ "' J?c:fueJ CA 91:961 
Street Address (optional) City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affair~ Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California lfcensed counterparts that are being barred 
f rom obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed char.ge is also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil Engineers who 

are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public' s health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California rec;iprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the heallh, safety, and welfare o f public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Ex.am. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject maner, who i} llcensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for ini tial Ucensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qua lined as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect' s Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a written examinat ion substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentat ion to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 

the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

City 

Printed Name 

irt/lC? 
Street Address (optional) Date 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Afrairs Office of lhe Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gQv Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jfm Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regu latory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Land$cape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen w ho understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining lice.nsure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for lic;ensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Ari.zona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture; however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcenwre practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring lhe health, safety, and welfare of public -the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or CC!rtificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with pr9per work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same wor~ experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experien~e for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the bosis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstratfng an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The currenr proposed regulat)on will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
ii total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginaliie many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture <1re not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that lfwe deem our ArchTtects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who ore, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16. 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who Is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for lic:ensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
Z of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) V Dat City State 

CC: California Architects Soard, cab@dca.ca.gov ft / .f-- Di=.nt of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mlke McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.c;i.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyrnon James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramehto, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of landscape Architecture In our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exdusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

I 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows ' 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent ls out of context because these States have a, 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure i 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. i 
The proposed change Is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Crvil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-lie.ensure-practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring-the health, safety, and welfare of pubnc - the primary concern of Ileen.sure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have eamed a 2 year Associates Degree or Certincate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currentlv a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 
Nearly all states require experience for initial lkensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of e.Gmination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demanstrating an aver,ige of 8 years ei<periencc 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an additional 10 year post•llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 vears needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many 'talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Ovll Enaineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obraln 
their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated lo be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or \ 
{B} candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practldng or offering professional services for at le.ast 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or regisitation in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional seJVices for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

£ ~l.J:L.J'll:t..!:J~ ~ ::.,r::i.....-,L,L..,L,q.L.JC.~ ~ ~~~~ :..Z..:;I}~~ (JC; 
Street Address (optional) State Zip Code / 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

CC: Clfifomia Architects Board, cab@dc:a.ca.gov Oepartment of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblvman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://r::i.....-,L,L..,L,q.L.JC


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for indi•1iduals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also 01,1t of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-st-ate licensed Individual, regardless of educatio11 or experience, lo obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice e~perience to be granted Californlil reciprocity. These individuals are already ncensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become ii Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate fn 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter. who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work ~perience, fs not eligible for licC?nsure. 
Nearly all states require experience for Initial liccnsure and the majority of states allov, llcensurc on the basis of examinatio•n anr;l 

experience alone. Persons a re genera lly eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will rack on an additional 10 year post-llcensufe e~ericnce requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marglnalize many talented professionals. 

While Cafifornia Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Eneineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) 

CC: californla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives, There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to exfsting exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not availi,Jble in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regul.it ion will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These. individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a oerson mav become a Licensed Landscape Architect if thev have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certlfic-ate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subjecL matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the 5ilme work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states fequire experience for Initial licensur.. and the majority of states allow licensure on the basfs of examination ancj 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligitile for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will t ack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (averace) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented profe,Ssionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not co!h:ge educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landsi;ape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the s.ime should hold true for Landscape Archltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulat10ns, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§. 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examinat ion substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examinat ion 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
rofessional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 ears. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) Date 

CC: Californiil Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Offic,e of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 3:12 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please add to spreadsheet 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 M ain Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney. nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providlng quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Paige Girnbal [mailto:pgimbal@gmail.com) 
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 12:07 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: CAB@DCA; Dca@DCA; senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov; Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov; 
senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov; assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov; LATC@DCA; jerry.brown@gov.ca.gov 
Subject: RE: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Attn: Kourtney Nation 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Roao, Sulte 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

latc@dca.ca.gov 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being 
barred from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive 

mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
mailto:jerry.brown@gov.ca.gov
mailto:I.J\TC@DCA
mailto:assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:mailto:pgimbal@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


policies, over time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for 
licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taJcing steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in Califomia. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for 
individuaJs with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's. health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed lndividual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an .additional 1 O 
years of post•licensure practice .experience to be .granted Californla reciprocity. These individ.uals are already licensed and by definition are 
competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if'll1ey have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in Lillldscape Architecture 
along with proper work experience and passing the n~tional Exam. Currently a person with u 4 year Bachelor' s Degree, regardless of related subject matter, 
who is licensed in another slate by having pussed the samo Exam and. having the same work experience, is not eligible for liccnsurc. 

• Nearly all -states require el<pcrience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis ofexaminHlion und experience alone_ Persons 
are generally eligible for out of stale liccnsurc upon demonstratin11 an average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation 
will lack on an additional 10 year post-licensure t•xpcricncc requirement for a total (uverage) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will 
continue t.o 1TJatginali1-.e many talented professio{lals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who arc not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain !heir Ii censure, candidates 
for Landscape Architecture arc not afforded that privilege. It seems clear Urnt if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as 
qualified ns ll1osc ,vho are, !he same should hold true for Landscape Architects_ 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California 
as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental 
Examination provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a 
recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the 
last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Paige Gimbal, LEED AP, 

WaterCounts Irrigation Consultant 

Chico, CA 95926 

2 



CC: 

California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 

Department of Consumer Affairs, dca@dca.ca.gov 

Senator Jim Nielsen, senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov 

Assemblyman Jatnes Gallagher, Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembiy.ca.gov 

Senator Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 

Assemblyman Jim Wood, assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov 

Office of the Governor, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr., jerry.brown@gov.ca.gov 

Paige Gimbal 
Cell: 1-530-864-2454 
Skype: pgimbal 
Email: pgimbal@gmail.com 

''It's choice, not chance, that determines your destiny!" 

3 

http:ggimbal(ci)gmail.com
mailto:jerry.brown@gov.ca.gov
mailto:assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:dca@dca.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearirig September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's.Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, re!f<!rdle.ss of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are cornpetent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the prfmary concern of licensure. 

In C-aliforhlil a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assoclates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work eisperience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who js licensed i n another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all stales require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

,prior to examination. The.current proposed reguldtiun will tacl<on an additional lO year post- llcensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California recl procity. This change will continue to mar.glnallze many talented professlonals. 

Wliile California Architects and Cfvll Engineers who are not to liege educated or who have degrees in related s~bjects rnay obtaln 

thelr licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

-and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as t'hose who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations~ Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be efig·ibfe for ficensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at feast 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

1,../ '1-lt <UJII,, I 

StTeet Address (optional) Date Cfty State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood A~semblyman James Gallagher 

https://re!f<!rdle.ss


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing Sept ember 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, t here are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to litensure not available in California. C;:ilifornia fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed 1,rnguage is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation wl/1 require any out,o!-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additfonal 10 years of posr-llcensure practice experience to be gran\ed California reciprocity, These 1ndividuals are already licensed 

and by definition, are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Mchitect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certi ficate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure, 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination ,ind 

experience alone, Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an.iverage of 8 years experience 

pr/or to examination. The qment proposed regulatfon wlli tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California recip(ocity. This change will continue to marginaliie many talented professio·nals. 

• While California Architects and Civl/ Engineers who are not college educated ,or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Iurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifiable document ation to t he Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
t he t ime of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 year.s; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registratio.n in good st anding. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Signature 

0 ·ef: ?A-J 1 ? () L CA- 9 )-/-/ ? L 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

-1 2 - ,Z,./-6 
CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGul're, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Decree or Certifitate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work e.xperience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person w ith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, recardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Noarly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change wllJ continue to marglnaJlze many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same Should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

Street Address (optional) Date State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I arn an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulat ions. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based a llow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards s hared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibi lities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-trcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. 1'hese individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable otensuring the health, safety, andwelfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape-Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Current!y a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed t.he.same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Ne;irly all states requtre experience for init ial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on tt,e basls of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out or state llcensure upon demonstr;iting an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post,licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for california reciprocity. This ctiange will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subject5 may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Lilndscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems c,lear that lfwe deem our Architects 

and Engineers wtio are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, o r Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
deter.mined by t he Board shall be eligible for lice nsure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to tbe Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing o r offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

Street Add res$ (optional) Dale City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Galfagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



ood standin 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or eleperience, to obtafn an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are.competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare.of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a p~i:>n moy become a Ucensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another State by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work expe;i,:,nce, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are.generally eligible f9r out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years C)(perience 

prior to. examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licens~re eKperience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for california reciprocity. This change will continue to marginali2e many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college ed1,1cated or who have degrees ill related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that lf we deem our Arctiitects 

and Engineers Who are not college. educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rie:o by 
having passed a written examination substantiaily equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by t he Board shall be eligible for Jicensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
B Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed N me 

Date City State Zip Code 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
..Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr . 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Street Addre55 (optional) 

CC: California Architects B·oard, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen., Mike McGuire, senaJor.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senaJor.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
https://welfare.of


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Soard 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts. that are being barred 
from obtaining llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps1n the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based a llow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the. following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation Will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice e~pe(ience to be granted California reciprocity. ihese Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work elCperience and passing the national E)(;Jm. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• ,Nearly all states require experience for initlal licensure and the majority of states allow liceQsure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 yea'rs experience 

prior to ~amination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post·licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees fn related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architec;ture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if w e deem our Architects 

and Engineer.; who are not college educated to be as qualified .is those who are, !he same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented ahd approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experienceeguivalentto t hat required of California applicants at . 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years: or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
CA.Roe.....£ ,:$£ J.+Llt€ 

Printed Name Signature 

Street Address (optional) Dale City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects 0oard, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senafor.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
As·scmblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor fdmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed cit izen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of t he public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change_, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precede nt from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because t hese States have a. 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees a nd combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Calitornia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities a.s critical to ensuring t he public's. health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice e~perience t o be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable or ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject m,nter, who is licensed in another state by· having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work ~perience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of sta.tes allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total ('average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or·who have degrees in related svbjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. I t seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

{1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of appli.cation: or 
(B} Candidat e holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for a t least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
· C Candidat e holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 
pmfessional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincere ly, 

State Zip Code 

Department of Cons.umer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire~-5enator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

catifornia Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our dally lives. There are 
current ly members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, th.ere are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in california. catifornia fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by california's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I. oppose the following inequities In the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proP9sed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional IO years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work ei1perience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are.generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the catifomia Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
dete rmined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of california applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

1 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

\' I , 

Sincerely, ." ,,, )'\ / L--_ \1 .\ J \ \. I ">-'\ \ - l, 
Printed Name ) Signature 

' 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zlp Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affair.; 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an infqrmed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as t heir California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, t here are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language. change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of contelet because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California . California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architect's and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, a.nd welfare . 

l oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation wl ll require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Callfornla reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

hi California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along ·with proper work experience and passing the natiohal Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless or related subject matter, who Is licensed in, another state by havfng passed the same Exam and having 
the same. work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone, Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on. an addition al 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total )average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change WIii continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil ~nglneers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. I t seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
{1} A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by t he Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Suppleme ntal Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of applicatio n; o r 
(B} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid lice nse or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor' 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2.420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that a re being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, t here are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent Is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and .combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following Inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or exp~rlente, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure,practice e1Cperience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently ;1 person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same uam and having 
the same work experience, is not ellglble for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

Whlle California Architects and Clvil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems de.:ir that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. j urisdlction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matte r required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practldng or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or r o In oo 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) Date Otv State Zlp Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:Enginee.rs


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Soard 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen w ho understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of t he public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for lice nsure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure hot available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of expt?rience. 

The proposed change is also o ut of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfa re, 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will requrre any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obta in an 

additional 10 years of post-Ileen sure practice experience to be granted California redprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and ~Y definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

l andscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exa.m. Currently a person with a 4 year 

8achelor's Degree, regardless o f related subject matter, who is licensed in another state bY having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experien~e, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensµre upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The curr«)nt proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-l!censure experience requlrement for 
a total (average) Of 18 years needed for California reciprocity_ This change will coniinue to m.irgfnalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obt<Jin 

their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if \ve deem our Archltects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, tlie same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for lice nsure upon passing t he California Suppleme ntal Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) Date City State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mi~e McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gall~gher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing Sept ember 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen w ho understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members ofthe public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulat ions. Also, due to .increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Commit tee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted With responsibilities as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state llcensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional JO years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensvring lhe health, safety, and wel fare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Lic.ensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year l\ssociates Degree or Certificale in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by hoving passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states requfre experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensurc on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 veals needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue lo marginalize many talented professfonals. 

While Californra Archltecls and Civil Engineers who are not college. educated or who have degrees In related subjects mav obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. I t seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 ofthe last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

:;;411 
Street Address (optional) 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman J;imes Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the pubJic who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose t he following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation Will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educatron or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years or post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

l.3ndscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless or related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by havin& passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Noarly all states require experience for Initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed reeulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for C31ifornia reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• Whne C3lifornla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not collc&c educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for landscape Archltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate. who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin and has been racticin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, <'v\st\~ \ .e_ e_,& 
Printed Name Signature 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: Calirornla /\rchitects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguirc@scnate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jfm Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Ga)lagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California• reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safely, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degrel,'! or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the natiohal Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related s11bject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the. same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial lfcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons a,., go,nerally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years exper,lence 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 'J0 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

Whtte California Arch)tects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded thatprivllege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is lii;ensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B} Candidate holds, a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
Z of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 ofthe last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

_Prin-ted-Nam_e _ i/ ~ / ~ ~~~n~g~u~ e ~M ~ ~,__~ q ___ ~ I L '~ ~ nto\re C A_._~~syo~ 

Street Address (optional) Date' City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.~ov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuir~ senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:individu.il


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 271 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citi zen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the fight direct ion, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation w111 requi re any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or e~perience, to obtain an 

additlonal 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year A5sociates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passrng the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bochelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not ellg1ble for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initia l licensufe and the majority of states allow Hcensure on the basis o f examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regu lation will tack on an additional 10 yeaqlost -licensure experience requirement for 

a total {average) of 18years needed for California reciprocity. This change wil l continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
• While California Architec\s and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that priv11ege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifiable docume.ntation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. CJ 
Sincerely, ( _,,.,, ~ 

s~ f ; (o~;~ , C}\~SW~ Date 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuife, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor (dmund G. f;lrown Jr. 
Assemblynian Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:jurisdicti.on
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as t heir California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are current ly CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths t o licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals wit h varying degrees and combinat ions of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Eng,ineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competen t and capable of ensuring the health, s-afety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the nat ional Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Initia l licensure and the majority of.states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experie.nce alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state ltcensure upon demonst rating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination, The current proposed regu lation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requi rement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciproclty. This change will continue to marglnalize many talented protessionais. 

• While California Architects and CiVII Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obl'ain 

their licensure, candidate·s for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplement al Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to t he Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

Sincerely, 

000 
Zip Code Street Address (optional) Date City State. 

CC: California Alchitecls Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department o f Consumer Alf;iirs Office of the Governor 
Sen, Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edm(lnd G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed cit izen who understands the importance of l andscape Architecture in our daily lives, There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking s.teps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landsc;ape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals wit h varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfarn. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regard less of education or e~perience, to obtain an 

addillonal 10 years of post -licensure practice e~perience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Archftect ii they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam, Currently a person w ith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by t,al/ing passed the same Exam and having 
the same work,experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for fnltla.1 licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experien~e 

prior to examlnatlor1. The current proposed regulation will tack On an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total l.iverage) of 18 years needed for Califorl'lia redprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• Whlle California Architects and Civil Engin~ers who are nol college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their Hcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified a5 those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who ls licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to t he Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
.(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, Bttrvi{fl /Vl.c (t\,("hl' 
Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca,ca.gov Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Oale City 

Department of Consumer Affafrs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
https://cab@dca,ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Callfornia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-lfcensure practice eJ<perience to be granted California recfprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed ln another state by hav)ng passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for liceosure. 

• Nearly all states require eJ<perience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis or examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out 'Of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examinat;on. The currt!nl proposed regulation will tack on an add1t1onal 10 year posr-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
While C:a'lifornia Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded \hat privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architec~ 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualffied as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professiona.l services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed N<1me 

Street Address (optional) State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGutre, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, t here are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today, 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Cal ifornia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or e~perience, to obtain an 

additional l0years of post-licensure practice ~perience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure, 

• In California a person may become a Licen$ed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, ls not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licerisure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

pr1or to examinatfon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity, This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

thelr llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we dee,n our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

rofessional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 ears. 

City Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. M1ke McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 10:33 AM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearfng September 27, 2016 -

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
{916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technica l Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To mea,sure how we are dolhg, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Eric Ginney [mailto:EGinney@esassoc.com] 
Sent: Sunday, September 25, 2016 2:36 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA; LATC@DCA 
Cc: CAB@DCA; Dca@DCA; senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov; Assemblyman James Gallagher,; 
senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov; assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov; Shawn Rohrbacker 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 - landscape Architects Technical 
Committee 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 
I am an informed citizen and professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time,. t here are currently CA 
Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right directjon, borrows precedent from New 
York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available 
in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the 
proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. The proposed 
change is also out of step With standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted with responsibilities 
as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and propose.d regulations: The proposed regulation w ill require any out-of
state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice 
experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable 
of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. In California a person may become a 

·1 

mailto:wood@assembly.ca
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:mailto:EGinney@esassoc.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with 
proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person wrth a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related 
subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not 
eligible for licensure. Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis 
of examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 
years' experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience 
requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many 
talented professionals. While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related 
subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear t hat if we 
deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college-educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for 
Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615 
be imp'lemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who ls licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a 
written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be 
eligible for licensure upon passing the. California Supplemental Examination provided that the candidate submits verifiable 
documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at t he time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid lice.nse or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized accredited 
institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at 
least 6 of the last 10 years. 

I've had the pleasure and honor to work with unlicensed professionals that far exceed the standard of practice for our State; 
however the aforementioned inequities in current regulations prohibit their licensure at this titne despite t heir significant 
experience and even licensure in another state. Please work to address these issues. 

Sincerely, 
Eric Ginney 

Eric M. Ginney 
Floodplain Restoration Prc:igram Manager & 
ESA Central Valley/Sierra Director 
ESA 
WOO Capitol Avenue, SOltB 200 
' • d l1;t1!J CA 95P.1 ri 
T rJJG S64 4GOU j F 916 5l>·1 4501 
C 530 s:;,1 l'.1219 
eqinney@esassoc.com 

CC: 
California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Department of Consumer Affairs, dca@dca.ca.gov 

Senator Jim Nielsen, senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov 

Assemblyman James Gallagher, Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov 
Senator Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 

Assemblyman Jim Wood, assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov 

2 

mailto:assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:dca@dca.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
mailto:eqinney@esassoc.com


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 11:45 AM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Marn Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service, To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciat e you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Kathy Brenner [mailto:kathy.brenner@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:19 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
ltcensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations. of experience. 

The proposed change fs also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects ahd Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's llealth, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the healthi safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:kathy.brenner@yahoo.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed tl1e same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an add itional 1 o year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. · 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privUege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. jurisdiction. Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equival·ent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passrng the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid ltcense or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this .important regulatory change 

Sincerely, 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 11:45 AM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Reg. Language Hearing TOMORROW 

Please print and add t o the public commeht t racking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Archit ects Techni<:al Committee is·committed to provlding quality customer service. To measure how we are doirrg, 
we would appreciate -you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Than.k you 

From: Paula Henson [mailto:terrabellalandscape@grnail.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:20 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA; drnaxam@ebagroup.com 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Reg. Language Hearing TOMORROW 

SUBJECT: Public Comment Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Arch1tects Technical Cotntnittee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
!!censure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licehsed Landscape Architects practicfng who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taklhg steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available ·in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:drnaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:mailto:terrabellalandscape@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or expe,rience, to 
obtain an addition al 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are cotnpetent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California P person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experiehce and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person wlth a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject rnatter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experlence, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for 1nftial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience. prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professional's. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold t rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect 1n a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
l1aving passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the Calltornla Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid llcense or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Paula Henson 
Urban Water Group 
Terra Bella Water 
12660 Palms Bl. 
Los Angeles, CA 90066 
3 10-383-9398 

2 



Townsend. Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:01 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 

2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committ ee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Servlce 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Janet Cohen [mailto :janetlenkcohen@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26; 2016 2:23 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, StJite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture 1n our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also. due lo increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Archftects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States haye a multitude of paths to 
Jfcensure not available fn California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon Which the proposed language ls based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:janetlenkcohen@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the .following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state ITcensed individual. regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice .experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure, 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by hav'ing passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average} of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, T itle 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent fn scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible forlicensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited tnstitution, and has been practicing or offerlng professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or ottering professional 
servfces for at least 6 of ihe last 1 O years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Janet Cohen 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:00 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW; Public Comment: Proposed Regulato ry Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.lat e.ca.gov 

kourtney.nat ion@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Archi tects Technical Committee is committed to providing .quality customer service. To measure how we are dorng, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Maura Baldwin [mailto:mbaldwin.pdg@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:22 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA; dmaxam@ebagroup.com; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

CalifornTa Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I arn an informed citfzen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently members of the public who are as 
quahfied as their Californli! lfcensed counterparts lhal are being barred from obtaining llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations, Also, due to Increasingly 
restrictive polfcles. over time. there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would nol qua lily for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though laking steps in the nght direction, borrows precedent from New York and Arizona, however this 
precedent is out of context because these States have a multllude of paths to licensure not available in Calilornla. California fails to recognize education ovtside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon whith the proposed language Is based allow Llcensure for individuals with varying degrees and combinations 
of experience 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Callfornla's Archltecls and Civil Engineers who are entrusted with responslbllitles as cnltcal to 
ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare, 

I oppose lhe fallowing Inequities in the current and proposed regulalions, 

- The proposed regulatlon will require any out-of-state licensed lndfVldu,il, regardless or educatlorJ or exper1ence, to obtain an additional 1 O years of post
liceosure practice. experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of 
ensuring the health. safety, arid welfare of public - lhe primary concern ol licensure. 

- In California a persori may become a Licensed Landscape Arch~ed ii they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Cert1ficate in Landscape Archltecture 
along with proper wa[k ,experience ano passing the nalional Exam. 

l 

http:lndMdu.il
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:mbaldwln.pdg@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


• Currently a person wtth a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subJect matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam 
and having the same work experience, i s not eligible for llcensure. 

· Nearly all states require experience for Initial Hcensure and the majority or states allow llcensure on the basis of examlnation and experience alone. Persons 
are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average at 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will 
tack cm an ad'dilional "1 O year post-licensure experience requirement tor a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity This change will 
continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and CMI Engineers who are nol college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates 
for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as 
qualified as those who are, lhe same stiould hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615 be Implemented and approved by 
the California Architect's Board: 

§. 2615 Fom, of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is Hcensed as a landscape architect In a U.S, j urisdictlorr, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a written examinallon 
substantially equivalent In scope and subJect maUer required 1n Californla as determined by the Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California 
Supplemental Examination provided that the candidate submits verifiable documenlallon to Ille Board ind feating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to ttiat requi red of California applfcants al the time of application; or 

(B) Candldate holds a vaHd license or reglstrallon In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized accredited lnslitulion, and has been 
practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering pn;ifessional services for at least 6 Of the last 10 
years, 

Thank you for th1s opportunity to comment on this important regulatory ci1ange. 

Sincerely, 

Maura Baldwin 

Maura Baldwin 
Panoramic De,;ign Group 
Landscap~ Architecture 

California Landscape Architect //5802 
ISA Certified Arborist #WE-9612A 

510-367-3028 
3060 El C~mto Plaza #510, El Cerrito, CA 94530 
mhaldwm.pdg(tiign!ili l com 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:01 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please prin t and add t o the public comment t racking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 M ain Lihe 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to provid ing quality customer service-. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciat e you taking a few minutes to share you r thoughts about t he service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Francesca Corra [mailto:fcorra@aol.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:37 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; Mary Fisher (president@apldca.org); CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclus1onary regufations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outsfde of Landscape Architecture. however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:fcorra@aol.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulatfons: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 0 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals, 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege, It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who 1s licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years: or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standlng, and has. been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Francesca Corra 

4030 Cartwright Ave 

Studio City, CA 91604 

Francesca Corra 
www .dirtdivadesigns.com 

Immediate Past President - APLD Greater Los Angeles District 
Vice President -APLD California Chapter 
Partner www.wealthy-earth.com 
EPA Certified Irrigation Auditor 

2 

http:www.wealthy-earth.com
http:www.dirtdivadesigns.com


Find me on Houzz f1ollow me on Facebook 

3 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:01 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main line 

(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 

we would appreciate you takrng a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: kvincent333@comcast.net [mailto:kvincent333@comcast.net] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:40 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento. CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are currently members of the publ(c who 
are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtainirig licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, 
due to increasingly restrictive policies. over time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure 
today, 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change. though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent from New York and Arizona, 
however this precedent is out of context because these Slates have a multitude of paths to llcensure not available in California. California falls to 
recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Llcensure for individuals 
with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards Shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted wlt11 responsibilities as 
critical lo ensuring the public's health, safely. and welfare. 

I oppose lhe following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 
- The proposed regulatfon will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an additional 1 o years of post
licensure practice experience· to be granted Californ1a reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of 
ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensµre. 
- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape 
Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 
- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is llcensed 1n another state by hav,lng passed the same 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:kvincent333@comcast
mailto:kvincent333@comcast.net
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


Exam and having the same work experience. 1s not eligible for llcensure. 
- Nearly all slates require experience for lnltlal llcensure ;ind the majority of stales allow llcensure on the basis of examination and experience alone. 
Persons are generally eli.9lble for out of slate licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed 
regulation will tack on an addrtlonal 10 year post•licensure expenence requlrement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity This 
change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain their licensure, 
candidates for Landscape Architecture ate not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college 
educated to be as qualified as those who are. the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 
I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16. Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by 
the California Architect's Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examinatjons 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province. or Puerto Rico by having passed a wnllen 
examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible for ltcensure upon 
passing the California Supplemental Examination provided that the candidate subm1ts verffiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 
(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standfng, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized accredited institution, and has 
been practicing or offenng professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 
{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 6 of the last 1 O 
years. 
Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change 

Sincerely, 

Katherine A Vincent 

kalhenne Vincent ◄aMstap(' des,gn 211 rt>eem tJlvd. or1noa ca 94563 #9253766137 kalherin.:1vincenltandscaoedes,gn com 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:01 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: SUBJECT: Public Comment Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 

2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacr:amento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 

(916) 575-7237 Direct 

(916) 575-7285 Fax 

www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing qua lity customer service. To measure how we are doing, 

we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Teri Enright [mailto:teria.enright@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:54 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Subject: SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 
l am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There 
are currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being 
barred from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive 
policies, over time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for 
licensure today. 
The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for 
individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

mailto:mailto:teria.enright@gmaH.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is a1so out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers 
who are entrusted with responsibi1ities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 
l oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 
- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or 
experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California 
reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the 
health~ safety, and welfare 0f public -the primary concern of licensure. 
- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates 
Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national 
Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless ofrelated subject matter, who is licensed in 
another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for 
licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis 
of examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon 
demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack 
on an additional IO year post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for 
California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
- While California Architects and Cjvi l Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related 
subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It 
seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as 
those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 
l request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title l 6, Di vision 26, 
Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect' s Board: 
§ 2615 form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto 
Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 
Califomia as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California SupplementaJ 
Examination provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 
(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the 
time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a 
recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the 
last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 
Sincerely, 

Teri A. Enright 
7236 Greenhaven Drive #117 
Sacramento, CA 

APLD 
B.A. CSUMB 
A.S. Sustainable Landscape and Irrigation System Design. 
Ecolandacape Organization 

2. 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:01 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 

2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we. are doing, 
we would appreciate you• taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received u~ing our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: info@livinggardenslandscapedesign.com [mailto:info@livinggardenslandscapedesign.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:48 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who wor,Jld not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though takfng steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent fs out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available iin California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Archrtecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:info@livinggardenslandscapedesign.com
mailto:info@livinggardenslandscapedesign.com
http:custom.er
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor·s Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initfal licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generc1lly eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licen:sure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Archltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Sacha Mccrae 
San Clemente, CA 92672 

LIVING GARDENS LANDSCAPE DESIGN 
www.livingqardenslandscapedesign.com 
info@livinqgardenslandscapedesiqn.com 
http://www.houzz.com/pro/livinggardenslandscapedesign/living-qardens-landscape-design 
https://www.facebook.com/pages/Living-Gardens-Landscape-Desiqn/262259303817172 

949.218.7459 

~please consider the environment before printing this email 

https://www.facebook.com/pages/Livinq-Gardens-Landscape-Design/262259303817172
http://www.houzz.com/pro/11vinggardenslandscapedesign/living-gardens-landscape-design
mailto:info@livinqqardenslandscapedesiqn.com
http:www.livingqardenslandscapedesign.com


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:04 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW; Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 

(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your tnoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: nina rnullen [mailto:nmullen3@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:57 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Pub'lic Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

To kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 
cc d maxam@ebag roup. com. president@apldca.org. cab@dca.ca. gov 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the rfght direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Arch itecture, however 

1 

mailto:cab@dca.ca
mailto:dmaxam@ebaqroup.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.qov
mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:nmullen3@yahoo.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:president@apldca.org


both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure for ]ndividua:ls with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations; 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam, 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a totat (average) of 1 ~ years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. · 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who. are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape arc'hitect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
appiicaUon; or 

(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid l'icense or registration in ,good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 1 O years. 

Thank you for thfs opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Nina Mullen 

Mullen Designs 

510/292-6514 
www.mullendesigns.net 

2 

http:www.mullendesigns.net


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:04 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is cornm1tted to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: sbovshow@gmail.com [mailto:sbovshow@gmail.com] On Behalf Of Shirley Bovshow 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 3:04 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Arch1tects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today, 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education otitside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

r 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:sbovshow@gmail.com
mailto:sbovshow@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the publfc's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
indivlduals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the pdmary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the satne Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states, allow licensure on the basis of 
examination ano experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-(icensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. · 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
havlng passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of Calffornia applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution. and has been practicihg or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change, 

Sincerely, 

Shirley Bovsl'\ow 

Woodland Hills CA 91367 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:05 PM 
To: Towns end, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 

2016 

Please print and cldd to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 

(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ccJ,gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed t o providing quality customer service, To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: alison fleck [mailto:alison@simplyperfectgardens.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 3:29 PM 
To: Natioh, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: SUBJECT; Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscap.e Architecture in our daily lives. Tl1ere are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obta1nlng 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
,currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today, 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a mult1tude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
bo~States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 

1 

I 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:alison@simplyperfectgardens.com
mailto:ourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
www.latc.ca,gov


combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience. to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Calffornia reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

- ln California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 O year 
post-lfcensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. Thls change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects\ 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be. as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California appliccmts at the time of 
application; or 

(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Alison W Fleck 

743 Cheryl Dr 

Benicia, CA 9451 O 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:06 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: mary-lee gilliland [mailto:maryleegilliland@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:08 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27 

SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacrc1mento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
lfcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. C~Hfornia fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:maryleegilliland@yahoo.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change fs also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-11censure practice experience lo be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the nat1onal Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for Californ1a reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantiafly equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree frorn a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportun ity to comment on this important regulatory change, 

Sincerely, Mary-Lee S. Gilliland 

Associate member, APLD 

2 



From: Luv2grow [mailto:luv2grow@sbcglobal.net] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:07 PM 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

lam an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape ATchitecture in our daily lives. There 
are currently members of the public who are as qualified as their Califomia licensed counterparts that are being 
barred from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive 
polides, over time, there are current]y CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qua]ify for 
licensure today. 

The Committee1s proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. Ca]ifornia fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for 
individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers 
who are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public' s health, safety

1 
and welfare. 

l oppose the foJlowing inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or 
experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of post-1icensure practice experience to be granted California 
reciprocity. These individuaJs are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring 
the health, safety,. and welfare of public- the primary concern of Ji censure. 

- ln California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates 
Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national 
Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless ofrelated subject matter, who is licensed in 
another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for 
licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow Iicensure on the 
basis of examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon 
demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will 
tack on an additional IO year post-Iicensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed 
for California reciprocity. This change wi11 continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in 
related subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that 
privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not co11ege educated to be as 
qualified as those who are, the same should bold true for Landscape Architects. 

2 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebaqroup.com
mailto:mailto:luv2grow@sbcglobal.net


I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, 
Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto 
Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 
California as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental 
Examination provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the 
time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or reg.istration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a 
recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of 
the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Cathleen Hudson 

CATHLEEN HUDSON LANDSCAPES 
831 -469-4633 
luv2grow@sbcglobal.net 
www.luv2grow.com 
http://www.houzz.com/pro/hudlab/ public 

3 

http://www.houzz.com/pro/hudlab
http:www.luv2grow.com
mailto:luv2grow@sbcglobal.net


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:05 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Publ ic Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 

www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service, To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Jerry [mailto:jerry@edifylandscapedesign .com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:08 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing excfusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction , borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:drnaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:jerry@edifylandscapedesign.com
mailto:rtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

· The proposed regulation will requfre any out-of-state licensed incHvidual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additronal 1 O years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Callfornia reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is lfcensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and havfng the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Archi tecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1} A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the Califqrnia Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating; 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equlvalenl to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at feast 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for al least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regu latory change. 

Sincerely 

Jerry J Kohn 
Edify Landscape Design 
8] 8 687 8549 

~ Please consider the environment - think before you print! 

NOTE: This email and any files transmitted with it are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to 
whom they are addressed and may contain confidential or other legally privileged information. If you have 
received this email in error please notify the sender by email, delete and destroy this message and .it's 
attachments. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. 

2 



EDIFY LANDSCAPE DESIGN HAS PROVIDED THIS INFORMATION FROM OUR RECORDS WITHOUT 
COMPENSATION OR KNOWLEDGE OF YOUR INTENDED USAGE. THIS INFORMATION WAS ORIGINALLY 
PREPARED FOR OTHERS AND MAY NOT BE SUITABLE BECAUSE OF: INSUFFICIENCY OR INCOMPLETENESS; 
OUTDATED CONTENTS; MISINTERPRETATION; MISREPRESENTATION; OR UNINTENDED USAGE; OR NOT IN 
ACCORD WITH CURRENT PRACTICES OR STANDARDS. EDIFY LANDSCAPE DESIGN MAKES NO WARRANTY, 
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, TO USERS OF THIS INFORMATION. 

3 



Townsend~ Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:05 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The landsc\l pe Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing qual'ity tustorner service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thought s about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. "Thank you 

From: Jodie Cook [mailto~jodiepcook@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:07 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: CAB@DCA; dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Email To: 
To kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 
CC dmaxam@ebagroup.com, president@apldca.org. cab@dca.ca.gov 
SUBJECT: Public Comment Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 
I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects precticing who would not qualify for licensure today. 
The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize educatron outside of Landscape Architecture, however 

1 

mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:jodiepcook@yahoo.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Llcensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The propbsed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects .and Civll Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 
I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 
- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed indivldual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain 
an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are 
already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the 
primary concern of licensure. 
- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2. year Associates Degree or 
Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 
- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
stale by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 
- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination anq experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 O year 
post•licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will 
continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
- Whlle California Architects and Clvil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we 
deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should 
hold true for Landscape Architects. 
I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdictron1 Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for ticensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 
(A) Candidate possesses education and experfence equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 

accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this Important regulatory change, 
Sincerely, 

2 



137 
Correspondence Unit 

From: Suzanne Murillo [mailto:suzannemurillo@gmaiLcom] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 5:49 PM 
To: Dca@DCA 
Subject: LATC Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Dear Department of Consumer Affairs: 

I am an informed citizen who understands t11e importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. 

There are currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California ncensed counterparts that are being 
barred from obtaining licensing due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensing today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona that is out of context, because these states have a multitude of paths to Landscape 
Architecture licening not available in California. The State of Galifom1a fails to recognize education outside of Landscape 
Architecture; however both states upon which the proposed language is based allow licensing for individuals with varying 
degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Californla's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities i~ the current and proposed regulations: 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the 
basis of examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon 
demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wil l 
tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years 
needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year 
Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing 
the national Exam. 

• Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who ls licensed in 
another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for 
licensure. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in 
related subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that 
privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be 
as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdict1on, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
hav1ng passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
tnat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Cand idate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution , and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

2 

mailto:mailto:suzannemurillo@gmail.com


Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change 

Sincerely, 

Suzanne Murillo 

Orinda, CA 94563 

3 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:06 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examinat ion Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Techni cal Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916)575-7230 Mc1in Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc .. ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes t o share your thoughts about t he service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Robin Salsburg [rnailto:rsalsburg@rne.com) 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:29 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Sulte 105 

Sacramento, GA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Ucensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:rsalsburg@me.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Ehgineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as crltical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations '. 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of,state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California rec1procity. These 
Individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recogniz.ed 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registratfon in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Robin Salsburg 
Aptos, CA 95003 

2. 

https://recogniz.ed


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:06 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September'27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape. Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service, To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a {ew minutes to share your th.oughts about the. service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Joel Berlin [mailto:joelberlin@mac.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:45 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Archltecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New Y0rk and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

l 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:joelberlin@mac.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities .as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequitfes in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examinatlon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

( 1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Ca'lifornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examinatfon provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating; 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
applicatfon; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration ih good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Joel Berlin 

11215 Forestview Lane 

San Diego, CA 92131 

2 



Townsend. Stacy@DCA 

From: Nat ion, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:06 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916} 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to prnviding quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to sh ate your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

F.rom: Natalie Cousins-Robledo [mailto:minanda@me.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 5:38 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Arch1tects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to exist[ng exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licehsure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture·, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:minanda@me.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca,gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Arcnitects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the fol lowing inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed indivfdual1 regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Cal.ifornia reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architectif they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial lfcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regul•ation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that prfvilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who c1re not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects_ 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1·) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for 11censure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration lh good standing, and has been practicing or offering profess1onal 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

S]ncerely, 

Natalie Cousins-Robledo 

1ujr1ar1d~ 
l~f'~C,.i\P( Ol,l{,,lrr,J 

Natalie Cousins~Robledo 
www.minandalandscape_com 
minanda@mac.com 
818.903.5122 

Winner 2013 Santa Monica Spring Jubilee Tea Garden Design Competition 

2. 

mailto:minanda@mac.com
http:www.minandalandscape.com


2013, 2014 Advocacy Chair, APLD Greater Los Angeles Distrfot 
Follow us on Facebook! hllp:llwww.facebouk. com/MinandalandscapeDesign 

3 

https://hllp:llwww.facebouk.com/MinandalandscapeDesign


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:06 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Importance: High 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
E>camlnation Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
{916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 

Survey. Thank you 

From: Cheryl Buckwalter [mallto:landscapeliaisons@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 5:35 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@OCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA; Dca@DCA; senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov; Garden 
Design Mary Fisher 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Heating September 27, 2016 
Importance: High 

California Arcl7itects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sa.cramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technica l Committee: 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive 
policies, over time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not quallfy 
for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, 

1 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:landscapeliaisons@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


borrows precedent from New York and Arizona; however, this precedent is out of context because these 
States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize 
education outside of Landscape Architecture, however, both States upon which the proposed language is 
based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change. is also out of step with standards shared by Cal ifornia's Architects and Civil 
Engineers who are entrusted with responsibilit ies as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations : 

• The proposed regulation will require ahy out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or 
experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted 
California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and 
capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California, a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year 
Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and 
passing the national Exam. 

• Currently a person with a 4-year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is 
licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, 
is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on 
the basis of examination and experience alone, Persons are generally eligible for out of state 
licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years of experience prior to examination. The 
current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10-year post-licensure experience 
requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will 
continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil EngTneers who are not college educated or who have degrees 
in related subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Archftecture are not 
afforded that privilege. It seems clear that, if we deem our Architects and Engiheers who are not 
college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape 
Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26,, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is llcensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or 
Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope ahd subject matter 
required in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California 
Supplemental Examination, provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board 
indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants 
at the time of application; or 

2 



B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, ahd has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Cheryl Buckwalter 
Landscape Liaisons 
P .O. Box 218 
Cool, CA 95614 
Office (530) 887-9887 
Mobile (916) 207-8787 

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW/CURRENT EMAIL ADDRESS: 

landscape! iaisons(a),gmail .com 

3 

http:landscapeliaisons(a),!.!mail.com


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Natron, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:06 PM 
To: Tow17send, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 

2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca,gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey_. Thank you 

From: Audrey Newell [mailto:audreynewell@mac.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:59 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA; dmaxam@ebagroup.com; CAB@DCA 
Cc: president@apldca.org 
Subject: SUBJE.Cf: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly·restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who wou1d not qualify for licensure today_ 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent Is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:audreynewell@mac.com
http:dca.ca.gov
www.latc.ca,gov
https://SUBJE.Cf


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare, 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additfohal 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 1 

- In Callfornia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect -if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not ellgible for )icensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensµre upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 O year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect 's Board: 

§ 2615 Forrn of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Audrey Newell 

The Fo~ Go.rden 

Landscape Design and Maintenance 
www.thefoxygarden.com 

audreynewell@mac.com 
(415)794-81,92 

2 

mailto:audreynewell@mac.com
http:www.thefoxygarden.com


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:08 PM 

To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

Subject: FW: Garden Designern's Right to Practice 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

(916) 575-7230 Main Line 

(916) 575-7237 Direct 

(916) 575-7285 Fax 

www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 

Survey. Thank you 

From: Lauriercallaway@aol.com [ mailto: Lau riercallaway@aol .com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 10:44 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Subject: Garden Deslgnern's Right to Practice 

To kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

CC dmaxam@ebagroup.com , president@apldca.org. cab@dca.ca.qov 

SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today 

l 

mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
mailto:Lauriercallaway@aol.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:Lauriercallaway@aol.com


The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
l1censure not availab!,e in California_ California fails to recognize education outsfde of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Clvil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-1.icensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public- the prfmary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Cert1ficate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 O year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years ,needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1 ) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and .subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verffiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California .appltcants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Cand idate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been praoticing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years_ 

Thank you for this opportuntty to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Laurier Callaway APLD 

Callaway Garden Design 

www.callawaygardendesign.com 

2 

http:www.callawaygardendesiqn.com


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From~ Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:08 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the. servlce you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Koby [mailto:kobysgarden@cox.net] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 9:44 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment : Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

i 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:kobysgarden@cox.net
mailto:ey.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily 
lives. There are currently members of the public who are as qualified as their Californfa licensed 
counterparts that are being barred from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary 
regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are currently CA 
Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in tt,e right 
direction, borrows precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of 
context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. 
California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States 
upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees 
and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and 
Civil Engineers who are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the pubflc's health , 
safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of 
education or experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice 
experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by 
definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -
the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 
year Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work 
experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, 
who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work 
experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow 
licensure on the basis of examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for 
out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to 
examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure 
experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This 
change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have 
degrees in related subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture 
are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers 
who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true 
for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's 
Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian 
province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in 
scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible for 
licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided that the candidate 
submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

2 



(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California 
applicants at the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's 
degree from a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing 
or offering professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, Koby W. Hall 
Lakeside, CA 92040 

3 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:07 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment trc1cking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examlnation Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suit e 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
{916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
{916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architect s-Technica l Committee is committ ed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about t he service you received using our Customer Service 
Su(vey. Thahk you 

From: allison mcgee [mailto:alleycat44@san.rr.com) 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 9:19 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Sufte 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. 
There are currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts 
that are being barred from obtaining licensure due to exfsting exclusionary regulations. Also, due to 
increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are currently CA Ucensed Landscape Architects practicing 
who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction1 

borrows precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:alleycat44@san.rr.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize 
education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is 
based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil 
Engineers who are entrusted with responsibilltles as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or 
experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted 
California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and 
capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year 
Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and 
passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is 
licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is 
not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initlal licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on 
the basis of examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure 
upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed 
regulation will tack 0n an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) 
of 18 years needed for California reciproc1ty. This change will continue to marginalize many talented 
professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in 
related subjects may obtain t.t,eir licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that 
privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Arch1tects and Engineers who are not college educated to 
be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 
26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615, Form of Examinations 

( 1) A candidate who is liG:ensed as a landscape architect In a U,S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or 
Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination substahtially equivalent in scope and subject matter 
required in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California 
Supplemental Examination provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board 
indicatihg: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants 
at the time of application; or 

(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree 
from a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at 
least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Allison L McGee, La Jolla, 92037 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:07 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please pr int and add to the public comment t racking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www. latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about t he. service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Jeannie Fitch [mailto:jfitch@gardennest.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 8:03 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA; dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are. being barred from 
obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there 
are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available ln California. California fails to recog,nize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon whfch the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsTbilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:jfitch@gardennest.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulatiohs: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practfce experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In Californfa a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates 
Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having Ille same. work experience, is not eligible for lfcensure, 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 
year post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This 
change will continue to marg.inalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related 
subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems 
clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallfied as those who are, 
the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

( 1) A candidate who fs licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent lo that required of California applfcants at the time of 
application: or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration ih good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a 
recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 
years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valtd license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change 

Sincerely, 

Jeannie Fitch 

~!Bt"denne >t 
• • t; I '•I T i ... ~ ( 

Jeannie Fitch - Owner 
Garden Nest Residential Landscape 
(925)-922·0322 
www.qardennesLcom 
11 Mlramonte Rd, Orini;Ja, CA 94563 

2 

www.gardennesLcom


The Board is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, we would appreciate you 

taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Satisfaction Survey. 
Thank you. 

From: Dca@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 9,07 AM 
To: Mayer, Vickie@DCA 
Subject: FW: public comment: proposed regulatory language hearing September 27, 2016 

From: Correspondence Unit - 137 

From: Lisa Bellora [mailto:ornamentalgardens@san.rr.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:46 PM 
To: Dca@DCA 
Subject: public comment: proposed regulatory language hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road , Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 
I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licens-ure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 
The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 
The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 
I oppose the followtng inequittes in the current and proposed regulations: 
- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain 
an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are 
already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the 
primary concern of licensure. 
- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or 
Certificate in Landscape Architecture along. with proper work experience and passing the national E)(am. 
- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 
- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstratfng an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 0 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will 
continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure. candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we 
deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should 
hold true for Landscape Architects. 
I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examlnations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian prov1nce, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 

2 

mailto:mailto:ornamentalgardens@san.rr.com


determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 
(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants.at the time of 
application; or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 

accred1ted institution , and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunily to comment on this important regulatory change. 
Sincerely, 

Lisa Bellora 
San Diego, CA 92129 

Lisa Be11ora 
A.S, Landscape Design 
Past-President, APLD San Diego District 

Ornamental Gardens by L.i~a 

www.SanDiegoGardenDesign.com 
ornamentalgardens@san.rr.com 

;~'.'/:,., 
,>t,,..,...., .. ' ) l 

~ (,_hlll, ~ ~ 
...... :__'"'JI' lilml 

3 

mailto:ornamentalgardens@san.rr.com
http:www.SanDiegoGardenDesign.com
http:applicants.at


Cal1fornia Architects Board 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7222 (916) 575-7239 Fax cab.ca.gov 

Cl CA.A rd1i1~c1~ fM 

The Board is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, we would appreciate you 
taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Satisfaction Survey. 
Thank you. 

From: Dca@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 9:08 AM 
To: Mayer, Vickie@DCA 
Subject: FW: URGENT Revised language-Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615 

From: Correspondence Unit -137 

From: Laura Morton [mailto: lm@lauramortondesign.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 2:53 PM 
To: Dca@DCA 
Subject: URGENT Revised language-Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615 

Thankyou for taking the time to read this and support the following .... . The hearing is at 10:00am on Tuesday, September 27, 
and to be included in the public record, your emails must be received by the LATC no later than 5:00pm on 
Tuesday, September 27. 

Email To: 

To kourtney. nation@dca.ca.gov 

cc dmaxam@ebagroup.com, president@apldca.org. cab@dca.ca. gov 

SUBJECT: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Tecnnfcal Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualffied as thelr California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increaslngly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing wt10 would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture , however 

2 

mailto:cab@dca.ca
mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.qov
mailto:mailto:lm@lauramortondesign.com
http:cab.ca.gov


both States upon which the proposed lang,uage is based allow Ucensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change ls also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed indlvidual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 1 0 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure, 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national' Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly alt states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow lfcensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible. for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additfonal 1 O year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity, This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 161 Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian prov·1nce, or Puerto Rfco by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits ver1fiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years: or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration 1n good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Laura Morton-Dunas , APLD 

Los Angeles, CA 90069 

3 



----

11111 <.:1IN<:tr1 I XTI J\l()J\\ 

fHIR.ftc."lJI l tlltf f. l/\NO\t l\l'J 

t•\, 1,,., c,•>.rn'i \\'1,;;r Hntl'l'\\',)t,r-
t -'lll t • K...-lf\ 'Jlh)Ct't 

/!1IIJ:,..1 •) 10 JL'll I lrd, 

Lu , lJQ ~~q 17 17 
\\\.¥\\ 1 \Ul',\tdl\141NlH'itl.~ l.1l.\\ 

I l I I ,· 0 NC I I' I f X I I I\ IO R \ 

11,1~111 Iii lllk l I> IANJl\1°\l't 

I fl "•"1\ (111 HI\ \.\'1 ~ r 1 lfH t \' W"\)0 
\ \I ltl)ltN I A 'JU\1c1'I 

l'1ldl'•H· J l tl nPJ llt,11 
, ,~ 11n u,, 11 11 

\,.\\\~ tAIJt\At.HJ.FHINf1( , ,~, \,\l\~ 

4 

http:1~1,vn-.1n


California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily 
lives. There are currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed 
counterparts that are being barred from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary 
regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are currently CA 
Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regul'atory Language change, though taking, steps in the right 
direction, borrows precedent from New York and Arizona,. however this precedent is out of 
context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. 
California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States 
upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying 
degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and 
Civil Engineers who are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, 
safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of 
education or experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice 
experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed and by 
definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -
the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 
year Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work 
experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who 
is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work 
experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure a(ld the majority of states allow 
licensure on the basis of examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for 
out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to 
examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 o year post-licensure 
experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. 
This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 



~ While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educa1ed or who have 
degrees in related subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture 
are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers 
who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true 
for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 
16, Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's 
Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian 
province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in 
scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible 
for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided that the 
candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California 
applicants at the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's 
degree from a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or 
offering professional services for at least 6 of the last 1 O years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

~ --.... -e~--------.... \ 

Maria Amelia B. Lima 
Del Mar, Ca. 92014 



professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

sa CA S'Sfl)4 
State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.goV Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

l am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reclproclty. These individuals are already licensed 

and by deflnftlon are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

In C;ilifornia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

lar)d5cape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regard less of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same fxam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require exi,erleflte for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experfence 
prior to examinat1u11. The current proposed regulalfon Will tack on an additfonal 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will contfnue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Civil Eng1neers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Archi tects 

and Engineers who are not college .educated to be as qualified as those Who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter requ1red in Callfornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits veri fiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining ljcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
Nme, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted w ith responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year As~ociates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter; who is licensed tn another state by having passed the same Exam arid having 
~he same work experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for inftial licensure and the majorftyof states allow licensure on the basfs of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experl ence 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees 1n related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to beas qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinat ions 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid lice11se or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

04-fll-llt Ot 1$"4ll:15 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@d~a.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielse11 Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Li censure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public'·s health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-li~ensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and' welfare of public - the prirnaryconcern of licensure. 

• In California a person rnay become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bacl]elor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same worl< experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states ~equire experience for initial Hcensure and the majority of states allow Ii censure on the basis of e_xaminat1on and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post· llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change wfll continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While Californi.i Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect1 s Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of applicationi or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited inst itution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 oJ the last.5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Sig ture 

Pem-lVMtt a ~'2 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca . .gov Department of Consumer Aff.iirs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.c;i.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor fdmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow ticensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrustecj with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-Ii censure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by dl!fir,ition are competent and capable· of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the prim;iry concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the nc1tional Exam. Currently a per5'on with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who fs licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. Tliis change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that prfvllege. It see.ms clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 'California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin or offerin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CG: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire. senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jtrn Nielsen Governor fdmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assembly,r,an JaflleS Gallagher 

Sincerely, ~~ 
Street Address (optional) State 

Cl S t.{&;~ 
Zip Code 



~

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 9S834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects prc1cticing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both Stc1tes upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees aAd combinations of e)(perience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil En[ineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crit ical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additiona'l 10 years of post-licensure pl'actlce experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals .)re already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of publlc - the primary concerri of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree. ot Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless qf related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and havJng 
the same work experience, is not eligi,ble for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone, Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to margir;alize many talented professionals. 

• While Californ1a Architects ,and Ci\111 Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license orregistration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, C 
-Pr-inte-dN-am_e ______ q ~/ \ _t /_J~- ~ - - -=~-•op~~u-~~U ~ _c_ _ _ ~ _ __ 9_~q 2~ 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Oepartmentof Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike M cGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor 'Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York ,md Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequiti~s in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state lrcensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

.md by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become~ Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, Is note.!iglble for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the ba.sis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstratiflG an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examinatton. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will cont inue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While Californi.a Architects and Civil Engineers who are not colle11e educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privil•ege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(l) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for lic;ensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

Street .Address (optional) State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these St ates have a 
multit ude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fa ils to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both St ates upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinat ions of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with st andards shared by California's Architect s and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensur ing the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed ir,dividual, regardless of education or e~perience, to obtain .an 

addi'tional 10 years of post -licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocfty. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definit io11 are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safe ty, and welfare o:f public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a ,person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the natlonaf Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who fs licensed in <1nother state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the-same work experience, is not eligibleforlicensure. 

• Nearly ail states- require experience for initial licensure ;ind the majority of slates allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out o f state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The ,u, re ril 11ropo, ed regulation will cack on an additional 10 year post -lfcensure experience requirerneni for 

a tot al (average) of 18 years needed for Californi;i reciprocity. This change will continue. to marginalize many talented professionals. 
• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not ~allege educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

thei r licensure, candidat es for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that lf we deem our Architect!. 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinat ions 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jur isdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in C~Hforhia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examinat ion 
provided that t he candidat e submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicant s at 
the time of application; or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Street Address (optional) 

CC: California Archi tects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgul re@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senator.mcgu1re@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals wit h varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and w elfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed l andscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the nat ional Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eliglble for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for init ial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licemure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if w e deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of appl ication; or 

{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 4 ., A 
Sincerely, , -:> ,'? _/ ~ -, .,, / ,/J __,;-/ . 

15.. u 1✓A < a I<. _,,-I 111, M-e.L-- //2 1~1 el /{. -=k~ 
Printed Name Signature 

I C! --/-/ V . ,- 5 4 IL. fr-, q~ C/9-z._ 
Date City State Zip Code 

CC: Californfa Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


---

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additfonal 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Ne3rly all states require experience for initial lfcensure and the majority of state:; allow lice.nsure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are senerally eligibh: for ou.t of i;tate litensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engine.ers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in california as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of applicationi or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, l c)J /'LQ_ .,.-
Prited ~~?11(A__ ~ 00 n~-e 
Street Address (optional) Date aty State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Afrairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



f lMC.t( Lt cf 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 

currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to Ii censure not available in California. California fails to recognize educat ion outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change rs also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licer\Sed individual. regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals a.re already· licensed 
and by definition are c~mpetent and. capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a pe1son may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate ,n 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 ye;ir 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related s1,1bject matter, who is licensed in another st;l.te by having passed the same Exam .ind having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licens1,1re. 
• Nearly all states req1,1ire experience for,nltlal licensure and the majority of states allow licer\5ure en the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
P,rior to el(llmination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a. totaJ (average) of l8 years ne.,ded for California reciprocity, This change wilJ, continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engin~ers who are.not college edllcated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that priltllege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are., the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
{l) A candidate. who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written exam·ination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recogni?ed accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last S years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Printetrame \ 

c:3ix.l2 e9 :{ (\ \ tD 
Street Address (optional) 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Oepartme.nt of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James G;,llagher 

https://c:3ix.l2


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to Jicensure not available in California. California falls to recogni;;:e education outside of 
l andscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and cornbina!fons of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed reculat ion w111 require any out-of-stale licensed ii,div,dual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain -an 
addi tional 10 years of po~t-llcensure pr;ictice e-'IJlerience to be gronted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competenrand capable of ensuring t.he he;il th, safety, and welfare of publ1c-1he primary concern ofi;censure, 

In Cali fornia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certific-ate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passin~ the natio11al Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

8achelor's Oeeree, regardless of related subject mMter, who is licensed in another slate by having passed the s'ame Exam and havlng 
the same work experience-, Is not eHgible for l1censure, 

Nearly all states require expeJience for lnl tTal Ii censure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of c~aml nation and 
expericn,e alone. Persons are genernlly eligible for out of state llrnnsure upon \lemon~trallng an aver:ine of 8 y~ars cxperiMC~ 

prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional lO yc.ir 110,t-J;ccnsure expencnce· requirement for 

a to tal (average) of l8 years needed for cal/fprnfa rccin(oci ty. This change will continue to ma,glnalize many talented professlonals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not colleee educat C.'d or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landsc~pc ArchitecttJre are vat afforded that privilege. It seems deal that If we dc~rn our Architects 

and Engineers who 3re noL col lege educated to be a~ qualified as those V1ho are, the same should hold true for L~nd$capc Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a wri tten examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required ln California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the ca.ndidate submits verifiabledocumentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience -equivalent to that required of California .applicants at 
the time of applicat ion; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a val id license or registration fn good st
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

anding, and has been practicing or offering 

CC: California Architects Board. cab@dca.ca,gov Oepartm~nt or Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, ,~n•tor.mcguTre@senate.ca.go, Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman J,m Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

C}IILO 
Street Address (optional) City 

<1:r-111 
Zip Code 

mailto:senator.mcguTre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the tmportance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensore due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who wou.ld not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory l.inguage change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is o ut of context because these States have a 
mult itude of paths to licensure not available in California, California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture., however both States upon which the. proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of el<perience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Californi;i's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state llcenst!d individual, regardlen of education or e,perienc~, to obrain an 

additional JO years of post-llcensurt! practice experience to be granted Qilifornla reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definit ion are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of l1ccnsure. 

In California a person may become a licensed landscape Archi tect if they nave earned a 2 year Associates Dcg1e<! or Certlficate in 

Landscape Architecture along wi1h proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person w,th a 4 year 

O.ich~lor•~ Degree, reaardle}s of related subject m~tter, who is licensed In another state by having pa1sed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

Ne;1rly all states require experience for inltial lkepsurc and the majority of states allow liccnsurc on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are gener-aHy eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstratfng an average of 8 years expenence 

prior to examlnatlon, The current proposed regulatlon will tack on .in additlonal 10 year post-licensure expNience lequrrement for 

a tot<1I (average) or 18 yrars needed for California reciprocity. This change will cbntlnue to margir,aliie mony talented professi onals 

While California Archilccts and Ci'vil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects m11y obtain 

their licensure, canqldates for Landscape Archltcctum are n(lt afforded that privilege, II seems clear thatlf we deem our Architects 

and Engineers-who are not college ~ducated. to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true forlandscapc Arehilect~. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

( 1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian provlnoe, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verlfiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registratfon in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degr_ee from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, b,r \,<.~""'\i,('o..r ~ 
~ ~ --=+._:__:..:.:....:~-v.---=-------_..:'-f1~ ,P.--===--------
P r int c d Name 

l'=>S5 ¼"-.ot 
Stre.etAddress (optional) State 

CC: California Archi tects Board, cab@dca.ca .gov Department of Consum.er Affairs Offkc of the Governor 
sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr 
Assemblyman Jfm Wood Assemblyman Jame; Gallag~er 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Comri,ittee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our dally lives. There are 
currently members or the public who are as qualified as their Cal!fornia licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasinglv restrictive policies; over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps In the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent Is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available In California. California falls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed l;mguage is based allow Licensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's: Architects and Civil Engineers: who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 
I oppose the following inequities in t he current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed rC£dlJllon will require any out,ol,state llcM1ed Individual, resardten ol education 01 e~perience, 10 ob1a1n an 
additional lOyears or Polt-llcensure practice erocr]ence 10 be gr.anted Callfornla reciprocity. These lndlv!duah are already licensed 
and by delinlllon are competent and c.;pable ol ensuring the health, nle1y. and welfare ol public- the ~rimary concern ol ll~emure 
In Callfomla a pl'f1on may become a Ucensed l.andstllpe Att:hltecl II they have earned a 2 year A11oc1a1es Qegree or Ccrtlr,01e In 
landscape Architecture along whh proper war~ experience and 11a1slng the national bam, Currently a person whh a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regarllle11 of rcl.ited subject mal!er, who Is licensed In another state by ha,lng passed the same Exam and havtns 
•he-Same wor~ e,ocrlencc, Is net e!tglb!e lo, bccnsu1e. 
Nearly all slates require o .perlence lor inlllal llc,niure ~d tho m~lorltyof smes allow lkensure on the basis of e,o,amlnallon and 
e•perlence a!cne Persons are senenlly el,glble for out of state llcensure upon demon11ra1lng an average ol 8 year-$ experience 
prior 10 e~amlnatlon. The current proposed regu!;itlon will tack on an addlllonal 10 year post-llccnsure e•perlcnce requirement lor 
a total (averagel of 18 years needed for Callloml~ re<lprocily. This chinge wUI conllnu~ lo marglnallze many talented professionals 
Whtie Callfornl~ /\rchilecu and CMI £nglneers who are r.ot college educ.led or who have degrees In related subjccu may obtain 
their llcensure, candidate1 for l.lndsapc Architecture are not afforded tl:at pr,vllege.11 seemt clear that II we deem our Archltecu 
and Engineers who are not college educated 10 b, as qualllied as these who ar~. the same should hold true tor undscape ArchlCfClS 

I request t he following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the california Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form or Examinations 
(1) A cantJidate who is licensed as a landscape architeclin a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantlallv equivaient In scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be ellglble for licensure upon passing the California Supplemenral Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate posse.sses education and experience equivalent to that required of Califqrnla applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good st;inding. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the l?St 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offer,ing 
profession al services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

S1teet Addres~ {cptlonal) Stat~ Zip 

CC: calllornla Archlteccs Board, cab@dca.c~.gov Oepanmenc of Consumer /\ffalf'I Office or the Go,crnor 
Sen. M ike McGuire, senacor .mcgulre@lsenale.c.i.&011 Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G, Brown Ir. 
/1.SlemblymanJlm Wood Asiemblvm;;n James Gallagher 

Code 

https://pr,vllege.11


Public Com.ment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 10~ Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landi cape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to e)(isting e)(clusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for lkensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California . California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

lhe proposed regulation wlll reqllire any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Califomla reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 
and by definiiion are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensurc. 
In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Arc~itect lf they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landsmpe Architecture along with proper work experience and pas~ing the national Exam. Currently a person with-a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and h,ving 
the same work experience, is ,not eligible for licensure. 
Nearly all states requlre experience for ·Initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years exper1ence 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additlonal 10 year post.llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California rcciproclty. T,his change Will continue to marginalitc many talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
th~idlcensure, candidates fonandscape Arcl,itecturc are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear tt>at lfwe deem our Architects 
and Engineers who ijre not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(l) A candidate who ts licensed as a landsca.pe architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submit s verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

fs2c~ 
Zip Code 

CC; Califomia Architect~ Board', cab@dca.ca,gov D<!partment of Con sumer .Affair,; omce of tile Governor 
Sen. Mike McG1J ire, sena1or.mc5uire@senate,ca,gm1 Sena1m Jirn Nielsen Governor Enmund G. Brown Jr , 
Assembfyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gnilaghcr 

mailto:sena1or.mc5uire@senate,ca,gm1
mailto:cab@dca.ca,gov
https://landsca.pe


Public Comment; Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Callforn ia Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacram ento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed c.itizen who understands the importance of Landscape Archite~ure In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 

from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there a re currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape .Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individ\Jals- wi'th varying degrees ,md combinat ions of experience. 

The ptoposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are en'trusted with responsibilities as cri tical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

,he proposed regulatlon will require any out-of-stat<! license(! Individual, regardless of education or e,perience, to obtain an 

addlttonal 10 years of post-llcensure practice e,cperience to be granted California reciprocity. These Jndlvjduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable o.t ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the prima,y concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned;, 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Archltecture along with proper work eJ!perience and passing the natioral Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Ba<;heJor's Degree, regardless chelated subject matter, who Is licensed in another st;,te by having passed the same Exam and havlng 

the same work experience, is not elislble for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow liccn.sure on the basis of examin.atlon and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out ot state hcensure upon demonslrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The CtJrrent proposed regulation will t>ack on .n additional 10 year posr-ltcensureexperience requirement for 

a tolal I average) or 1,8 year~needed for Calffomla reciprocity. This cilange will continue to rnarglrial[re ll)any talented professionals 

While California Architects and Civil 'Englneers who are not college educated or who have degrees fn related subjects f113Y obtain 

their llcensure, candidate, for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clearthat ii we deelll our Archl\ects 

and Engl neers who are nor college educated to be as qualified as ttiose who are, the Silme should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

.(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect ln a u_s. jurisdict ion, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passecl a written examination substantially equivalentin scope anti subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for Ucensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits v.erifiable documentation to_ t he Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience ·equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of a1,?Plication; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institut ion. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid l icense or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years, 

Sincerely, -':::G:!...'=:'.o.~r'-.+.!.A~\....!..) _s,e.,.~vi:2J,,6~0::!.:V-O...~,.!:tl1l:,>~-~::S_~~~'.'...L2!.....l~::!:::l...~Vi.~..:a!:::~:'.'.'. LJ:-,,1, 1' !;StJA 
Printed Nam 

~ r e.Jt"'-01-\.t~La. c 9SG72.. 
Srreet Address (optional) State Zip Code q ;-;~ /2-o l lc, Clt'f 

HO La P\-\ A_i'-{~ 
j 6 \-ITINq 

CC: C31ifornia Architects Board, G1b@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, scnator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov senator Jim Nielsen Gover~or Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator,mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Publlt Comment Proposed Regulatory Language He~ring September 27, 2016 

September 22, 2016 

Attn: Kourtney Nation 
Californfa Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Def Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
fatc@dca.ca.gov 

Dear Landscape Archite.cts Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our dally lives, There are currently members of the 
public who are as qualified as their Cantornla licensed counterparts that are being barr.ed from obtaining licensure due to existing eitclusronary 
regulatfons. Also. due to Increasingly restrlclive policies, over 
lime, there are ct1rrentlyCA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify tor Hcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps rn the right direction, borrows prec09ent from New York and Arizona, 
however this precedent is out of context because these States have a mllttitude of paths to llcensure not available In California. Oalifomls, falls lo 
recogni2e education outside o! Landscape Archltecture, however both Stales upon which the proposed language is based allow Wcens·ure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of ~xperience. 

The proposed change ls also ol.!1 of step wl.th standards shared by Califomfa's Architects and Civil Engfneers who are entrusted with responsibifities as 
critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 
I oppose the following Inequities In the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed' reguJaUon will requlr&any out-of-state licensed individu<1I, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an addiilor,al 1 O 
years of post-llcensure. practice expetience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed and by definition are 
competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In Callfomia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if 1hey ha,ve earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Archit.ecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year ·Bachelor's 
Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and, having the same work 
experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearty all states require experience for Initial llcensure and 1he majority of state.s allow licensure on the basfs of examination and experience 
alone. Persons are generally eligible for out o1 state llcensura upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to 
examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 O year post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 
18 years needed for CaUfomla reciprocity. This change WIii contlnue 10 marglnaflze many talented professionals. 

• While California Arch1tects and Civil Engineers who are not college educaled or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain their 
llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seams clear that If we deem our Architects and Eng•ineers 
who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold 1rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to emend Callfornla Code of Regulations, Tille 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615" be Implemented e.nd approved by the Cellfomla Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonm ol Examinations 
(1) A candidate Who Is licensed as a landscape aTQhitect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Aioo by having passed a written 
exam !nation substantially equivalent In scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be eligible tor ficensure upon 
passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candldate submits verlflable documenlatlon to the Board Indicating: 

/Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants al 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or reglst.rat1on In go® standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution. and has been practicing or offering professional serv1C8§ for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate ho)ds a yalld license or registration In good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CC: 
Callfomla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Department of Consumer Affairs, dca@dca.ca.gov 
Senator Jim Nielsen, senator.nlelsen@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman James Gallagher, Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov 
Senator Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood, assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov 
Office of the Governor, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

mailto:assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembty.ca.qov
mailto:senator.nlelsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:dca@dca.ca.qov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
http:individu.il
mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining Jicensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Ariiona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in Cali fornia. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change i's also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted w ith responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the followihg inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The prQposed regulation will require any out•of0 state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experrence, to obtain an 
additional IO years of post•lkensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition J1re competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern or II censure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect lfthey have earned a 2 year Associa.tes Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, ls not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally ellglbl@ fornut of state licensure upon demonstrating an aver;ig(! of 8 years experience 
prior to examln.1!ion. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experfence requirement for 
a total (average) ol 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented prolesslonals, 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not coliege educated or who have r,legrees In related subJects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I ret1uest the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Californi·a as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or · 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering:professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, '.J:>N A1H f\,J S M A NfR 
Printed Name 

2G~ f.. '11 Av[ cA 9s-12( 1, 
Street Address (optional) Oate State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office o f \he Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA. 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of l andscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly resWctive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language Change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this prece.dent is out of conte)(t because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed languag~ is based allow Li censure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. · 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibil ities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require al\y out-ol-state licensed individual, regardless or education or experience, t.o obtain an 
addltlonat 10 years of post-Ileen.sure practice e•perlence to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capab'l'e ofensuring the health, salety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of ilcensur;,. 
In California a person, may become a Licensed Landscape Architect ii they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certillcate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper workf:J(perience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
.Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject mauer, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for lief!nsure. 

Nearly a ll stat es require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of S'years e~perlence 
prior to e~amlnatlon. ihe current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-'licensure experience requirement for 
a total {avt!fage) ol 18 years needed for California reciprocity. Thi~ chance will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who l\ave degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects. 

and Engineers who are nol college educated to be as qualified as those who ate, the same should hold true for Landscape Architect.$. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form ·of Examinations 
(1) A candi date who is licensed as a land'scape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passin_g the California Supplemental Examination 
provided thatthe candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses educat ion and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; o r 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address {optfonal) Date City State 'Zlp Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Oepartment of Consume, Affairs Of lice of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate .ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assernblyrnan Jtrn Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Archit ects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California f aTJs to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsiblllties as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These i11dlviduals are already licensed 

and by defi11ition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare or public~ the primary concern of licensure. 

In california a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have ea(ned a 2 year Associates De.Bree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a per-son with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of relaled subject matter, who is licensed in another ~tate by having passed the $3me €,cam.ind having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure, 

Nearly all states require experience for Initial llcensure and the majority or state, allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

exper-ience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out o f state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior t o e~amination. The current proposed regulation will t~ck on an additional 10 year post-Ii censure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. Thls change will continue io marglnallze many talented professionals. 

While (alrfomia Architects and □vii Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ir we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educ;lted to be as qualiffed as.ihose who are, lhe same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate Who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter requir.ed In California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for l icensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate s.ubmits verifiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, ~tf Q. 
r,n ed ame 

Street Address {optional) 

CC: Callrornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov iJepa~ment of Consumer Affairs Office oi the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca,gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assen,blymanJlm Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://requir.ed


-

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Archit ects Board 
landscape Archit,ects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who ate as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive pollciesJ over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New Yotk arid Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Ar~hitecture, however both St;ites upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed lndl11ldual, regardless of education or c~perience, to obtafn an 
additional 10 years of post, llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These. lndl11i<;tuals are already licensed 
and by definition a re competent and c.ipable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may becowe a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture alone with proper work experience and passing the natlonal Exam. Curr~ntly a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of rela1ed subject matter, who is licensed l'n another state by 1la11lng passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience>, Is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow ·licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of .state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. Tile current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure e~perlence requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity, This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civ11 Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees ln related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and fogineers who are not college educated t o be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 7615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for Ii censure upon passing the. California Supplemental Examinat-ion 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that regulr.ed of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a r_ecognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good.standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, :X, V\J&.$ ~ C {e_ 
Printed' Name 

Street Address (optional) 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Gov,ernor 
Sen. Mike McGu'ire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jfm Wood Assemblyman James .Gallagher 

https://regulr.ed


Sincerely, 

Printed Namel Signature 

· 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California l!censed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining !!censure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps In the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arrzona, however this precedent is out of conte)(t because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensyre 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-.of-state licensed Individual, regard lass of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-liccnsure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These lndivlduals are already licensed 

and by deOnition are competent and capable of ensuring thenealth, safety, and w elfare or public.- the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing t he national Exart), Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who I~ licensed 1n another state by having passed the same E"xam and having 
the same work experience. Is not eligible for Hcensure. 

Nearly all states require.experience for initial llcensurc and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an aver.,ge of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The curren~ proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experlenc.e requfrement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California recipro~lty. This change will continue to marginalize many talented profess1o~als. 

While California Architects and Cfvil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llccnsure1 candidates for Landscape Architecture are not affor,jed lhat prfvilege. It seems clear .that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated· to be ;is qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdictioh, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examina:tion 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(8) Candidate holds a valld license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. e~--a-. 

k -l5cr, 
State Zip Co e 

CC; California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Olnce of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood AssemblyrTJan James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgu1re@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily llves. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are bein~ barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing e;,tclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for Ii censure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals With varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step With standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers w ho 
are ent rusted w ith responsibilities as critkal to ensuring the public's health, safety1 and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed r~gula lion wlll require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-lie.ensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competeni and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of !lcensure. 

In ,California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture a lof1g with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a Rerson with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of rela ted subject mailer, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work e;cperlence, is not eligible for !icensure. 

Nearly all states require rucperlence for initial Jiccnsure and the majorlty of stales allow lrcensuri? o n the basls of examination and 
e~pcrlence, alo'ne. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of B years e~perlente 
prior to examination. The current proposed reeulation wll( tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. Thfs change will continue to marginalize many talented prof11sslonals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not col.lege educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear thar If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quaHfied as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate wtio is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written e;,taminatlon substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the Caiifornia Supplemental Examination 
provided that the .ca.ndidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience eguivalentto that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. " 

Sincerely, ~I.,."' 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optlonal) 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca,ca.gov Deparlment of Consumer Affairs Office of the·Govemor 
Sen, Mike McGuire, seriator. rncguire@senate,ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment; Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed c'itizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining_ licensure due to eitisting exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however thls precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to Hcensure not available in Cali fornia. California fails to recognize. .education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals wi th varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

lhe proposed regul~tion will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competerit and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and well are of public-1he primary concern of llcensure. 

to California a person may bec-0me a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a.2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along w ith proper worll.eJCperience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for lnillal llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basts of examination and 

experlencj! alone. Persons are gener;,lly eligible for out of state 11,ensure upon demonstrating an ave~ge of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. ihe current proposed regulation will tack on an addition al 10 year post-II censure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity; lhls change will continue to marglnaliw many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Ovil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Arcilitecture are not afforded that privilege. It seerrts clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualifled as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent In scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, • / 1 G "11 b 
!V~ci~~ ~o i~~O"h 

Printed Name 

(.,u, «2, 'Ptin.7 Lo..VL 
Street Address (optronalJ 

Cf lu. h, 
Date 

Slgnature 

?o-r~;v.... 
City 

CA 
State 

ciG,o/ 
Zip Code 

CC: Callfomia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. M ike McGuire, scnator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
AsscmblymanJfm Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Ofnce of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



-

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architectl!re in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their catifornia licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensvre today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths 'to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-st.ite licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California· reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 
and by deOnitlon are competent and capable of ensuring the heallh, safely, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In Callfornra a person may become a Uce()Sed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landsc.ipe Architecture along wjth proper work experience and passing·the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is llcensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
.the same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require-experience for initial II censure and the majority of stales allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
e~perience alone. Persons are ,generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average or 8 yeafl experience 
prior to e~aminatlon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-!icensure e~perlence requirement for 
a total (averase) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marsinalize many talented profosslonal.s. 
While California Architects and Ovll Engineers who are not college·educated or who have degrees In related subjecls may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that prlvllege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architecu 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified .is those who, ale, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I re.quest the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or / 
C candidate holds a valid license or re istration in cod standin cticin or offenn / -

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. ,,_ ~ 
/,, .• 

,' ~ , 

Sincerely, ~IT 5 - e ' -~ 
Printed Name 

9-U-i6 C4 '15"173 
Street Address (optlonal) Date Sr;ate Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board. cab@dca,ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senat-or Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:reguir.ed


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects iechnical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasing_ly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals With varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Californfa's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfore. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation wlll require any out-of-state ·ucensed indMdual, regardless of education or ex"perience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure practite experience to be granted california reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have eatned a i year Assoclates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless o f related subject matter, who ls licensed In another state by having passed the sa me Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for i~lllal llcensure and tl\e majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Perjtms are generally eligible for cut of state lie ensure upon demonstrating an average Of B years experience 

p(lor to examination. The current proposed regulation w.111 tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average I of 18 years needed for California redprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While C31lfornia Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for landscape Arct,ltecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who arc not college educated to be as qualified as those who·are, the same sbould hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations; Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for lic:ensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board.indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applfcants at 
the time of.application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or,offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name OJ ~ / / Signature I) LJ 

:11--"[ [_ Cir~.~ o y Pe iD ~~le /IIR Gt,~.~1 t/2j C frs·t•te 
1 

~Zip co7cte,f' Street Address '(Qptlonal) a ., v 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.go, Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Su.ite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their california licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context becauS"e these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers Who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation Will require any out-of-state licensed lndlvldual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Califomla reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capab.le of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect lrihe\l have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experfence and passing the national Exam. Currently a person wlth a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the,same.workexperlence, is not eligible forllcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on ihe basis of examlnatlon and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon derrionmatlng an average of 8 years experience 

prior to e~amination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requfrement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California retlproclty. This Change will continue \o rnarglnallze many ta(ented professionals. 
WIJile California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educa~ed or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licen,ure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Arehitecjs 
and Engineers who are not college edllcated to be as quallfied ;is those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate Possesses education and experience .equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been. practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years: or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10-vears. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name SJ'gnature 

-.J---+f ...L..L..:L:..:L:::::- ~vl.....:l....:...t...J.._ _ __,1--1-=>---/-C-/_b __ c.=-:..i--\..:...,-=c._o_· ___ c_A __ ~'-1-=·2 G 
City State Zip Code 

CC: C3llfomia ArchltectscBoard, cab@dca.ca.gov Department al Consumer Aflalrs Ofllce of the Governor 
Sen. M1ke McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
/\Ssemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Ga!iagher 

http:senator.mcgulre@senate,ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
https://capab.le


Public Comment; Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatorv language. change, though tal<ing steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however thi's precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for indivTduals with varying d,egrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed reguJations: 

The proposed regulation will require any Ol!t-of-state licensed lndlvfdual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 yeatsof post-lleensure practl,cc experience to be granted California reciprocity. Tlleselndivlduals are already licensed 
and by dennition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare or public - the primary concern of licensure. 
In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certlflcate In 
Landscape Architecture along With proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another stale by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not ellglblc for llcensure. 
Nearly all states require experience for lnltlal licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examlnatlM and 
experience alone. Persons are gener811y e!Jglble for out of state Htensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulatron will tack ,on an.additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professiona ls. 
While California Architects and Ovll Engineers.who are not college educated or who have degree.s In related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that ffwe deem our Architect$ 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Arch'ltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be elfgible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
t he time of application: or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institutlon, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last.5 years; or 
{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. . ? 
Sincerely, ,1 1 }' _ 1 ( /) 

'-.J'>Sf Lo Z,,, , '1.ILl/1 , 'ftf'J-
Printed Name ~lgnalufe 

(]./} .. 9 1/1€1/Cll, > 1=; 9~961 
Street Address (optional I City State Zip Code 

CC: CaliforoJa Architects Board, .,ib@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Offret> of the Governor· 
Sen. Mike McGuire, scnator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood ASsemblymari James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts tl'\at are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking-steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in Catlfornia. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of.state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-1\censure practice experience to be granted California recjproclty. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition ale competent and c;ipable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary coi:icern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have eamed·a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience, and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless o f related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experl ence, is not eJigibJe forllcerm.1rc. 

Nearly all states require experience for lnltlal llcensure and the majority of s tates allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addltlonal 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) o( 18 years needed forCalifomla reciprocity. This change will continue to marB1nallze many talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are 1101 college educated or who have degrees In related subJects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture. are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that H we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated lo be as qua)lfied as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board; 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rfco by 
having passed a written el<arnination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shalt be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California appl1cants at 
the time of application;. or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, Q .u-- -:--c- o \ I)fe, , '-Jo..v\f\e5 ~ev\. U..V' 
Printed Name 

I SUo h ves.J ~c;,l, {;JA7 Cf-i,--20/i; 1S'/:{2 
Street Address (optional) Date State, Zip Code 

CC: Callfornia Architects Board, cab@d'ca•.ca,gov Oepartmeol or Consumer Affairs Offke of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

landscape. Architects Technical Committee 
2420 .Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our dally lives. There are 

currently members of the public who are as qualified as tneir California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining l icensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practidng who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to Hcensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for"individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted w ith responsibilities as critical to ensuring the. public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The p,oposed regulation will ,~quire any out-of-state licensed individual, regardle&s of educatron or experience·, to obtain an 
additlonal 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted c:allfornia reciproclty. These Individuals are already licensed 
and by definition a re competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of publlc - the primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certincat~ in 
Landscape Ard,ltecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Curtently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Deg,ee, regardless of related subject matter, who ls licensed In another state by having passed the same EJcam and having 
Jhe same work experience, ls not eligible ror llcensure. 

Nearly all states ,equire expetlcnce for Initial licensure and the majority-of sta t·es allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience a!Qne, Pers,;,~ are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon (lemonstrallng an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulatlon will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
~ total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
tl)elr llcensure, candidates for landscape Atchitecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rtco by 

having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accreditedJnstitution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at I·east 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature 

""' rV/o, S Mt ? ~/f l) 
Street Address (optlon3l) City Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consume, Affairs Oflice of t he Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ta.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public w ho are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California falls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed reeulatlon will require any·out-or-state licensed indlvldual, regardless of education or eJ<perfence, to obt.afn an 
additional 10 years of post-llcens.ure practice experience to be granted California rec\proclty. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health. safety, and welfare cif public-the primary concern of If censure. 
In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assoc1ates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the natlonai Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is llcensed in another state by having pas.sed the same EKam and having 
the same work e~perlence, ls not eligible for lkensure. 

Nearly all states require e~perfence for Initial licensure and the majority of slates allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experlenrn alone. Persons are generally el!gible for out of state llcensure upon demonstl'llting an aver.ige of .8 years e~pe1ience 
prior to ekaminatlon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an ildditional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California r!!clprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and dvil engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obt.ln 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qu.lified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Re.gulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who ls licensed as ,;1 landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for Ii censure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2. of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good st
professional servlces for at least 6 of the last 10 years, 

anding, and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optional} Date City State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Orflce of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:educated.or


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Pas-a Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent ls out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in Californ!.i, California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed lc1nguage is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will requlre,my out-of-5tate licensed Individual, regardless of educ.atlon .or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent arid capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates 0egree or Certificate in 
Landst<1pe Architecture ijf'ong with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a persorn with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another sta.te by hilVing passed the same Exam and having 
the same-work e>lperience, is not eliglble for licensure. 
Nearly all states require experience for ·Initial licensure and the majority of states allow I/censure on 1he basis or examl~atlon and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of stale llcensure upon demonstrating an average <if 8 years experience 
prior to exan,ination. The current proposed regulation wUI lack on an addltioMI l0yearµost•licensure e~perlence requirement for 
a total (ave/age) of 18 years needed for Californla reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many lalanled professionals, 
Whlle California Architects and Civil Englrieers who are not c.ollege educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that lfwe deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Archltecl5. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Divis.ion 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
'having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the -Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, ·and has been practiting or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years: or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last10 years. 

Sincerely, ?c:.Q~ ~\t:(J~ 
Printed Nal))l: I " ,n+ Signature 
L.\ tL C t.-J . <;1 l 1-li~ 

'Street Address (o.ptional) Date Oty State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Oepartmenl of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
https://educ.atlon.or


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen w ho understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations. of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted With responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The pro)losed reg-1,Jlation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtiln an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be gr;mted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may .become a licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the. national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another s t.ate by having.passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experienc•e. for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
e,cperlence alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating .n average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regula1ton wJII tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure •experience requirement for 
a total (aver~ge) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This chance Will continue to marg1nalize many talented professlon~ls. 
Whlle California Architects and·Clvll Engiheers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear tb.t if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educ.ited 10 be as qualified as those who a re, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations-

(!) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Cali fornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application: or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing .. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or regist ration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. Ca /' 
Sincerely, C..ur+,s ihol<1r }!-4/.,, 0~---

...,,. 
Printed Nanie ,Siynature 

L,'1 ((,0 l /t 
Street Address (optional) Date CitV State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board·, cab@dc.i.ca.gov 
Sen. Ml~e McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.c.i.gov 
Assem~lyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer A!lairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyma11 James Gallaglier 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives, There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. A'lso, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify far licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Laflguage change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California, California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare, 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation w\\\ require any out-of-~tale licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be grant-ed California reciprocity. These lndlvidua\s are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the heallh, safety, and welfare o f public - the primary concern of \lcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect If they· have earned a 2 year Associa\es Degree or Certiflcate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bacilelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require exp~rJen~e for i~lti~l lfcensure and the majority of states allow If censure on the basis or examination and 
experience alone. Persons are .generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an addrtlonal 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) ol 18 years needed for California reciprocity. Ttiis change will tontinue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects-and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain, 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded t hat privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
~nd Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true fo, Landscape ,\rchitec:ts. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 'S years: or 
(C} Candidate holds a valid license or registratlon_in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, V {f..;~u_ S <;(;L. C-h tth d l .i,tr I ft__(] (~ 
Printed Name vSlgnature 

q /2 fQ / I 'e 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: Californ1a Arch'ltects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of th~ Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.sov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown k 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.sov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
cvrrently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts 'that are being barred 
from obtaining licer'tsure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the publlc's health, safety; and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed reg-ulatlon will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-li censur·e practice experience to be gr.lnted California reciprocity. These Individual) are already lkensed 
and by de fin Itron are· competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public~ the primary concern of llcensure. 
In Callfornia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national EJl;in,. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject mauer, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and Jiaving 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of st;ite Jicensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addition al to year post•licensure experience requirement for 
a total {average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. l'his charige wlll continue 10 marginalize many talented pro/esslonals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees ·1n related subjects may,obtaln 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that prtvllece. It seems dear tliat if we deem our Architec!-5 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallfTed as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Archltec1·s. 

I request the following revised langua,ge to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdfction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited lnstitution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, ML 1Jo1 'rttJ-5 
Printed Nam.e Signature 

<{ 0) CY Pl'tf55 'l,U,, ,~ (tt-t CO C..J-
Street Address (op1lonal) Date City State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@ldca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical 'Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Archite.cture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee1s proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language. ls based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Californi a's Architects and Clvil Engineers who 
are entrusted w ith responsibilities as critical to ensuring the publk's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, rega·rdless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional IO years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of emu ring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have. earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work e~perlence and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 yea, 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
'the same work experience, Is not eligible for llcensure. 
Nearly all states requlre experience for Initial lkensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examlnatl<>n and 

ekperience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out, of state licensure upon demonstrating ;in average of8 years experience 
prior to exarninatioo. The curref\t proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

Wt,ile California Archlteqs and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have de.grees in related subjects may obt.iin 
their )!censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who;ire, the same should hold-true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examlnc1t ions 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
t-iaving passed a written examination s1,1bst;:mtia!ly equivalent in scope .ind subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a r.ecognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last s years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registratlon in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, V \ S. 
PrlnJ~: 

CA clS9~ ~ 
Signature 

C,\,\, c._c;) 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of I.he Governor 
Sen. Ml~e McGylre, senator.mcgulre@sena1e.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governpr Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualrfled as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to el(isting exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps In the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon whfch the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with staridards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's heafth, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

lhc proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
addltlonal 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Calllornia reciprocity. These. Individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the heallh, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern ol licensure. 
In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assoclates Degree or Cert1ncate In 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and vasslng the national Exam. Currently a personwith a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardle~ of related subject matter, who is licensed in ano\her state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Js not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure 011 the basis or examination and 
experlence alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state. licensure upon i;lemo!\strating an-average or 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
., total (average) of 18 years needed for California reclproclry. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
Whlle California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees Tn related subjects may obtain 
their llrensure, candidates for Landstape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architect.s 
and Engineers. who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the s.ame should hold true for l andscape Architects . 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent rn scope and subject matter requir,ed in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses educatioh and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degre~ from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S vearsj or 
C Candidate holds a valid licens·e or ,re irtration In ood standin or offerin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CC: Californla Architects Ooard, cab@dca.ca,gov Department of Consumer Affairs Olflce of the Governor 
Sen. Ml~e McGuire, senator.mcguire@scnate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) Oate City 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the imp_ortance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as quali fied as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regufatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multit1,1de of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognfze education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation wlll require any out-of-state llcensed lndlvldual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure ptactlce experience to be granted Callfornla reciprocity. The~e individuals a re already licensed 
and by definition a re competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare o f public-the primary concern of Hcensure, 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landsc.ipe Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certlflcate in 

Landscape Architecture along With proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with .i 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related 5ub1ect matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for llcensu1e. 

Nearly all states require expericnC1? for Initial Ii censure and the majority of states allow Ileen.sure on the basis of examination and 
experience a lone. Persons are generally e ligible for out of state l!censure upon demonstrallng an average of S years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addltlonal 10 year post-I/censure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of, 8 years needed for C-allforhla reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
While californla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates lor Landscape Archltectute are no\ afforded ·that prlvifege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true lor Landscape Arc'hltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examjnations 
(1) A candidate who !s licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required In California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or -offering 
professlon<!I services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincereiy, 

Printed Name Slgnaturb" t? 

/t?.r Nwft.(11 f2w Jv1: Cf./JrO [A 
Street Address (opt-lanai) City State Zfp Code 

CC: Callfornla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Ml~e McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator iim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Blown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman fames Gal!.1gher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technica, Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the Importance of landscape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are befng barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safetv, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any 11ut--0f-state licensed individual, regardh::ss of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-l!censure practice experience to be granted California r11.clprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Ucensed Landscape· Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work e~perience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and halling 
the same wor1< experience, Is not eligible for llce11s11re, 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generalfy eliglble1or out of state Ileen sure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

priprto examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 yeu post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Callfomla reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented profeHlonals. 

• White California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are no~ afforded that prtvllege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of applicatlon: or 
(B} candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's depee from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, f) l/j 4 o.. _, u,, J rfht)e . '=l /::r~ ; 
Signature. Printed N.il'e \/I,,. ft (xtL 

30u uJw , , 1o;un ~ . IQ!wo-iJ),{ 414: 
Street Address (opl'lonal) City State 

CC: Caltfornla Architects Board, cab@dca,ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. M ike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator .llm Nielsen Governor Eclmund G. Brown .lr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Galia,gl)er 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Commltte.e 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. callfornla fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 
I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation wlll require aiw out--of-state licensed lndlvldual, regardless of education or eKperience, to obtain an 
addlUonal 10 years ofpost-licensure practice experience to be eranted Califomla reciprocity. These lndivlduab are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the heal th, safety, and welfare of public-t.he primary concem of llcensure. 

In Callfornla a person may become a Ucensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Assodates Degree or Certlfkate In 

Landsc.ipe Archltocture along with proper work experience and passing the mltlon~I Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Decree, regardless of related subject matter, who is llcensed In another state by having passi,d the same Exam and havlnR 
the same work CJC~r ience, Is not ellglble forlicensure. 

Nearly all stat~ require e1<perlenC\' for Initial llccnsure and the ma/orlty of states allow licensurc on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating ;n average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed r~ulatlon will toe~ on an additional 10 year post-ricen&uri, c~pcricnce rcquiri,mcnt for 

n total (average) of 18 years needed For CaUfomla reclptoclty, This change \viii continue to marslnallze many talented professionals. 

While Callfomla Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college educ.ired or who h11ve degrees In related subJeCls may obtain 

their Ii censure, c.indldates for Landscape Archltectllfe arc not afforded that privlleg~ It seems clenr that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineen who are not college educ.itcd to be as qualified as those who arc, the same should hold true for la!ldscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the califomia Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who Is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S, jurisdlctlon, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination ·substantially equivalent ih scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by t he Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

-22--lt 
State Zlp Code 

CC California Architects Board, cab@dc.i.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Ofnce ofthe Governor 
Sen. Mike McGIJlre, senator.mcgulrt@senat c.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman lames Gallagher 



4 (1l1 I I LP 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suit e 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who 1.1nderstands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our dally lives. There are 
currently-members of the public who are as qualified as their California llcensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to e>cistlng exclusionary regulations. Also, due to Increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA l icensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of conte><t because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available in California. Califomia falls to recognize education outside of 
l"ndscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the followihg inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state ricensed lndlvidual, recardless of education or e,cperience, to obt.:tln an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure.practlce eJCl)erience. to be granted C..lilornla redprocl!y. These lndlvlduals are alreadv licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of e11surlng the health, safetv, and welfare of public -the primary concern of llcensure. 
In California a person may become a licensed L~ ndsc.ipe Architect If they have earni,d a 2 vear Associates Degree or CertlOcate In 
landscape Architecture along wlth proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currenttv a person with a 4 year 
Sad1elor's Degree, regardless of related subje<t matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same wor1< expertenc:e, Is not et{glble for licensure. 
Nearly .ill states requlra experience for lnltlol llccnsure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are gener.illyelielblc for out of slate !!censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examlnaUon. Toe ament proposed regulation will rock on .in additional :io year p0$t'liccnsurc cxpericn"• requirement for 
a total (average) of' 18 vcars needed for California reclprocltv. This change wtll continue to marginalize manv talented professionals. 
White Callfomla Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
lhetr ticensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear thM if we deem our Architects 
and Englnee rs who are not college educated to be as qualified as th~ who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Tit le 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A c_andldate who Is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a w ritten examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Californla as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board i ndicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience egulvalent to that required of CaJlfornla applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good stand
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

ing, and has been practicing or offering 

Sueel Address !optional) Date State Zip Code 

~/z2-/1 tp 

/7 
l, 

Sincerely, 

Printed Nam ~g 
I»~ oe JZ r/d{nature 

City k.EJ: 
tzf: Cl6tJ03 

CC: catifornla Architetts Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affair~ Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator_mcgulr11@sena.te-ca.gov Senator Jim Ntelsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr 
Assemblyman Jim Wood ASsemblvman James Gallacher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining lkensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly rest rictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps In the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available in California. California rails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language Is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by california's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibflltles as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the curtent and proposed regulations: 

The proposed reculatic>n will require any out-of-state licensed individual, rcgardles~ of educatlon or experieqce, to obtiln an 
add!llonal 10 years or p0$t-!lceruure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are 3lre3dV licensed 
and by deflnltlon arc competent and capable of ensuring tlle health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concem ofllcensure. 
In Callfomla a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned n 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the natlonal 0<am. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, reg;irdl~s of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for IJcensure. 
Neorly all states require experience for inltial llcan~ure and the majority or st:ites a'llow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state ficensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior lo examination. The current proposed regulaUon will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement For 
a total (average) or 18 years needed forCallfomla rctiprodty. Thls change wlll continue to marglnallte many talented profe.~slonars. 
While California Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees fn related subjects may obtain 
their llccnsure, candJdates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architet\5 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Arthltects. 

J request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
{1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jur{sdlction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required In California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 

racticin or offerln 

Sincerely, ·'0 I _ ,r: 
K oYJ, v" L\ vr1 e,,..,r 

Printe~ Name Signature 

Street Address {optional) Date. City Stale Zip Code. 

CC: California Architects Board, c.ab@dca.c~.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, scn3tor.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Con~umer Affufrs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Ir. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their Californ/a licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available In California. California falls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Llcensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crit ical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed lndMdual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California redproclty. Thes.e individuals ilre already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, sarety, and welfare of publfc - the primary concern of licen5Vre. 
In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect lf they have eamed a 2 year Assoclate.s Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work eKpertence and passing the national Exam. currently a perso11 with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work eMpertence, Is not elfg[ble for ilcensure. 
Nearly all states require experience for lnitlal llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
eMpcrlcnce alone. Persons are generally ellglbfe ror out of state llcensurc upon demonstrating an average of 8 years cMperlence 
prior to examination. Tile currenr proposl'd regulation will t1ck on 31\ additional 10 ve~r pod-lleenMc experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Californla reciprocity. This chance wlll continue to marginalize many talented professlonals. 
While C~llfornlo Architects and Civil Engineers who are not collece educated or who have decrees In related subjects may obtJln 

their lfcensure, candidates-for Landscape Archltec:ture .ire not afforded that privilege. It seems clear thar if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be asqualifled as those who arc, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(l) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Cailfornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California Supplement.ii E><amination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valfd license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practlcing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) 

CC: California Architects Bo;ird, cab@dca,Cil,80V Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nlelscn Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.c.i.gov
https://Supplement.ii


,e vt1 r.t I l.r cf 
Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 271 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currenlly members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language cfoinge, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available in California. Calffornla fails to recognize education outside of 
Land~cape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Ca!lfornla's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require. any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or 11xperlence, to obtain an 
addJ1lonal 10 years of post-llcensure pracllce e,perier,ce to be granted Calllornia rcclproclly. These lndlvldua~ are already llcensed 
and by deOnitlon are competent and capable of ensutlng lhl! health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of llcensurc. 
In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned n 2 year Associates Oeeree or Certillcate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper wor~ e•perlence and passlne the naltonal uam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Ex.am and having 
the same work experience, is not eflglble for llccnsure. 

Nearly all slates requireexperlerlce for Initial llcen1ure and the ma/otlty 111 states allow llccnsure on the basis-of examination gnd 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out ol stale Rcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to ew~mlnation. The current proposed recuiatlon will tack on ill! addlttonal 10 year posl•licensure e><perience requlremMt for 
a total (average) ol 18 years needed for Calilornla reclproclly. This change will continue to margln~lini many talented professionals. 
While Californlij Architects and Civil Englncers who are not collP-ge educated or who have decrees In related ~ubJects may obtain 
their llccnsure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded th.it privilege. It seems dear lhGt If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallRed as I hose who are, l he sanli' should hold trve for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of E,caminatlons 
(1) A ca11did,1te who Is licensed as a landscape archi tect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the california Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documenloition to the Board indicating: 

(I\) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been _practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valld license or re istratlon in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, / I . ,.,... a 
~ nt:t-r es. '-...l \,o P. E. 

Printed Name I ¼ Signalure 

-"'3-'-o--=-~-o _ _ ~:...__....::O..;..'f_;_V\.:...;7'r:.;:....::,e=c...=-D_ r __ ,o ___ k1/l_:;:;..,..\....,C._._.a,____ c.A 4 sc;-=,.-3 
Street Address (opllonal) O.le City State Zip Code 

q-z.&-1 ~ 
CC: Callfornla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Con5umer Affair~ Ofllte or the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGufre, sena1or,mcgulre@sena1.e.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblym~n James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senat.e..ca
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
http:T"'~_o_.,V\:1v'e::...Cc


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hear ing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architect s Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 10S Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their (alifornia licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing e>1clusionary regulations. Also, due to Increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Languaee change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California foils to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language Is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are ent rusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in t he current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed re11ulalian w ill requlre any out-ol,state licensed lndlvldual, regardless of educ.Jt ion or experience, to obtain an 

addttlonal 10 years of post-l(censure practice upertence to be sranted car.fornla reciprocity. These lndivldua~ are already llceMed 

ano by definition are competent and c.ipable of ensuring the health, safetv. and welfare of public -the primal'( concem of Ucensure. 

tn California a peuon may become a Licensed landsc.ape Architect If they have earnP.d a 2 year Associates Degree or C(,'rlfflcaui ln 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national E~am. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachcto,'s Degree, regardless of related svb]ecl matter, who Is licensed rn another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

t he same work e•perience, ,s no1 etigible for tltcnsure. 

Nearly all states require e•pcmence for fotlt.ll llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensurc on the basis of exam'"atlon and 

experi ence alone. Persons are generally eligible lor out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years ekperrcnce 

prior to ekamlnatlon. The current proposed renulation will tack on an additional 10 year po~t-llcensure experience requirement lor 

a total (average) ol 11! years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marr,lnallze many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees ,n related subjects may obtain 

their bcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture. are not affordr.d lflal pnvllPge. It seems dear that 1f we deem our Architects 

and Enginel!ri. who are not colhtge educated to be as quahfled as those who arc, the same should hold true for Landscape Arc.hltecls, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who Is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a w ritten examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that reguired ~or California applicants at 
the t ime or application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, J./ / / ., J/,. / ') ./,/J /7 .. ~ -
Auf'Yle.1t:.:. {dle.r-e,,.. -

Prin1ed Name Signature 

111 /Y11js1~n Rt:.ncA i3/vd,Sk too Cht'l--o (I) 
Street Address (option~!) Date Oly State 

cc, Califo rnia Architects Board, c.ib@dca.ca.gov Oepanment of Consumer AHatrs omce of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire. senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nlelsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jlm Wood Ass11mblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:c.ib@dca.ca.gov
https://Auf'Yle.1t
https://fotlt.ll


Public Comment; Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California ltcensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining If censure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of conteKt because these States have a 
multitude of paths to I/censure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

lhe proposed regulation will require any out•ol-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
addltlonal lO years of post•licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are alteady licensed 
and by dellnltion are competent and capable of ensuring the health. safety, and welt-are of public - the primary concern ol Hcensure 
tn California a person may become a Licensed Lllnchcape Architee1 If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certlncate In 
Landscape Architecture along wlth proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, resardl~s of related subject mailer. who Is licensed In another state by having paued tile same Exam and having 
ihe same work exper!l!nce, ,snot ellglble for llcensure. 
Nearly all states require e~perlence for lnltlal lltens1Jre and the majority of states allQw lfcensure on the basis of eitaminatlon ;,nd 
experience alone. Persons are scnerally ellglble for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prtor to examination. The current propos,ed rei:ul~llon will ta~k on an additional IO year post-llcensure e.per1enci! reQulrement for 
a total [average) of 18 years needed for California reclproclty. This change wlll continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degree.s In related subjects may nbtatn 
their llcensure, c;indld3tes for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educ:ated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for ticensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating; 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S yea rs; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

., 
Sincerely, ('., f-1 tl•=;f O ?rlbtl.. NA~ L, ~ 2 

PrTnted Name Signature 
7-22-/C, A1-I-\A;t,,~A-

f!r+ ~{JqDI 
Srrect Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

cc: Cllifo1111a Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Oepanment or Consumer Affairs Office of ihe Governor 
Sen, Mlke McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim flile1scn Governor Ed111und G. Brown Jr_ 
Assemblyman Jim wood /\ssemblyman Jame$ Gallagher 



1

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who a re as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, lhere are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today, 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. Californla fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape /\rchitecture. however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of eJtperience. 

The proposed change is also out of step With standards shared by California's Archite cts and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, ar,d welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulallon will require any out-of•statc licensed Individual, regardless or eduCiltlon or experience, 10 obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 
and by definit ion are competent and capable or ensuring the health,.safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern or llcensure 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscapt> Arcl1itect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Oegree or Certlflcatt! fn 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing lhe national E>ram. Currenllv a person wl1h a·4 year 
BacheJor's Degree, regardless or related wbJect matter, who Is licensed ,n another state by having passed the same Exam anrt having 
the same work experience, is nol cllg1ble for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for lnl11al llcensure anti the majority of states allow llcensurc on the basis or examination and 
experie11ce alone. Persons are generally eligible for out or stale llcensure upon demonstrating an average or 8 years experience 
prior to examination. TIie current proposed regulation Will tack on an additional 10 year posl·llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Callfornta reciprocHy. This change will continue to marslnall2e muny talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who arc not colleee educated or who have degrees In related subject• may obtain 
u,etr llcensure, candidates tor t.andscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege, 1 seems cleanhat If we deem our Architects 
and Enginects who are not college educated to be as qual!fled as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of applicatlon; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a val id license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing o r offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years . 

Sincerely. fi,11ei b krr✓ ~0 ~7 
.J-=-.:.Pr, ____,____tur nted~Name ~-'---1--T -(.t_____.<--=-::a e -~~--=----

~ . .J/ ),{)){[!_. 
1 

ddress (optional) ~ C,ty State Zip Code 

CC: Cahfornla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Depanment or Consumer Affairs Office or the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mq111lre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor ~dmund G. Brown Jr. 
/\ssernbtyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

caIIfornla Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suit e 105 Sacramento, CA 9.5834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally lives, There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining II censure due to e><lsting exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for l!censure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available In ·california. California falls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibil ities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-slate licensed individual. regardle5s of educalfon or experience, to obtain an 
add1tlona1 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted Callfornla reciprocity. Th~e ,ndlvlduals .ire alreaay licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensurlne 1he heallh, safety. and welfare of public- the primary concern of !,censure. 

• In Callfomta a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree. regardless of related subjecr matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed rhe same Exam and having 
the s.ime work experience, Is not eltglble for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for lnl!lal llcensure and the majority of nate5 allow !!censure on the basis of examinat ion and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonmallng an average of a years experience 
prior to examlnallon. The current proposed regulatlon wlll 11!ck on an addltlonal 10 year posHlcensure experience requiren1en1 for 
a total (average) ol 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This c.hange will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
Whlle California Architects and C.MI Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subiects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear rhat 11 we deem our Archlwcts 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallOed as those who are, rhe same thould hold !rue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinat ions 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredit ed institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

+- q ·u/tv; 
Street Address (optional) Date State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dCll.Cil.gov Depa rtment or Consumer Affairs Office of tJ1e Governor 
Sen, Mike McGuire. senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.goll Senator Jim Nielsen Governor :Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Alsemblyman Jfm Wood Assemblyman Jan,es Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.goll
mailto:cab@dCll.Cil.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road. Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands t he importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualined as their California l!censed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to elCisting exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, theTe are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the righl direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and -combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crltlcal to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following Inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulallon will require any out-of-state llcen$ed lndivldual, regardless of educa1lon or experience. to obtain an 
additional 10 years of po<t-llcensure practice eJCperlence to be granted calilorn,a ,eaproc11v. These lndlvlduals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safely, and welfare or public -1he prlmary concern of llcensure. 

In Callforola a person may become a licensed landscape Architect If 1hey have earned a 2 year Assocla1es Oegree or Certlfkatc In 
Lanciscape Archl1ecture along with proper work experience and paulns the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Desree, regardless of ,elated _subJeCI maner, who is licensed In anolher Slate by having passed the same E,am and having 
the same work e~perience, Is 001 eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all 51ates require e•perlence for Initial llcensure and the maJOfity of states aflow hcensure on the basis of examination and 

e•perience alone. Per~ons are generally etlgjble for out of slate llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to e~amlna!lon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-lrcensure e~perlence requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Callfornla ,eciprocity. This change wlll continue 10 marglnallze many talen1ed professionals. 
Whlle Calilornla Architects and Ch,11 e:ng,neers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may oblaln 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Arct,ltecture are not afforded 1hat privilege. It seems clear tha1 If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college: educated to be as qualilled as those who are, the same should hold 1rue for Landscape Arthi!ecu. 

I request the following revised language to amend california Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadfan province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental E.xamination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid icense or re lstration in .ood standin 
rofessional services for at least 6 of the last 10 ears. 

Sincerely, 

St reel Address (optional) Stale 

cc: California Archltecu Board, cab@dc.-i.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of l he Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, sena1or.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Asseniblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman Jame~ Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. Cal[fornia fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted With responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will reqolre any oul•of•state licensed lndividual, regardless of education or experience, to obta.ln an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experiel')ce to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals-are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -the primary concern of liccnsure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have ea med a 2 year Associates Degree or C..rtlficate In 

landscape Architecture along With proper work experience and passins the na\ional Exam. Currently a person w ith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matt~,. who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states reQulre experience for inlti<1I llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state II censure Upon demonstrating an average of 8 vears experience 

pnor to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additlonal 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total {average) of 18 years needed for <:alifornia reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

iheir llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for la11dscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section .2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisd!ctioh, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to tbe Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing ot offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in,good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. /---J 
Sincerely, / / 

I " .,/ .,, 

Printed Name Signature 

WI n '-yvr5 .ft . , 5~t.. 11.p • (. \...,.,.. L<> 
I • 

Street Address (optional) ' Date City State Zip Code 

CC: C~llfornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Aff.ilrs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGurre, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that ar e being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language Is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public.'s health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out -of-state licerised Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted Cafifomia reciprocity. These Individuals are aln:adv licensed 
and by definitlon are c.ompetent and capable or ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of publlt- the primary concern of llceosure 
In canfomia a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by ha~ing passed the same Exam and having 
the same worit e•perience, 15 not eligible for llcensure. 
Nearly all st;ites require experience for in1llal llceJUure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstratlng,an average or g years experience 
prior to examination. 'fhe current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-II censure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Clllfornia reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professtonals 
I.Yhile Cilifornla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their ncensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qu~l!Oed as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape A"hitects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of ·examinations 
(1) A candidate who Is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required In California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
z of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
~ .,,-¼-, r!>Se,!:k ~ 

-P,-in-t=-'ed'-N=-am~e "--_!;""':LJ.....,'-------------- Signature 

'2.Clt,. O':J'l.,l Gl.,~o c..,l q':>-j.] .s 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department or Consu,ner Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the publk who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations, Also, due to increasingly restrictive polfcies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Archit ects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

1he Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcehsure not available fn California. California fulls to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both S~ates upon which the proposed tanguage is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Californii;l's Archftects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education o,experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post- licecm,re practice experience to be granted C.ilifornia reciprocity, 1hese individuals are already licensed 

and by -definition are competent. and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern ofllcensure, 

In California a person may become a License.d Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or CNtificate in 
Lundscape Architecture along with propcrwork experience and passing the national EMam. Currently a person w ith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related .,ubject matter, who 1s licensed in another state by havlns passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experiepce, is not eiigible for licensurc. 

Nearly all states require experience for Jnot,al Ii censure and the major,ty of states allow llcer\sure on the bas1s of examination and 

experience ~looe. Persons are generally eligible for riut Qf state liwnsure upon demonstrating an avefoge of 8 v~ars experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation w ill tack on an addltio,,al 10 year post-licensure experience requlremeM for 
a to tal (average) or 18 years needed for Cali fornia reciprocity, This chanse will cont!nue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

t heir licensure, candidate, for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege, It seems clear that 1f we d~em our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landsc.1pe Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate w ho is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written exarnination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that.the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al ,Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional servlces for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, ,/1//,'vtf&e- ( S re,l<
Printed Na111e 

j!2- /c,;n . ., dr. 
Street Address (optior,al) Date City State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Con$umer Affairs Office of the Gavcrnqr 
Sen, Ml~e McGuire, scnator.mcguire@senate.t,a.eov Senator Jim Nielsen Gover~or Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jlm Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gol


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee., 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 

currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulatlons. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Ucensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this pre.cedent is out of context because these States have a 
m ultitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and 1=omblnations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crltlcal to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of,state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare o f public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In california a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same E.xam aod havlng 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience tor initial Ii censure and the majotlty of states a llow licensure on the basis of examination and 

e~perience alone. Persons are generally eligible fer cut of ~tale licensure upon demonstrating an aver.ige of 8 years e~perience 

prior 10 ex.1mlnation. The current proposed regulat'ion will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to margtnalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those whc;, are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid Hcense or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, h 1 , A I ~ j . , 
_ JJJ..a..'t b mu :)cl D\ Y) 

Printed Name 
5ig~a~~ 6 2-I Po COol:'.\a,, A-i.- 09121/2,Jt C~,Co CA C..\SC\2.?> 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca,gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
sen. Mike McGuire, senatllr.rn~guire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:reque.st
mailto:senatllr.rn~guire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca,gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Cali fornia Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Pc/SO Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of l andscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Archftecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based aflow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with -standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critTcal to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual. regardle.$5 of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional IO years of post-llcensure practice c~perjence to be gr.intcd California, reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by den nit ion are competent and capable of ensuri ng the health, safely, and w'elfare of public - the primary concem Of l lcensure. 

In canrornia a person may become a licensed LandscJpe Architect lf they h,ave earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape A"hitccture along with proper work experience and. passfng the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another ,tale by having passed the sarne Exam and t,a11ing 
th•uame work experience, ls not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for inili~I licensure and the majority of states allow liccnsure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Pl,'rs9r, are generallydlglble for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to e~amlnatlon, i'he current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure cvpNience re~ulrcment for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for C.iliforni ;a reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented profoss,onals. 

While Californfa Architects and Civil Engineers who arc not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
tbeir lkensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded th~t privilege, It seems cle3r that If \ve deem our Archit~cts 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallfi~d as those who are. the same should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. j urisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination sub$tantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Californiil as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the Callfornio Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicant s at 
the t ime of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited ihstitution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, - 1 . --:-, ~ i'-
o 1"\ I \"\ • C,)\.} f (\ l>.)(::) \ V\ -

CC: c;aliforoia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Departn,enl of Consumer Affairs Office of the Gov!Ynor 
Sen. Mike McGul re, senator,mcgulre@senate,ca.gov Sen~tor Jim Ni~lsen Go~ernor fdmuod G, Brown Jr 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical· Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Li censure 
for individuals with varying degrees and rnmbinations of experience, 

The proposed change is also out cif step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I' oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will requlre any out-of-state llcen.sed individual, regardless of education or experience, to ·obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licen.rnd In another state by havI·ng passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, ls not ellglble for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of exarnlnat1on and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible fat out of state I/censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The curre_nl proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 yearpost-lic·ensure experience requlrement for 

a tota l (average) of 18 year~ needed for California reciprocity, i his change w11I continue to marginalize many talented professional:.. 

While California Architects and Clvil E"ngincers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licef\sure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded th al privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Eng[neers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who ore, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supple[llental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
rofessional services for at least 6 of the last 10 

Sincerely, 

Zip Code 

CC: Callfomla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGul're, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G, Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of l andscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive poltcies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The PfOposed regulation will ({?quire any out-of-state licensed Individual. reg;irdless of education or experience. to obtaln an 

adtlltlonal 10 years of postalicensure practice experience to be granted talllomla reclprocity. These lndlvlduals ;,re alre;,dy hcensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - lhc primary concern of llcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect ii they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with prop,?r work experience ond passing the national E•am. Currently a person w!lh a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subJeu matter, who I~ licensed In anoth!'r state by having pa}Sed the same Eleam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require e~perlence for lnitlaf llcensure and the majority of stalP.s allow /!censure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally efoeible for out of state lltensure upon demonstrating an avcr.>Re of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulat1on will tack on an addlllonal 10 yearpost·licensure etperience requiremenl for 

a total (average) of 18 yea~ needed for Ci!llfornla reciprocity. This change wlll continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

Whlle California Archltects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

thQlr llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that II we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallOed as those who are, the same should hold uue for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required In California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been oracticing or offering 
professional services for at least ·6 of the last 10 years. 

Slncerely, ,,. 

State z,p Code 

CC: Calllornla Archltects Board. cab@dca.ca.gov Oepanm~nt of Consumer Affairs Olllce of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senotor Jim Nielsen Governor fdn,und G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.go11


ood standin 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who tuiderstands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently memberS-of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for /icensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
mult itude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize educa,tion outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civll Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulatron will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of educ.illon or l!lCperlence, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensurc practfce experience to be granted California reciprocity. The.se individllals are already 'ilcensed 
and by definition are competent and capable.of ensuring the health, safety, a11d welfare of public- the primary concern ofncensure. 

In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned o 2 veor Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape ArchitechJre along with proper work experience ond R•ssing tlie national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
6achelor's Degree, regardles.s of related subject matter, who lsJlcensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work e)(perience, Is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require eiq,erlence for initial llcensure and !he majority of states allow licens1.ne on the basis of e,raminatlon and 
e)(perlence alo~e. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed rcgulotlon will tack on an additional 10 year post•llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Colifomia, reciprodty. This change will continue to rnarglnallze many talented professionals. 
While Calrfomia Ard1ite,ts and Civil Enginc,ers who am not Goltege educated or wh1> have degrees In related subjects may ol;,tain 
their licensure, candida.tes for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers Who arc not college educated to be as qualified as t hose who ate, ll1e same should hold lnJe for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the california Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Califor nia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examinat ion 
provided that the candidate submits v,eriflable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses educat ion and experience equivalent t o t hat required of C3lifornia applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years: or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istrat ion in 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, ?(I'( ~ t,.t 
Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) Date □ty Stote Zip Code 

CC: Californi<1 Architects Board, C.Jb@dca.ca.gov 
51!n. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallaghe~ 

Office of the Governor 
Governor ~dmund G. Brown Jr. 

http:members.of
https://licens1.ne
https://capable.of


----

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an Informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to e)(isting exclusionary regulations. Also, d1,1e to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Lic;:ensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory l anguage change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arlzom1, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fc;1ils to recognize ed1..1cc;1tion outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change ls also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current ahd proposed regulations: 

• fhe pr.oposed regulation Will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llccnsure practice experience to be granted Californ1a reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -the primary concern of If censure. 
ln Callfornfa a person may become a Licensed Landscape Archimct If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificat e in 
Lane/scape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 yeat 

Bact,elor's Degree, regardless of related subj~t ffiiltter, who Is licensed in another st.ite by having passed the same Exam .ind having 
the same work experience, fs not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for Initial llcensure and the r:iajority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experlcmce alone. Persons are generally ellglble for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The cllrrent proposed regulalion will tack. on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a tot~I [average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change wlll continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While caltfornla Architects and Civil' Engineers who arc not college educ;ited or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their It censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language t<> amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 

(A.} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate.holds.a valid license or registration In good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 

professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, '\.c.-.,,,, ~,... / 
__.) ., ... €7.rJec,~ 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optlo,nal)' Oat Qty State Zip Code 

CC: Cafifomia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affai r$ 
Senator Jim Nielsen 
A$semblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed cit izen who understands t he importance of L;mdscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as. their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining lkensure due to exlsting exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
tfme, there arc currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California f-ai ls to recogniie education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however·both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is .ilso out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as cri tical to ensuring the public's health, safety, c1nd welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulat ions: 

TIie proposed regulation will require ~ny out-of-;tate licensed lndMd11al, r eBardle» ot cducat,on or experience, to obta,n .rn 

additional 10 years of post-I,censure praC\lce experience to be granted California reciproci ty., Ttlese fndMduals are ;ilready licensed 

~nd by dchnltron ate cornpctent and 01pable of ensuring th e health, ~afcty, ~nd wclfJrc of public- the primary concern of !,censure , 

In Cali fornia~ per5011 ,nay become ii Licensed landscape A"hitect If they have earned a 2 year Aslodates Degree or Certi ficate In 

landscape Arthl tecturc alo11n wrtll proper work e•perlence and passing ttIe national Exam. Curiently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, rcg~rdlcss of related subject malter, wtro is licensed in another state by having passed thes.imc Exam and having 

the same work experience, Is nor eligible for l ice11sure, 

Nearly .al l states require e,rperience for Initial llcensure and tile n1-ajority of states allow If censure on the basis of examination a1IrJ 

e, perle11ce alone. i'ersons ;are generally eligible ror out nf state llcensur e upo,1 demonstrating an average of 8 ye.rs exper,ence 

prior to eJ1.1r11lnat1on. The currenr p1o~osed regulation wlll tack on an additional 10 ye;,r po)l•llcemure experle11ce requlrenient for 

a l<)l~I (Jvt'rage) o f 18 ye~r, nc,edcd lo, Californra redpmcity. Thi~ change will co11ti111rl! lo marglnallze many talented profe1~ion,,is 

Wl1ile Callforma J\rcl1ftect.s and Clvil Engineers who are not collese educated or who have degrees In mlated sub/ects may obta,n 

their licensure, candidates lor l,Jndscape Arclilt~cture are nor afforded t hat privilege. IL seems clear \hat If we deern our Arcl11tect~ 

and Cnginee,s who are not college educated to be as qualih~d as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscare Arcl11tects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Tit le 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Archit ect's 8oard: 

§ 261S Form of Examinations 

(11 A candidate who i.s licen.sed a.s a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdictlo11, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written eXilminat ion substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licen.sure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 

(Al Candidate pos~ess_es education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
1 he time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been pract icing or oHeririg professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

S,rc~t Address (optlonal) Dote City State 210 Code 

CC: C;ififo1n,,1 Archi tects Bo~rd, cab@dca.ca.~011 Department of Consumer Affairs Oifice of the Governor 
Sen M ike McGuire, 5enator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Sen~to• Jim Niel,en Governor Ednnmd G. !lrown Jr, 
Asscmblyn,ac, Jlrn Wood A,.11,mblyrnan James Gall~gher 

mailto:5enator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.~011


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an infonned citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
tirne, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for Ii censure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in califomia. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by caUfomia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• Tlie proposed regulation will require any out-of•state Ucensed individual, regardless or edutation or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-Ucensure-practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, 5afety, and welfare of public-the primary concern ofllcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who ls licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial Ucensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of st.ite licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
pr:ior to examination. Tlie current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Crvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for l.:lndscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Califomla as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the califomia Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of califomia applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl candidate holds a valid llcen.se or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practidng or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the fast 5 years; or 
(Cl candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

, profession;1I services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

'. I Sincerely, 1 
L.1 tr,~ -:.c. 
Printed Name / 

Street Address (optional} Date City State Zip Code 

CC: Callfomla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://llcen.se


.

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am-an informed citizen who understands the Importance of landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for llcensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California falls to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations, of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any oul•of•state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure-practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are alread~ licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect ff they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
l..:mdscape Architecture along with proper work experience and pas.sing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
theSilme work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an addition al 10 year post·licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) ol 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, rttle 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 261S Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for lice.nsure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(8) candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or _ 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

, · profession.=il services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, f1 (. Ht l ,, ( ~ 
Printed Name Signature ) 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Aff.lirs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senat.e.ca . gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G.,BrownJr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27; 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who 1,mde rstands·the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California lice nsed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available rn California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civii Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additionaJ 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licen.sed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelors Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work eJCpetience, is not eligible for Ji censure, 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
e•perience alone. Persons are gem«ally eligible for out of srate lfcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a totai (average) ofl8 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clea~ that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to t he Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid .license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

s;nmefy, 1.~&.-tCLsh 0- \Uhtb re\ s;,,:5] CA'\ "19/a: 
\\ I...\ A:\ do \C 'Orot)t. 9 ( Cl I (p SJAA.-+c.1.. B.~s& _ _) 

Street Address (optfonal) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike. McGuire; senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrict ive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon Which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years or post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already Qcensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern ofllcensure. 

In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, ls not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require e.xperience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis or examination and 

experience alone. Persons arc generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. ihis change will continue to marginalize many t alented professionals. 

While California Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrce.s In related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for landscape Archftecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be a~ qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Atehitccts. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Street Address (optional} Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department or Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



.

_

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our da ily lives. There a re 
current ly members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counte rparts t hat a re being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there a re currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for Ii censure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state llcensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure-practi(e experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already ficensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary c.oncem of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect lfthey have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and h;,ving 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of el(amlnatlon and 
experience alone . Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The. current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to mafilna llze many talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, cmdldates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated tD be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in. California as 
determined by t he Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
Z of the fast S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

, · profession.::il services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

D~h,.<..., Sincerely, ~ ., ~ _ Q_ f!J~t-c.J,.. c/ 
Prihted Name ~ 1-[ 7.,, J It l, 
Street Address (optional) Date Oty State ZlpCode 

CC: California Architects Soard, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:regardle.ss


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an infonned citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of t he public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exdusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

J oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years ofpost-licensure-practice experience to be granted eanfomla reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of liccnsure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience a nd passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in anott,er state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experlenc~ alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon dernonrtr3ting an over.ige of 8 years experience 
prior to ex1Jmlnat1on. The current proposed regulation will tack on an a dditional 10 year post-If censure experienGe requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
While California Architects and Clvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their II censure, candidates for t.indscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not a,llege educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Arthitects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for liceosure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
fB} candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognited accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

, professfoMI services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincere ly, /J • 11 
1 r,1, , t1 r P ,,, ,~ 

~ =:i......:....L.:.....:.=J__:.:....L-
Prihtcd Name 

J ~-=-----'----=--=......,.=;,..=....--::f--'--+--F-l---.-
Street Address (optional) Date City State ZlpCode. 

CC: callfomla Architects Board, c:ab@dca.ca.gov Department of·Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an infonned citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to llcensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare .. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulatlon will require any out•Of·state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure-practice experience to be granted callfomta reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and c:api!ble of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern orlicensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates 0egree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currontly a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the Silme work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all stales require experience for Initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state II censure upon demon5tl'3ting an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current p roposed regulation wlll tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for califomia reciprocity. This ch.Inge will continue to marglnalite many talented professionals. 
While california Architects and dvll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. lt seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Englneers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Arthitects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 261S Fonn of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standl.ng. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional se.rvices for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

, · professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

ri7¥7AktW 
Signature 

Clty State Zip Code 

CC: callfornla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of consumer Aff.lirs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, seriator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblvman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://standl.ng


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory l anguage Hearing September 27, 2016 

california Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their califomia licensed counte rparts that are being barred 
from obtaining Ii censure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. califomia fails t o recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however bot h States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by california's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

t oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

add1tlonal 10 years of post-llcensure-practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-- the primary concern or licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architectir they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture alone with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 
• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eliglble for cut of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure eicperience requirement for 

a total (average) of 1B years needed for California reciprodty. This change will continue to marginafrze many talented profl!SSionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjem may obtain 
their Ileen sure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Arc.hltec:ts 
and Engineers who are not oollege educated to be as quallOed as those who are, the same should hold true for IJlndscape ArchltectS. 

I request the following revised language to amend talifornia Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S.jurisdiction, canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in califomia as 
determined by the Board shall be e ligible for licensure upon passing t he califomia Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid llcense or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional seNkes for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(C) candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

, professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature 

c;c,x rv u. ·ll-1 \ ... i ,- CA 
StreetAddr Date Oty State Zip Code 

cc: caliromla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguJre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Govemor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguJre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an infonned citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to lkensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequitf es in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless or education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure-practlce experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already ficensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certilieate in 
Landscape Architecture along with prope r work experience and pas.sing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelol'sDecree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial I/censure a nd the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonrtrating an avc:r&ge of 8 years experience 
prior lo ~xamlnatlon. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a tot:al (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While Califomla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
thelrllcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that ifwe deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not a,1lege educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practidng or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

, profession=il services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, C /1~'1 .·, ) 
KY----V ~ /\ J v\. I ,H 

Prihted Name Y 
2 h y ;l,\tJ Q C"-' 12-d '1SZ:/o3 

Street Address (optlonal) Zip Code 

CC: callfomla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman Ja mes Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee1 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture In our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based a llow Li censure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out•of•rtate licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post,llcensure-practice experience to be granted Callfomia reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates 0egree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, Is not ellgible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial lfcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
e,qierience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed reiiulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While Callfornla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
thelr llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not rollege educated to be as quallfled as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend california Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the california Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 

, professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, vJ ,l-t'\(] ~f\(J ') I Vl CJl ( ,! 
'J Printed Name 

2 o'--lq hu\A~ t'..ld \.A, q/-:) 1[/ lo Ce-. 
Street Address (optional) Oate Oty State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally llves. There are 
current ly members of the public w ho are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining Hcensure due to existing exdusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize educat ion outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, re8lJrdless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In Callfomla a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national El<am. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experle.nce, is not eligible for lie.ensure. 
Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While eantornia Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privllege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as quallfled as those who are, the same should hold t rue for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend CalJfornia Code of Regulations, rrtte 16, 
Division 26, Section 261S be Implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent In scope and subject matter required In California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat t he candidate submits verifiable documentat ion to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses educat ion and experience equivalent t o that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practidng or offering professlonal services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registratjon in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 

, professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

cc: Callfomla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacrame nto, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily llves. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available In California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language Is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of~te licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-llcensure,practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already Ucensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, ,ind welfare of public-the primary concern ofllcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same EJc.am and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating "n overoge or 8 years experience 
prior to i,xamlnatlon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year pon-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While Callfomla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their !!censure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. tt seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
t he time of application; or 
fB) candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or _ 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practic1ng or offering 

, · profession.::il services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, <.)!,/ 
Sign~w_re '4 

State Zip Code 

cc: canromia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso .Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the r ight direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize educatfon outside of 
Landscape Archi.tecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulatton will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardlesS'of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience l o be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are alteady licensed 

and by definition are competeht and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
LandscapeArchltecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work e,xperience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Ne.irly all states require experience for initial lkensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examinatlon and 
experience ;ilone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state Ii censure upon demonstrat ing an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examinotion. The curN?nt proposeJ rellulatlon will tack on an additional 10 year post-licens\Jre experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed forCalifomla reciprodty. This chan!Je will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Arcllitects and Civil Engineers who are not college edw;ated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates.for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that i( we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Signatu~ 124=· 
--- ------'-,'9/2~zo"-f"/4~t-~ ..£,..,;~~ c4 9Plv3 

Street Address /optional) 7Dat~ City State Zip Code 

CC; California Arch1tects.soard, cab@dca.ca.go\/ Department of Consumer Affair$ Office of the Governor 
Sen, Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



.

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there ar.e currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent ls out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state llcerised lndivtdual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain .in 

add1tlonal 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be grant ed California .reclprocfty. These indivlduals are already licensed 

and by definit ion are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Assoclate5 Decree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who fs lfcensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Neady all states requfre experience for initial licensure and tt,e majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of m,t e licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years ex~erience 

prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 year'> needed for California reciprocity. This change will cont inue to marginalize many talented profe~sionals. 

• While Cillifornla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees ;n related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be· as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the follow ing revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for Jicensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institut ion, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, p,;1 ~Vt<- f).;()YVl( K ~(}.»~ 
________ _ tJ<'-t-"1/21Jj~1.t, S~nbt f20fA-
stree1 Address (optional) Date City State 

CC: Californ;a Archi tects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G . Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will requl're any out-of-state licensed individual, regardle.ss of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a l year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work e~perience and passing the national Exam, Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter., who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same worl<, experience. is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of .states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons-are generg!!y eligible for out of ~tate licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will cont inue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or v,,ho have degrees In related subjects may obta in 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture <1re not afforded that prl\lllege. It seems clear that rf we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 

{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

'1/l..//16 
Signature / . 

r .c bt:.J t6e:-f 
' 

1>1(7c 
Street Address (optional) Date Gty State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://regardle.ss


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed cit izen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our dai ly lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals wrth varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educat ion or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed l andscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experie,ice, is not eli_gible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examinatfon and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years e.xperience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addilional 10 year post -licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California recfprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examinat ion substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a va lid license or registrat ion in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) 

CC: California Archi tects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgu1re@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulat ory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands t he importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as t heir California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed languag~ is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regard less of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The curi ent proposed regulatfon will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees. in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(l) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature. 

'sol; I v L1 6 /1.;\ U fz f'A c, 7 EL1-t <:, F J/Kcc}vL u} 1(4-72_ 
Street Address {optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architect s Board 

landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will requlre any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

adr;fitional 10 years of post•licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary co11cern o f licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person wit-ti a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow If censure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-lkensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

!Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, Q_ C'\ ,2 1 e I 
Printed Name J c?/~ 11((5. 
Street Address (optional) Date Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Go11errior 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Ji111 Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
titne, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however t his precedent is out of context becaus·e these States have a 
multitude of pat hs to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals ilre already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same ham and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearly all st'iltes require experience for Initial llcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of stale licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examlnatfon. The current proposed regulat.ion will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years . 

//#'7 5 (.ha, 1.fe/t> C{l 15 'I- 7 l 
1 1 

J/ ·ci >s 
Sincerely, 

I .. ~ 
Street Address (opt ional) / _ State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mlke McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the. importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outsic!e of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibi lities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state llcensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Ce.rtificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
ihe same work experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an add ii.Iona I 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of J.8 years needed for California reciprocity. This cha11g.e will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and CivU Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related svbjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Archltects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

l request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited inst itut ion, and has been practicing or offering professional serv ices for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, A lex th c J::S 
Printed Name ,gnature 

m§ Vllo SP_ms±npo I Ca qc;q 7 J. 
Street Address (optional) te City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Govetn,:>r 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education orexperience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted Californl-a reciprodty. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assodates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper wor~ experience and pass1ng the national El(am. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by hal/ing passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eliglble for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out ofstate licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prfor to examination. The current proposed regulation wfll tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. Jt seems clear that if we deem our Archiiects 

and E11gineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the s.ime should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(l} A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

and has been racticin 

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.rncguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted Cilifornia reclprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• Jn California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is lkensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-lice11sure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or Who have degrees in related subjects inay obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a reco nized accredited institution and has been racticin or offerin rdfessional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
C Candidate holds a valid license or re istration in ood standin 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

Street Address (optional) Date Cily State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike M cGuire, senator.mcguire@senat e.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman lames Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27
1 

2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in Californi"a. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals With varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step w ith standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as crltfcal to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• TJ-ie proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or eMperlence, to obtain .in 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -the. primary concern of licensure. 

• In Californla a person may become a licensed Landsc9pe Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates De.gree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Eleam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same ,Exam and having 
th.e same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require. experience for initial lieensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are. generally eligible for out of state If censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years l?xperience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 yea•rs needed for C;ilifornia. reciprocity. This change will continue lo marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related sub]ect.s may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Eng'ineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the follow.ing revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdict ion, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and .subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensur-e upon passing the California Supplernental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 

2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



# //0~ 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts thc1t are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today, 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step wtth standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or e~perience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practlce experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and c;ipable of e11suring the health, safety, and welfare.of public-the primary concern of licensllre. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed La.ndscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper wor-k experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work expl!rience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly illl states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addltTonal 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for Califorhia reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems dear that Jf we deem our Architects 

and Engin•eers .who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are. the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the BGard indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants -at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offermg 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years~ / 

Sincerely, >·? /4 ..... .✓ • -- - -

Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

CC: Callfornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office or the Governor 
Sen. M ike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

https://welfare.of


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as t heir California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because t hese States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not avajlabte in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience, 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's healt h, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience:to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are. already licensed 

and by ·definltion are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certlficate 1n 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person wllh a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience. is not ellgtble for licensure, 

• Nearly all states require experTence for initial licensure. and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of exa.mination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an ave.rage of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) or 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This-change will continue to marginallze many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engtneers who are not college educated or who havttdegree.s in related subjects may obtain 

their Ii censure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape. Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

., P.rlnted Name /J J Signature ~ 4 ? _ 
I 'c, 15 ( I D 2. ~. (<1{lol:ci / (',, 7 I S ll✓ S 

Street Address (optional) Date City Stale Zip Code 

CC: Calirornia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mc;guire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator Jfm Nielsen 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are con,petent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Assoc.I ates Degree or Certificate i n 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. currently a person with~ 4 year 

Bachelor's De_gree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam a11d having 

the same work experience, ls not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states -allow licensure on the basis of examinatlori and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of stat e licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed reguiation will tack on an additional 10 year post-Ii censure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity, This change will continue to marnfnalize many talented professional:S. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not-college educated or who have degrees fn related subjects may obt.iin 

their Ii censure, candidat es for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deerri our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated t o be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: '°" 
§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is l icensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puer to Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examinat ion 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicant s at 
the t ime of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of t he last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standfng, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

&'1~ '3o~ 
Street Address (optional) Date City State Zip Code 

~';,7()1"'()L. {"#ti- l's~ 72... 
CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Deparrmen! of Consumer .Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 2,7, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California lice nsed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change Is also out of step with standards shared by Callfornia's Architects and Civil Engineers Who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California recfprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare-of public- the pi imary concern of lfcensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licen.sed in another state by having passed the same ~xam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

11xperience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a to.ta! (average) of 18 years needed for california reciprocity. This ch;mge will continue t.o marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educ~ted or who have degrees in related subjects may obtaih 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape /\rchltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiabledocumentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing-. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

sireet Address (optional) 

Signature 

LJ i£\~C 
Date City 

CA 
State 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@5enate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:welfare.of


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an infonned citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclus.ionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
a re entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• TIJe proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed ihdividual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

addltional 10 years of post-ticensure,practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition ;ire competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public -the primary concem of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have eamed a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
Landscape Architecture along with proper worlc experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardles.s of related subject matter, who rs licensed in another state by having passed the same El(am and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years_ experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-Ucensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for c.alifomia reciprocity. This change wilt contiruJe to marginalize many taleJ1ted professionals. 

• While California Architects and Crvil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privnege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S .. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon pass1ng the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of applicationi or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practldng or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6, of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name Signature t=:.L I 
q Jtq /lw Sayv6..,Rosci_ CA: 9 0, O I 

Street Address (optional) Date r I City State Zip Code 

CC: Qlifomia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov DepartmentofCohsumerAffairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the Importance of Landscape Architecture in our dally lives. There are 
current ly members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exdusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Califomia's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities In the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure-practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree. regardless ofrefated subJect·matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to e,ramination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensute experience requirement for 

a total {average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated .or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, candidates for landscape ArchitecttJre are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to 'be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Fonn of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good sta
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

nding, and has been practicing or offering 

Sincerely, 

Street Address (optional) Dae 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mquire@seoate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Nation, Kourtney@DCA 

From: John Black <j ohncblack@mac.com > 

Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 9:23 AM 
To: Nation. Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: CAB@DCA; dmaxam@ebagroup.com 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing 

September 27, '.20 I G 

Cal ifo rnia Architects Board 

Lanc.bcape Architects Technical Commillec 

2420 Del Paso Road. Suite 105 

Sacramento. CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Commillee, 

I would like to object to current and proposed language in the regu lation of Caliloi-n ia IAndscape architects. 
and request revisions to the rcgulntol'y language. 

Currently there arc members o f the public, equally or even more qualified than their Cal ifornia licensed 
counterparts, who are being barred from obta ining licensme as Ca li forn ia landscape architects due to 
exisring cxclusionriry rcgula1ions. Also, clue to policies becoming increasingly restrictive over lime. there 
are currently CA Licensed Landscape Arch itects practicing who would 110 1 quuliry for licensurc today. 

The Committee' s proposed regulatory language change borrows precedent from New York and Arizon:i: 
however. this precedent is out of context because these states o ffer paths to I icensure not available in 
Califo rnia: in particu lar. both stares allow licensurc for individuals with varying degrees and combinations 
or experience. wh ile Cali fo rnia rail s to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture. 

The proposed change is also out of step with Slaildards shared by Cal ifornia' s licensed architects and civil 
engineers, who are entrusted with responsibilities critical lo ensuring the public·s health, safety. and welfare. 

I oppose the foll owing inequities in tile current and propo~ed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation would requ ire any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or 
experience. Lo obtain un additional IO years or post- licensure practice experience to be-granted Cal ilornia 
reciprocity. These individuals are alrendy licensed and by definition are competent and capable of 
ensuring the health. safety, and we lfa re or publi<.: - the primary concern of' liccnsure. 

- fn Ca lif"orn ia :i person may become a Licensed Landscape Archircct ifthcy have earned a 1 year 
Assoc iates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper wmk experience and 
passing the national exam. Currently a person who is licensed in another state by having passed the same 
exam and ha ving the same work experience. is not el igible for licensure. 

- Nearly a ll states requ ire experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the 
basis o f examination nnd experience alone. Persons arc generally eligible fo r out of stale licensure upon 
demonstrating an average or 8 years of experience prior to examinat ion. The current proposed regu lation 
would add an add itional 10 year post- liccnsure experience requiremenl lbr a total (average) of 18 years 

l 

mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:johncblack@mac.corri


needed for California rec iprocity. This change will continue to marginalize 111any talented professiona ls. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who arc not college educated or who have degrees in 
~ ~ 

rel.Heel subjects may obtain licensure, candidates fo r Landscape Architecture are not afforded that 
privilege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Arch itects and Engineers who arc not college educated to be 
as quali fied as those who are. the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

l request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16. Divisiou 
26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ '.26 15 Form or Examinati ons 

( I) /\ candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. _jurisdiction, Canadian rrov inc;e, or Puerto 
Rico hy having passed a written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 
California as determined by the Board shall be eligible fo r licensurc upon passing the Ca li fornia 
Supplemental Examination provitkd that the cand idnte submits verifia ble documcn\ation to the Board 
indicating: 

(A) Cnndidate possesses education and experience equivalent ro that t·equired or Ca li fo rnia appl icants al 

the time or application: or 

(13) Candidate ho!J s a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited instilution. and has been practic ing or offering professional serv ices for at least 2 
of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license 0 1· registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional .services fo r al least 6 of the last IO yea rs. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment 0 11 this irnpot·tant regulatory change. 

inccrcly. 

John Rlack. ASLA 

Palo A lto. CA 94306 

2 



Correspondence Unit 
G76 

From: Linda Middleton [mailto:linda@terralindadesign.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 11:50 AM 
To: Dca@DCA 

Subject: Public Comment Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing Sept 27, 2016 

Please see my comments submitted to the LATC regarding proposed regulatory language. 

California Architects Board 
landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committ ee, 

I am an informed cit izen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives, There are currently members 
ot the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts. that are being barred from obtaining Jicensure due to 
e,xisting exclusionary regulatlons. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape 
Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent from New 
York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available 
in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the 
proposed language is based allow Ucensure for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 
The proposed change is also out of step w ith str1ndards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted w ith 
responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 
I oppose the following inequities in t he current and proposed regulat ions: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or e1<perience, to obtain 
an addit ional 10 ye.:irs of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are 
already licensed and by definit ion are competent and capable of ensuring the healt h, safety, and welfare of public - the 
primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or 
Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper wo,rk experience and passing the national Exam. 
- Current ly a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state 
by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 
- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examinat ion and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state lie.ensure upon demonstrat ing an average 
of 8 years experience prior t o examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addit ional 10 year post
licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will 
continue to margfna•lize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may 
obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem 
our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, t he same should hold true 
for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Tit le 16, Division 26, Section 2615 be 
implemented and approved by the California Architect' s Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdfction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a 
written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be 
eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided that the candidate submits verifiable 
documentation to t he Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional services 
for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

2 

mailto:mailto:linda@terralindadesign.com


Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this impor tant regulatory change. 
Sincerely, 

Linda M. Middleton 
2335 Westbrook Court 
Walnut Creek, CA 94598 

3 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nat ion, Kourthey@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, Septernber 27, 2016 4:49 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee ls committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your t t1oughts about the service. you received using our .Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Bonnie Brock [mailto:bonnie@bbrockdesign.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 3:03 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Sufte 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Cornmittee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, lhere are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for ind1vldUals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared' by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the pub'lic's health, safety, and welfare. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:bonnie@bbrockdesign.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the prlmary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the nationat Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by hav.ing passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

· Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally etigible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-llcensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ff 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: · 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practrcing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Bonnie Brock 
Palo Alto CA 94303 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 4:49 PM 
To: Townsend, Stac:y@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 2.7, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
EJ(am ination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 515-7230 Main Line 

(916) 575-7237 Direct 

(916) 575-7285 Fax 

www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed t o providing quality customer service. To measure how we-are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Cynthia Tanyan [mailto:design@mozaiclandscapes.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 4:48 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee1 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their Cal.iforhia licensed counterparts that are· being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory l anguage change, though laking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however thls precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in Cali fornia. California falls to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:design@mozaiclandscapes.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California 's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public- the primary concem of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person wllh a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly ail states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally ellgible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 O year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for CaHfornia reciprocity This change 
Will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain theTr licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits ver]fiable documentation to the Board indicattng: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid lfcense or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Cynthia Tanyan 1 Principal, Designer 
M.S. Ecological Design 

: 1. moza,clandscapes . ·. 

T: 5 10-494-8500 
P.O. Box 394, Sunol, CA 94586 
www.mozaiclandscapes.com 

2 

http:www.mozaiclandscapes.com


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@bCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 1:37 PM 
To: Townsehd, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nat ion 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) S75-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.lat c.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Arctiitects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Bryn Knowles [mailto:bryn.knowles@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 1:33 PM 
lo: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento. CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as quallfied as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies. over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:bryn.knowles@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experiehce to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Archftect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along w1th proper work experience and passing the national Exam 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity, This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
havfng passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years .. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Bryn Knowles 

Oakland, CA 94602 

Bryn Knowles 
Susan Friedman Landscape Architecture 
San Ramon, CA 
415-359-3563 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:20 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fcix 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Cindy Chan [mailto:cchan@jarvisarchitects.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 11:12 AM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed indlvidual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 1 O years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity These 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:cchan@jarvisarchitects.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


Individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work e.xperience and passing the natronal Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter-, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the follow ing revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized. 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Cindy Chan1 Oakland, 94618 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 1:37 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please. print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 57S-7230 Main Line 

(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
w ww.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.natlon@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank yoti 

From: debbiegliksman@gmail.com [mailto:debbiegliksman@gmail.com] On Behalf Of Deborah Gliksman 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 l :10 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusTonary regulations. Also, due to increasing ly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps iri the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outslde of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon whtch the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Arch1tects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:debbiegliksman@gmail.com
mailto:debbiegliksman@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.natlon@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

· The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 1 O years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
indiv iduals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensurfng the health, safety, and 
welfare of pllb!fc - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who -are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations. 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Californ ia as 
determined by the Board shall be e ligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Exami nation provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that requ ired of California applicants at the lime of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or reglstration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the fast 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

ihank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Thank you, 

Debbie Gliksman 
URBAN OASIS LANDSCAPE DESIGN 

2604 Manning Ave. , Los Angeles, CA 90064 

www. urbanoasis-la.com 
Winner of 2 Association of Professional Landscape Designers 2016 Awards
Winner of Association of Professional Landscape Designers 2014 Award 

Advocacy Co-Chair, APLD Greater Los Angeles District 
EPA Certified Irrigation Auditor 
323-905 · 4965 

2 

http:www.urbanoasis-la.com


Townsend. Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:19 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality tustomer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a feVv minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Liz Tilley [mailto: lizt illeydesigns@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 10:42 AM 
lo: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Ucensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however th1s precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fafls to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:liztilleydesigns@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person w ith a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience. Is not eligible for licensure 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addIttonal 1 O year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure. candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that 1f 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold ·true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised lang uage to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Div is io n 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that t11e candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the Hme of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Liz Tilley 

Oakland 94602 

Liz Tilley Designs 
4 15.793.3580 

2 



Townsend •. Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:18 PM 
To:. Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 

(916) 575-7285 Fax 

www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Cathy E [mailto:cathy@edgerlandscapedesign.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 9:56 AM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: Dca@DCA; dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA; senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California lfcensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today_ 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking s teps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
llcensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:cathy@edgerlandscapedesign.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along With proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally ellgible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addittonal · 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to maFginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers Who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico oy 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter requfred in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for Hcensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration fn good standing, and has been practidng or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for tl"\is opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Cathy Edger 
Novato CA 94947 

cath y(a),edgerl andscapedesi gn.com 
ww,AJ.edgerlandscapedesign.com 
Bay Friendly Certified 
Best of Houzz 2015 
APLDCA Chapter Secretary 

2 

http:www.edgerlandscapedesign.com


Townsend. Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:17 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Arch itects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Su ite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Archltects Technical Committee isrnmmitted to providing quality.customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received L1sing our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Astrid Gaiser [mailto:astrid@astridgaiser.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 9:34 AM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are 
currently members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from 
obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there 
are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory l anguage change, t hough taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varyjng degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:astrid@astridgaiser.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, 
to obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals 13re already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates 
Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national 
Exam. 

Currently a person with a 4-year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in 
another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure 
Nearly all states require experience for init ial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating 
an average of 8 years of experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an 
additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California 
reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related 
subjects may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It 
seems clear that if we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as 
those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 2615 
be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California 
as determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating; 
(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the 

time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a 
recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of 
the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Astrid Gaiser 
2517 Nedson Court 
Mountain View, CA 94043 

2 



Townsend. Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:13 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 

www.latcca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality c·ustomer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: julie@thegrassisalwaysgreener.net [mailto:julie@thegrassisalwaysgreener.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 9:17 AM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who Understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives, There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
lfcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Ar1zona , however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Lahdscape Arcl1itecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed lan9uage is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:julie@thegrassisalwaysgreener
http:dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:julie@thegrassisalwaysgreener.net


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and we/fare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation Will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California recrprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the bas1s of 
examinatfon and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 1 o year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. · 

- While California Architects and Civi,I Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application ; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at ileast 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has be.en practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Julie S. Molinare 

Adopt the pace of nc,ture: 
her secret is patience. 
~Ralph Waldo Emerson 

Julie Molinare 
The Grass Is Always Greener Landscape Designs 
661-917-3521 
Association of Professional Landscape Designers (APLD) 
APLD LA District 2016 Vice President 

Join me! 

2 



Website 
My blog is now linked to my website, take a look! 
Facebook 
Be a fan of my business on Facebook 
Twitter 
Linkedln 

3 



Townsend. Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:13 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sac(amento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed .to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you rece1ved using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Stephanie Bartron [mailto:stephanie@sbgardendesign.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 9:05 AM 
To: Nation; Kourthey@DCA 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road. Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the publlc who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Commfttee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for Individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health , safety, and welfare. 

1 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:stephanie@sbgardendesign.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


I oppose the followfng inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
Obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience. to be granted California reciprocity. These 
Individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. Tile current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege, It seems clear that if 
we deern our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

( 1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shalt be elig ible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that requ ired of California applicants at the time of 
application: or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registraHon in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offerihg professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this Important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Stephanie Bartron, APLD, G3 

SB Garden Design, LLC 
www.sbgardendesign.com 
o: 323-660-1034 
c: 323-691-7519 
stephanie@sbgardendesign.com 

We write the books that make California green. With G3 (Green Gardens Group): 
+Los Angeles County's Drought Tolerant Garden Handbook 
+San Diego Sustainable Landscape Guidelines 
+City of Beverly Hills Garden Handbook 

2 

mailto:stephanie@sbgardendesign.com
http:www.sbgardendesign.com


Townsendl Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:13 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Julie [mailto:jul2ingalls@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 8:54 AM 
To: Nat ion, Kourtney@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the itnportance of Landscape Arch itecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
llcensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualffy for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows prece.dent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not avallable in California, California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however 
both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and CiVil Engineers who are 
entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the publfc's health, safety, and welfare. 

1 

mailto:mailto:jul2ingalls@yahoo.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


I oppose the following lnequlties in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to 
obtafn an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture afon_g with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examfnatron and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity, This change 
wfll continue to marginali·ze many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

( 1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent ln scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provlded 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of Californra applicants at the time of 
applfcation; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, arid has been practicing or offering professional services tor at least 2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professfonal 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this important regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Julie Ingalls 

San Carlos, Ca 94070 

2 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nat ion, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 12:12 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public comment: Proposed Regilatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please print and add to the public comment tracking. 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www .late.ca.gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The landscape Architects T echnical Committee is committed to pr.oviding quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Mary Kaye [mailto:rnjk8236@sbcglobal.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 8:46 AM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Subject: Public comment: Proposed Regilatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 

Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am an informed citizen who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture in our daily lives. There are currently 
members of the public who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining 
licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over time, there are 
currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing wllo would not qualify for licensure today. 

Tile Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent 
from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to 
licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture

1 
however 

both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure for individuals with varying degrees and 
combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are 

1 

mailto:mailto:mjk8236@sbcglobal.net
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following lnequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

- The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless• of education or experience, to 
obtain an additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These 
individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and 
welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

- In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree 
or Certificate in Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

- Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, reg.ardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another 
state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

- Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of 
examination and experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an 
average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year 
post-licensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California recip,ocity. This change 
will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

- While California Architects and Civil Engineers Who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects 
may obtain their licensure, candidates for Land.scape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if 
we deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same 
should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, Section 
2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1 ) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian provfnce, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantfally equfvalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination provided 
that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of 
application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized 
accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 2 of the last 5 years, or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid lfcense or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional 
services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on this lmportant regulatory change. 

Sincerely, 

Mary Kaye, APLD 

746 University Avenue, Los Altos, CA 94022 

2 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional w ho understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the nation al Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the s-ame Exam and having 

the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior ro examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application: or 
(Bl Candidat e holds a valid license or regist ration i n good st anding, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 

Sincerely, 

Printed Name 

9~-trz ~ 

,tie 

5t?4t!z}¾,sa. 
City 

CA 
State 

Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing Sept em ber 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as t heir California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in t he right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varyihg degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibi lities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain ar, 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of lice115ure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year As,sociates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licens·ure exj:>erience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California recfproclty. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not af forded that privilege. It seems clear that if w e deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience eguiva'lent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

p¢?Z// ~ Professional Designation(s) 

~ ~ tff/02/lt, ell f5'/tJt/ 
Signature Date Oty State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. M ike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



State 

ag+o4 
Zip Code 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obta'ining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
tfrne, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these St ates have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape ArchitectlJre along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority ot states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. Thfs change will continue to marginalize many talented profes-slonals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape ArchitectlJre are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided t hat the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited inst itution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
.2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good st anding. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring t he public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure pract1ce experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2. year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state llcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for Californla reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers whoare_not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 261S Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California ArchiteGts Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as q1.1alified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Lic.ensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Comtnittee's proposed Regulatory Lang1.1age change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this ptecedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will requiri, a11y out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additioMI 10 years of post-liccnsure practice experience to be granted Callfornla reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern oMlcensurc. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the natfonal Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is Hcensed ih anotherstate by having passed the same E><am and having 
the same work experlence, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experiehce for initial Hcensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examtnation and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experfence 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total !average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This c;hange will continue to marginalize. many talented profe:;slonals. 

While California Architect$ and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualif1ed as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
havihg passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
t he time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
b. I .T. 5h.·H' &0 l~rs I-

Professional Designation{s) Title 

'I- 9'-t 5a .. -f.e.. f2of 
Oate City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cal>@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mc~uire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Woo~ Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Pa.so Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there. are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which t he proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals wit h varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These indlviduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority o f states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonst rating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees fn related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26; Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of E,caminations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, K a..--1- C /v,. 

C/f 
-

State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Soard, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagner 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

addition;il 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already llcensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and Welfare of public - the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national ham. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having pas.sed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible lor licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civll Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for L,mdscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be. eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, ])o,'('r\'.!:)t'\ M<!lre-l': 
I 1 P. f". 6&\,er- ~~\'\eB'< 

mdName Professional Desigltion(s) Title 

~ ~ q t/.1.b. ,~/(o54 CA- 1.51t>4 
Signature Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, ,senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are current ly 

members of t he profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-stale licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These individua ls are a lrea dy licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior ro examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additiona l 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable document ation to t he Board indicating: 

(A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of t he last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulat ory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience lo be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
landscape Architecture along wiih proper work experience and passing the nat ional Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in, another stale by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience. Is not eligible for licensure, 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 
• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 

Date 

Title 

Oty State 

CC: Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr, 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov


1

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Ca)ifornia Architects Board 
Landscape Archltects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are current ly 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts t hat are being barred 
trom obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precederit is out of context because these States have a 
multitude or palh.s Lo licensure not available in Cali fornia. California fails to recogniLe education outside o f 
Landsccipe Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed lcinguagc is based alfow Uccnsurc 
for individuals with varying degrees ;ind combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civi l Engineers who 
arc entrusted with responsibilities as crilical lo ensuring t he publi~'s health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the follow.ing inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any oul-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of ed1,cat1011 or experience, to obtain an 

addftlon«I lOyears of post-lirnnsure practice e~pcricnce to be crant~>d 1:alifornia reciprocity. Thr.se individu~ls are already ticer1£ed 

and by definition .ire competent and capable of cnsorlnfi the health, safety, and well.ire ot public - the primary concern of flce.mure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they h~ve o;!arned a 2 year llssociares Degree or C:ertifla.te in 
L;mdsr.ape Architecture. along with proper work e~peritmce and pa5sing the national E,ram. Currently a person w ith a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regard le$$ of related subject matter, who is licer1scd in ;inot~er state by having passed the same ham and h~ving 
the same work experience, Is not elle,lble for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require expedence for inltial llcensure and the majority of s1a1esallow licensure 011 the basis of examination and 

e~perlencealone. Persons are gcf\Crdlly elieibldor out of state llccnsure upon demonstratlng arn,verage of 8 ye~rs experienct
prior lo examir>ation. The current proposed regulation will @ck on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience re~ulrement for 

a total (avera&e) of 18 years needed for California retlprQ~lty. l hls chanue w.JIJ continue to ,-;,areinall~e many talented profP.ssionals. 

While Californla /\rchitecl5 and Civil EnGineers who arc not colle41c ~durated orw'ho h;ive degrees in rclatcd s u!:>Jects n;.:,y obtain 

their litimsufe, c;indidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that ririvtlege. Ir seems clear that lf we deem our Architects 

and l:nglneer5 who are not rnllcgecduC<Jtt.'d to be a; qualified as those w ho arc, tho same should hold true for Lund~pc Archit~ctS. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of E_xaminations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a land~cape archiLec;L in a U.S.jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candid_ate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the~ Lime of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesse.s a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of t he last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidat e holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
prof essional services for at lea~t 6 of the last 10 years. 

Professional Ocsigoalio<1(~) 

Date Oty 

,.-

cc: California Architect,; Board·, cab@dca.ca.J.lOV Department of Consumer Affairs Olfir-P nfthp Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, scnalor.rnci.:uire@senate.ca.gov .Sen~tor )[m Nlel~e11 Governor Edmund G. Drown Jr. 
Asse111blyrn~ 1 Jim Wood AS~!!lnblyrnan James Gallagher 

http:collr.ge
https://C:ertifla.te


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Archftects Technical Commit tee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasi·ngly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not avaflable in Calffornia. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Llcensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil En,gineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require ,my out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additiona) 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California rec,procity. These l ndiv1duals are alteady licensed 

and by definition are competent .1nd capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

In californfa a person may become a licensed L;indscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate fn 

landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 

S,chelor's Deg,ree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed in another state· by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is nor eligible forhcensu re. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the mafority of states allow licl!Jlsure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons ar~ generally eligible for out of state licensure upon dernonstratin& an average of 8 years experrence 
.prior to examination, The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 

a total [average) of 18 years needed for Callfor,i ia rec1procity, Thls change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architect s and Civil Engtneers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related $Ubjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded. that ptivilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architec-ts 

and fngtneers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Archltects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A cand!date who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examin.ation 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board lndlcatihg: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to t hat required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the. last S years; or 

IC) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional seNices for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

9£'773 
State Zip Code 

Department of Consumer Affai,s Office of the Governor 
Sena.tor lim Nielsen Govelhor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

CC: California Architecrs Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Ml~e McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
As5emblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Techn1cal Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members or the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtairing licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape <\rchitecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individl..als with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The propo~ed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

n,e proposed regulation w111 req11Ire any out-of-state hcensed lndlvldual, regardless of education or e~perience, to obtain an 
additional 10years of post-llcensure pract1ce experience to be granted California recIproc1tv. These Individual~ nre already llcensen 

a~d by definition are competent and capable of eruurong the health. safety, and welfare of publk-the pr,mary concern of ltcensure. 

In C~lifornla a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If 1hey have earned a 2 year A5soc,~1es Degree ur Certificate In 

candscape Architecture along w ith proper work eiperience and passln~ the national Exam. Currently a person Witt\ a 4 year 

e.,chelor's Oesree, regardless of related subjtct matter. who Is licensed ,n another state by having passed !he same E.xam and havon11 
the same work e<per1ence, ts not ellgible for llcensure. 

N ?Mly all states require experience for initial lkensure and the majority of states ~llow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

e,:penence alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state !,censure upon demonstr.nlng an average of 8 years eJrperieneoe 

prior to examination. lhe curren1 proposed regulat1on w,11 tack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure eMperIence requlrem.ent for 
a total (average) o f 18 years needed for Callfomla reciprocity. This change will continue to m~rg111alize many talen!l!d profess,onab, 

While ca11fom1a Arch,1ecis and CMI Engineers who are no1 colleae educated or who have degrees In related ,subjects may obtain 

their licensure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that 1f we deem our Architects 

a id Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualrffed ns those who are, the same should hold true for Land~c;ape Arct:,,tec:ts. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 

having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible. for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application; or 
{Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

!f~oMi "'""""9f/ 
Title 

Fo/s°"'t 
City 

Clf- t/f<.Jo 
State Zip Code 

CC· Caljfo•nra Architects Soard, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Co11sumer Affa,rs Ofrlce of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senaror.mcgulre(g)senati:.Ld.tov 'Se nator Jlm Nrck,cn G,womor E.dmumf G. Brown Jr 
Ass,,rnblyman Jlrn Wood ~emblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public· Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 SEP l 3 IC"O 

SOOTT 
Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the Importance of landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to Increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent ftom New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outslde of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of e.xperience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards st,ared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilit ies as crit ical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-slate licenM:d individu·at, regan!less of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post-lkensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity, These individuals are ;itready licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of licensure. 

• In Callfomla a person may become a Licensed Landscape Archjtect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a pers·on with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for lic:ensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of e~,nlnation and 
experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state lie.ensure upon demoMtrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examinatlon. The current proposed regulation will tack on an addiUonal lOyear post-licen5ure experlenc;e requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginall1e many talented professionals. 
While talifomla Architects and C,vll Er\!Jineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that prlvllege. It seems dear that If we deem our Architects 
and Ensineers who are not college educated to be as qualtfled as those who are, the sa.me should hold true for Landscape. Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend Callfornia Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdij;tlon, canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A} Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

(Bl candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last S years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: oar , ca. .gov Oepattment of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing Septetnber 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policles, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for lic;ensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory l.;mguage change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. california fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for Individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Fngineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any our-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, fo obtain an 

additlonal 10 years of post-Ii censure practice experience to be granted California leciprocity, Tliese Individuals are already llceMecl 

and by deflnltlon are competent -and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary concern of lrcensure. 

In California a person may become a llcensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 
landscape Architecture along With proper work experience and passing the ~ational Exam, Currently a person with a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless ofrelated subject matt er, v;ho is llcen~ed In another state by having passed the 5ame. Exam and having 
the same work e~perten~e, is not eligible for II censure. 

Nearly all stales require experience for l nltlal llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure ant.he basis of examination anct 

e~perience;alonc-. Person;; are generally elfgibJe for .out of state licensure upon dcmonstratrng an average of 8 years experience 

priol to examination. The current pmposec;j regulation will tac~ on an additional lO ye.ar post-llcensure experience requirement fur 

a total (average) o f 18 years needed for Callfornta reciprocity. This change will continue to marglnall~e many talented professTonaJs. 
Whfle Cllllfornla Architects and Civil Engineers who are n-ot college ~ucated or who have degrees in related s1.Jbjects may obtain 

their llcen1ure, candidates for landscape Architecture are not atfordecl that prtvllege. It seems clearthat If we deem our ,Architects 

and ~nglneers who are not college eduGJted to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true tor Landscs1pe Architect$. 

t request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a writ ten examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for llcensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that t he candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board Indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or regist.-ation in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.go 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate. 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Senator J im Nlel1en 

() qc.;-:,9 t'::i 
Sl ate. Zip Code 

Office of the Governor 
Governor Edmund G. Blown Jr. 

Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

http:archite.ct


,

Public Comment: Proposed Regul~tory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are curre()tly 

members o f the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining ficensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to Increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Lkensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 

precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent Is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in Californ[a. California fal ls to recognize education outside of 

Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language Is based allow Licensure 
for individuals witn varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change Is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensutlng the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulat ions: 

The proposed regulation wlll require any out-of.state 'licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to oblaln an 
additional 10 years of post,llcensure practlce experience to be gra~ted California reciprocity. These Individuals are-already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- !he primary concern of licensure. 
In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earn,:d a 2 year Associates Deslee or Cert1/h;ate In 
Landscape Archltec\urealonl; With prope( work e)<perlence and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor'~ Degree, ,regardless of related subject maner, who Is licensed In another stale by having pass-ed the same E~am and having 
the same work ~xperlence, Is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for 1n1t1al llcensure and the majority of stales allow IJcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. Persons are generally ellglble for out of stale licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 year.s experience 
prior to examination. The cyrrent proposed regulation wlll tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a. total (average) Of 18 years needed fo; California reciprocity. This change wlll continue to marglnallze mariy talented professionals. 
While Ca.llfornla Architects and Civil engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not .college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Ar~hitect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Exam inations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. Jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shal l be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of appHcatlon; or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited Institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registrat ion in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Printed Na. m~ ./4 P,oressronal Deslgnatlon(sl Tl 1e 

~~~~ ~./4//k ~~ 44: °2~.f-tr-, 
1 Slgn;1turP°~ ;r;;;r City State Zip Code 

CC: Caltfornla Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consum~ Affairs Offfce of the Governor 
sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca,gov senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
/\ssembtyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

mailto:senator.mcgulre@senate.ca,gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Architects Technirnl Committee 
2420 Del Paso Rond, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Archi~ectur·e. Theni are currently 
members or rhe profession who arc as qu,Jlifled as their Californi;:i licensed counterparts that ilre being barred 
from ob,aining licensure due to existing exclusionary regul.:itions. Also, due to' increasingly re5trictive policies, over 
time, there arc currently CA Licensed Landscape Arcl1itects pr.:icticing who would not qualify for l1ce·nsurc today. 

The Commit tee's proposed Regul.itory Language change, though t.aking,.steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedenrfrorn New York and Arizona, however this precedent i.s out of context because these States have a 
multitude of p;iths to licensure not aVililable in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed langoagc is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by Californio's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with rcsponsibllitie~ as critic;il to ensuring the public's health, s;ifcty, ;ind welfore. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations; 

Tt,~ propo~l!d rcgu!;Jtton will r~ouire anv out-o f <t,,te licens,1d lndiv,dual. rrg~rtlless of education or c~perience, 10 olJta,n an 

ilddllio11al 10 years of posl-licensurc practic!' exp~rience to be grJnted C111itornf,1 reciprorny. Th i-,e mdi<,idunls aI e Jlready 1lcr,n1cd 

and by def1n1llon ;,re con1p!!tcnt ,md cJpable or ensuring Ilic hcJlth, sar.,,y, and welf~re of public - th<' primary concern of licen,un•. 

h1 California R perrnn rnay b(:comc il I icen~etl L;,ndsc~p<' i\rchltect It they have cm ned a l y<'ar As~oclMf's Deg, ee o r Certilical e ,n 

Landscape Jlrchrteclurc nlong with proper ,vork experience and pJss11111 th<.' national E~ain. Currt!n\ly a person w11h ~ d yr;.;r 

U;,chclor's Degree, regardless of related s11G1@t1 mdt,cr, who 11 licenser! ,n ,mo\her sta te bv liaving,passed the same ham and having 
the >i•me work experience, Is not eligible for lir!'11s1,r~. 
Ne~rly all st~tcs rr.quire cxpcucnce for]niliJI licen,orc and the fliiljority of states allow Ii censure 011 the hasis of i,xarnin;itjon ,mu 
r,.vperient<' .ilone. Persons a,~ uenerally eligible for out of state liccnsure upon d!'mo11str<1tinr, an average or 8 years e~pNicntt' 
prior t o cxamin~llon. The current propo•,ed reg11latlon will tack on an additional 10 year pos1-l,censure expericnw rcqufrement for 

a total (avcrace) of 18years needc·d for C~llfo, nia reciprocJty, I his ,hange will con1inueto marginall,~ ma11y IJit'ntcd profcss,on~ls. 

While Canlornia l\rchnecrs and Civil Engin1'.'Ns who arc not college educ~lcd or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
, heir liu•nsure, candidates 101 LJndsc~pe l\rr.hirecturc arc noi afforded tl,ar p11vllrge. l l seem, cl oar thdt if we deem our Architect~ 
Jl1d Eng111et'r$ who are not ,ollep,c eduu11ed to lle a~ qualilled il, those who ore, the.s~me , hould ho(d l ruci ior Landscape Arch itects, 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Can;idlan province, or Puerto Rico by 
having p11ssed a written examination substanti;illy equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Cilllfornia as 
determined by the f3oard shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the C1lifornia Supplernentc1I Exc1rnination 
provided thilt the candidc1te submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{Al Candidate posse!.~es educat ion and experience equivalent to that required of California applicnms at 
the t ime of ;:ipplicalion; or 
{B) Candidate holds a valid license or registr.at ion in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
pr ofcssionnl !>crvices for at lec1st 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, { 4- GAN I? f;CA-~t? /trvf1--( 1 ·rez;r -ft ?7)2-
Profcs~io.n~I De~ignatlon(s) Tille 

· ,- G.- 2- l~ CA-
c:!v 5\Jt'! 

CC. (.1ii/omi3 /\rrhit~t t'. BllJ!'O, c,,b1!,1dca.c~ !:,OV 0 ~;_;;;1 tme_i:t of (\Qn \iwnc-, AffJ~r5 Olf1c.e of the Go,·crncr 
si,n. Mike Mt·Guirf', .£en,llor.mcguirl'@sen,1tt:.r;i.£CN s,,naror J,111 Ni~lst1n Governor E!lI11vnd G. Brpwn It 
l\ss~mblym~,n J!m Wood /\,semblyman Jame, Gallagher 

http:ofcssion.il
http:posse!.!.es
mailto:en,llor.mcguirl'@sen,1tt:.r;i


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Profe.sslonal who understands the importance of landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
t ime, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for l icensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Languc1ge change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to Ii censure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Llcensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities In the current and proposed regulations: 

• Toe l)ropoSl!d reeulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 
additional 10 years of post·ll~ensure practice experience to be granted cal/fornla reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of enwrJng the health, safety, and welfare of public - the prfmary coricern of licensure, 
In Callfomla a person may become a Licensed Landscape A1'hllect If they have ea med a 2 year AssQClates Degree or Certificate in 
Landscape Architecture along with proper wo(lc =rlence and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Badie/or's Degree, regardless of related subje<:t matter, who ls lic.ensed In another state by having passed the Silme ~•am and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for llrensure. 

Nearly all states require experienc.e for Initial llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 
experience alone. P~tsons are generally elJglble for out of state licensure upon demonstratlng an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed regulaiion wlll t;,ck o n an additional 10 year posl·llcensure experience rj!<(Uirement tor 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprodt-1, This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Ovil ·Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their llcensure, candidates for Landscape Alchltecture are not affprded that Privilege. It seems dear that if we deem our Architects 
and Engineers who are not coll<)ge educated lo be as qualified as those whP are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

l request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdictfon, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon pa.sslng t he California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application: or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration rn good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 vears; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid l icense or registration in good standing. and has been practidng or offering 

professional services for at least 6 of the last10 years. c.~· \-: I,'. .-~ \. i\ ,~~-:, l ,' -:>-f- CV ~ £" <.\ l-0 
Sincerely, c: 

r <'--"1l3 ::.> \ "-f 

Signature Date 

CC: Califorhia Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Departrnent or Consumer Affairs Office or the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, ~enator.mcguire@s.en:ite.ca.goV Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 

A: 

d 
.J.'i°OC' 

https://enator.mcguire@s.en:ite.ca.goV
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed•Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 

Landscape Archi tects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear La11dscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations, Also, due to increasin_gly restrictive policies, ·over 
ttme, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education out5ide of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architect5 and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require arw out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of educat ion or experience, to obtain an 

addition al 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. 1hese indMduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public.- lhe primary concern of llcensure.. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience anti passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a q year 

Bachelor's Degree. regardless of related subject matter, who Is licensed In ~nother state by having passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

Nearly all states require exper fence for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basis of examination and 

e~perience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will t ack on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience req~irement for 
a total (average) of 18 year; needed for Cali fornia reciprocity, This change will contfnue to margi oali?e many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

lhe.ir llcensure, cand idates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that prlvllege. It seems clear that If we deem our Architects 

and Engl nee rs who are not college. educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold t rue for Landscape Archlteci s. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in Callfornia as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

{A) Candidate possesses education and experfence equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(8) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Professional Deslgnation(s) 

0 
Signature Oare State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca,gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood /\ssemblyr'nan James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Arch1tects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrfctive policies, over 
time, there 'ilre currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed c;hange is also out of step with standards shared by Califo(nia'sArchitects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardless of education or e~perience, to obtain an 

adc;Jitional JO years of post-llcensure practice e~perience to be granted California reciprocity. These individuals are already licensed 

and by definiUon are competent and capable of ensurlng the health, safety, and welfare of public - the primary conc,ern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have ea med a 2 year Associates Degr,ee or Certifltate in 

landscape Architecture along With proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a pers_on wi th a 4 year 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subjecl matter, who is licensed In another state by havlng passed the same Exam and having 

the same wotk experience. is not eJlg1ble for licensur.e. 

Nearly all states require experience for 1nitlal licensure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation wlll tack on an additional ·10 year post-licensure experience requirementfor 

a total (average) of 18 years needed for Ci!llfornla reciprocity. lhi~change w ill continue to marglnalfzemany talented profes~ionals. 

While Calfforma Architects and Civil Engineers who-afe not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain 

their licemure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who a re not college educated to be as qualif\ed as those who are, the same should hold 1rue for l..1ndscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California .Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of E>Caminations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Hico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institutfon. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

{C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

\ 

Sincerely, ,' \ ,J! 
..... ✓f"t \ 

" Prrnted Name 

\ 

Zip Code 

Department of Consumer Affairs Offlr.e of the Goliernor 
Se~ator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman James Gallagher 

cc: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to exist ing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
titne, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Ari,zona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available In California. California fails to recognize. education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted With responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the curre nt a nd pro posed regulatio ns: 

The proposed regulation will require any ou1-of-~1a1e licensed individual, regardless of educat ion or e,perience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-llcensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These lndtviduals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Uceosed Landscape Architectlf they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed In another state by having passed the same Exam and havlng 

the same worl< experience, is not eligible for llcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure 0nd the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of slate ilcensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience 
prior to examination. The current proposed' regulation will taek on an additional 10 year post-llcensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) ot 18 years needed ror California reclproclty. Thl5 change Will conljnue 10 marglnalile many talented profe5sionals. 

While California Architects and Cfvil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 
their licensure, candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. II seems tlear that if we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalen.t in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration In good standing, and ha5, been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, .(. I , .. JI\ I. t, (-ii fz, C (~I ✓._ ...,v r'>I r= . 
Printed Name Professlo11al Oesignatlon(s) / TI le 7 ?,1 ,d.-cz.-fA.--" 1 I Is-., 11,, u IJf">dR lh11 , cA 
Signature Date City State Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Departrnent of Consumer Affairs Office ol U1e Governor 
Sen. Mike McGuire, senator.mcguirc@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagher 



Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who ate as qualified. as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations, Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outsfde of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Ucensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed indivldual, regMdless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 

and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health. safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a per5on may become a Licensed Landsrape Architect if they have earned a 2. year Assoc1aies Degree or Certificate in 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing 1·he national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 '{ear 

Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licensed m another state by having passed the same Exam an\! having 
the same work experience, 1s not eligibl.e for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow llcensure on the basls,of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state licensure upor, demonstrating an average or 8 years experience 

prior to examfnat1on. The current proposed rngulation will tack 011 an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed fot California recjproclty. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While C~llforn,a Architects and Civil Englneerswno are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects m~y obtain 
thelr llcensure, candidates for Landscape Arch1te,ture are not afforded that privilege. It 5eems clear that lf we deem our Architetts 

and Engineers who a,e not college educated to be as qualifled as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidat-e submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 

a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Department of Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jarnes Gallagher 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Sen. Mike McGuire, stnator,mcgu,re@~en~te.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood 

mailto:senator.mc'guire@sen.ite.ca,gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov


Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory language Hearing September 27, 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently 
members of the profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred 
from obtaining licensure due to existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows 
precedent from New York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a 
multitude of paths to licensure not available in California. California fails to recognize education outside of 
Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the proposed language is based allow Licensure 
for individuals w ith varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who 
are entrusted with responsibilities as cri tical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an 

additional 10 years of post-licensure practice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed 
and by definition are competent and capable of ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public- the primary concern of licensure. 

In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate In 

Landscape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the na tional Exa111. Currently a person with a 4 year 
Bachelor's Degree, regard.less of related subject matter, who is licensed in another state by hal/ing passed the same Exam and having 
the same work experience, is not eligible for Hcensure. 

Nearly all states require experience for initial llcensure and the majority of states allow Ileen sure on the basis of examination and 

experience alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of state I/censure upon demonstratlng an average of 8 years experience 

prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requirement for 
a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

While California Architects and Civlt Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related subjects may obtain 

their llcensure, c.andldates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. 11 seems c.lear that 11 we deem our Architects 

and Engineers who are not college educated lo be as qua lined as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. j urisdiction, Canadian provinc·e, or Puerto Rico by 
having passed a written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as 
determined by the Board shall be eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experTence equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application; or 

{B} Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognize.d accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Date City State 

"1i;i630 
Zip Code 

CC: California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov Department or Consumer Affairs Office of the Governor 
Sen. Mike Mc.Gutre, senator.mcgulre@senate.ca.gov Senator Jim Nielsen Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
Assemblyman Jim Wood Assemblyman James Gallagbt!r 



Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 3:14 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Please add to spreadsheet 

Kourtney Nation 
Examination Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 

(916) 575-7230 Main Line 
(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca.gov 

kourtney.nat ion@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share. your thoughts about the service you received using our Customer Service 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Robin Tofanelli-Cook [mailto: robin@nantuckethomeinc.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 22, 2016 1:47 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: shawn; CAB@DCA; Dca@DCA; senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov; Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov; 
senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov; assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov 
Subject: re: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

Attn: Kourtney Nation 
California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
latc@dca.ca.gov 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently members of the 
profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining licensure due to 
existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practlcing who would not qualify for licensure today. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction,, borrows precedent from New 
York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available 
in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the 
proposed language is based alfow licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and: combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted with 
responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare, 

1 

mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
mailto:wood@assernbly.ca
mailto:mcguire@senate.ca
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:mailto:robin@nantuckethomeinc.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• Tl)e proposed regulation will require any out-of-stil'te licensed Individual, regardless of education or 'experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of post-
licensure p'rac,tice experience to be granted California reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed and by definition are competent and capable of 
ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of pub lie - the primary concern of llcensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed landscape Architect if they have earned a 2. year Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture 
along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject 
matter, who is licensed in another state by having passed the,same Exam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for Ii censure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for initial licensure and the majority of states allow licensure oh the basis of examination and experience 

alone. Persons are generally eligible for out of sta te licensure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current 
proposed regulation. will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience requfrement for a total ,(average) of 18 years needed for California 
reclprocfty. This change will continue to marginalile many talented professionals, 

• While Callfornla Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees in related, subjects may obtain their II censure, 
candidates for Landscape Architecture are not afforded that privilege. It seems clear that ifwe deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college 
educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Lapdscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a 
written examination substant ially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be 
eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental examination 
provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(A) Candidate possesses education and experience eguivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 

(Bl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

(Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 
Robin Cook 
Chico, CA 

Robin Cook 
Showroom Manager 

SHOP LDC.AL. SUPPORT LOCAL. 
OUTSTANDING SERVICE, QUALITY AND 

PROFESSIONAL DESIGN ON YOUR BUDGET 

w,~ w Sl111pN11111uch.dHomexorn 
w,1w.N1rnwt"-ell lomelm:.cun1 

·~w ~:uratorsOILifrstylc com 

2 

http:uralorsOILifrstj'lc.com
www.Namucf


Townsend, Stacy@DCA 

From: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 3:12 PM 
To: Townsend, Stacy@DCA 
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing - California Architect's 

Board 

Please add t o spreadsheet 

Kourtney Nation 
Examinatfon Coordinator 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road Suit e 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
{916) 575-7230 Main Line 

(916) 575-7237 Direct 
(916) 575-7285 Fax 
www.latc.ca .gov 

kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee is committed to providing quality customer service. To measure how we are doing, 
we would appreciate you taking a few minutes to share your t houghts about the .service you received using our Customer Servlce 
Survey. Thank you 

From: Patrick Race [mailto:patrickrace@gmail.com] 
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 1:12 PM 
To: Nation, Kourtney@DCA 
Cc: shawn@meltondg.com; CAB@DCA; Dca@DCA; senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov; 
Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov; senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov; 
assem blymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing - California Architect's Board 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 
Attn: Kourtney Nation 
California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
latc@dca.ca.gov 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are currently members of the 
profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining licensure due to 
existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 

time, there are currently CA Licensed Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today. 
The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows precedent from New 
York and Arizona, however this precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensL1re not available 
in California. California fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however both States upon which the 
proposed language is based allow Licensure ' 

for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

1 

mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
mailto:assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Gallagher@assembly.ca
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:shawn@meltondg.com
mailto:mailto:patrickrace@gmail.com
mailto:kourtney.nation@dca.ca.gov
http:www.latc.ca.gov


The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted with 
responsibilities as crit ical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 
• The proposed regulatfon will require any out-of-state licensed Individual, regardtess of education or experience, to obtain an additional 10 years of posl

lfcen~ure pract1ce experlenc:e to be granted California reciprocity. These 1ndivlduals are already licensed and by deflnitfon are competent and capable of 
ensuring the, health, safety, a11d welfare of public - the primary concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may·become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certif!qite in Landscape Archi tect1;re 

along with proper work experience and passfng the national Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year Bachelor's Degree, regardless of related subject 

matter, who Is licensed in another state by having passed the same Exam and having the same work experience, Is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require experience for Initial Ileen sure and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination and experience 

alone. Persons are·generally eligible for out of state Ileen sure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prfor to examination. The current 

proposed regulation will tac~ on an additional 10 year post-Ii censure experience requlrement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California 

reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many talented professionals. 

• While Californ1a Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who have degrees In related subjects may obtain their llcensure, 

candidates, for Landscape Architecture.are not afforded that privilege. It seems-clear that l fwe deem our Architects and Engineers who are not college 

educated to be as qualified as those who are, the same should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 

Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

(1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a 
written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Bo-ard shall be 
eltgible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 

provided that the candidate submits verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 
(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the time of application: or 

(Bl Candidate holds a vaHd license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offer-ing professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 

{Cl Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standihg, and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Patrick Race, PLA 
Landscape Architect 
San Francisco, CA 94103 

CC: 
California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Department of Consumer Affairs, dca@dca.ca.gov 
Senator Jim Nielsen, senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman James Gallagher, Assetnblymember.Gallagher@assemblv.ca.gov 
Senator Mike McGuire, senator.rncguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood, assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov 
Office of the Governor, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

2 

mailto:assemblymember.waod@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.go
mailto:Assemblymembet.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:dca@dca.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.g:Qy


shawn@meltondg.com I 530-899-1616 
www.tneltondg.com 

Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory l anguage Hearing September 27, 2016 

Attn: Kourtney Natlon 
California Architects Board 
landscc1pe Architects Technical Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 Sacramento, CA 95834 
latc@dca.ca.gov 

Dear landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a Licensed Professional who understands the importance of Landscape Architecture. There are current ly members of the 
profession who are as qualified as their California licensed counterparts that are being barred from obtaining licensure due to 
existing exclusionary regulations. Also, due to increasingly restrictive policies, over 
time, there are currently CA Licensed l andscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure today, 

The Committee
1
s proposed Regulatory language change, though taking steps In the right direction, borrows precedent from New 

York and Arizona, however this precedent Is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to licensure not available 
in California. Californla fails to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture, however botn States upon which the 
proposed language ls based allow Licensure 
for individuals with varying degrees and combinat ions of experience. 

The proposed change is also out of step with standards shared by California' s Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted w ith 
responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following, inequities in the current and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed individual, regardless of education or experience, to obtain an add111on.1I 10 years of post • 
llcensure p ractice experience to be granted california reciprocity. These Individuals are already licensed And by definition are competent and capable of 
ensurrng the health, safety, and welfare of public-the primary concern of llcensure, 

• In California a person may become a licensed landscape Architect If they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or Certificate in Landscape Architecture 
along with proper work experience and passing the natlonal Exam. Currently a person with a 4 year Bacllelor's Degree, regardless of related subject 
matter, who ,s licensed tn another state by ha111ng passed the sarne Exam and having lhe same work expel!ence, is not eligible for llcensure. 

• Nearl y all states requ.ire eKpe_rfence for Initial ticensure and the maj ority of states allow llcensure on 'the basis of examination and experience 

alone. Persons are generally eligible for our of state l!censure upon demonstrating an average of 8 years experience prior to examination. The current 
proposed resulation will tack on an additional 10 year post, llcensure experience requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California 
reciprocity. This chal'\ge w ill continue to margfnallze many talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not college educated or who t,ave degrees in related subjects may obtain their llcensure, 

candidates for Landscape Architecture are. not afforded that p rivilege. It seems clear that If we deem our Archltects and Engineers who are not college 
educated to be as qualified as those who are, the sarne should hold true for Landscape Architects. 

I request the following revised language to amend California Code of Regulations, Title 16, 
Division 26, Section 2615 be implemented and approved by the California Architect's Board: 

§ 2615 Form of Examinations 
(1) A candidate who Is licensed as a landscape architect In a U.S. jurisdict ion, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a 
written examinat ion substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter requlred ln California as determined by the Board shall be 
eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental Examination 
provided that the candidate submit s verifiable documentation to the Board indicating: 

(Al Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at 
the t ime of application: or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from 
a recognized accredited institution, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least 
2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing. and has been practicing or offering 
professional services for at least 6 of the last 10 years. 

Sincerely, 

Shawn Rohrbacker 

3 

mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov
http:www.meltondg.com
mailto:shawn@meltondg.com
https://add111on.1I


RLA Nevada #816 
Melton Design Group 
309 Wall Street 
Chico, CA 95928 
530.899.1616 
shawn@meltondg.com 

CC: 
California Architects Board, cab@dca.ca.gov 
Department of Consumer Affairs, dca@dca.ca.gov 
Senator Jim Nielsen, senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman James Gallagher, Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov 
Senator Mike McGuire, senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov 
Assemblyman Jim Wood, assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.gov 
Office of the Governor, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

4 

mailto:assemblymember.wood@assembly.ca.&QY
mailto:senator.mcguire@senate.ca.gov
mailto:Assemblymember.Gallagher@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:senator.nielsen@senate.ca.gov
mailto:dca@dca.ca.gov
mailto:cab@dca.ca.gov
mailto:shawn@meltondg.com


From: Patricia St. John [mailto:patriciastjohn24@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 8:03 AM 
To: dmaxam@ebagroup.com 
Cc: dmaxam@ebagroup.com; president@apldca.org; CAB@DCA 
Subject: Public Comment: Proposed Regulatory Language Hearing September 27, 2016 

27 September 2016 

California Architects Board 
Landscape Architects Technica.l Committee 
2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Dear Landscape Architects Technical Committee, 

I am a certified landscape designer as qualified as my Californ ia licensed counterparts who is being barred from obtaining licensure 
due tQ existing exclus ionary regulations. Also. due to increasingly restrictive policies. over time, there are currently Cl\ Licensed 
Landscape Architects practicing who would not qualify for licensure totlay. 

The Committee's proposed Regulatory Language change, though taking steps in the right direction, borrows pr<:cedent from New 
York and Arizona, however t)lis precedent is out of context because these States have a multitude of paths to ticensuFe not available in 
California. California fai ls to recognize education outside of Landscape Architecture. however both Slates upon which the proposed 
language is based allow Liccnsure for individuals with varying degrees and combinations of experience. 

The proposed change is a lso out of step with standards shared by California's Architects and Civil Engineers who are entrusted with 
responsibilities as critical to ensuring the public's health, safety, and welfare. 

I oppose the following inequities in the curTent and proposed regulations: 

• The proposed regulation will require any out-of-state licensed indjvidual, regardless of education or experience, LO obtain an 
addit ional IO years of post-Ii censure practice experience to be granted California. reciprocity. These individuals are already 
licensed and by definition are competent and capable or ensuring the health, safety, and welfare of public the primary 
concern of licensure. 

• In California a person may become a Licensed Landscape Architect if they have earned a 2 year Associates Degree or 
Certificate in Landst-ape Architecture along with proper work experience and passing the national Exam. 

• Currently a person with a 4 year Bacl1elor's Degree, regardless of related subject matter, who is licenst:.d in nnother stale by 
having passed the same E.xam and having the same work experience, is not eligible for licensure. 

• Nearly all states require c~pcricnce for initial licensurc and the majority of states allow licensure on the basis of examination 
and experience alone. Persons arc generally e ligible for out of state licensure upon demonstrating an average of8 year:; 
experience prior to examination. The current proposed regulation will tack on an additional 10 year post-licensure experience 
requirement for a total (average) of 18 years needed for California reciprocity. This change will continue to marginalize many 
talented professionals. 

• While California Architects and Civil Engineers who are not collt:ge educated or who have degrees in related subjecrs may 
obtain their licensurc, candidates for Landscape Architecture are-not afforded that privilege. Jt seems dear that if' we deem 
our Architects and Engineers who are not college educated to be as qualified as those who arc, the same should hold true for 
Landscape Architects. 

I req uest the fo llowing revised language to amend California Code or Regulations, Title 16, Divis io n 26, Section 2615 be 
implemented a nd approved by the California Architect's Board: 
§ 2615 Form of Examinations 

( l) A candidalt! who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadirm province. or Puerro Rico by having passed a 
written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in California as determined by the Board shall be 
eligible for licensure upon passing the California Supplemental E'.xamination provided that the candidate submits verifiable 
documentation to the Board indicating: 
(A) Candidate possesses education and experience equivalent to that required of California applicants at the time of application; or 
(B) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, possesses a Bachelor's degree from a recognized accredited 
institution. and has been practicing or offering professional services for at least '2 of the last 5 years; or 
(C) Candidate holds a valid license or registration in good standing, and has been practicing or offering professional services for at 
least 6 or the last IO years. 

2 

mailto:president@apldca.org
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:dmaxam@ebagroup.com
mailto:mailto:patriciastjohn24@gmail.com


Thank you tor this opportunity to comment 011 this important regulatory change. 
Sincerely. 

P.itricia St. John, APLD 
1635 Le Roy A venue 
Berkele}, CA 94709 
patriciastjohn24@p.mail.com 

3 

mailto:patriciastjohn24@gmail.com



 


 


 

LANDSCAPE 

ARCHITECTS 

TECH I CAL 

C OMMITTEE 

Attachment H.8 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

THE EVALUATION OF 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS 

TO EXAMINE FOR LICENSURE 

January 2010 

alknati
Typewritten Text

alknati
Typewritten Text

alknati
Typewritten Text

alknati
Typewritten Text

alknati
Typewritten Text

alknati
Typewritten Text




 Credits and Contact Information 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee would like to thank the Education 

Subcommittee volunteers for all their time, effort, and long-term commitment to the report. 

Richard Zweifel, Chair 

Christine Anderson 

Linda Gates 

Steve Lang 

Alexis Slafer 

Contacting the Landscape Architects Committee and Copies of Report 

All communication should be addressed to: 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 • Sacramento, CA 95834 • P (916) 575-7230 • F (916) 575-7285 

latc@dca.ca.gov • www.latc.ca.gov 

Approved January 2010 

http:www.latc.ca.gov
mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov



 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary 1 

List of Recommended Changes as Approved by Landscape Architects 

Technical Committee and California Architects Board 

Other Eligibility Issues Reviewed and Retained 

Intent of Recommendations 

Examples of Impacts 

Background/History 5 

History of Statutory and Regulatory Law 

The Practice of Landscape Architects 

Associated Professions 

Architects 

Civil Engineers 

Landscape Contractors 

Landscape Designers 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s Actions 

Current Licensure Standard and Recommended Changes 11 

Statutory Law 

Regulatory Law 

Education and Experience Requirement Comparison 15 

Landscape Architecture Examination 

Comparison with ‘Model’ Requirements used by CLARB for Examination Eligibility 

Synopsis of Current Paths to Qualify for Exam/Licensure 

Other CLARB Member Boards 

Other Board Requirements for Examination Eligibility 

California Architects Board 

Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors 




 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 

 


 


 

California Board for Geologists and Geophysicists 

Contractors State Licensing Board 

Education 21 

Education Equivalences 

Accredited Universities 

Extension Certificate Programs 

Community Colleges 

Out of State 

Foreign Education in Landscape Architecture 

Experience 25 

Types of Experience 

When is experience gained? 

How is experience verified? 

Is an Internship Required? 

Experience Summary 

Conclusion 27 

Improving Access to Licensure 

Growth and Demand in the Profession 

History of Licensees Chart 

Appendices & Notes 31 

Appendix A--Approved Recommendations and Justification 

Appendix B—Related Studies 

October 2004 - Landscape Architects Body of Knowledge (LABOK) 

December 2006 – DCA Office of Examination Resources, California Validation Report 

2006 - Thompson Prometric National Task Analysis 

Appendix C—Meeting Notes Summaries 

Notes 




 

       
 

     
  

    
     

  

   
   

   
     

  

      
    

 ma r

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) formed 
an Education Subcommittee in 2004 in response to the Joint 
Legislative Sunset Review Committee’s recommendation to 
further evaluate California’s eligibility requirements and access 
to landscape architecture licensure in California. The intent of 
the evaluation was to ensure that applicants have appropriate 
educational and training/work experience prior to taking the 
required examination. Specifically, the Subcommittee was to 
determine appropriate levels of landscape architecture education 
and training preparation as related to public health, safety, and 
welfare in California and successfully preparing applicants for 
the examination. 

As part of its charge, and with the assistance of LATC staff, the 
Educational Subcommittee also provides a comparative analysis 
of several related discipline’s eligibility requirements as part of 
their assessment and basis for recommendations that were then 
vetted, modified and approved by the LATC and the California 
Architects Board (CAB): 

 Council	 of	 Landscape	 Architectural 	Regulatory Boards 
(CLARB’s)	national	eligibility	requirements	 

 Eligibility	requirements 	of neighboring and	larger	 
licensing jurisdictions	 

 Eligibility	requirements 	of other	design 	professional 
boards	 (CAB	 and	Board	 for Professional	Engineers	and	 
Land 	Surveyors) 

 Eligibility	requirements 	pertaining	to	the	type	and	 
duration	 of training/work	experience	 

 Any	additional	licensure	requirements	of 	other	 
jurisdictions	 that 	may	pertain 	to	 the 	subcommittee’s	 
charge	including	requirements	for reciprocity 

 Curricula	 of 	California 	landscape architectural	programs 
with	specific	 attention	 to	licensing	examination subject 

tte 

List of Recommended Changes as Approved by Landscape 
Architects Technical Committee and California Architects Board 

The following are the summary recommendations that were 
initiated by the Education Subcommittee with subsequent 
review and approval by the LATC and CAB. They were 
developed in response to the Joint Legislative Sunset Review 
Committee’s findings regarding increasing access to landscape 
architecture licensure. 

1 



    
   

      
    

   
 

  
  

 
   

   
      

   
       

   
    

 
    

  

  
   

 
   
         

        
    
    

prepar on	an ccess	 or a on

 Accept accredited	professional 	architecture	degree	as	 
meeting the	education	requirement for	eligibility	 

 Based on 	a	 transcript	review	of major	 and	support
courses,	grant credit for	 partial	completion	of an 
accredited 	landscape	 architecture	degree	 allowing	
minimum	“education”	eligibility	for	examination	 

 Allow	early	eligibility	to 	begin	examination,	prior	to
meeting work	experience	requirements,	for	 candidates
with	an	accredited	degree	or	approved	extension	
certificate	in	landscape	architecture 

 Develop	and	implement	 a	 candidate	education/	
experience	tracking system	and 	reciprocity	candidate	 
tracking 	system	to collect 	objective 	data 	regarding	 

ati d	su f 	examin ti 
 Revise 	certificate of 	applicant’s	experience form 	to 
include	more	 specific information	regarding	the 
preparation	recommended for	 California examination 
and	licensure	 

 Develop	 and	 communicate additional	student/	
candidate/educator/employer	information	regarding	
examination	and	California licensure	 

Other Eligibility Issues Reviewed and Retained 

The LATC thoroughly assessed the full spectrum of education 
and experience requirements and determined that the following 
should remain unchanged.  

 Retain	the	six‐year	education/experience	requirements	 
 Retain	 credit	for	 associate	degrees	in	landscape	
architecture 

 Retain	current 	reciprocity	requirements	 
 Not implement a rolling	time	 clock	 to 	limit	 the	number	 
of years 	for a 	candidate 	to	 obtain	 licensure	 

 Not	allow	licensure	with 	work experience	alone 
 Not	provide	 credit	for	 teaching	and	research	experience 

As a result of the review, it was determined that further 
outcome assessment regarding candidate examination success 
and preparation would be needed to determine if additional 
modification to the eligibility requirements may be warranted. 
The Subcommittee recommended that additional candidate 
tracking procedures be implemented to provide the necessary 
data. 

2 



  
 

  
     

    
 

   
    

      
       

 
  

    
  

  
   

   
        

      
 

pa ure	

can uca ors	

Intent of Recommendations 

The LATC anticipates that implementing the recommendations 
will improve access to qualified individuals interested in 
becoming landscape architects. Examples of expanded eligibility 
access include: 

 Applicants 	with	an	accredited	degree	in	architecture	will	
be	determined	to	have	met the	educational	access	
component 	for	examination	eligibility 

 Applicants 	who 	can	 demonstrate	successful	completion	 
of a majority	of 	an	accredited landscape	architecture	
degree,	will	be	determined	 to	have	met	the	minimum	
educational	access	component for	examination 	eligibility	 

 Candidates	will	be	allowed	access 	to	 the	multiple	choice	 
sections	 of 	the 	national	licensure 	examination 	upon	 
graduation 	thereby 	encouraging a 	clear 	and continuous 
th	to	licens 

 LATC	will	be	better	able	to	identify	specific	correlations 
with	education and 	work	 experience	preparation	 
requirements 	with	examination	success	 

 Information	 guide(s)	will	identify	preparation	
expectations	 for	licensure	success 	in	California	 for 

didates,	ed t and	 students 
 Candidates 	and employers 	will	 be 	better	able to identify 
on‐the‐job	duties	that 	relate to	 LARE	 and California 
examination	 

3 




 4 




 BACKGROUND/HISTORY 

History of Statutory and Regulatory Law 

With the roots of the profession in North America dating back 
to 1860, California became the first U.S. jurisdiction to regulate 
the practice of landscape architecture in 1953 with the 
formation of the Board of Landscape Architects (BLA). In 1997, 
the BLA was sunset by the California Legislature and 
restructured in 1998 as the Landscape Architects Technical 
Committee (LATC) under the California Architects Board 
(CAB). Today, 49 states, two Canadian provinces, and Puerto 
Rico regulate the practice of landscape architecture.  California 
has both a practice act, which precludes unlicensed individuals 
from practicing landscape architecture, and a title act, which 
restricts the use to the title “landscape architect” to those who 
have been licensed by the LATC. 

There are currently more than 20,000 licensed landscape 
architects in the United States. The LATC licenses more than 
3,700 landscape architects, who are responsible for the design 
and planning of millions of dollars worth of public sector, 
private development, and residential projects. 

The Practice of Landscape Architects 

Landscape architecture is a profession that involves planning 
and designing the use, allocation and arrangement of land and 
water resources through the creative application of biological, 
physical, mathematical, and social processes. Based on 
environmental, physical, social and economic considerations, 
landscape architects produce overall guidelines, reports, master 
plans, conceptual plans, construction contract documents, and 
construction oversight for landscape projects that create a 
balance between the needs and wants of people and the 
limitations of the environment. Specific services include city 
planning and development, environmental restoration, regional 
landscape planning, urban/town planning, park and recreation 
planning, ecological planning and design, landscape design, code 
research and compliance, cost analysis, and historic 
preservation. The decisions and performance of landscape 
architects affect the health, safety, and welfare of the client, as 
well as that of the public and environment. Therefore, it is 
essential that landscape architects meet minimum standards of 
competency. 

5 



The LATC’s regulation of the practice of landscape architecture 
protects both direct consumers of landscape architectural 
services and the public at large – the millions of people who use 
or visit the spaces designed by landscape architects.1 

The California Business and Professions Code defines the 
practice of landscape architecture as: 

§ 5615. "Landscape Architect" — Practice of Landscape 
Architecture 
"Landscape architect" means a person who holds a license to practice 
landscape architecture in this state under the authority of this chapter. 

A person who practices landscape architecture within the meaning and intent 
of this article is a person who offers or performs professional services, for the 
purpose of landscape preservation, development and enhancement, such as 
consultation, investigation, reconnaissance, research, planning, design, 
preparation of drawings, construction documents and specifications, and 
responsible construction observation. Landscape preservation, development 
and enhancement is the dominant purpose of services provided by landscape 
architects. Implementation of that purpose includes: (1) the preservation and 
aesthetic and functional enhancement of land uses and natural land features; 
(2) the location and construction of aesthetically pleasing and functional 
approaches and settings for structures and roadways; and, (3) design for trails 
and pedestrian walkway systems, plantings, landscape irrigation, landscape 
lighting, landscape grading and landscape drainage. 

Landscape architects perform professional work in planning and design of land 
for human use and enjoyment. Based on analyses of environmental physical 
and social characteristics, and economic considerations, they produce overall 
plans and landscape project designs for integrated land use. 

The practice of a landscape architect may, for the purpose of landscape 
preservation, development and enhancement, include: investigation, selection, 
and allocation of land and water resources for appropriate uses; feasibility 
studies; formulation of graphic and written criteria to govern the planning and 
design of land construction programs; preparation review, and analysis of 
master plans for land use and development; production of overall site plans, 
landscape grading and landscape drainage plans, irrigation plans, planting 
plans, and construction details; specifications; cost estimates and reports for 
land development; collaboration in the design of roads, bridges, and structures 
with respect to the functional and aesthetic requirements of the areas on which 
they are to be placed; negotiation and arrangement for execution of land area 
projects; field observation and inspection of land area construction, restoration, 
and maintenance. 

This practice shall include the location, arrangement, and design of those 
tangible objects and features as are incidental and necessary to the purposes 
outlined herein. Nothing herein shall preclude a duly licensed landscape 
architect from planning the development of land areas and elements used 
thereon or from performing any of the services described in this section in 
connection with the settings, approaches, or environment for buildings, 
structures, or facilities, in accordance with the accepted public standards of 
health, safety, and welfare.”2 

6 



Associated Professions 

Architects 

Architects are licensed by CAB. They research, plan, design, and 
administer building projects for clients, applying knowledge of 
design, construction procedures, zoning and building codes, and 
building materials. They consult with clients to determine 
functional and spatial requirements of new structure or 
renovation, and prepare information regarding design, 
specifications, materials, color, equipment, estimated costs, and 
construction time. They also plan the layout of the project and 
integrate engineering elements. 

The California Business and Professions Code defines the 
practice of architecture as: 

§ 5500.1 Practice of Architecture Defined 
“(a) The practice of architecture within the meaning and intent of this chapter is 
defined as offering or performing, or being in responsible control of, 
professional services which require the skills of an architect in the planning of 
sites, and the design, in whole or in part, of buildings, or groups of buildings 
and structures. 
(b) Architects' professional services may include any or all of the following: 
(1) Investigation, evaluation, consultation, and advice. 
(2) Planning, schematic and preliminary studies, designs, working drawings, 
and specifications. 
(3) Coordination of the work of technical and special consultants. 
(4) Compliance with generally applicable codes and regulations, and 
assistance in the governmental review process. 
(5) Technical assistance in the preparation of bid documents and agreements 
between clients and contractors. 
(6) Contract administration. 
(7) Construction observation.” 

Under the Landscape Architects Practice Act, a licensed 
architect is exempt from the provisions of the Landscape 
Architects Practice Act except that an architect may not use the 
title “landscape architect” unless he or she holds a landscape 
architect license as required. 

Civil Engineers 

Civil engineers are licensed by the Board for Professional 
Engineers and Land Surveyors. They plan, design, and direct 
civil engineering projects, such as roads, railroads, airports, 
bridges, harbors, channels, dams, irrigation systems, pipelines, 
and power plants; analyze reports, maps, drawings, blueprints, 
tests, and aerial photographs on soil composition, terrain, 
hydrological characteristics, and other topographical and 
geologic data to plan and design a project. They calculate costs 
and determine feasibility of projects based on analysis of 
collected data, applying knowledge and techniques of 
engineering, and advanced mathematics.3 

7 



The California Business and Professions Code defines the 
practice of civil engineer as: 

§ 6701. Professional Engineer Defined  
“’Professional engineer,’ within the meaning and intent of this act, refers to a 
person engaged in the professional practice of rendering service or creative 
work requiring education, training and experience in engineering sciences and 
the application of special knowledge of the mathematical, physical and 
engineering sciences in such professional or creative work as consultation, 
investigation, evaluation, planning or design of public or private utilities, 
structures, machines, processes, circuits, buildings, equipment or projects, and 
supervision of construction for the purpose of securing compliance with    
specifications and design for any such work.” 

§ 6702. Civil engineer defined  
“’Civil engineer’ as used in this chapter means a professional engineer in the 
branch of civil engineering and refers to one who practices or offers to practice 
civil engineering in any of its phases.” 

Under the Landscape Architects Practice Act, a licensed 
professional engineer is exempt from the provisions of the 
Landscape Architects Practice Act except that a licensed 
engineer may not use the title “landscape architect” unless he or 
she holds a landscape architect license as required. 

Landscape Contractors 

Landscape contractors are licensed by the Contractors State 
License Board, and must install their own designs or the design 
work of landscape architects. Landscape contractors cannot 
prepare independent landscape plans they do not install. A 
landscape contractor constructs, maintains, repairs, installs, or 
subcontracts the development of landscape systems and 
facilities for public and private gardens and other areas. In 
connection therewith, a landscape contractor prepares and 
grades plots and areas of land for the installation of any 
architectural, horticultural and decorative treatment or 
arrangement. 

California Code of Regulations 
Title 16, Division 8, Article 3. Classifications: C27 - 
Landscaping Contractor 
“A landscape contractor constructs, maintains, repairs, installs, or subcontracts 
the development of landscape systems and facilities for public and private 
gardens and other areas which are designed to aesthetically, architecturally, 
horticulturally, or functionally improve the grounds within or surrounding a 
structure or a tract or plot of land. In connection therewith, a landscape 
contractor prepares and grades plots and areas of land for the installation of 
any architectural, horticultural and decorative treatment or arrangement.” 

Under the Landscape Architects Practice Act, a licensed 
landscape contractor may design systems and facilities for work 
to be performed and supervised by that landscape contractor. A 
licensed landscape contractor may not use the title “landscape 
architect” unless he or she holds a landscape architect license. 

8 



Landscape Designers 

A landscape designer is unlicensed and may only prepare plans, 
drawings, and specifications for the selection, placement, or use 
of plants for single-family dwellings; and drawings for the 
conceptual design and placement of tangible objects and 
landscape features. Due to limitations provided in the 
Landscape Architects Practice Act regarding unlicensed 
practitioners, they may not prepare construction documents, 
details, or specifications for tangible landscape objects or 
landscape features or prepare grading and drainage plans for the 
alteration of sites. Unlicensed individuals may not use the title 
“landscape architect,” “landscape architecture,” “landscape 
architectural,” or any other titles, words or abbreviations that 
would imply or indicate that he or she is a landscape architect. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Actions 

During the 1996 Joint Legislative Sunset Review Committee 
(JLSRC) review, it was recommended that Department of 
Consumer Affairs (DCA) review the six-year education and 
experience requirement to determine if it is justified. This review 
did not occur due to the sunset of the Landscape Architects 
Board in 1998. 

The JLSRC 2004 Recommendations and the 2004 LATC 
Strategic Plan directed the LATC to identify examination 
eligibility issues, propose solutions and report to DCA and the 
Legislature if changes should be made to this requirement. The 
Strategic Plan further directs the LATC to, if necessary, modify 
examination eligibility requirements under California Code of 
Regulations (CCR), Title 16, Division 26, Section 2620, and 
prepare “guidelines” for meeting examination experience 
requirements.4 

An Education Subcommittee was formed August 2004 and 
charged with evaluating California’s eligibility requirements for 
the national Landscape Architects Registration Examination 
(LARE) to ensure that applicants have appropriate educational 
and training/work experience before the examination is taken. 
Specifically, the Subcommittee’s charge was to determine 
appropriate levels of experience as they relate to: 1) public 
health, safety and welfare in California, and 2) successfully 
preparing applicants for the examination. The Subcommittee 
met between October 8, 2005 and February 27, 2007. After 
subsequent meetings with the LATC and the California 
Architects Board (CAB), the recommendations were shared with 
the California Council of the American Society of Landscape 
Architects and approved by the LATC on May 4, 2007 and CAB 
on June 15, 2007. A summary of the meeting notes is included in 
Appendix C. 

9 




 10 



 

CURRENT LICENSURE STANDARD AND RECOMMENDED 

CHANGES 

Statutory Law 

California Business and Professions Code Section 5650-

Examinations-Qualifications, Application, Fee states: 

“Subject to the rules and regulations governing examinations, 
any person, over the age of 18 years, who has had six years of 
training and educational experience in actual practice of 
landscape architectural work shall be entitled to an examination 
for a certificate to practice landscape architecture.  A degree 
from a school of landscape architecture approved by the board 
shall be deemed equivalent to four years of training and 
educational experience in the actual practice of landscape 
architecture.  Before taking the examination, a person shall file 
an application therefore with the executive officer and pay the 
application fee fixed by this chapter.” 

Regulatory Law 

California Code of Regulations are stated below with the impact 

of the LATC recommended changes in strike-out / underline 

format: 

§ 2615. Form of Examinations. 

(a) (1) A candidate who has a combination of six years of education and 
training experience as specified in section 2620 shall be eligible and may apply 
for the Landscape Architect Registration Examination. 

(2) Notwithstanding subdivision (a)(1), a candidate who has a Board 
approved degree in landscape architecture in accordance with section 
2620(a)(1) or an extension certificate in landscape architecture from a Board 
approved school in accordance with section 2620(a)(3) shall be eligible and 
may apply for the multiple choice sections of the Landscape Architect 
Registration Examination. 
(b) A candidate shall be deemed eligible and may apply for the California 
Supplemental Examination upon passing all sections of the Landscape 
Architect Registration Examination. 
(c) All candidates applying for licensure as a landscape architect shall pass 
all sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination or a written 
examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 
California, as determined by the Board, and the California Supplemental 
Examination subject to the following provisions: 
(a) (1) A candidate who is licensed as a landscape architect in a U.S. 
jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico by having passed a written 
examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter required in 
California as determined by the board shall be eligible for licensure upon 
passing the California Supplemental Examination. 
(b) (2) A candidate who is not a licensed landscape architect and who has 
received credit from a U.S. jurisdiction, Canadian province, or Puerto Rico for a 
written examination substantially equivalent in scope and subject matter 
required in California shall be entitled to receive credit for the corresponding 
sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination, as determined 
by the Board, and shall be eligible for licensure upon passing any remaining 
sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination and the 
California Supplemental Examination. 

11 



l"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""''·t···:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·:·································· 

•P .... 

__ ·i_ !! 

.•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 1J:=:-: 1::1~ 

_tj._________..· 
-1-·11 

2620. Education and Training Credits-Operative on 
January 1, 1997 

The Board's evaluation of a candidate's training and educational experience is 
based on the following table: 

Experience Description 

Education 
Max. 

Credit 
Allowed 

Training 
and/or 
Practice 
Max. Credit 
Allowed 

(a) Experience Equivalent: 

(1) Degree in landscape architecture from an approved 
school. 

4 years 

(2) Degree in landscape architecture from a non-
approved school. 

3 years 

(3) Extension certificate in landscape architecture from 
an approved school. 

2 years 

(4) Associate degree in landscape architecture from a 
city/community college which consists of a least a 2-
year curriculum. 

1 year 

(5) Extension certificate as specified in subdivision 
(a)(3) and a degree from a university or college which 
consists of a 4-year curriculum. 

4 years 

(6) Associate degree from a college specified in 
subdivision (a)(4) and an extension certificate as 
specified in subdivision (a)(3) of this section. 

3 years 

(7) Partial completion of a degree in landscape 
architecture from an approved school. 

1 year 

(8) Partial completion of an extension certificate in 
landscape architecture from an approved school where 
the applicant has a degree from a university or college 
which consists of a four-year curriculum. 

1 year 

(9) A degree in architecture which consists of at least a 
four-year curriculum that has been accredited by the 
National Architectural Accrediting Board. 

1 year 

(710) Self employment as, or employment by, a 
landscape architect licensed in the jurisdiction where 
the experience occurred shall be granted credit on a 
100% basis. 

5 years 

(811) Self employment as, or employment by, a 
licensed architect or registered civil engineer in the 
jurisdiction where the experience occurred shall be 
granted credit on a 100% basis. 

1 year 

(912) Self employment as a California licensed 
landscape contractor or a licensed landscape contractor 
in another jurisdiction where the scope of practice for 
landscape contracting is equivalent to that allowed in 
this state pursuant to Business and Professions Code 
Section 7027.5 and Cal. Code Regs. Title 16, Section 
832.27 shall be granted credit on a 100% basis. 

4 years 

(b) Education Credits. 
(1) Candidates shall possess at least one year of educational credit to be 

eligible for the examination. 
(2) A degree from a school with a landscape architecture program shall be 

defined as one of the following: 
(A) Bachelor of Landscape Architecture. 
(B) Bachelor of Science in landscape architecture. 
(C) Bachelor of Arts in landscape architecture. 
(D) Masters degree in landscape architecture. 

12 



(3) The maximum credit which may be granted for a degree or combination of 
degrees from an approved school shall be four years of educational credit. 

(4) A degree from a school with a landscape architecture program shall be 
deemed to be approved by the Board if the landscape architectural curriculum 
has been approved by the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB) 
as specified in its publication: "Accreditation Standards for Programs in 
Landscape Architecture" dated February 26, 1990 or the Board determines that 
the program has a curriculum equivalent to a curriculum having LAAB 
accreditation. 

(5) For purposes of subdivisions (a)(7) and (8), “partial completion” shall 
mean that the candidate completed at least 80 percent of the total units 
required for completion of the 4-year degree or extension certificate program. 

(36) No Except as provided in subdivisions (a)(7) and (8), no credit shall be 
granted for academic units obtained without earning a degree or extension 
certificate under categories of subsection (a)(1), (2), (3) or (4) of this section. 

(47) A candidate enrolled in a degree program where credit earned is based 
on work experience courses (e.g., internship or co-op program) shall not 
receive more than the maximum credit allowed for degrees under subdivision 
(a)(1), (2) or (3) of this section. 

(58) Except as specified in subdivision (a)(5) and (6) of this section, 
candidates with multiple degrees shall not be able to accumulate credit for 
more than one degree. 

(69) The Board shall not grant more than four years of credit for any degree 
or certificate or any combination thereof for qualifying educational experience. 
(c) Training Credits 

(1)(A) Candidates shall possess at least two years of training/practice credit 
to be eligible for the examination. 

(B) At least one of the two years of training/practice credit shall be under 
the direct supervision of a landscape architect licensed in a United States 
jurisdiction, and shall be gained in one of the following forms: 

1. Aafter graduation from an educational institution specified in 
subdivision (a)(1), (2), (3), or (4) or (9) of this section. 

2. After completion of education experience specified in subdivision 
under (a)(7) and (8) of this section. 

(C) A candidate shall be deemed to have met the provisions of subdivision 
(c)(1)(B) if he or she possesses a degree from a school specified in subdivision 
(a)(1) and has at least two years of training/practice credit as a licensed 
landscape contractor or possesses a certificate from a school specified in 
subdivision (a)(3) and has at least four years of training/practice credit as a 
licensed landscape contractor. 

(2) Candidates shall be at least 18 years of age or a high school graduate 
before they shall be eligible to receive credit for work experience. 

(3) A year of training/practice experience shall consist of 1500 hours of 
qualifying employment. Training/practice experience may be accrued on the 
basis of part-time employment. Employment in excess of 40 hours per week 
shall not be considered. 
(d) Miscellaneous Information 

(1) Independent, non-licensed practice or experience, regardless of claimed 
coordination, liaison, or supervision of licensed professionals shall not be 
considered. 

(2) The Board shall retain inactive applications for a five (5) year period. 
Thereafter, the Board shall purge these records unless otherwise notified by 
the candidate. A candidate who wishes to reapply to the Board, shall be 
required to re-obtain the required documents to allow the Board to determine 
their current eligibility.5 

13 




 14 



      
   
    
    
     



EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENT 
COMPARISON 

In California, the LATC is the governing body over the practice 
of landscape architecture. In keeping with its highest priority of 
protection of the public, the LATC has established licensure 
eligibility and professional qualifications minimums that 
candidates must meet through a combination of preparation 
requirements. They include direct experience in the discipline, 
landscape architectural education and demonstration of 
knowledge through examination.  

Landscape Architecture Examination  

There are two separate examinations that candidates must 
successfully complete as a part of the licensure process in 
California. The first is the Landscape Architects Registration 
Examination (LARE). The LATC maintains a contract with the 
Council of Landscape Architects Registration Boards (CLARB) 
for them to develop, administer and grade the LARE. The 
LATC is a member of CLARB. CLARB is the sole provider for 
the LARE that is used by all 48 member boards throughout the 
United States and Canada. 

The second examination is the California Supplemental 
Examination developed and administered by the LATC. This 
examination consists of 100 multiple-choice questions designed 
to assess a candidate’s landscape architecture knowledge specific 
to California. The LARE must be successfully completed in 
order to be eligible for the California Supplemental 
Examination. 

The LARE is an inter-related, multi-section examination 
consisting of five interdependent sections covering landscape 
architecture competencies. There are three multiple-choice 
sections (A,B and D) and two graphic response sections (C and 
E) that require a drafted solution. 

 Section 	A	‐	Project	 and 	Construction 	Administration	 
 Section B	‐	Inventory,	Analysis	and	Program	Development	 
Section C	‐	 Site	Design		 

 Section	D	‐	Design 	and 	Construction	Documentation		 
 Section 	E	‐	Grading,	Drainage 	and	Stormwater 	Management	 

As developed by CLARB and employed by the LATC in the 
execution of its regulatory duties the LARE “is designed to 
determine whether applicants for landscape architectural licensure 
possess sufficient knowledge, skills and abilities to provide 
landscape architectural services without endangering the health, 
safety and welfare of the public.” 

15 



       
    

   
  

  
   

        
 

    

   
       

  
    

  
    

  
     

   

  

   
       

   
  

      
      

 

years	 pe	ar

In 2004, CLARB computerized all multiple-choice sections and 
began administering them at centralized testing centers. As an 
efficiency measure in 2009, the LATC enacted regulatory 
changes to allow the ability to further contract the 
administration of the graphic sections of the LARE to CLARB. 
CLARB now administers all five sections of the LARE for 
California. 

Comparison with ‘Model’ Requirements used by CLARB for 
Examination Eligibility 

CLARB member licensing jurisdictions enforce their own 
eligibility requirements or delegate the responsibility to 
CLARB, who applies established model law identifying 
eligibility requirements to evaluate prospective applicants. 

 Hold a four	 or 	five	year	 Landscape	 Architectural
Accreditation Board	[LAAB]	 or	Canadian Society	 of
Landscape	Architects	 Accreditation 	Council	[LAAC]	 
accredited 	undergraduate 	degree	in	landscape	architecture,	
or	a	LAAB	or	LAAC	accredited	graduate	degree	program	in	
landscape	architecture	(or 	will	complete	by	the	exam	 
administration 	date),	 or 

 Hold a National Architectural Accrediting Board [NAAB]	 
accredited 	degree	in	architecture,	and	have	completed	(or	
will	complete	by	the	exam	administration 	date) 	one	 year	 of	
diversified	experience	in	landscape	architecture	under	the	
direct	 supervision	of	 a	licensed	landscape	architect,	or 

 Hold a 	Accreditation	Board for	 Engineering	 and	 Technology
[ABET]	accredited	degree	in	engineering, 	and	have	 
completed	 (or 	will	complete	by 	the	exam	 administration	
date)	 one	year	of diversified	experience	in	landscape	
architecture	under	the	direct supervision	of a 	licensed	 
landscape	architect, 	or	 

 Hold a 	non‐accredited undergraduate	 degree	in	landscape	
architecture,	 or	 a 	non‐accredited	graduate	degree	program	
in	landscape	architecture,	and	have	completed	(or	will	
complete	by	the	exam	administration 	date)	one	year of
diversified	experience	in	landscape	architecture	under	the	
direct	 supervision	of	 a	licensed	landscape	architect,	or 

 Hold 	a	bachelor's	degree	in	 any 	subject 	and 	have	completed	 
(or	will	complete 	by	the exam	administration	date) three 

diversified	experience	in	 landsca chitecture	under	 
the	direct 	supervision	of a licensed	landscape	 architect,	 or 

 Have	 applied	 to	and 	been	approved by	a	CLARB member	 
board.	 

A side-by-side examination eligibility comparison between 
California education and experience requirements used by the 
LATC and model law used by CLARB was carried out in 
December 2008. This comparison identified the differences 
between the two standards. CLARB accepts applicants with no 
experience if they have an accredited landscape architecture 
degree. Unaccredited landscape architecture degrees, accredited 
architecture or civil engineering degrees are all accepted with 
only one year of experience under a landscape architect. CLARB 

16 



I I 

r ln I I 

also accepts any bachelor degree with three years experience 
under the direction of a landscape architect.   
In contrast, along with the recommended educational 
preparation of an accredited landscape architectural degree (four 
or five years), the LATC accepts candidates with a variety of 
other educational preparations including an associate degree 
with five years experience under the direction of a landscape 
architect or a certificate from a University of California 
Extension Program with four years experience under a 
landscape architect. In California, the UC Extension Program 
has two landscape architecture programs and four two-year 
colleges that offer associate degrees in landscape architecture.  
These programs are somewhat unique to California and provide 
a significant number of California citizens with access to an 
education in landscape architecture. The table below identifies 
the comparison: 

Synopsis of Current Paths to Qualify for Exam/Licensure 

LATC CLARB 
Education + Education + 

Max Experience Experience 
Ed Combinations equals Combinations equals 

Education Credit six credits Education five credits 
Accredited LA Accredited LA 
Degree 4 A 2 yrs as or under LA Degree no experience required 

1 yr as or under LA 
B 1 yr as or under an Arch 

After degree is C 1 yr as or under LA 
awarded, one year 1 yr as or under CE 

training/experience D 1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 license 

under LA is required 
except for pattern E. E 2 yrs holding C-27 

license 
Unaccredited LA 
Degree (includes 
approved Foreign Unaccredited LA 
degrees) 3 F 3 yrs as or under LA Degree 1 yr under an LA 

2 yrs as or under LA 
G 1 yr as or under Arch 

2 yrs as or under LA 
H 1 yr as or under CE 

2 yrs as or under LA 
I 1 yr holding C-27 

1 yr as or under LA 
J 2 yrs holding C-27 

1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 

K 1 yr as or under Arch 
1 yr as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 

L 1 yr as or under CE 

Approved 
Extension 
Certificate in LA 2 M 4 yrs as or under LA not accepted 

3 yrs as or under LA 
N 1 yr as or under Arch 

3 yrs as or under LA 
O 1 yr as or under CE 

P 2 yrs as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 
2 yrs as or under LA 

Q 1 yr as or under Arch 
1 yr holding C-27 

2 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr as or under CE 

R 1 yr holding C-27 
1 yr as or under LA 

S 3 yrs holding C-27 

After 1 yr as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 

Certificate is T 1 yr as or under Arch 

17 



r7 

r7 I I 

awarded, one year 1 yr as or under LA 
training/experience 2 yrs holding C-27 

U under LA is required 1 yr as or under CE 

except for pattern V. V 4 yrs holding C-27 
Approved 
Extension 
Certificate in LA + 
4 yr degree in any 
Subject 4 A 2 yrs as or under LA not accepted 

1 yr as or under LA 
B 1 yr as or under an Arch 

After Certificate is C 1 yr as or under LA 

awarded, one year 1 yr as or under CE 
 under Ltraining/experience D 1 yr as or A 

1 yr holding C-27 license 
under LA is required 

E 2 yrs holding C-27 
except for pattern AA. license  

Associate LA 
Degree 1 W 5 yrs as or under LA not accepted 

4 yrs as or under LA 
X 1 yr as or under Arch 

4 yrs as or under LA 
Y 1 yr as or under CE 

4 yrs as or under LA 
Z 1 holding C-27 

3 yrs as or under LA 
AA 2 yrs holding C-27 

3 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 

BB 1 yr as or under Arch 
3 yrs as or under LA 
1 yr holding C-27 

CC 1 yr as or under CE 
2 yrs as or under LA 

DD 3 yrs holding C-27 
2 yrs as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 

EE 1 yrr as or under Arch 
2 yrs as or under LA 
2 yrs holding C-27 

FF 1 yr as or under CE 
1 yr as or under LA 

GG 4 yrs holding C-27 
1 yr as or under LA 
3 yrs holding C-27 

HH 1 yr as or under Arch 
1 yr as or under LA 
3 yrs holding C-27 

II 1 yr as or under CE 

not accepted 
Accredited Arch 
Degree 1 yr as or under LA 

not accepted 
Accredited CE 
Degree 1 yr under LA 

not accepted 
Any Bachelors 
Degree 3 yr under LA 

Other CLARB Member Boards 

In 2002, the LATC discussed the need to review its current 
eligibility requirements for appropriateness, as well as compare 
the requirements of other CLARB member jurisdictions and 
other design profession boards. At that time, staff research 
revealed that California’s requirements were comparable to 
other licensing jurisdictions. For example, 45 licensing 
jurisdictions recommended that applicants have a degree in 
landscape architecture as a primary means of satisfying the 
educational requirement for the examination. Of those that did 
not specifically require a degree in landscape architecture, a 
range of between eight and twelve years of work experience was 
required.  

In addition, the LATC assessed that California candidates are 
offered flexibility in meeting the educational requirement, as 
accredited and unaccredited bachelors and masters’ degrees, 
extension certificates, and associate degrees in landscape 
architecture are recognized. Further, the extension certificate 

18 



programs allow individuals the opportunity to more easily 
transition into a landscape architectural career by offering 
evening course schedules. Candidates are also able to satisfy the 
experience requirements with self-employment as a licensed 
landscape contractor, and self-employment, or employment by, 
a licensed architect or registered civil engineer. Therefore, upon 
reviewing its requirements, the LATC assessed that they remain 
appropriate for California, and that a more thorough evaluation 
should be conducted once data becomes available through the 
candidate tracking process. 

As a part of the examination eligibility review process, the 
LATC Education Subcommittee evaluated the acceptance of 
various “related” degrees that are either recognized by other 
states or were identified by Subcommittee members and/or 
LATC staff. Consideration of accepting degrees related to 
landscape architecture was a result of the following: 1) the Joint 
Legislative Sunset Review Committee (JLSRC) previously 
raised concerns regarding the fact that, prior to 1997, California 
applicants could receive educational credit for holding any type 
of bachelors degree with a four-year curriculum; 2) CAB grants 
educational credit for designated degrees related to architecture;  
3) a review of California’s neighboring and the larger landscape 
architectural licensing jurisdictions (New York, Florida, Texas, 
Arizona, Hawaii, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, and 
Washington) revealed that at least six out of those nine 
jurisdictions recognize degrees that are related to landscape 
architecture; and 4) model law used by CLARB to determine 
eligibility currently allows applicants to sit for the licensing 
examination with any type of bachelors degree, plus three years 
of diversified experience under the direct supervision of a 
licensed landscape architect. 

In addition, a survey sent out by LATC staff in May 2005 to the 
neighboring and larger landscape architectural licensing 
jurisdictions confirmed that: 1) many of the states accept 
various related degrees; 2) a few of the states accept any degree; 
and 3) most of the states that accept non-landscape architecture 
degrees accept architecture and civil engineering degrees. 

Other Board Requirements for Examination Eligibility 

California Architects Board 

To be eligible to begin the examination and licensure process, 
candidates seeking an architect license must provide verification 
of at least five years of education and/or architectural work 
experience. Candidates can satisfy the five-year requirement as 
follows: 

19 



      
 

        
 

  
      

 
     

 

   
  

  
    

  
 

       
       

    
  

    
     

     
  

      
    

 
        

  
     

  

1) Providing verification of a three-year, five-year, or six-year 
professional degree in architecture through a program that is 
accredited by NAAB or Canadian Architectural Certification 
Board (CACB).  
2) Providing verification of at least five years of educational 
equivalents. Candidates are granted educational equivalents in 
various amounts pursuant to the Board's Table of Equivalents:  

 A	maximum	 of four	years	 for	a	non‐accredited professional	 
degree	in	architecture		 

 Various	 amounts	 for other	 degrees	and for 	units	earned	 
toward	degrees,	including: 	an	undergraduate	degree	in	
architecture,	a degree	in	a	field 	related	to	architecture	or	in
another	field	 of	 study,	 and,	 to	 a limited	extent,	units	earned	
toward	some	degrees		 

 Work 	experience	under	the	direct	 supervision	of	 a	licensed	 
architect6 

Board for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors 
To obtain a license as an engineer in training and civil engineer, 
applicants must: 

 Have	completed	three	years	of	course	work 	in	a Board‐
approved	engineering curriculum	(any 	curriculum	approved	
by	the	Engineering Accreditation	Commission	[EAC]	of the	
Accreditation Board	 for Engineering	and	 Technology	
[ABET])	or	three	years	or	more	 of 	engineering‐related	work	
experience	anywhere	in	the	world.	 

 Successfully	pass 	the first	 division	of	 the 	examination.	 
 The 	applicant	 shall	be 	eligible to sit 	for	the	first	division	of	 
the	examination	after	satisfactory completion	 of three	years	 
or	more	of college	or	university	education 	in	a	board‐
approved	engineering	curriculum	or	 after	 completion	 of 
three	years or 	more	 of 	board‐approved	experience.		 

The applicant for registration as a professional engineer shall 
comply with all of the following: 

 Furnish	evidence	of	six years	or 	more	of 	qualifying	 
experience	in	engineering work	satisfactory	to	the	board	 
evidencing	that 	the applicant	is	 competent	to	 practice the 
character	of 	engineering in	the	branch	for which	he	or she	is	
applying	for	registration.	 

 The applicant	 must 	successfully 	pass	the	 second division of
the	examination.	The	applicant	for	the	second	division	of 	the	 
examination 	shall	successfully	pass	 the 	first	 division	 
examination	or	shall	be 	exempt	therefrom.	 

Contractors State License Board 
To obtain a C-27 landscape contractor’s license a candidate must 
pass the written Law and Business Examination and a specific 
trade examination if required. Examination eligibility requires 
candidates to document at least four full years of journey-level 
or higher experience in the classification for which he or she is 
applying. This experience must have occurred within the last 
ten years. The Contractors State License Board may grant up to 
three years of credit toward the four-year requirement for 
completed education and/or apprenticeship programs.7 

20 




 

   
   
    
   

   
    
  

   
  

   
   
 


 
    
 

     
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
     
 
  
 
 
 
 s

EDUCATION 

Education Equivalences 

The LATC determined that in order to best ensure the critical 
thinking skills necessary to appropriately provide public health 
and safety protection, landscape architects should continue to 
be required to have both a formal education and direct 
experience. Fortunately, in comparison with many other 
member boards, California provides a number of recognized, as 
well as non-traditional opportunities to obtain formal education 
in landscape architecture. The LATC offers candidates 
flexibility in meeting the educational requirement for a 
landscape architectural degree by accepting bachelors, masters, 
or associate degrees, as well as approved extension certificate 
programs in landscape architecture.  

As of January 2010, there are five accredited and four 
unaccredited landscape architecture bachelor and master degree 
programs in California. Additionally, there are two LATC 
approved UC Extension Programs, as well as four associate 
degree programs in landscape architecture from various 
community colleges. The following list illustrates the range of 
opportunities available within California to fulfill the education 
requirement: 

Accredited Undergraduate Programs: 
 California 	Polytechnic	State	University,	San	Luis	Obispo	(BLA) 
 California 	State	Polytechnic 	University,	Pomona	(BSLA) 
 University	of California,	Davis	(BSLA)	 

Accredited Graduate Programs: 
 California 	State	Polytechnic 	University,	Pomona	(MSLA) 
 University	of	California,	Berkeley	(MLA)	 

Unaccredited Undergraduate Programs: 
 University	of	California,	Berkeley	(BLA)	 

Unaccredited Graduate Programs: 
 University	of	Southern California	(MLA) 	(undergoing 
accreditation	candidacy)	 
 New	School of Architecture	 and	Design,	San	Diego	(MLA) 

University of California Extension Programs: 
 University	of	California,	Berkeley	 
 University	of	California,	Los	Angeles	 

Associate Degree Programs: 
 Mesa	College,	San	Diego	(AS)	 
 Mira	Costa	College,	Oceanside	(AA) 
 Modesto	 Junior	 College,	 Modesto	 (AS)	 
Southwe tern 	College,	Chula	Vista	(AS) 

 West	Valley	College,	Saratoga	(AS)	 

21 



 Accredited Universities 

The Landscape Architecture Accrediting Board (LAAB) 
recognized by the Council for Higher Education Accreditation, 
accredits educational programs leading to first professional 
degrees at the master’s or bachelor’s level. Therefore, in addition 
to assessing how well a program meets its own specific and 
institutional educational mission and objectives, LAAB 
evaluates all programs against standards that ensure programs 
contain the essential educational components leading to entry-
level professional competence. These standards are developed by 
community-of-interest consensus and are regularly reviewed and 
assessed. 

Accreditation has four constituencies: the public, the students, 
the institution, and the profession.  To the public and to 
students, accreditation assures that the program has been 
independently reviewed and found to meet professional higher-
education standards. It also assists in transfer of credit and 
acceptance into other programs.  To the institutions, 
accreditation provides a consultative peer review and stimulus 
to continually improve their educational offerings.  To the 
profession, accreditation provides the opportunity for 
participation in establishing entry-level skills. 

A degree in landscape architecture from an accredited school is 
granted four years of educational credit towards licensure. Some 
programs offered by California schools lead to a degree in 
landscape architecture although they are not accredited. The 
latter are granted three years of educational credit. The LAAB 
does not currently review extension or community college 
programs in landscape architecture. 

Extension Certificate Programs 

Candidates for licensure receive credit for University of 
California Extension Programs that are approved by the LATC. 
To gain approval, these programs are reviewed by site teams 
appointed by the LATC. The teams conduct site visits to 
determine the program’s compliance with California Code of 
Regulations Section 2620.5, Requirements for an Approved 
Extension Certificate Program. 

Candidates who successfully complete an extension program in 
landscape architecture are granted two years of educational 
credit. Extension program certificate holders receive four years 
of educational credit when combined with a four-year degree in 
any subject, and three years of educational credit when 
combined with an associate degree in landscape architecture.  

22 



 Community Colleges 

Candidates with an associate degree in landscape architecture 
are granted one year of educational credit. 

Out of State 

Candidates’ education degrees awarded outside of California are 
verified via the Accredited Programs in Landscape Architecture 
list and the Historical List of Programs Accredited by the 
LAAB. 

Foreign Education in Landscape Architecture 

Foreign education transcripts are submitted by the candidate to 
an approved foreign evaluation service for a general evaluation 
of the courses equating the degree to an accredited master or 
bachelor degree in the United States. Foreign education 
determined equivalent to an accredited master or bachelor 
degree in landscape architecture in the United States receive 
four years of educational credit. No credit is provided for 
unaccredited or other foreign degrees.8 

23 




 24 




 

      
  

   
  

   
  

  
    

o r

EXPERIENCE 

Through its examination eligibility review, the LATC has 
determined that maintaining flexibility in the combination of 
formal landscape architecture education with directed work 
experience, provides the greatest access to licensure and 
preparation for examination. 

Types of Experience 

Education and work experience credits are combined to achieve 
the required total of six years credit towards eligibility to 
examine for the landscape architect license. There are multiple 
training/experience variations for a candidate to qualify in 
California; however, the LATC requires candidates to have 
completed a minimum of one year education credit and two 
years of recognized work experience. 

One year of training consists of 1,500 hours of qualifying 
employment. Training received under the following 
circumstances receives credit as indicated: 

 Employment by	a	licensed 	landscape	architect equals up	 
t five	yea s	credit	 

 Self‐employment	as	or	employment	by a licensed	
architect	equals	up	to 	one	year	credit	 

 Self‐employment	as	or	employment by	a	registered	civil	 
engineer	equals	up	to	one	year credit	 

 Self‐employment	as	a	licensed	landscape	 contractor	
equals	up	 to 	four	years	 credit9 

When is experience gained? 

Candidates must possess a minimum of two years of training 
credits to be eligible for the examination. At least one year of 
training must be gained post graduation and under direct 
supervision of a landscape architect licensed in a United States 
jurisdiction. There is an exception to this post graduation 
requirement for candidates qualifying with experience as a self-
employed landscape contractor and holding an extension 
certificate, master or bachelor degree in landscape architecture.  

How is experience verified? 

Candidates submit a Certification of Applicant’s Experience and 
Qualifications signed under penalty of perjury from each 
licensed supervisor verifying the candidate’s training and 
experience. The certifying person must have supervised the 
candidate directly and have knowledge of the candidate’s 
qualifications. The certifying individual must hold a valid 

25 



license to practice landscape architecture, architecture and/or 
civil engineering.  

Is an internship required? 

There is no internship requirement for landscape architects at 
this time. The current work experience requirements shall be 
weighted with the same value as internships required for 
architects and civil engineers. 

 Experience Summary 

As with the educational requirement, there are numerous 
variations of training experience permitted to achieve the 
minimum requirement. The LATC review and subsequent 
adjustment of California examination eligibility requirements 
has determined that at this time, the flexibility in training and 
education allowances that are provided, recognize a variety of 
personal and economic circumstances, and thereby offer wide 
access to licensure while maintaining the necessary assurances 
for public health, safety and well being. 

26 




 

  
   

 
   
        

        
    
    

       
   

    
     

    
  

 
    

    
    

  
 exam es.		

CONCLUSION 

Improving Access to Licensure 

In 2004, the JLSRC recommended that the Department of 
Consumer Affairs review the six-year education and experience 
requirement to determine if it is justified. The LATC formed the 
Education Subcommittee to research and respond to this 
request. The results are presented here and suggest opening up 
entry to the LARE for applicants with partially completed 
landscape architect degrees and those with accredited degrees in 
architecture. All recommendations were based on current 
knowledge. In attempt to improve candidate success and 
retention rates, the LATC also recommends allowing candidates 
to sit for the multiple-choice sections of the LARE before 
acquiring the required experience.  

The LATC thoroughly assessed the full spectrum of education 
and experience requirements and assessed that the following 
should remain unchanged. Some requirements were determined 
to be adequate, while others could not be assessed due to 
insufficient data. To counter this deficiency in the future, the 
LATC began collecting data and plans to interpret information 
as it becomes available and determine the best course of action. 

 Retain	the	six‐year	education/experience	requirements	 
 Retain	 credit	for	 associate	degrees	in	landscape	
architecture 

 Retain	current 	reciprocity	requirements	 
 Not implement a rolling	time	 clock	to limit 	the	number	 
of years 	for a 	candidate 	to	 obtain	 licensure	 

 Not	allow	licensure	with 	work experience	alone 
 Not	provide	 credit	for	 teaching	and	research	experience 

In addition to specific changes to the LATC education and 
experience requirements, outcomes of the review include several 
projects that have been identified for completion in the LATC 
strategic plan: 

 Development of a 	tracking system	for	 candidate	data	 
that	will	allow assessments	to 	demonstrate	whether	 
experience	and	type	of 	education 	reflect on	the	success 
of	 California	 candidates	 taking	 the	LARE.	 

 Revision	of	 the	certificate	of 	applicants	experience	form 
to 	provide	both	the	candidate	and	the	employer	a 	better	
understanding	of	the	experience	required	to	pass	the	
examinations.		 

 Development	 of	 criteria 	and	recommend	curriculum	for	
an	 associate	 degree	in	landscape	 architecture.	 

 Development	 of	 a candidate/educator/employer	
expectations	guide	with	the	intent 	to	improve	 

ination	success	rat 

27 



The guide will be used in conjunction with the LATC’s strategic 
and communication plan objectives to communicate and 
provide outreach to university faculty, students, and 
practitioners in the field that mentor future licensees. By 
communicating required criteria, faculty, students and mentors 
will be able to better focus their efforts and assignments towards 
candidates’ success.  

Draft regulatory language incorporating the recommended 
changes to examination eligibility is prepared. Once the 
regulatory language is approved by the LATC and CAB, the 
State’s rulemaking process will ensue. 

Growth and Demand in the Profession 

The future holds the promise of new developments and 
challenges for the ever-broadening practice of landscape 
architecture. According to the December 11, 2008 of U.S. News 
& World Report, landscape architecture is projected to grow 18 
to 26 percent by 2016 and is listed as one of the top thirty 
careers in 2009. Outside magazine (May 2008 issue) called 
landscape architecture one of the 50 best jobs in the United 
States in 2008. 

With environmental concerns becoming increasingly important, 
landscape architects are being called upon to solve complex 
problems. Rural concerns are attracting landscape architects to 
farmland preservation, small town revitalization, landscape 
preservation, energy resource development, and water 
conservation. Trends in computer technology have streamlined 
plan preparation and consultant communication and 
coordination for the practice. 

History of Licensees Chart 

New Licensees 1979-2008 

300 

250 

200 

150 

100 

50 

0 

81 

101 

69 

132 

95 
87 

69 73 70 

145 

176 

278 

63 

161 

177 

92 

54 
62 

23 

50 

87 

104 
95 

13 5 

157 

114 

129 

102 

141 

101 

num ber of new licens es 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

1999 

1998 

1997 

1996 

1995 

1994 

1993 

1992 

1991 

1990 

1989 

1988 

1987 

1986 

1985 

1984 

1983 

1982 

1981 

1980 

1979 

See endnote10 

28 



    
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 

In comparison, the total number of licensed landscape architects 
has continued to increase as indicated. 

Year ‐	 # of licensees: 
 2009	– 3706 
 2008	– 3501 
 2007	– 3438 
 2006	– 3338 
 2005	– 3289 
 2004	– 3189 

Landscape architects who develop strong technical skills, such 
as computer design; communication skills; and knowledge of 
environmental codes and regulations will capture the best 
opportunities. Those with additional training or experience in 
urban planning increase their prospects for employment in 
landscape architecture firms that specialize in site planning, as 
well as landscape design.  

The future also promises increased cooperation among landscape 
architects and other design professionals. As interest in the 
profession continues to grow, an increasing number of students 
desire to study the profession. Nearly 60 universities and 
colleges in the United States and Canada now offer accredited 
baccalaureate and post-graduate programs in landscape 
architecture. 

During the past decades, landscape architects have responded to 
the increased demand and professional responsibilities with new 
skills and expertise. More and more businesses appreciate the 
profession and the value that it brings to a project.  The public 
praises the balance achieved between the built and natural 
environments.11 

29 

http:environments.11



 30 


















APPENDICES & NOTES 

A - Approved Recommendations & Justification 32 

B - Related Studies 40 

C – Education Subcommittee Meeting Summaries  44 

Notes 46 

31 






	

    
    

   
      

   
       

     
     

      
   

   
      

    
          

    
       

      
    

     
       

   

      
   

   
    

    
 

        
    

     
         

    
      

    

      
       

     
   

APPENDICES & NOTES 

Appendix A 

Approved Recommendations and Justification - Approved by the 
California Architects Board (CAB) and the Landscape Architects 
Technical Committee (LATC) 

After reviewing the multiple studies addressed and referenced 
within this report, the following recommendations were approved 
by the LATC on May 4, 2007, and received final CAB approval on 
June 15, 2007. 

1. Accept Accredited Professional Architecture and Civil 
Engineering Degrees 

The	LATC 	Education	 Subcommittee	discussed	 the	 acceptance	of	various	
“related”	degrees	that are	either 	recognized	by	other	states or were	 
identified	by	Subcommittee	members	and/or	 LATC 	staff. 		Consideration	of 
accepting degrees	related	to	landscape	architecture	was a 	result	 of	 the 
following:	1)	the	Joint 	Legislative	Sunset Review	Committee	(JLSRC) 
previously	raised	concerns	regarding 	the	fact	 that,	 prior	 to	 1997, California	 
applicants could	receive 	educational	credit	for	holding any	 type	of 
bachelors degree	with	a	 four‐year	curriculum;12 	2)	CAB grants	educational	 
credit	 for	designated	 degrees	related	 to	 architecture 	and	unrelated	degrees;		 
3)	a	review	of the	neighboring	 and	larger landscape	architectural	licensing	
jurisdictions	(New	York,	Florida,	Texas, 	Arizona,	Hawaii,	Nevada, 	New 
Mexico,	Oregon,	and 	Washington)	 revealed	that 	at	least six	out of	those nine	
jurisdictions	recognize	 degrees	related	to	landscape	architecture; 	13 	and 4)	 
CLARB	 currently	 allows 	applicants to 	sit 	for 	the	 licensing examination	with
any	 type	of	bachelors	 degree,	plus	three	years	of diversified	experience	 
under	the	 direct	 supervision 	of a	 licensed landscape	architect. 

In	addition,	a	survey	sent out 	by	LATC	staff 	in	May	2005	to 	the 	landscape	 
architectural	licensing	jurisdictions14 	listed above	 confirmed	that:		1)	 many	 
of	 the	states accept 	various related	degrees;	2)	a	few	of	the	states	 accept	
any	degree;	and	3)	 most of the	states	 that accept 	non‐landscape 
architecture	degrees	accept 	architecture	and	civil	engineering degrees.	 

After	extensive 	review 	of	the 	research	 material	and	 discussion	 at	the	June	
17,	2005	meeting,	the	Subcommittee	gave	preliminary	approval 	to 	accept 
accredited 	bachelor	degrees	in	architecture	and	civil	engineering to satisfy	
the	education	requirement for	examination	eligibility	with a 	caveat of	 
conducting	 further	research 	on	 other	related	degree	programs.		 At	the	
December	2,	2005	meeting,	the	Subcommittee	discussed	the	additional	 
research15 and 	agreed	 to recommend 	acceptance	 of 	accredited professional 
degrees	in	architecture	and	civil 	engineering	(undergraduate 	and	 graduate 
degrees),	as	those	degrees	emphasize	 the 	acquisition	 of	 critical	thinking	and	 
technical	 skills that are	 necessary	to 	address health,	 safety,	 and	welfare	 
issues	and	are essential 	to	the	 practice	of	landscape	architecture.		The	 
Subcommittee	agreed 	to	recommend	 one‐year	of 	educational 	credit 	be	 
granted	 for	completion	 of 	these	degree	programs.			 

The	Subcommittee	felt	there was 	not 	clear	 and/or	 comparable	rationale for	 
granting 	similar	 credit	 for	other	related	 degree 	programs	based 	on	their	 
insufficient curriculum	and/or	lack of accreditation	 standards. For	
example,	urban	design	and	horticulture	degrees	were	considered	 and not 

32 



 
  

  
     

    
      

     
   

     
    

    
 

    
   

  
     

      
     

  
     

       
 

 

 

	

   
      

     
     

   
 

       
    

           
 

     
          

    
     

     

  
 

    
    

    

included	in	this	recommendation	 because	they	are	either	non‐accredited	or	
the	coursework	is	not	specifically	related	to	the	practice 	of	landscape	 
architecture.		One	year	of 	educational	credit	was	agreed upon	because	the	
Subcommittee	determined	 the	curricula examined	 for	 such	 degree	
programs	 did	 not	include	sufficient	specific	exposure	to 	landscape	 
architecture	related	topics,	but did 	address	 a certain	measure	 of 	critical	 
thinking	and	technical 	skills	that	 are	necessary 	to	 address	health,	safety	and	 
welfare	issues	related	to	the	practice 	of	landscape architecture.	 

The	LATC 	presented	 the	Final	Findings	 and	Recommendations to CAB	at	its	
meeting on	June	7,	2006.	At this 	meeting,	CAB	questioned	education	credit 
parity 	between	architects	and	landscape	architects.	As	a result 	of	CAB’s	 
parity 	question,	the	Education	Subcommittee	reconvened	on	November	8,	
2006	and	agreed	to	research	the	parity	issue	as it pertained	to 	education	 
curriculum	for	architects 	and	civil	engineers.	At	its	February	 27,	2007 
meeting, 	the	Subcommittee	discussed	the	education	curriculum	research	 16 

and	 decided	 to 	revise	their	 earlier	recommendation	and	recommend	 
acceptance of accredited 	professional	 degrees	in	architecture and	not	in	 
civil	engineering.	Along 	with 	their	earlier	belief	in	critical thinking and 
technical	skills,	the Subcommittee	also	believed	there	were	similar 
curriculum	elements 	in	the	architectural	 degree	programs	in	 comparison	 to	 
the 	landscape architecture programs	 and	 that it	would	warrant 	educational	
credit.	Accredited	professional	degrees	in	architecture	 would	receive	one‐
year	of	educational	credit. 

Recommendation: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC accept 

accredited professional degrees in architecture towards 
satisfying the education requirement for examination 
eligibility and that one year of credit be granted for 
completion of such program. 

2. Grant Credit for Partial Completion of an Accredited 
Landscape Architecture Degree 

At 	the	March	4,	2005	Education	Subcommittee	meeting, 	it was	noted	that 
the 	LATC	had previously	granted 	credit for	partial	completion	of	 accredited	 
and	unaccredited	degrees	in	landscape architecture and that	CAB 	currently	 
grants 	credit	 for	partial	completion	of	various	 degree 	programs (i.e.,	 
accredited 	and 	unaccredited	architecture 	degrees	and	related	degrees	with	
a	four‐year	curriculum).		During the	June	17,	2005	meeting,	some	
Subcommittee 	members	voiced an interest	in	 granting credit	 for	 partial	
completion	 of accredited	degrees	in	landscape	 architecture;	however,	it was	
noted	 that they	 would need	to take	a 	closer	 look 	at	 how	credit would	be 
determined.		At the	December	2,	2005	meeting,	the	Subcommittee	
examined	the	issue	further	 17 	and	 determined	that	one	year	 of	educational	 
credit 	should be	 granted for partial 	completion	 of 	an	accredited	 degree in	 
landscape 	architecture.		In 	addition,	the Subcommittee determined	that	an
applicant	applying	for	examination 	under	 such	 circumstances must	 
demonstrate	that 	he/she	has	completed	at 	least 	80%	of the	total units 
required	for	the	degree.	

In	addition	to	the	former	regulatory 	provision	granting	educational	credit	 
for	partial	completion	of	degree	 programs,	the	Subcommittee	recognized
that 	CAB	 accepts 	partial	completion	of	various	degree	programs	 (i.e.,	
architecture	degrees	and	related 	degrees)	 and	 that 	granting	educational 
credits	would	 provide	 an	expanded	 avenue	to	licensure.	 

33 



	 

	

     
    

  
     

      
  

       
        

     
       

     
     

      
       

       
     

    
     

        
 

       
       

       
  

       
   

      
 

	 

	 

Recommendation: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC grant credit 

for partial completion of an accredited degree in landscape 
architecture, that one year of educational credit be granted for 
such, and that an applicant demonstrate that he/she has 
completed at least 80% of the total units required for such 
degree program. 

3. Allow Early Eligibility for Examination with an Accredited 
Degree or Approved Extension Certificate in Landscape 
Architecture 

At 	the	June	17,	2005	Education	Subcommittee	 meeting,	it was	noted that, 
under	Council	of 	Landscape	 Architectural	 Registration	Boards	 (CLARB)	 
current	standards,	candidates	are	allowed	to 	take	the	multiple‐choice	 
sections	of	the	LARE	with	either 	an	 accredited	undergraduate	 or 	graduate	 
degree	 in	 landscape	 architecture	 and	no 	work	experience.		A	number	of 
CLARB	member	jurisdictions follow	this	standard	and	allow	candidates	to	 
sit	 for	 the 	multiple‐choice 	sections	of the	LARE 	upon	receipt	of	 an	 
accredited 	degree in 	landscape architecture 	(a	 total	of	nine 	states	were	 
examined	by	the	Subcommittee	and	 staff, 	and	four	 states	 allow	candidates	 
to	 sit	 for	 the	examination	under	such	circumstances	 18).		 At	 the	meeting,	the	 
Subcommittee	indicated	 that 	they	 were	open	to 	considering	this	 option	for	
California candidates	 and	directed	 staff	 to	 obtain	additional	background
information	from	CLARB	 to assist 	with	 a	recommendation	with	respect	 to	 
this	issue.		The 	background information	 19 	was	reviewed	 and	evaluated by 
two	 Subcommittee	members	and	 a	recommendation	 to allow	 this	option for 
California candidates	was 	presented	 to	 the 	Subcommittee	on	December	2,	
2005.		The	Subcommittee	discussed	the	benefits 	of offering 	this 	option	to
candidates,	 and	in	the	 absence	of	contrary data relative	 to	pass	rates,	
supported 	allowing	 candidates 	to 	sit for 	the	multiple‐choice	sections	 of	 the	
LARE	prior	to	meeting the	experience	requirement	for	examination.		No	
quantifiable 	evidence 	regarding	pass‐rate 	success	was found	 to support	 
either	position,	but	the	 Subcommittee	 felt 	this option 	would encourage	 
graduates	 to 	continue 	the path 	to	licensure immediately	after	 attaining	
their	accredited	degree.		At the	November	8,	2006	meeting,	the	 
Subcommittee	agreed 	to	 also 	allow 	candidates	with 	an approved	extension	 
certificate	plus	four‐year 	degree	to	qualify for	the	multiple‐choice	sections	 
of	 the	examination 	based	 on	the	 belief 	that	extension	certificate	holders	are	 
equally	qualified	for	early	eligibility	as	accredited	degree	holders. 

Recommendations: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC allow 

candidates with an accredited degree in landscape 
architecture or approved extension certificate plus four-year 
degree to sit for the three multiple-choice sections of the 
LARE (Sections A, B, and D) prior to meeting 
training/work experience requirements. 

 If this option is approved, the Subcommittee recommends 
that the LATC closely monitor the success of these 
candidates on the examination via the proposed Candidate 
Education/Experience Tracking Chart (discussed under 
Recommendation 4). 

34 



    
     

 
    

     
    

     
     

    
         

  
     

     
     

    
   

      
   

   
   

 

    
    

   
  

 

       

       
    

    

        

      
 

   

 

4. Implement a Candidate Education/Experience Tracking 
System and Reciprocity Candidate Tracking System 

At 	the	October	8,	2004	meeting,	the	Subcommittee	directed	staff 	to	 gather	 
information	pertaining 	to	the	most 	recent 100	individuals	that became	 
licensed	in	California	and 	develop	a	chart	to	determine	if	there	was	a
correlation	between	a	 candidate’s 	number	of	attempts	 to	pass	each	section 
of	 the	licensing 	examination 	and:	1)	the	landscape	architecture 	program 
attended;	2)	the	type	of 	degree	 earned,	and	3)	the	type	of 	training/work	 
experience	earned.		This	request was	made	to	 assist the 	Subcommittee	with 
its	evaluation	 of	 California’s eligibility	requirements	for	 examination.		After	 
a	review	of	this 	information20,	it 	was	noted 	by	the	Subcommittee	that 
candidate	 data 	should	be	 tracked	 on	 an	 ongoing 	basis	so	that the	data is	 
more	readily	available	for	future	evaluation	of eligibility	requirements.		It	 
was	 also 	noted 	by	 the	Subcommittee	that	similar	information	pertaining	to	 
reciprocity	 candidates	 should	be	 tracked.		At 	the	December	2,	2005	 
meeting,	the	Subcommittee	reviewed and 	approved 	the	final Candidate 
Education/Experience 	Tracking	Chart	 and	the 	Reciprocity	Candidate 
Tracking	Chart.21		 The	Subcommittee	felt 	the	candidate 
education/experience	tracking	charts 	would	allow	 the	 LATC	 to	 analyze 
existing	and 	future	regulatory	related	decisions.		The	LATC	would 	like	the	 
tracking to	begin	immediately,	excluding	 candidates’	names	and social	
security	numbers	from	 the charts.	 

Recommendation: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that LATC staff implement 

a Candidate Education/Experience Tracking System and 
Reciprocity Candidate Tracking System and collect data by 
utilizing tracking charts. 

5. Revise Certificate of Applicant’s Experience Form 

As	part of the	 Subcommittee’s	charge,	the eligibility	requirements	
pertaining	to	the	type	and	duration of 	training/ work experience	were
reviewed	and	discussed.		The	Subcommittee	reviewed	the	current
certificate	of 	applicant’s	experience	form,	 which	is	completed	 by	a	
candidate’s	supervisor(s)	to meet 	the	training/work	experience	
requirement for	examination	eligibility.

After	 discussion,	the Subcommittee 	felt	 that,	in	 an	effort	 to	 aid	
candidates/employers	with	acquiring/providing	appropriate	knowledge
and	work 	experience 	for	 success	on the 	examination,	the 	form	should be	
expanded	to	include	a	 list	or	description of specific	practice	 categories	that
are	tested	on	the	examination.		This	modification,	 as	well as 	the	new	 
Candidate/Education/	Employer	Brochure,	would	therefore	be	important
tools	in further 	ensuring	 success	 on	 the	examination	 (discussed 	under	 
Recommendation	6).

Staff	obtained 	samples	 of	employment 	verification	 forms	 from 	other
regulatory	boards,	which	will	assist	with	revising	the	LATC’s	certificate of	 
applicant’s	experience	form that 	will	be	developed	in	the	future.	 

Recommendation: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC revise the 

certificate of applicant’s experience form to include specific 
practice categories that are tested on the LARE. 

35 



  
 

      
      

      
    
       

 

 

	

     
     

  
   

    
      
   

     
       

     
     
 

 

	

     
    

    
      

    
   
   

         
      

    
    

    
      

     
      

6. Develop Candidate/Educator/Employer Information 

The	Subcommittee	discussed	the	need	to	create 	relatively	detailed	 
candidate/educator/employer	information	that 	discusses	preparation	for	
examination/licensure	and	recommends	appropriate	work	experience	in	
order	 to 	be	successful	 on	 the 	examination.		The	brochure	would	 assist
candidates,	educators	 and	employers	 to 	ensure	that 	candidates	 successfully	 
prepare for examination	 and	licensure as	 well	as	understand	what	is 
expected for	 their	success.	 The	candidate/educator/employer	information 
would	be 	made available by hardcopy,	the LATC’s	website and	email.		 

Recommendations: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC develop 

Candidate/Educator/Employer Information. 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC reference 

CAB’s Comprehensive Intern Development Program 
Handbook when developing such information. 

7. Retain Six-Year Education/Experience Requirement 

At 	the	June	17,	2005	Subcommittee	 meeting,	it was	noted	that:	1)	 the six‐
year	combined	education	 and	experience requirement 	under	Business and 
Professions	Code	Section	5650	has	been	in	effect since	1953;	2) a	review	of	 
the	requirements 	of	other	states 	revealed	that	they	have	similar	 
requirements 	with	respect to	combined	education	and	 experience	 22;	3)	the	 
traditional	route	to	licensure in	California, and in 	most	other 	states,	has	 
been	to	obtain	an	accredited 	degree	in	landscape	architecture	and 	two 
years	of 	experience	under	the	direct	 supervision	of	 a	licensed	 landscape	 
architect; 	4)	there	appear to	be no	past	or	present issues	with 	respect 	to	the	 
six‐year	requirement;	and	5) 	the combination	 of 	education	and	experience	 
appears	 to 	provide	the	 greatest	 protection	to	the	public’s	health,	safety,	and 
welfare.	 

Recommendation: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the six-year combined 

education/experience requirement be retained at this time. 

8. Retain Existing Credit for Associate Degrees in Landscape
     Architecture 

A	thorough	review	of	California	associate	 degree	curricula	 23 	was	 conducted 
by	the	Subcommittee	at 	its	March	4,	2005 	meeting.		Although 	some	 
discrepancies	were	noted	between 	the	programs	with	respect 	to	 subject	 
areas 	and	required 	units,	it was 	determined	the	LATC	should	not 	assume	 
the responsibility	of reviewing	 associate	degree	programs	and	that	 the	
discrepancies	were	not	serious	enough	 to 	reconsider	the	one	year	of	 
educational	credit	currently	granted	for 	completion	 of	such	programs.	The	 
LATC	 noted:	 1) education is	a necessary	 component	 of licensure, 2)	all	 
criteria	 for 	landscape	 architecture	requirements 	cannot be	met	 solely	with	
experience,	and	3)	one	year	of	educational	credit	 for 	an 	associate	degree	in	 
landscape	architecture	provides	 an 	additional	 opportunity	for	licensure.		 

In	the	past,	 the 	California	Community 	Colleges	Chancellor’s	Office	requested	 
that 	LATC	examine	certification	 of 	their	landscape	 architecture 	programs. 
The	LATC 	determined	as 	a	consequence	of	the	number	of programs, 	variety,	 
and	indeterminate	 curricular	approval	 and 	oversight,	it	 was	not 	practical	 

36 



    

    
       

       
      

	 

	 

	 

	

  
   

      
  

        
    

    
          

         

   

          
  

   
   

   

 

	 

for	the	LATC 	to	review	community 	college	programs	for	purposes	 of 
educational	eligibility	standards.	

At 	the	February	27,	2007	Subcommittee	meeting,	as	part 	of CAB’s 	parity	
question	 and discussion	 on	 education	 credits,	 the	Subcommittee	 agreed	the	
LATC	 should	 monitor	 the	success of	 candidates 	receiving	educational credit 
and	qualifying	for 	the	licensing 	examination with	an 	associate	 degree.	 

Recommendations: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC should not 

take on the responsibility of reviewing associate degree 
programs at this time. 

 The Subcommittee recommends that one year of educational 
credit continue to be granted for completion of an associate 
degree in landscape architecture. 

 If this option is approved, the Subcommittee recommends 
that the LATC closely monitor the success of these 
candidates on the examination via the proposed Candidate 
Education/Experience Tracking Chart (discussed under 
Recommendation 4). 

9. Retain Current Reciprocity Requirements 

At 	the	June	17,	2005	meeting,	the 	Subcommittee	reviewed	and	discussed	
California,	Nevada,	Texas	and	Washington’s	current 	requirements 	for 
reciprocity	 24 	to determine	if	changes 	to	California	reciprocity 	requirements 
should 	be	considered. 

Currently,	a	 reciprocity	 applicant must:	1) hold	 a	 current 	license	in	another	 
U.S.	jurisdiction,	Canadian province,	or 	Puerto	 Rico;	2)	have	passed	 a	
written	examination equivalent	to	 that	which	is	required	in	California	at 	the	 
time of	 application; 	and 3) have 	passed	 the 	California Supplemental	 
Examination if, at 	the time of application,	it	is	required	 of 	all	California	 
applicants.

However,	it	was	noted	by the 	Subcommittee	that 	changes	to	the	current	
requirements	could	potentially	present	barriers	for	out‐of‐state	candidates	
wanting 	to gain	licensure in California	 and 	that,	 to 	date, 	there	have	not been	
any	issues	or	problems	identified.		At the December	2,	2005	meeting,	the
Subcommittee	confirmed	its	recommendation to 	retain California’s	current	 
requirements	for	 reciprocity	and 	institute	a	reciprocity 	tracking	system	as	 
part of	 Recommendation	4. 

Recommendations: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC retain its 

current requirements for reciprocity. 
 The Subcommittee instead recommends that LATC staff 

track reciprocity candidate information via the proposed 
Reciprocity Candidate Tracking Chart (discussed under 
Recommendation 4) and, once enough data is gathered, 
bring this issue back for the LATC to reconsider its position. 

37 



	

       
  

    
         

    
      

   
   

     
 

	 






	 

	

      
     

    
 

     
  

  
 

   
    

   
    

  
   

        
    

	 

	 

10. Rolling Time Clock for Examination Candidates 

At 	the	June	17,	2005	Subcommittee	 meeting, 	it was	noted	that 	Texas 	and 
Washington	have	implemented	a five‐year	time	limit for	candidates	to	
complete	the	 examination process and	become	licensed.		It	was also	noted	
that 	CAB	plans	to	 adopt	 a	 five‐year	“rolling	 time 	clock”	 that 	applies	only	to	 
examination	scores.		Finally,	it	was	noted by	LATC 	staff	 that,	 presently,	most 
California 	landscape architectural 	candidates 	complete the 	examination	
process	within	a	 five‐year	period	and	 that,	currently,	 there	does	not	appear	
to	be	a	problem	with	respect	to	 this	issue.	 However,	the	 Subcommittee	
agreed	to	recommend	a	tracking	system	 to	monitor	 this 	issue	as	 part of 
Recommendation	4. 

Recommendations: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that the LATC not 

implement a “rolling time clock” for examination 
candidates at this time. 

 The Subcommittee instead recommends that LATC staff 
track candidates’ number of attempts to pass each section of 
the LARE via the proposed Candidate Education/ 
Experience Tracking Chart (discussed under 
Recommendation 4) at this time and, after two years, gather 
data from CAB and other CLARB member jurisdictions 
and have the LATC reassess whether implementing a 
“rolling time clock” would be appropriate at that time. 

11. Eligibility for Examination with Experience Only 

At 	the	March	4,	2005	Subcommittee	 meeting,	it was	noted	that 	a	 limited	 
number	of	states 	allow	candidates to	sit	 for	the	examination	with 	specified	 
work 	experience	alone	(and	no	education).		Data	relative	to pass	 rate	 
differences	between	candidates	with	university	level	education	 in	
landscape	architecture	and	those 	without has 	not 	been	 available.		As	
comparative	background,	CAB	allows	architectural	candidates	 to sit	for	its	
licensing examinations	with	work 	experience	alone	(and	no	education).25 

CAB	has	also	recently	implemented	the	national 	Intern	Development	
Program	(IDP)	and	Comprehensive	 IDP	that	require	new	candidates 	to 
obtain	appropriate levels	of 	work experience	in	specified	areas 	of	practice.		
Upon	 considering	this information,	reviewing	eligibility	requirements for	
the	other	states	that	require	licensing,	and 	the	absence	 of	 pass‐rate data,	
the	Subcommittee	agreed	to	maintain	requiring	appropriate	educational	
experience,	obtaining appropriate	work 	experience,	and	then	testing	for	
minimal	competency	through	the	LARE.		The	Subcommittee	felt 	that	 some 
form of	 formal 	education 	provides basic	 knowledge	of	 landscape	 
architecture	and	experience alone	was	not	equivalent 	to	that 	knowledge.	 

Recommendations: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that candidates not be 

allowed to sit for the examination with work experience alone 
at this time and notes that education of some form is 
required to succeed. 

 The LATC recommends tracking data from reciprocal 
candidates and LARE success rates, then bringing this 
matter back for future consideration once enough data is 

38 

http:	experience	alone	(and	no	education).25


       
     

  
      

 
   

  
     

 

gathered. In addition, data from other states should be 
analyzed if it is available. 

12. Credit for Teaching and/or Research 

At 	the	March	4,	2005	Subcommittee	 meeting,	it was	noted	that 	a	 few	 states 
accept 	teaching	 and/or	research experience	towards 	fulfilling	examination 
requirements26.	However,	the	Subcommittee	felt 	teaching	and/or	research	 
experience	does	not provide the	 same	skills	that are	acquired 	while	 
working	under	a	licensed 	professional.	Additionally,	teaching	and/or
research	experience	varies	significantly,	thus	making	it difficult	to	 assess	 
the	equivalent	relationship	to	the	practice	of landscape	architecture	and the	 
health,	safety	 and	welfare of the public. 

Recommendation: 
 The Subcommittee recommends that credit not be granted for 

teaching and/or research experience at this time. 

39 




APPENDICES & NOTES 

Appendix B 

Related Studies 

October 2004 – Landscape Architects Body of Knowledge  

The Landscape Architecture Body of Knowledge (LABOK) 
study was designed to address the core competencies that help 
define the landscape architecture profession and the 
fundamental body of knowledge that should be expected of all 
graduates from accredited landscape architecture degree 
programs. The approach used to answer these two questions 
consisted of several iterative steps that required input from 
incumbents in the field of landscape architecture. During these 
steps both detailed knowledge and competency statements 
identifying the components of the Body of Knowledge for 
consideration by the academic community or for post-
graduation on-the-job learning were developed. 

The LABOK Task Force was established in response to these 
questions raised through the Landscape Architectural 
Accreditation Board’s regular review of accreditation standards. 
The Task Force consisted of representatives of the American 
Society of Landscape Architects (ASLA), the Canadian Society 
of Landscape Architects (CSLA), the Council of Educators in 
Landscape Architecture (CELA), the Council of Landscape 
Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB), and the Landscape 
Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB). The Task Force 
authorized The Chauncey Group International to perform the 
Body of Knowledge study described in this part of the report. 
Chauncey Group’s role was to facilitate the multiple interactions 
with landscape architect subject matter experts and/or 
incumbents in the field. 

By building upon the information from the earlier task analysis 
for landscape architects and input from the Task Force, then 
augmenting that information through consultation with 
multiple panels of subject matter experts, the Task Force 
developed a survey that covered the body of knowledge 
thoroughly. The distribution of the survey reached the varied 
groups desired and resulted in a strong indication of the 
knowledge and competencies that are required upon graduation 
from a degree program and those that should be developed on 
the job. It was necessary for each of the contributing 
organizations to carefully examine the data and make the most 
efficient use of the information that is available. As suggested in 

40 



the cover letter to the survey respondents, this information may 
be used to make curricula determinations, to guide the 
development of continuing education activities, and to continue 
strong requirements for licensure through the regulatory bodies. 
Based on the apparent high agreement among the various 
subgroup responses and the process used to develop the Body of 
Knowledge in this study, it is reasonable to conclude that the 
goals of the study were obtained.27 

2006 - Thompson Prometric National Task Analysis 

The Council of Landscape Architecture Registration Boards 
contracted with Thomson Prometric to conduct a job analysis in 
order to maintain the currency of the Landscape Architects 
Registration Examination. Job analysis refers to procedures 
designed to obtain descriptive information about the tasks 
performed on a job and/or the knowledge, skills, or abilities 
thought necessary to adequately perform those tasks. The 
specific type of job information collected for a job analysis is 
determined by the purpose for which the information will be 
used. For purposes of developing workplace certification 
examinations, a job analysis should identify important tasks, 
knowledge, skills, and/or abilities. The use of job analysis (also 
known as task analysis, practice analysis, or role delineation) to 
define the content domain is a critical component in establishing 
the content validity of certification examinations. Content 
validity refers to the extent to which the content covered by an 
examination overlaps with the important components (tasks, 
knowledge, skills, or abilities) of a job. A well-designed job 
analysis should include the participation of a representative 
group of subject-matter experts who reflect the diversity within 
the job. Diversity refers to regional or job context factors and to 
subject-matter expert factors such as length and type of 
experience, gender, and race/ethnicity. Demonstration of 
content validity is accomplished through the judgments of 
subject-matter experts. The process is enhanced, when feasible, 
by the inclusion of large numbers of subject-matter experts who 
represent the diversity within the relevant areas of expertise. 
The job analysis involved a multi-method approach that 
included meetings with subject-matter experts and the conduct 
of a survey. 

On November 12-13, 2004, a panel of landscape architects, 
selected by CLARB, attended a meeting with the primary 
purpose of developing an updated survey for distribution in first 
quarter, 2005. Prior to the meeting, participants received a Job 
Analysis Procedures Manual and selected information from the 
1998 Job Analysis report and the Landscape Architecture Body 
of Knowledge Study.  

41 

http:obtained.27


The first topic of discussion at the meeting was a general 
description of the successful licensee. The group then talked 
about the places where a licensee might work and gave examples 
of what they might do. The task force agreed that is was 
important to keep all approaches to practice in mind when we 
proceed to design the job analysis tool. The key issue is 
maintaining health, safety and welfare within the practice. The 
group then turned their attention to defining the major domains 
for the survey. Following the identification of the domains, the 
full group assigned the tasks from the 1998 survey to the new 
domains. Teams were then recruited to work on specific domains 
to review, edit, and/or delete the tasks. The next activity was to 
review the knowledge statements that appeared in the 1998 
survey. Each of the task force members was asked to indicate 
whether the knowledge topic appeared in the 2004 LABOK 
study. Only those knowledge statements that were not included 
in the LABOK were added to the survey. The development of 
the skills list and the background questions completed the work 
of the group at the meeting.28 

The contents of the proposed survey were shared with CLARB 
staff for initial review. Following approval of the components, 
Thomson Prometric staff created the survey using Web-based 
software. The survey was shared with the development 
committee for initial review. Their suggestions were 
incorporated and the revised survey was presented to a pilot 
group to take. The responses and individual comments were 
shared with CLARB staff and final revisions to the survey were 
made. 

In early May, the survey was officially closed and the data 
analysis begun. Preliminary results were shared with CLARB 
staff in preparation for the meeting to develop the test 
specifications. Decisions about the appropriate subgroup 
analyses were made prior to the meeting. 

The completion of the job analysis process consisted of a review 
of the job analysis results. A committee reviewed the 
background questions and began the review of the tasks. The 
respondents were offered opportunities to suggest additional 
tasks. The whole panel reviewed these and suggested additional 
examples for current tasks or noted those that are emerging 
topics. Following the review of the tasks, the committee 
proceeded to the review of the knowledge statements and the 
skills.29 

42 

http:skills.29
http:meeting.28


December 2006 – Department of Consumer Affairs Office of 
Examination Resources, California Validation Report 

The Landscape Architects Technical Committee requested the 
Office of Examination Resources conduct a validation study to 
identify critical job activities performed by landscape architects 
licensed in California. The occupational analysis is part of the 
LATC’s comprehensive review of the practice of landscape 
architecture. The purpose of the occupational analysis is to 
define practice for California licensed landscape architects in 
terms of actual job tasks that new licensees must be able to 
perform safely and competently. The result of the occupational 
analysis serves as a basis for the examination program for 
landscape architects in California. 

OER followed testing standards and guidelines to develop a 
legally defensible examination outline for landscape architects in 
California and implemented a content validation strategy to 
describe the content of the landscape architect profession. OER 
conducted interviews with California licensed landscape 
architects, researched the profession, analyzed material 
prepared by CLARB, facilitated four focus groups California 
licensees, and sent a questionnaire surveying all California 
licensed landscape architects.  

The initial two focus groups reviewed and refined task and 
knowledge statements of the landscape architecture profession 
in California. Based on these specific task and knowledge 
statements of the profession, Office of Examination Resources 
was able to develop a comprehensive survey to be sent to 
landscape architects throughout the state. The third focus group 
reviewed and approved the survey results and links specific job 
tasks with knowledge statements in order to construct the 
examination outline. The final focus group evaluated the 
examination outline for concurrence and to prepare for the 
development of examination questions.30 

43 

http:questions.30





	      

 
 

	   
 

 

	      
 

	      
	      

     
       

     

	   
 
  
 

	    

 
       

   
       

     
      

  
     

    

	       
      

     
  

	  
         

  
    

      
    

       
       

    
	     

          
       

APPENDICES & NOTES 

Appendix C 

Meeting Note Summaries 

May 9, 2006 – Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
 Voted	 on	 the	 preliminary	approval	of	 the Education	

Subcommittee’s	response	 to	the	JLSRC	recommendations.	 
 Approved retaining 	the	six‐year	education/experience	 

requirement.	 
 Approved 	maintaining	eligibility	for 	examination 	with	 current	 

education	requirements.	 
 Approved 	initiate	 tracking 	upon	 candidacy.	 
 Suggestions	were 	made to 	look	into 	accrediting	standards	and	 

determining how	schools	are	measured 	in	order to clarify	subject	 
relationship 	to	examination topics 	and 	into	education	 standards 	as 
it relates 	to	health,	 safety 	and	welfare	concerns.31 

June 7, 2006 – California Architects Board 
 The	LATC’s	recommendations	regarding the 	eligibility	 

requirements for	examination	were	presented	to CAB.	 
 All	recommendations	were	approved 	under	the	condition	that	 the	 

LATC	review	recommendation	1,	Accept	Accredited	Professional 
Architecture	and	Civil	Engineering	Degrees,	and	provide an	 
analysis 	to	CAB	on	 parity	of the	requirements	 to 	apply	 for	 
examination	between	licensure	of	 architects	versus 	landscape 
architects 	prior	 to	 the	recommendations moving forward.	As a 
result	of	 the 	preliminary	approval,	Strategic	 Planning	 objectives	to	 
1)	begin	identifying	variables	that impact 	LARE	 pass rates by	 
tracking 	and	maintaining	data,	and	2)	investigating potential	 
reasons	 for	low	examination	pass	rates	 and	develop an 	appropriate 
response	 to	issue	to the 	JLSRC	were	initiated.32 

August 25, 2006 - Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
 Discussed CAB’s	 action	 and 	various	related	issues	identified.		 The	 

LATC	 voted	 to reconvene	the 	Education	Subcommittee	 in	order	 to
fully	address	all	issues	that	were 	identified	as	 a 	result	of 	the	 
proposed 	changes.33 

November 8, 2006 – Education Subcommittee 
 Met to	discuss	the	renewed	charges	from	the	LATC,	review	existing	 

reports	 and	 documentation, and 	develop a 	plan	of action.		Staff 	was 
tasked 	with:	1)	incorporating	revisions	to	the	Report, 2)	updating	
CCR	2620	– Education	and	Training 	Credits 	to	reflect	the	 
discussion,	3) providing 	curriculum	 data 	for 	accredited	degrees in	 
architecture	and	civil	engineering	and 	documenting 	data	 to	 
compare	the	two,	 and 3) 	revising the	 charts 	outlining	education 
and	experience 	credits	given 	to architects and 	landscape 	architects,	 
and	 drafting	narrative 	explaining	the differences.		 

 Finalize	the	Issues	and	 Recommendations Report	 to	 proceed	with	
preparing a 	draft	report for 	the LATC	 and 	CAB	 to 	approve for	 
forwarding to	 the 	DCA	 and 	the 	Legislature.34 

44 

http:	Legislature.34
http:	changes.33
http:	JLSRC	were	initiated.32
http:	and	welfare	concerns.31


	   
     

 
	    

   
	    

     
  

          
 

	  
	  
 

  
 
	  

   
    

    
    

        

        
        

   
 

	    
 

	  
      

    
 

January 16, 2007 – Education Subcommittee 
 Held	a 	teleconference	and	reviewed	additional	information	 

illustrating the 	parity of 	educational	requirements	to	architects	and	 
civil	engineers.		 

 Expanded	the	information	substantiating the 	recommendations 
and	began	a review	of CCR	2620.	 

 Remaining agenda 	items	to	review:	curriculum	comparison	 for 
landscape	architects 	with	 those	of architects	and	 civil	engineers,	 
completion	of	a 	review	and	proposed	changes	to	CCR	2620,	and	a	 
table of contents	 for the 	report 	to	 the 	Legislature 	were 
postponed.35 

February 27, 2007 – Education Subcommittee 
 Finalized	recommendations	to	the	LATC. 
 Reconfirmed	that	education	is	a 	critical	qualification	in	 

combination with	work 	experience	and	examination. 
 Recommendations	were	to:	1)	maintain	the	educational	credit 

requirement,	2)	continue	one	year 	of	educational	credit for an 
associate	 degree	in	landscape 	architecture, 	3)	continue	four	years	 
of	educational credit for	 foreign	education	equivalent	to	an 
accredited 	master	 or	bachelor	degree	in	landscape	architecture	 in	 
the 	United 	States,	4)	 maintain	two 	years of 	educational	 credit	 for	an
approved	extension	certificate	in	landscape	architecture,	5)	
institute	one	year 	of educational	 credit for 	an	 accredited 	degree	in	 
architecture,	 6)	not 	grant 	educational	 credit	 for a degree	in	civil	 
engineering,	and	7)	not 	grant	experience credit	for	 
foreign/international	experience.36 

May 4, 2007 - Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
 Approved the	 Subcommittee’s	 recommended	response	and	

recommendations.37 

June 15, 2007 – California Architects Board 
 The	parity	issue	and	 the	recommendations	were	presented	and	

approved	by CAB.	The	full	report 	to	DCA	 and	 to the	Legislature, 
containing the approved 	recommendations,	will	be	presented	for	 
approval	once	complete.38 

45 

http:approval	once	complete.38
http:recommendations.37
http:foreign/international	experience.36
http:postponed.35



 NOTES 

NOTES 

1 Landscape Architects Technical Committee 2003 Sunset Review Report response. Vol. 1, tab #4 
2 Landscape Architects Technical Committee, “Landscape Architects Practice Act with Rules and 
Regulations 2007”, includes amendments through October 3, 2007. Vol. 3, tab #56 
3 Professional Engineers Act (Business and Professions Code Section 6700-6799), includes 
amendments made during the 2009 legislative session (Effective January 1, 2010, unless 
otherwise noted), Vol. 3, #55 
4 2004 Joint Legislative Sunset Review Committee Recommendations. Vol. 1, tab #5 
5 Landscape Architects Technical Committee, “Landscape Architects Practice Act with Rules and 
Regulations 2007”, includes amendments through October 3, 2007. Vol. 3, tab #56 
6 California Architects Board, “Architects Practice Act”; effective January 1, 2009.  Vol. 3, tab #57 
7 http://www.cslb.ca.gov/Contractors, accessed November 2008, © 2008 State of California, 
Contractors State Licensing Board. Vol. 3, tab #39 
8 See endnote 5. 
9 See endnote 5. 
10 Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s April 20, 2009, meeting agenda item C.3-C.4, Vol. 
3, tab #58 
11 See endnote 5. 
12 2005 Outline of Landscape Architecture Eligibility Requirements (AZ, CA, FL, HI, NV, NM, NY, 
OR, TX, and WA) – Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape Architects): Snapshot. 
(3/05, D.1), Vol. 2, tab #24 
13 See endnote 12. 
14 Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) member board jurisdictions; 
Arizona State Board of Landscape Architects; Florida Board of Landscape Architecture; Hawaii 
Board of Professional Engineers, Architects, Surveyors & Landscape Architects; Nevada State 
Board of Landscape Architects; New Mexico Board of Landscape Architects; New York State 
Board for Landscape Architects; Oregon State Landscape Architects Board; Texas Board of 
Architectural Examiners and Washington Department of Licensing, Landscape Architecture 
Division - 2005 Survey Results; Examination/Licensure Eligibility Requirements. (6/05, C), Vol. 2, 
tab #20 
15 Accrediting Boards for Architecture, Civil Engineering and Planning - 2005 Description, course 
outlines, number of years and units required to earn an accredited Planning degree in all seven 
California accredited planning degree programs. (12/05, D.1), Vol. 2, tab #17 
16 Comparison of Curriculum for Accredited Degrees in Architecture and Civil Engineering (2/07, 
C.4)Vol. 2, tab #27 
17 Transcripts and Course Requirements for Three Accredited Undergraduate Landscape 
Architecture Degree Programs. (12/05, D.2), Vol. 2, #28 
18 2005 Survey Results; Examination/Licensure Eligibility Requirements, see endnote 17. 
19 Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) - 2005 Information provided 
from the Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB) regarding member 
board jurisdictions allowance of early eligibility to take the multiple-choice sections of the 
Landscape Architectural Registration Examination (LARE) (12/05, D.3), Vol. 2, tab #29 
20 Comparison of Education, Experience and Exam results of last 100 California Landscape 
Architects covering 11/2003 - 12/2004. (3/05, G), Vol. 2, tab #32 
21 Final Candidate Education/Experience Tracking Chart and Reciprocity Candidate Tracking 
Chart. (12/05, C), Vol. 2, tab #33 
222005 Outline of Landscape Architecture Eligibility Requirements (AZ, CA, FL, HI, NV, NM, NY, 
OR, TX, and WA) – Detailed Comparison of Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape 
Architects). (3/05, D.3), Vol. 2. tab #24 
23 California Community Colleges; Mesa, Modesto Junior, Southwestern and West Valley - 2005 
Description, course outline and units required to earn an Associate Degree in Landscape 
Architecture in California. (3/05, E), Vol. 2, tab #35 
24 Detailed Comparison of Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape Architects), see end 
note 22 
25 Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape Architects): Snapshot, see endnote 13 
26 Examination/Licensure Requirements (Landscape Architects): Snapshot, see endnote 13 
27 American Society of Landscape Architects, Landscape Architecture Body of Knowledge Study 
Report, published October 28, 2004, All Rights Reserved. Vol. 1, tab #8 
28 Council of Landscape Architecture Registration Boards, performed by Thompson Prometric, Job 
Analysis 2006.  Vol. 3, tab #37 
29 1996 Joint Legislative Sunset Review Committee Findings and Recommendations, Vol. 1, tab #5 

46 

http://www.cslb.ca.gov/Contractors


30 California Department of Consumer Affairs, Office of Examination Resources, Validation Report 
Landscape Architects Technical Committee, December 2006, Vol. 3, tab #60fr 
31 Landscape Architects Technical Committee, May 9, 2006, Summary Report, Vol. 3, tab #46 
32 California Architects Board’s June 7, 2006, Minutes, Vol. 3, tab #47 
33 Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s August 25, 2006,Summary Report-Final, Vol. 3, 
tab #48 
34 Education Subcommittee’s November 8, 2006, Meeting Minutes, Vol. 3, tab#59 
35 Education Subcommittee’s teleconference January 16, 2007, Summary Report-Draft, Vol. 3, 
tab#50 
36 Education Subcommittee’s February 27, 2007, Summary Report-Draft, Vol. 3, tab#51 
37 Landscape Architects Technical Committee’s May 4, 2007, Summary Report-Final, Vol. 3, 
tab#52 
38 California Architects Board’s June 15, 2007, Minutes, Vol. 3, tab#53 

47 




 

   
  

      

    

   

 

        
      

   

Attachment H.9 

Determinants of Success 
Research Study 
Identifying the Factors that Lead to 

Successful Performance on the 

Landscape Architect Registration 

Examination 

A Study Conducted by Professional Testing, Inc. for 
the Council of Landscape Architectural Registration 
Boards, October 2011 



 
   
 

   
 

 

 
 

 
 0000 
Professional Testing 

Prepared	by:	 
Adrienne W. Cadle, M.Ed. 
Dr. Corina M. Owens 

Professional	Testing,	Inc.	
7680	Universal	Boulevard,	Suite	300	

Orlando,	Florida	32819	 

Phone:	(407)	264‐2993	
Fax:	(407)	 264‐2855	

http://www.proftesting.com	 

Page	 1 

http://www.proftesting.com	


  

    

 
 

 
 

   
  

  

  

   
       

  
  

  

    
 

 
 

  

    
   

   
  

  

  
 

   

 
 0000 
Professional Testing 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Purpose of the Project 

At	this	time,	there	is	a	lack	of	quantitative/qualitative	data that	identifies	the	
determinants	of	candidate	success	 on	the	Landscape	Architect	Registration 
Examination	(L.A.R.E).		The	principal	goal	of	the	research	project	is	to	define	and,	if	 
possible,	weigh	the	determinants	 for	success	on	the	L.A.R.E.	and	to	provide	greater	
insights	for	 the	profession	and	 regulatory	community	on	 which	to	base	policy,	
practice,	 and	support	decisions.	 

Research Methods 

This	study	consisted	of	 three	phases.		During	the	first	phase,	 the	research	team	
interviewed	members	of	three	specific	stakeholder	groups	via	telephone.		The	
results	of	the 	phone	interviews	 were	used	to	develop	the	survey in	phase	two	of	the	
study.		The	 survey	was	 administered	after	 four	separate	 administrations 	of the
L.A.R.E.	over	the	course	of	one	 year.		The	final	stage	of	the	study	was	the statistical	
analysis,	whereby	the	 data	collected	from	the	electronic	survey was	analyzed	to	
determine	 what	factors	best	predict	successful	performance	on	the	L.A.R.E.	 

Overall,	five	statistical		 models	were	analyzed	 based	on	the 	five	areas	 that	were	
identified	 as	contributing	to	successful	performance	on	the	L.A.R.E.:	Education	
Factors,	Work	Experience	Factors,	 Preparation	Factors,	Skills	Factors,	and	Testing	
Environment	Factors	 

Key Findings 

Education	and	work	experience	factors	seemed	to	have	the 	greatest 	impact on
candidates’	 performance	on	the	L.A.R.E.		Preparation and	skills factors	contributed	
to	successful	performance	on	some 	of	the	exams,	while	testing	environment	 factors	 
had	little	to	 no	impact	on	candidates’	performance. 

Education Factors 

The	level	of	education	 obtained	 by	exam	candidates	positively	impacted	both	
Sections	A	and	B	of	the	L.A.R.E. 		The	higher	the	level	of	education	obtained	by	exam	
candidates,	 the	better	they	did	on	the	Section	 A	and	B	exams.	 

Page	 2 

SuttonM
Typewritten Text
Note:  this research was completed prior to the September 2012 L.A.R.E. Administration when the exam transitioned from five sections (Sections A-E) to four sections (Sections 1-4).

SuttonM
Typewritten Text

SuttonM
Typewritten Text



    
 

  
    

  
  

   

  
  

   
    

 

  
   

  
    
     

 

  

   
  

    

   
    

  

  0000 
Professional Testing 

For	the	Section	C	 exam,	 those	who	obtained	 a degree	from	a	program	accredited	by	
the	Landscape	Architectural	Accreditation	Board	(LAAB)	or	the	Canadian Society	of
Landscape	 Architects* 	(CSLA)	scored	much	higher	(on	average,	212.98	points	higher)	
than	those	 who	obtained	a	degree	 from	a	nonaccredited	 program.	 

Candidates	who	took	college	courses	in	 Planting	Design	 or	History	of	Landscape	
Architecture	scored	higher	on	the	Section	E	 exam.	 

Work Experience Factors 

Work	experience 	factors 	contributed	to	successful	performance	on	all	but	the	
Section	C	exam.		The	number	of	years	spent	working	 in	landscape architecture	had	a	 
negative 	impact	on	both	the	Section	A	and	B	 exams,	indicating	that	 the	longer	one	
waited	to	take	the	Section	A	or	 B	exams	after	 graduation, the	lower	the	performance	 
on	those	two	exams.	 

Diversified	 work	experience 	contributes	positively	to	successful	performance	on	the	
L.A.R.E.		Experience	in	stormwater 	management	and	governmental	 work	experience	 
had	a	positive	impact	on 	the	Section	A	exam,	experience	in	planting	design	had	a	 
positive 	impact	on	the	 Section	B 	exam,	experience	in	institutional	projects	had	a	 
positive 	impact	on	the	 Section	D 	exam,	and	experience	in	large‐scale	 residential	 and	
land	planning	had	a	positive	impact	on	the	Section	E	exam.			 

Preparation Factors 

Sections	A,	C,	and	E	were	impacted	by	preparation	factors.		Candidates	who	studied	
alone	were	 more	successful	on	the	 Section	A	 exam,	and	candidates	who	split	their	
time	studying	both	alone	and	in	 groups	performed	better	on	the	 Section	C	exam.		
Those	who	utilized	the	 ASLA	practice	problems** 	scored	higher	on	 the	Section	 C	exam
than	those	who	did	not	utilize	the	ASLA	practice	problems.		Lastly,	the	longer	the	
amount	of	time	spent	studying,	the 	better	 the	 performance	was	on	the	Section	E	
exam.		For	every	one	 month	increase	 in	time	spent	studying,	 exam	 candidates	
scored	on	average	69.56 	points	higher.	 

Page	 3 

SuttonM
Typewritten Text
* CSLA accredits programs through LAAC (Landscape Architecture Accreditation Council).

SuttonM
Typewritten Text
** When the L.A.R.E. was five sections, CLARB provided practice problems for Sections C and E to ASLA for ASLA's exam prep page.  These practice problems no longer exist. 

SuttonM
Typewritten Text

http:scored	on	average	69.56


  

 
 

   
 

        
  

  

     

  
 

     
 

   
 

     

 

  
 

  
 

   
 

  

 
 0000 
Professional Testing 

Skills Factors 

In	terms	of	perceived	skill,	those 	who	considered	themselves	“technical	thinkers”
scored	higher	on	both	the	Section	 B	and	D	exams.		Those	who	identified	themselves	
as	having	good	spatial	 reasoning skills	performed	higher	on	the Section	B	and	E	
exams.		More	time 	spent	drawing	on	a	computer	had	a	positive	impact	on	the	
Section	 C	exam,	while	more	time	 spent designing by 	hand	had	a positive	impact	 on	 
the	Section	 E	exam. 

Key Takeaway 

Based	on	the findings	of 	this	study, 	candidates	 should	consider the	following	
actions	 to	optimize	their	performance	on	the	 L.A.R.E.:	 

 Obtaining	 a landscape	 architecture	degree	from 	an	LAAB‐	or	CSLA‐
accredited	institution. 

 Taking	the	 L.A.R.E.	closer	to	college 	graduation	rather	than	waiting	to	gain	
more	years	of	experience	in	landscape	architecture.	 

 Gaining	 diversified 	experience	 in	the	years	spent	working	in	landscape	 
architecture.	 

 Increasing	study	time	 both	alone	and	in	groups.	 
 Utilizing	 the	ASLA	practice	problems.ȗȗ 
 Spending	 time	drawing on	a	computer,	but	designing	by	hand.	 

For	more	information,	please	contact	the	Council	of	Landscape	Architectural	
Registration	Boards	at	 571‐432‐0332	or	info@clarb.org.	 

Page	 4 

SuttonM
Typewritten Text

SuttonM
Typewritten Text

SuttonM
Typewritten Text

SuttonM
Typewritten Text
** When the L.A.R.E. was five sections, CLARB provided practice problems for Sections C and E to ASLA for ASLA's exam prep page.  These practice problems no longer exist. 

http:571-432-0332	or	info@clarb.org.	



 

	 
 






	 
 



	 

 	

	 




Attachment H.10 

Standards of Eligibility for Council Certification 

Certification by the Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards is formal recognition that the 
Certificate holder's education, experience, examination and professional conduct meet or exceed CLARB's 
Certification standards. These standards are approved by CLARB's member boards and are recommended 
nationally as the minimum standards for licensure. 

Certificate records consist of verified documentation of the qualifications of the Certificate holder and carry 
CLARB's recommendation to all registration boards that the individual be granted reciprocal registration without 
further examination. 

1. CLARB Certification Standards 

To be granted CLARB Certification, an applicant must demonstrate through current, verified documentation that 
he/she satisfies all of the following requirements in accordance with the evaluation criteria listed in Sections 2, 3, 
and 4. 

Note: Any applicant who does not satisfy the Certification standards listed in Section 1 may be issued a 
Certificate if he/she has sufficient other qualifications which, while not considered to be equal to the 
Certification requirements, are accepted in lieu of these requirements.  Alternative qualifications are identified 
in Sections 2, 3, and 4. 

• Education: A first professional degree in landscape architecture from a program which has 
been accredited by the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB).   
(See Section 2.) 

• Experience: 3 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture under the direct 
supervision of a licensed landscape architect. (See Section 3.) 

• Examination: Successful completion of the CLARB registration examination where the 
examination administration and grading were conducted in accordance with CLARB's  
standards in effect at the time. (See Section 4.) 

• Licensure: Current licensure by a CLARB member board. 

• Professional Conduct: History of acceptable professional conduct as verified by employers, landscape 
architects, and member boards. Applicants may be denied Certification if, in the practice of 
landscape architecture, they have violated the law or if they have intentionally provided 
erroneous information on their application for Certification. 

1 



	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	




2. Education 

2.1 A first professional degree in landscape architecture from a program which has been accredited by 
the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB) or the Canadian Society of Landscape 
Architects Accreditation Council is required. 

2.2 In lieu of the degree specified in 2.1 above, satisfaction of 5.0 years of education credit as follows: 

                   Percent Maximum  
Activity  Allowed  Credit  

2.2.1  Non-accredited B.L.A. or M.L.A. 100%  4 years 

2.2.2  NAAB-accredited B.Arch. or M. Arch. 100%  4 years 

2.2.3 ABET-accredited degree in Civil Engineering 100%  4 years 

2.2.4  Any Bachelor's degree 100%  2 years 

2.2.5 Diversified experience in landscape architecture 100% 3 years 
under the direct supervision of a licensed 
landscape architect 

2.2.6 Diversified experience in landscape architecture 100% 5 years 
under the direct supervision of a licensed landscape 
architect if the applicant was licensed prior to 
January 1, 1991. 

2.3 Evaluation Criteria 

2.3.1 Degrees listed in 2.2.1 - 2.2.4 cannot be combined to satisfy the education credit 
requirement. 

2.3.2 The work experience applied as education credit may not also be used to satisfy experience 
requirements. 

2.3.3 Any degree awarded less than two years prior to the accreditation of the program will be 
accepted as an accredited degree. 

2.3.4 Any degree awarded after a program has ceased to be accredited will not be accepted as an 
accredited degree. 

2 



	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	




3. Experience 

3.1 Three (3) years diversified experience directly related to landscape architecture under the direct 
supervision of a licensed landscape architect is required. 

3.2 In lieu of 2.0 years of the experience in 3.1 above, 2.0 years of experience credit as follows: 

Percent Maximum 
Activity            Allowed  Credit  

3.2.1 Diversified experience in landscape architecture 100% N/A 
practicing as a principal 

3.2.2 Diversified experience directly related to 100%   2 years 
landscape architecture under the direct 
supervision of a civil engineer, architect or 
credentialed planner 

3.2.3 Teaching in an LAAB-accredited program 50%   1 year 

3.2.4 Experience in landscape architecture directly 50% 1 year 
related to on-site construction, maintenance or 
installation procedures 

3.2.5 Non-diversified experience in landscape 50%   1 year 
architecture under the direct supervision of a 
licensed landscape architect, civil engineer, 
architect or credentialed planner 

3.3 Evaluation Criteria 

3.3.1 Every applicant for Certification must have at least one year of diversified experience in 
landscape architecture (acquired after the satisfaction of the education requirement) under 
the direct supervision of a licensed landscape architect; or 

3.3.2 Applicants who have acquired six (6.0) years of diversified experience in landscape 
architecture after the satisfaction of the education requirement practicing as a principal shall 
be deemed to have satisfied the experience requirement. 

3.3.3 Work experience in category 3.1 above will only receive credit as follows: 

3.3.3.1 If it is at least 35 hours per week for at least 2 continuous months--100% 
3.3.3.2 If it is at least 20 hours per week for at least 4 continuous months-- 50% 

3.3.4 Work experience in any alternative category will receive the credit indicated only when the 
experience is at least 35 hours per week and at least 2 continuous months in duration. 

3 



	

	

	

	 

	

	

	 

	 

	

	

	

	 

	

	




3.3.5 No experience credit may be earned prior to satisfaction of the education requirement. 

3.3.6 Experience received outside the United States or Canada is limited to 1 year maximum. 

3.3.7 No additional education or experience credit will be awarded for obtaining more than one 
degree. 

4. Examination

 Note:  For candidates not licensed by January 1, 2008, any sections of the exam completed prior to 1992 will 
no longer be accepted for transition credit towards satisfaction of the examination standard for CLARB  
Certification. 

4.1 Successful completion of the CLARB registration examination where the examination administration 
and grading were conducted in accordance with CLARB's standards in effect at the time is required. 

4.2 In lieu of passing the CLARB registration examination, satisfaction of one of the following (4.2.1. - 
4.2.6): 

4.2.1 For applicants initially licensed without successfully completing a written examination, 
satisfaction of both 4.2.1.1 and 4.2.1.2: 

4.2.1.1 10 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture; at least 7 years of 
which 

must occur after licensure 
4.2.1.2 Successful completion of the CLARB Reciprocity Validation Examination 

       between the years of 1997 to 1999. 

4.2.2 Successful completion of written examination prepared by a member board prior to 1970 
and 10 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture after licensure. 

4.2.3 Successful completion of a written examination prepared by a member board between the 
years 1970 to 1975. 

4.2.4 Successful completion of the British Columbia Society of Landscape Architects= written 
examination, 5 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture after licensure and 
satisfaction of the education and experience requirements. 

4.2.5 Successful completion of the California P.E.L.A., satisfaction of the licensure, education and 
experience requirements, as well as successful completion of L.A.R.E. Sections D & E. 

4.2.6 For applicants initially licensed in British Columbia or Ontario without successfully 
completing the L.A.R.E., satisfaction of 4.2.6.1 and 4.2.6.2 as follows: 

4.2.6.1 10 years of diversified experience in landscape architecture; at least 7 years of which
 must occur after licensure. 

4.2.6.2 Successful completion of the CLARB Reciprocity Validation Examination between 
the years 1997 to 1999. 

4 



	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 




5. Requirements for Maintaining a CLARB Council Record/Certificate 

• A CLARB Certificate holder must maintain registration in good standing with a CLARB member 
board. If the Certificate holder fails to maintain registration with at least one CLARB member 
board, the Certificate will be revoked until such time as a verification of current registration from a 
member board is received. 

• The CLARB Council Record/Certificate is valid for one year from the date of the initial application 
and must be updated annually with a completed annual activity report and payment of the annual 
renewal fee. 

• Failure to renew the CLARB Council Record/Certificate will cause the Record/Certificate to 
become inactive and ineligible for transmittal. 

6. Revocation of CLARB Certification 

• The Council may revoke a landscape architect’s Certification when a member board revokes the 
landscape architect’s registration or when a member board or court issues findings of fact regarding 
the professional conduct of a Certificate holder that indicate a breach of the CLARB Standards of 
Eligibility for Certification. 

• The Council may suspend a landscape architect’s Certification when a member board suspends the 
landscape architect’s registration, issues findings of fact regarding the professional conduct of a 
Certificate holder that indicate a breach of the CLARB Standards of Eligibility for Certification or 
when the landscape architect fails to satisfy the other requirements for listed in the CLARB 
Standards of Eligibility for Certification. The suspension will remain in effect until such time as the 
cause for suspension has been removed, corrected, or otherwise remedied. 

• Such matters shall be inserted in the Council Record of the individual in question for the 
information of member boards who may consider the individual for registration and rely upon 
information in the Council Record or the recommendation of the Council Certificate. 

5 



 

Agenda Item I 

REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AMEND TITLE 16, CCR SECTION 2620.5 

(REQUIREMENTS FOR AN APPROVED EXTENSION CERTIFICATE PROGRAM) 

AND ADD CCR SECTIONS 2620.2 (EXTENSION CERTIFICATE PROGRAMS – 
APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL), 2620.3 (SUSPENSION OR WITHDRAWAL OF 

APPROVAL), AND 2620.4 (ANNUAL REPORTS) 

The University of California, Los Angeles and Berkeley Extension Programs were established in 

1976 and 1982 respectively.  The former Board of Landscape Architects (BLA) granted 

educational credit to applicants who had completed either program.  In November 1991, the BLA 

adopted Title 16, California Code of Regulations section (CCR) 2620.5, formally establishing 

requirements to approve extension certificate programs, based on university accreditation 

standards from the Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board (LAAB).  (It should be noted that 

educational credit is granted for associate degree programs and non-accredited bachelors and 

masters programs that are not regulated by the Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

[LATC], but rather governed by the academic institutions within which they are structured.) 

In 2009, LAAB implemented changes to its accreditation standards.  Prompted by these changes, 

the LATC drafted updated requirements for an approved extension certificate program and 

recommended the Board authorize LATC to proceed with a regulatory change to amend CCR 

2620.5. At its December 15, 2010 meeting, the Board approved the proposed regulatory language 

and authorized staff to proceed with the rulemaking file.  The regulatory proposal to amend CCR 

2620.5 was sent to the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) in June 2012 and in July 2013, OAL 

issued a “Decision of Disapproval of Regulatory Action,” citing deficiencies in the file relating to 

the necessity standard of Government Code section 11349.1 (see attachments I.1 and I.2). 

At its August 20, 2013 meeting, the LATC voted to 1) not pursue a resubmission of the existing 

rulemaking file for CCR 2620.5 to OAL; 2) have staff analyze the proposed modifications to 

CCR 2620.5 and attempt to provide sufficient justification for each proposed change that will meet 

OAL standards; and 3) submit a new rulemaking file to OAL once sufficient justification for the 

proposed changes have been developed. 

Subsequent to the August 2013 LATC meeting, staff consulted with Department of Consumer 

Affairs (DCA) legal counsel to identify the best approach to resubmit the rulemaking file. It was 

determined that a “comprehensive” regulatory package would be necessary to satisfy all of OAL’s 

concerns related to the disapproval of the file.  Such a comprehensive package would need to 

include not only sufficient justification for the existing proposed amendments to CCR 2620.5, but 

would also need to add new regulations that address (1) the application process for extension 

certificate programs; (2) annual reporting requirements; (3) denial, suspension, and withdrawal of 

approval; and (4) appealing denial, suspension and withdrawal of approval actions. Based on legal 

counsel’s recommendation, staff developed new proposed language to address the application and 

approval processes listed above (see attachment I.3, proposed language to add CCR 2620.2, 2620.3 

and 2620.4 provided to LATC on February 10, 2015). 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



In February 2014 staff met with Christine Anderson, Chair of the University of California 

Extension Certificate Program Task Force and DCA legal counsel, to discuss justifications for the 

new regulatory language (CCR 2620.2, 2620.3 and 2620.4) and amendments to existing 

regulations (CCR 2620.5).  

Staff revised the proposed language to clarify the application and review processes, as well as 

justifications needed to address OAL’s concerns. Attachment I.3 is staff and legal counsel’s draft 

proposed regulatory language that was presented for discussion to the LATC at its February 2015 

meeting. Areas which need additional research or discussion are captured in comments noted in 

the right-hand column of the language. New language is indicated in blue underline and deleted 

language is indicated with red strikethrough. Portions highlighted in yellow in CCR 2620.5 

identify new edits made subsequent to LATC’s original approval of the proposed language for that 

section. 

At the February 2015 meeting, the Committee approved the appointment of a new working group 

to assist staff in substantiating recommended standards and procedures in order to obtain OAL 

approval.  Linda Gates and Ms. Anderson, former LATC members and University of California 

extension program reviewers, were appointed to the working group. 

On June 5, 2015, LAAB advised that it was in the process of updating its Standards and 

Procedures for the Accreditation of Landscape Architecture Programs.  The process included a 

public call for input and commentary that took place in the fall of 2014.  LAAB met in the summer 

of 2015 to draft revisions to the Standards and Procedures.  In the fall of 2015, additional public 

input and comments were solicited and subsequently incorporated into LAAB’s revisions. 

On October 8, 2015, LATC received a copy of LAAB’s proposed revisions which separate 

Standards from Procedures, into two documents.  The Standards include several suggested changes 

to curriculum requirements.  LATC staff began incorporating the proposed changes and drafting 

new proposed language that included many of LATC’s previously submitted modifications to CCR 

2620.5. Attachment I.4 is staff’s working draft of proposed language to add CCR 2620.2 through 

2620.4 and amend 2620.5 that includes LAAB’s 2017 curriculum requirements. 

LAAB updates its Accreditation Standards every five to six years to reflect current practice in 

landscape architecture.  The new Accreditation Standards took effect in March 2016, making 

significant changes to curriculum requirements (see attachment I.5, pages 10-11). Specifically, 

prior curriculum standards encompassed 8 broad subject matter areas of study.  The new standards 

require coursework in 9 subject matter areas with 41 subcategories of study.  Due to the nature of 

the extensive changes, it is uncertain whether the rulemaking documents can be revised in a 

manner that will meet the necessity standard of the Administrative Procedures Act. The Committee 

may wish to discuss the possibility of requesting input from the Extension Programs on the impact 

of LATC not reviewing and approving programs in the future. 

Staff asks that LATC review and discuss the proposed language presented in Attachment I.4 to 

determine if additions, deletions or other modifications or actions are needed. Staff will then 

proceed with the regulatory process as directed. 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



	 
	 
	 

	 

	 

	 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. OAL Decision of Disapproval of Regulatory Action, July 17, 2013 

2. Amendments to CCR 2620.5 disapproved by OAL in July 2013 

3. Proposed Language to Add CCR 2620.2, 2620.3, and 2620.4 Provided to LATC on 

February 10, 2015 

4. Working Draft of Proposed Language to Add CCR 2620.2 through 2620.4 and Amend CCR 

2620.5 

5. LAAB Accreditation Standards - March 2016 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



·--·-

JU g zon 

Attachment I.1 


State of ·California 
Office of Administrative Law 

In re: DECISION OF DISAPPROVAL OF 
California Architects Board REGULATORY ACTION 

Regulatory Action: Title 16 Government Code Section 11349.3 
California Code of Regulations 

Adopt sections: OAL File No. 2013-0531-01S 
Amend sections: 2620.S 
Repeal sections: 

SUMMARY OF REGULATORY ACTION 

The California Architects Board (Board) proposed this regulatory action to amend title 16, 
California Code of Regulations, section 2620.5 which is the sole regulation that governs extension 
certificate programs for landscape architects. One way that an applicant for licensure as a 
landscape architect can fulfill educational requirements is by successful completion of an extension 
certificate program that is recognized and approved by the Board pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 2620.5. The provisions of Section 2620.5 were initially established by the Landscape 
Architects Technical Committee (LA TC) a statutory committee under the purview of the Board, 
and adopted by the Board to mirror standards established by an organization called the Landscape 
Architectural Accreditation Board in a publication titled Accreditation Standards and Procedures 
(LAAB Standards). The LAAB Standards are used nationally for accrediting college and 
university degree programs in landscape architecture. The proposed amendments are intended to 
update Section 2620.5 to conform to updates made to the LAAB Standards published by the 
Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board on February 6, 20 10 (2010 LAAB Standards). 

DECISIO 

On May 31 , 2013, the Board submitted the above-referenced regulatory action to the Office of 
Administrative Law (OAL) for review in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act 
(APA). On July 15, 2013, the OAL notified the Board of the disapproval of this regulatory action 
for failure to comply with the necessity standard of Government Code section 11349.1. 

DISCUSSION 

The adoption of regulations by the Board must satisfy requirements established by the part of the 
APA that governs rulemaking by a state agency. Any regulation adopted by a state agency to 
implement, interpret, or make specific the law enforced or administered by it or to govern its 



Decision of Disapproval Page 2 of 4 
OAL File No. 2013-0531-0IS 

procedure, is subject to the AP A unless a statute expressly exempts the regulation from AP A 
coverage. (Gov. Code, sec. 11346.) 

Before any regulation subject to the APA may become effective, the regulation is reviewed by 
OAL for compliance with the procedural requirements of the APA and for compliance with the 
standards for administrative regulations in Government Code section 11349. l. Generally. to 
satisfy APA standards, a regulation must be legally valid, supported by an adequate record, and 
easy to understand. In this review, OAL is limited to the rulemaking record and may not 
substitute its judgment for that of the rulemaking agency with regard to the substantive content 
of the regulation. This review is an independent check on the exercise of rulemaking powers by 
executive branch agencies intended to improve the quality of regulations that implement, 
interpret, and make specific statutory law, and to ensure that the public is provided with a 
meaningful opportunity to comment on regulations before they become effective. 

NECESSITY 

OA L must review regulations for compliance with the necessity standard of Government Code 
section 11349.1, subdivision (a)(l ). Government Code section 11349, subdivision (a), defines 
necessity as follows: 

(a) "Necessity" means the record of the rulemaking proceeding demonstrates by 
substantial evidence the need for a regulation to effectuate the purpose of the 
statute, court decision, or other provision of law that the regulation implements, 
interprets, or makes specific, taking into account the totality of the record. For 
purposes of this standard, evidence includes, but is not limited to, facts, studies. 
and expert opinion. 

To further explain the meaning of substantial evidence in the context of the necessity standard, 
subdivision (b) of section 10 of title 1 of the California Code of Regulations provides: 

(b) In order to meet the "necessity" standard of Government Code section 
11349. I, the record of the rulemaking proceeding shall include: 
(1) a statement of the specific purpose of each adoption, amendment, or repeal; 

and 
(2) information explaining why each provision of the adopted regulation is 
required to carry out the described purpose of the provision. Such information 
shall include, but is not limited to, facts, studies, or expert opinion. When the 
explanation is based upon policies, conclusions, speculation, or conjecture, the 
rulemaking record must include, in addition, supporting facts, studi~s, exp~rt . 
opinion, or other information. An "expert" within the meaning of this sect10~ 1s a 
person who possesses special skill or knowledge by reason of study or experience 
which is relevant to the regulation in question. 

In order to provide the public w ith an opportunity to review and comm~nt upon an agency's 
perceived need for a regulation, the APA requires that the agency describe the need _for _th~. 
regulation in the initial statement of reasons. (Gov. Code, sec. 11346.2, subd. (b).) 1 he mt11al 



Decision of Disapproval Page 3 of4 
OA L File No. 2013-053 1-0IS 

statement of reasons must include a statem·ent of the specific purpose for each adoption, 
~mendment, or repeal , and the rationale for the determination by the agency that each regulation 
1s reasonably necessary to carry out the purpose for which it is proposed or simply restated 
"why" a regulation is needed and "how" this regulation fills that need. (Go~. Code, sec. 11346.2, 
subd. (b)( l ).) The initial statement of reasons must be submitted to OAL with the initial notice of 
the proposed action and made available to the public during the public comment period, along 
with all the information upon which the proposal is based. (Gov. Code, sec. 11346.2, subd. (b) 
and sec. 11346.5, subds. (a)(16) and (b).) In this way the public is informed of the basis of the 
regulatory action and may comment knowledgeably. 

The initial statement of reasons in this regulatory action did not describe the need for each 
amended regulatory provision that deviated from the updated 2010 LAAB Standards of which 
this regulatory action was based. (Any such deviations from the 201 0 LAAB Standards will be 
referred to as amended regulatory provisions for purposes of this discussion.) The initial 
statement of reasons states that the provisions of section 2620.5 need to be updated to conform to 
the 20 IO LAAB Standards; however, it needs to provide more than this. The problem, 
administrative requirement, or other condition or circumstance that each amended regulatory 
provision is intended to address must be identified. ln addition, information must be included 
that explains why each amended regulatory provision is needed to carry out the described 
purpose of the regulatory provision. 

The initial statement of reasons only provides background information on the development and 
administration of section 2620.5, including the genesis of section 2620.5 from earlier LAAB 
standards, followed by a brief statement that the earlier LAAB Standards had been updated and a 
list of the proposed amendments to section 2620.5 that contain only brief, conclusory statements 
describing what the proposed amendments are, not why they are needed. Additionally, the Board 
modified the proposed regulatory text in a 15-day notice of availability that took place from 
November 30, 2012 to January 9, 2013. But there is no necessity provided for these additional 
modifications anywhere in the rulemaking record. Furthermore, before this regulatory action is 
resubmitted to OAL, the Board must draft a statement of reasons to add to the rulemaking record 
to correct the lack of necessity in the initial statement of reasons. The Board may make 
additional modifications to the proposed regulatory text in another 15-day notice of availability, 
which the Board must approve, to clarify issues that become apparent while drafting this 
statement of reasons. The Board must provide necessity for all of the regulatory amendments to 
section 2620.5 upon resubmittal of this regulatory action to OAL. 

Government Code section 11347.1 requires this statement of reasons, which will provide the 
necessity missing from the initial statement of reasons and from the rulemaking record, to be 
made available to the public for at least 15 days prior to the Board's adoption, amendment or 
repeal of the regulations. Moreover, any comments made in relati?n to the supplemental_ 
statement of reasons or modifications to the text must be summanzed and responded to m the 
final statement of reasons. (Gov. Code, secs. 11346.8, subd. (c) and 11347.1, subd. (d).) 

The Board's demonstration of the need for the amended regulatory provisions is basic to a 
complete understanding of the proposed regulations. Withou~ an adequate showing of ne~essity 
for each amended regulatory provision, OAL cannot be certam of what effect the Board mtended 



Decision of Disapproval Page 4 of 4 
OAL File No. 2013-0531-0IS 

regarding the amended regulatory provisions. OAL must therefore reserve the right upon 
resubmittal of this regulatory action to conduct a review of these regulations for compliance with 
al I of the substantive standards of Government Code section 1 1349 .1 until such time as an 
adequate statement ofreasons is submitted with the rulemaking record. 

CONCLUSION 

For the reason set forth above, OAL has disapproved this regulatory action. If you have any 
questions, please contact me at (916) 323-6809. 

Date: July 17, 2013 

Senior Counsel 

FOR: DEBRA M. CORNEZ 
Director 

Original: Douglas McCauley 
Copy: John Keidel 

Richard L. Smith 




 

 


 

 


 

Attachment I.2 


CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

PROPOSED LANGUAGE 
(NOTE: THE RULEMAKING FILE THAT PROPOSED THESE AMENDMENTS WAS 

DISAPPROVED BY THE OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW IN JULY 2013) 

California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26 

Amend Section 2620.5 to read as follows: 

§ 2620.5 Requirements for an Approved Extension Certificate Program 

An extension certificate program shall meet the following requirements: 

(a) The educational program shall be established in an educational institution which has a four-
year educational curriculum and either is approved by the Western Association of Schools 
and Colleges under Section 94900 of the Education Code or is an institution of public 
higher education as defined by Section 66010 of the Education Code. 

(b) There shall be a written statement of the program's philosophy and objectives which serves 
as a basis for curriculum structure. Such statement shall take into consideration the broad 
perspective of values, missions and goals of the profession of landscape architecture. The 
program objectives shall provide for relationships and linkages with other disciplines and 
public and private landscape architectural practices. The program objectives shall be 
reinforced by course inclusion, emphasis and sequence in a manner which promotes 
achievement of program objectives. The program's literature shall fully and accurately 
describe the program's philosophy and objectives. 

(c) The program shall have a written plan for evaluation of the total program, including 
admission and selection procedures, attrition and retention of students, and performance 
of graduates in meeting community needs. 

(d) The program shall be administered as a discrete program in landscape architecture 
within the institution with which it is affiliated. 

(e) There shall be an organizational chart which identifies the relationships, lines of 
authority and channels of communication within the program and between the 
program and other administrative segments of the institution with which it is 
affiliated. 

(f) The program shall have sufficient authority and resources to achieve its educational 
objectives. 

(g) The program's administrator director shall be a California licensed  landscape architect. 

(h) The program administrator faculty shall have the primary responsibility for developing 
policies and procedures, planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating all aspects 
of the program. The faculty shall be adequate in type and number to develop and 
implement the program approved by the Board. 

1 



	


 

(i) The program curriculum shall provide instruction in the following areas related to 
landscape architecture including public health, safety, and welfare: 

(1) History, theory art and criticismcommunication 
(2) Natural and , cultural, and social systems including principles of sustainability 
(3) Public Policy and regulation 
(43) Design, planning and management at various scales and applications including but not 

limited to pedestrian and vehicular circulation, grading drainage and storm water 
management as a process in shaping the environment 

(54) Site design and Implementation:Plant materials, methods, technologies, and their 
application 

(65) Construction documentation materials and techniques and administration 
(7) Written, verbal and visual communication 
(86) Professional practice methods 
(97) Professional ethics and values and ethics 
(10) Plants and ecosystems 
(118) Computer applications systems and other advanced technology 

The program's curriculum shall not be revised until it has been approved by the 
Board. 

(j) The program shall consist of at least 90 quarter units or 60 semester units. 

(k) The program shall maintain a current syllabus for each required course which includes 
the course objectives, learning outcomes, content, and the methods of evaluating student 
performance. 

(l)  The program clearly identifies where the public health, safety, and welfare issues are 
addressed. 

(ml) The curriculum shall be offered in a timeframe which reflects the proper course 
sequence. Students shall be required to adhere to that sequence, and courses shall be 
offered in a consistent and timely manner in order that students can observe those 
requirements. 

(nm) A program shall meet the following requirements for its instructional personnel: 

(1) At least one half of the program's instructional personnel shall hold a professional 
degree or certificate from an approved extension certificate program in landscape 
architecture. 

(2) At least one half of the program's instructional personnel shall be licensed by the Board 
as landscape architects. 

(3) The program administrator shall be at least .5 time-base. 
(4) The program administrative support shall be 1.0 full-time equivalence. 

(o) The program shall submit an annual report in writing based on the date of the most recent 
Board approval.  The report shall include: 

2 




 

 


 

(1) Verification of continued compliance with minimum requirements; 
(2) Any significant changes such as curriculum, personnel, administration, fiscal support, 

and physical facilities that have occurred since the last report; 
(3) Current enrollment and demographics; and 
(4) Progress toward complying with the recommendations, if any, from the last 

approval. 

(p) The program title and degree description shall incorporate the term “Landscape 
Architecture.” 

The Board may choose to further evaluate changes to any of the reported items or to a program. 

The Board will either grant or deny an application. When specific minor deficiencies are 
identified during evaluation of an application, but the institution is substantially in compliance 
with the requirements of the Code and this Division, a provisional approval to operate may be 
granted for a period not to exceed 24 months, to permit the institution time to correct those 
deficiencies identified. A provisional approval to operate shall expire at the end of its stated 
period and the application shall be deemed denied, unless the deficiencies are corrected prior to 
its expiration and an approval to operate has been granted before that date or the provisional 
approval to operate has been extended for a period not to exceed 24 months if the Board is 
satisfied that the program has made a good faith effort and has the ability to correct the 
deficiencies. 

The Board shall review the program at least every six years for approval. 

The Board may rescind an approval during the six-year approval period based on the 
information received in the program’s annual report after providing the school with a written 
statement of the deficiencies and providing the school with an opportunity to respond to the 
charges. If an approval is rescinded, the Board may subsequently grant provisional approval in 
accordance with the guidelines of this section to allow the program to correct deficiencies. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 
5650, Business and Professions Code. 

3 



CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

PROPOSED LANGUAGE 

California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26 

Add Sections 2620.2, 2620.3 and 2620.4 as follows: 

§ 2620.2 Extension Certificate Programs – Application for Approval 

(a) An extension certificate program may apply to the Board for approval when it meets the 

requirements of Section 2620.5.  The program shall document how it meets the requirements 

of Section 2620.5 by submitting a written self-evaluation report to the Board. 

Comment [D1]: References to the Board’s 
authority is being researched whether it should say 
Board or LATC throughout these sections. 

(b) The Board’s designee, or designees, shall review the self-evaluation report, conduct a site 

visit, submit a written report to the Board that contains findings as to whether the program 

complies with Section 2620.5, and make a recommendation regarding approval. 

(c) The Board shall consider the application, written self-evaluation report, and recommendation 

regarding approval, and either grant or deny approval. When specific minor deficiencies are 

identified during evaluation of a program, but the program is in substantial compliance with 

the requirements of Section 2620.5, a provisional approval to operate may be granted for a 

period not to exceed 24 months, to permit the program time to correct the deficiencies 

identified. 

Comment [D2]: Depending on research 
conducted on (a), may need to clarify source of 
recommendation. 

(d) A provisional approval to operate shall expire at the end of its stated period and the 

application shall be deemed denied, unless the deficiencies are corrected prior to its 

expiration and an approval to operate has been granted before that date or the provisional 

approval to operate has been extended for a period not to exceed 24 months if the Board is 

satisfied that the program has made a good faith effort and has the ability to correct the 

deficiencies. 

(e) The Board shall review each extension certificate program at least every six years for 

continuing approval. Comment [D3]: Need to clarify if program is 
required to submit documents/report to trigger 
each 6-year review after initial approval. 

May need to clarify difference between 6-year 
review and annual report. 

(f) The Board may withdraw approval during the six-year approval period based on the 

information received in the program’s annual report after providing the program with a 

written statement of the deficiencies noted and giving the program an opportunity to respond 

to the deficiencies. If approval is withdrawn by the Board in accordance with section 

2620.3(b), the Board may subsequently grant provisional approval in accordance with the 

guidelines of this section to allow the program to correct deficiencies. 
Comment [D4]: Consider moving this subsection 
to 2620.4 as it relates to withdrawal of approval 
based on annual report. 

Comment [D5]: How long should the action be 
deferred?  Should be applied consistently for all 
program reviews. 

(g) The Board shall have discretion to defer action on an application for approval. The program 


 

 


 

 

 

	

I ~------

------------------L_ ____ ~/ 

shall be notified by the Board, in writing, of actions taken regarding an application for 

1 

alknati
Typewritten Text

alknati
Typewritten Text
Attachment I.3

alknati
Typewritten Text
Provided to LATC on February 10, 2015

alknati
Typewritten Text



approval. 

§ 2620.3 Suspension or Withdrawal of Approval 

(a) When an approved program fails to maintain the requirements for approval for administrative 

reasons, including but not limited to failure to submit required reports, approval may be 

suspended. Before this action is taken, the Board shall send a letter to the program requesting 

an explanation as to why approval should not be suspended. Suspension of approval for 

administrative reasons is not subject to appeal. 

Students attending a program with suspended approval are considered to be attending an 

approved program.  A program may be suspended for a maximum of 12 months. The Board 

will begin procedures to withdraw approval to take effect immediately when the maximum 

period of suspension is reached. If evidence of remedial action is submitted and judged 

adequate within the 12-month period of suspension, reinstatement of approval shall be 

granted. 

(b) When an approved program fails to comply with approval standards for other than 

administrative reasons, approval may be withdrawn. Before withdrawing approval, the 

program will be given the opportunity to explain why approval should not be withdrawn, 

after which the Board may conduct a site visit and make a final decision. 

If the program's parent institution or other programs within the institution are placed on 

probationary status or have approval withdrawn by their accrediting agencies, the program 

must notify the Board of the landscape architecture degree program’s status. 

 

(c) Extension certificate programs may appeal denial or withdrawal of approval decisions to the 

Board. An appeal shall be based on one or more of the following issues: 

(1) Whether the Board and/or the site visit team conformed to the procedures described in 

regulation; or 

(2) Whether the Board and/or the site visit team conformed to the approval requirements 

specified in Section 2620.5. 

(d) A written notice of appeal shall be signed by the chief administrator of the college or 

university in which the extension certificate program is located. The appeal must be 

submitted within 30 days of the Board’s notice of decision.  Within 60 days of the Board’s 

decision letter, the program administrator must submit a comprehensive written statement of 

all reasons for appeal.  Failure to submit this statement within 60 days will be deemed 

equivalent to withdrawing the appeal.  During the appeal period, the approved status of the 

program will not change. 

§ 2620.4 Annual Reports 

(a) Approved extension certificate programs shall submit to the Board a written report, each year 

2 

Comment [D6]: Consider restructuring section, 
i.e., 

(a) Board may suspend approval for these 
reasons/.. 
(b) Board may withdraw approval for these 
reasons/ 
(c) Suspension terms and affects on students 
(d) Program may appeal withdrawal of approval 
for these reasons/ 

Comment [D7]: May have to specify for what 
purpose Board is requiring to be notified. 



from the date of the most recent Board approval.  The report shall include: 

(1) Verification of continued compliance with the requirements of Section 2620.5;

(2) Any significant changes in areas such as curriculum, personnel, administration, fiscal

support, and physical facilities that have occurred since the last report; 

(3) Current enrollment and demographics;

(4) Progress toward complying with the recommendations, if any, from the last approval,

and 

(5) Any substantive change.  “Substantive change” is any change that compromises an
extension certificate program’s ability to meet one or more of the Board’s program 

requirements or that makes the program unable to meet any of the following 

requirements: 

(A) The program title and certificate description incorporate the term "Landscape

Architecture." 

(B) The parent institution is accredited by the institutional accrediting body of its region.

(C) There is a not a designated program administrator for the program under review.

(b) The program administrator shall notify the Board if, at any time, the program fails to meet the

requirements of Section 2620.4 (a)(1)-(5). 

(c) The Board may further 

 


 


 

 

evaluate changes to any of the reported items in the annual report. 

Comment [D8]: May need to clarify what is 
considered significant. 

Comment [D9]: Does wording limit taking action 
only based on annual report? 

Comment [D10]: May need to clarify. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 

5650, Business and Professions Code. 

Amend Section 2620.5 to read as follows: 

§ 2620.5 Requirements for an Approved Extension Certificate Program

An extension certificate program shall meet the following requirements: 

(a) The educational program shall be established in an educational institution which has a four-

year educational curriculum and either is approved accredited by the Western Association

of Schools and Colleges under Section 94900 of the Education Code or is an institution of

public higher education as defined by Section 66010 of the Education Code.

(b) There The program shall be have a written statement of the program'swhich fully and

accurately describes its philosophy and objectives which serves as a basis for curriculum

structure. Such statement shall take into consideration the broad perspective of values,

missions and goals of the profession of landscape architecture. The program objectives

shall provide for relationships and linkages with other disciplines and public and private

landscape architectural practices. The program objectives shall clearly identify where public

health, safety, 

by course inclusion, emphasis, and sequence in a manner which promotes achievement of

program objectives. The program's literature shall fully and accurately describe the

program's philosophy and objectives. 

and welfare issues are addressed. The program objectives shall be reinforced

3 

Comment [D11]: Duplicative language above, 
added “which fully and accurately describes” to first 
sentence of (b). 



	 

	  
 

-----------~----------=---=---=---=---=---=---=___=:j-

(c) The program shall have a written plan for evaluation of the total program, including 

admission and selection procedures, attrition and retention of students, and performance 

of graduates in meeting community needs. 

(d) The program shall be administered as a discrete program in landscape architecture 

within the institution with which it is affiliated. 

(e) There The program shall be have an organizational chart which identifies the 

relationships, lines of authority, and channels of communication within the program 

and between the program and other administrative segments of the institution with 

which it is affiliated. 

(f) The program shall have sufficient authority and resources to achieve its educational 

objectives. 

(g) The program's administrator director shall be a California licensed landscape architect. 

(h) The program administrator faculty shall have the primary responsibility for developing 

policies and procedures, planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating all aspects 

of the program. The faculty shall be adequate in type and number to develop and 

implement the program approved by the Board. 

(i) The program title and certificate description shall incorporate the term “Landscape 
Architecture.” 

(ij) The program curriculum shall provide instruction that includes public health, safety, 

and welfare in the following areas related to landscape architecture: 

(1) History, theory art and criticism communication 

(2) Natural and cultural, and social systems including principles of sustainability 

(3) Public policy and regulation 

(43) Design, planning, and management at various scales and applications, including but not 

limited to, pedestrian and vehicular circulation, grading, drainage, and storm water 

management as a process in shaping the environment 

(54) Site design and implementation: Plant materials, methods, technologies, andtheir 

application 

(65) Construction documentation materials and techniques and administration 

(7) Written, verbal, and visual communication 

(86) Professional practice, values, and ethics methods 

(7) Professional ethics and values 

(109) Plants and ecosystems 

(810) Computer applications systems and other advanced technology 

The program's curriculum shall not be revised until it has been approved by the 

Board. 

(jk) The program shall consist of at least 90 quarter units or 60 semester units. 

4 



	 

	 


 

	 




 


 

-----------~- i- 1--n-------~~)=------=====< . 

(kl) The program shall maintain a current syllabus for each required course which includes 

the course objectives, learning outcomes, content, and the methods of evaluating 

student performance, and how public health, safety, and welfare issues are addressed. 

(l) The program clearly identifies where the public health, safety, and welfare issues are 

addressed. 

(ml) The program curriculum shall be offered in a timeframe which reflects the proper 

course sequence. Students shall be required to adhere to that sequence, and courses 

shall be offered in a consistent and timely manner in order that students can observe 

those requirements. 

(nm) A The program shall meet the following requirements for its instructional personnel: 

(1) At least one half of the program's instructional personnel shall hold a professional 

degree or certificate from an approved extension certificate program in landscape 

architecture. 

(2) At least one half of the program's instructional personnel shall be licensed by the Board 

as landscape architects. 

(3) The program administrator shall be at least half-time 

(4) The program administrative support shall be full-time. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 

5650, Business and Professions Code. 

Comment [D12]: Need to specify employment 
in program and define amount of time. 

Comment [D13]: Need to specify employment 
in program and define amount of time. 

5 



CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

WORKING DRAFT OF PROPOSED LANGUAGE 

California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26 

Add Sections 2620.2, 2620.3 and 2620.4 as follows: 

§ 2620.2 Extension Certificate Programs – Application for Approval

(a) An extension certificate program may apply to the Board for approval when it meets the 

requirements of Section 2620.5.  The program shall document how it meets the requirements 

of Section 2620.5 by submitting a written self-evaluation report to the Board. 

(b) The Board’s designee, or designees, shall review the self-evaluation report, conduct a site

visit, submit a written report to the Board that contains findings as to whether the program 

complies with Section 2620.5, and make a recommendation regarding approval. 

(c) The Board shall consider the application, written self-evaluation report, and recommendation

regarding approval, and either grant or deny approval. When specific minor deficiencies are 

identified during evaluation of a program, but the program is in substantial compliance with 

the requirements of Section 2620.5, a provisional approval to operate may be granted for a 

period not to exceed 24 months, to permit the program time to correct the deficiencies 

identified. 

(d) A provisional approval to operate shall expire at the end of its stated period and the

application shall be deemed denied, unless the deficiencies are corrected prior to its 

expiration and an approval to operate has been granted before that date or the provisional 

approval to operate has been extended for a period not to exceed 24 months if the Board is 

satisfied that the program has made a good faith effort and has the ability to correct the 

deficiencies. 

(e) The Board shall review each extension certificate program at least every six years for

continuing approval. 

(f) The Board may withdraw approval during the six-year approval period based on the

information received in the program’s annual report after providing the program with a 

written statement of the deficiencies noted and giving the program an opportunity to respond 

Comment [D1]: References to the Board’s 
authority is being researched whether it should say 
Board or LATC throughout these sections. 

Comment [D2]: Depending on research 
conducted on (a), may need to clarify source of 
recommendation. 

to the deficiencies. If approval is withdrawn by the Board in accordance with section 

2620.3(b), the Board may subsequently grant provisional approval in accordance with the 

guidelines of this section to allow the program to correct deficiencies. 

(g) The Board shall have discretion to defer action on an application for approval. The program


 

 


 

 

 

	

I ~------

-----------------L ____ ~/ 

shall be notified by the Board, in writing, of actions taken regarding an application for 

1 

Comment [D4]: Consider moving this subsection 
to 2620.4 as it relates to withdrawal of approval 
based on annual report. 

Comment [D5]: How long should the action be 
deferred?  Should be applied consistently for all 
program reviews. 

Comment [D3]: Need to clarify if program is 
required to submit documents/report to trigger each 
6-year review after initial approval. 
May need to clarify difference between 6-year 
review and annual report. 

alknati
Typewritten Text
Attachment I.4

alknati
Typewritten Text
Working Draft

alknati
Typewritten Text



approval. 

§ 2620.3 Suspension or Withdrawal of Approval 

 

(a) When an approved program fails to maintain the requirements for approval for administrative 

reasons, including but not limited to failure to submit required reports, approval may be 

suspended. Before this action is taken, the Board shall send a letter to the program requesting 

an explanation as to why approval should not be suspended. Suspension of approval for 

administrative reasons is not subject to appeal. 

Comment [D6]: Consider restructuring section, 
i.e., 

(a) Board may suspend approval for these 
reasons/.. 
(b) Board may withdraw approval for these 
reasons/ 
(c) Suspension terms and affects on students 
(d) Program may appeal withdrawal of approval 
for these reasons/ 

Students attending a program with suspended approval are considered to be attending an 

approved program.  A program may be suspended for a maximum of 12 months. The Board 

will begin procedures to withdraw approval to take effect immediately when the maximum 

period of suspension is reached. If evidence of remedial action is submitted and judged 

adequate within the 12-month period of suspension, reinstatement of approval shall be 

granted. 

(b) When an approved program fails to comply with approval standards for other than 

administrative reasons, approval may be withdrawn. Before withdrawing approval, the 

program will be given the opportunity to explain why approval should not be withdrawn, 

after which the Board may conduct a site visit and make a final decision. 

If the program's parent institution or other programs within the institution are placed on 

probationary status or have approval withdrawn by their accrediting agencies, the program 

must notify the Board of the landscape architecture degree program’s status. 

(c) Extension certificate programs may appeal denial or withdrawal of approval decisions to the 

Board. An appeal shall be based on one or more of the following issues: 

(1) Whether the Board and/or the site visit team conformed to the procedures described in 

regulation; or 

(2) Whether the Board and/or the site visit team conformed to the approval requirements 

specified in Section 2620.5. 

(d) A written notice of appeal shall be signed by the chief administrator of the college or 

university in which the extension certificate program is located. The appeal must be 

Comment [D7]: May have to specify for what 
purpose Board is requiring to be notified. 

submitted within 30 days of the Board’s notice of decision.  Within 60 days of the Board’s 

decision letter, the program administrator must submit a comprehensive written statement of 

all reasons for appeal.  Failure to submit this statement within 60 days will be deemed 

equivalent to withdrawing the appeal.  During the appeal period, the approved status of the 

program will not change. 

§ 2620.4 Annual Reports 

(a) Approved extension certificate programs shall submit to the Board a written report, each year 

2 



from the date of the most recent Board approval.  The report shall include: 

(1) Verification of continued compliance with the requirements of Section 2620.5; 

(2) Any significant 

 

	 
	 

	 

	 

 
 

	 

changes in areas such as curriculum, personnel, administration, fiscal 

support, and physical facilities that have occurred since the last report; 

(3) Current enrollment and demographics; 

(4) Progress toward complying with the recommendations, if any, from the last approval, 

and 

(5) Any substantive change.  “Substantive change” is any change that compromises an 
extension certificate program’s ability to meet one or more of the Board’s program 

requirements or that makes the program unable to meet any of the following 

requirements: 

(A) The program title and certificate description incorporate the term "Landscape 

Architecture." 

(B) The parent institution is accredited by the institutional accrediting body of its region. 

(C) There is a not a designated program administrator for the program under review. 

(b) The program administrator shall notify the Board if, at any time, the program fails to meet the 

requirements of Section 2620.4 (a)(1)-(5). 

(c) The Board may further evaluate changes to any of the reported items in the annual report. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 

5650, Business and Professions Code. 

Amend Section 2620.5 to read as follows: 

§ 2620.5 Requirements for an Approved Extension Certificate Program 

An extension certificate program shall meet the following requirements: 

(a) The educational program shall be established in an educational institution which has a 

four-year educational curriculum and either is approved by the Western Association of 

Schools and Colleges under Section 94900 of the Education Code or is an institution of 

public higher education as defined by Section 66010 of the Education Code. 

(b) There shall be a written statement of the program’s philosophy and objectives which 

Comment [D8]: May need to clarify what is 
considered significant. 

Comment [D9]: Does wording limit taking action 
only based on annual report? 

Comment [D10]: May need to clarify. 

serves as a basis for curriculum structure. Such statement shall take into consideration 

the broad perspective of values, missions and goals of the profession of landscape 

architecture. The program objectives shall provide for relationships and linkages with 

other disciplines and public and private landscape architectural practices. The program 

objectives shall be reinforced by course inclusion, emphasis and sequence in a manner 

which promotes achievement of program objectives. The program’s literature shall fully 

and accurately describe the program’s philosophy and objectives. The program shall 

provide comprehensive public information disclosure about the program’s status and 
performance within a single click link from the program’s internet website homepage. 

(c) The program shall have a written plan for evaluation of the total program, including 

3 



	 

  
	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	

admission and selection procedures, attrition and retention of students, and 

performance of graduates in meeting community needs. 

(d) The program shall be administered as a discrete program in landscape architecture 

within the institution with which it is affiliated. The program title and certificate 

description shall incorporate the term “Landscape Architecture”. 
(e) There shall be an organizational chart which identifies the relationships, lines of 

authority and channels of communication within the program and between the 

program and other administrative segments of the institution with which it is 

affiliated. 

(f) The program shall have sufficient authority and resources to achieve its educational 

objectives. 

(g) The program administrator ’s director shall be a California licensed landscape architect 

and position shall be at least .5 time-based. 

(h) The program administrator faculty responsibility for 

developing policies and procedures, implementing and 

evaluating all aspects of the program. The faculty shall be adequate in type and number 

to participate in program governance and develop and implement the program approved 

by the Board. 

(i) The program curriculum shall include the core knowledge, skills and applications of 

shall have the primary 

planning, organizing, 

landscape architecture and shall provide instruction in the following areas related to 

landscape architecture: 

(1) History, theory, philosophy, principles and values: 

(A) design history and theory; 

(B) criticism; 

(C) sustainability, resiliency, stewardship; 

(D) health, safety, welfare. 

(2) Design processes and methodology: 

(A) critical thinking; 

(B) analysis; 

(C) ideation; 

(D) synthesis; 

(E) site program; 

(F) iterative design development; 

(G) design communication. 

(3) Systems and Processes, natural and cultural, (related to design, planning and 

management): 

(A) plants and ecosystems sciences; 

(B) built environment and infrastructure; 

(C) human factors, social and community systems; 

(D) human health and well-being. 

(4)  Communication and documentation: 

4 



 

(A) written and oral communication; 

(B) visual and graphic communication; 

(C) design and construction documents; 

(D) numeracy, quantitative problem-solving and communication; 

(E) community and client engagement. 

(5)  Implementation: 

(A) construction technology and site engineering; 

(B) site materials; 

(C) use and management of plants and vegetation; 

(D) policies and regulation. 

(6)  Computer applications and advanced technologies: 

(A) visualization and modeling; 

(B) communication (conceptual and construction drawings); 

(C) geospatial analysis. 

(7)  Assessment and evaluation: 

(A) site assessment; 

(B) pre-design analysis; 

(C) landscape performance; 

(D) post-occupancy evaluation: 

(E) visual and scenic assessment. 

(8) Professional Practice: 

(A) values and ethics; 

(B) practice; 

(C) construction administration. 

(9) Research and scholarly methods (for master’s level degree programs): 
(A) quantitative and qualitative methods; 

(B) establishing a research hypothesis; 

(C) framing research questions; 

(D) literature/case study review/precedent review 

(E) research integrity and protection of human subjects 

(F) communication of research. 

(A) History, art, and communication 

(B) Natural, cultural, and social systems 

(C) Design as a process in shaping the environment 

(D) Plant material and their application 

(E) Construction materials and techniques 

(F) Professional practice methods 

(G) Professional ethics and values 

(H) Computer systems and advanced technology 

5 



	 
	 

	 

   

    

The program’s curriculum shall not be revised until it has been approved by the Board. 

(j) The program shall consist of at least 90 quarter units or 60 semester units. 

(k) The program shall maintain a current syllabus for each required course which 

includes the course objectives, content, identifies where public health, safety and 

welfare issues are addressed, and the methods of evaluating student performance. 

(l) The curriculum shall be offered in a timeframe which reflects the proper course 

sequence. Students shall be required to adhere to that sequence, and courses shall be 

offered in a consistent and timely manner in order that students can observe these 

requirements. 

(m) A program shall meet the following requirements for its instructional personnel: 

(1) There shall be sufficient number of faculty to carry out the mission of the program 

(such as teaching, research, service, program administration, academic advising, 

and/or creative professional development. At least one half of the program’s 
instructional personnel shall hold a professional degree or certificate from an 

approved extension certificate program in landscape architecture. 

(2) At least one half of the program’s instructional personnel shall be licensed by the 
Board as landscape architects. 

(3) A program shall have at least one full time administrative support staff position. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 

5650, Business and Professions Code. 

Comment [D11]: Is this needed? GK 

6 




 


 


 

 


 


 

 


 

Attachment I.5 

ACCREDITATION STANDARDS 

For First-Professional Programs In 
Landscape Architecture 

Landscape Architectural Accreditation Board 

American Society of Landscape Architects 
636 Eye Street, N.W. 

Washington, D.C.  20001-3736 

March 2016 




 Table of Contents 

PREAMBLE 
Introduction 1 
Definitions, Interpretation and Application 1 
Minimum Requirements for Achieving and Maintaining Accredited Status 3 

STANDARDS 
Standard 1: Program Mission and Objectives 5 
Standard 2: Program Autonomy, Governance, and Administration 7 
Standard 3: Professional Curriculum 10 
Standard 4: Student and Program Outcomes 14 
Standard 5: Faculty 15 
Standard 6: Outreach to the Institution, Communities, Alumni, and Practitioners 17 
Standard 7: Facilities, Equipment, and Technology 18 



Introduction 

The mission of the Landscape Architecture Accreditation Board (LAAB) is to evaluate, advocate for, and 
advance the quality of education in landscape architectural degree programs. To do that, the Board creates 
and applies Standards and Procedures. The Standards are basis for decision-making and action for the 
Board. The Standards are reviewed and updated every five years through a process articulated in Board 
Procedures. The previous version of the Standards and Procedures (2010) were both a part of a single 
document. For this version, the Board has decided to create separate documents of Standards and of 
Procedures. 

This document contains the Accreditation Standards. 

Definitions, Interpretation, and Application 

Accreditation: Accreditation is a voluntary process of peer review designed to evaluate programs on the 
basis of their own stated objectives and the accreditation standards that follow. 

Administrative Probation Status: Administrative Probationary Accreditation status is assigned when an 
institution or program does not meet its administrative obligations. LAAB assigns this status if the 
institution or program fails to comply with one or more of the following requirements: 

• paying annual fees within 90 days of the invoice date, 
• paying a late fee by the due date, 
• submitting reports or other required information within 45 days of the due date, or 
• agreeing to a reasonable on-site evaluation visit date at or near the time established by LAAB 

staff. 
Administrative Probationary Accreditation is an accreditation category not subject to appeal. The program 
is recognized and listed as accredited with this designation until the requirement(s) that was not met has 
been fully satisfied. Failure to completely remedy the situation by the date specified in the probationary 
letter may result in revocation of accreditation. 

Assessment: Assessment is the process by which a program or institution’s level of compliance with or 
achievement of the criteria relevant to its accreditation is evaluated. 

Candidacy Status: Candidacy is an accreditation classification granted to a program that is in the 
planning or early stages of development or an intermediate stage of program implementation. 

Compliance: Compliance with a standard is achieved when LAAB concludes, after review of relevant 
indicators or other evidence, that the standard is met or met with recommendation, as defined below. To 
achieve LAAB accreditation, a program must demonstrate to LAAB, through the self-evaluation report, 
site visit, and technical accuracy review of the visiting team’s report, that it complies with all standards. 

Considerations for Improvement: Considerations for Improvement are informal counsel offered to a 
program as a part of the Visiting Team’s Report but not included in the final action letter from LAAB to 
the program. These may areas where the program can build on a strength or address an area of concern 
that does not directly affect accreditation at the time of the LAAB review. 

Criteria: Each LAAB standard has one or more criteria statements that define the components needed to 
satisfy the standard. Not satisfying a criterion does not automatically lead to the assessment of a standard 
as not met. To be accredited, a program must demonstrate progress toward meeting the criteria. In this 
document, criteria are identified by letters (for example: A. Program Mission). 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 1 



Faculty Full-Time Equivalence (FTE): The FTE is a figure representing the aggregated time committed 
by full- and part-time faculty members to teaching in a department or program, including faculty who 
have their duties or teaching assignments split between an undergraduate and a graduate program and 
faculty who have their assignments split between disciplines. For purposes of calculation, a faculty 
member with a part-time appointment of 50 percent (and, presumably, a teaching/scholarship/service 
assignment roughly equivalent to half that of a full-time faculty member) would be assigned a 0.5 FTE. A 
full-time faculty member with duties in only one department would be assigned an FTE of 1.0 for that 
department. 

Final Action Letter: A final action letter is an official communication from LAAB to a program reporting 
its accreditation status and any recommendations affecting accreditation. 

First-Professional Program: A first-professional program in landscape architecture encompasses the 
body of knowledge common to the profession and promotes acquisition of the knowledge and skills 
necessary to enter its professional practice. At the bachelor's level, such a program is typically conducted 
in a context enriched by the liberal arts and natural and social sciences. At the master’s level, such a 
program also provides instruction in and application of research and scholarly methods. 

Initial Accreditation: The first period of accreditation for a program leading to a degree in landscape 
architecture is its initial accreditation; LAAB initial accreditation applies to degrees awarded within two 
years prior to initial accreditation by LAAB. 

Intent: A statement of intent explains the purpose of a standard. 

Program: A program comprises the coursework and other learning experiences leading to a degree as 
well as the supporting administration, faculty, staff, facilities, and services that sponsor and provide those 
experiences. 

Recommendations Affecting Accreditation: Recommendations Affecting Accreditation are issues of 
serious concern, directly affecting the quality of a program. Recommendations Affecting Accreditation 
are issued when a visiting team assesses a standard as met with recommendation or not met. 
Recommendations are derived from the identified areas of weakness in meeting a standard as described in 
the rationale sections of a visiting team’s report. The program is required to report progress regularly on 
these issues. Recommendations Affecting Accreditation identify issues; they do not prescribe solutions. 

Self-Evaluation Report (SER): An SER is a document prepared by a program that describes its 
expectations, operations, and resources; assesses its progress toward meeting its mission, goals, and 
objectives; and measures its performance against the criteria for accreditation. 

Shall: In official LAAB standards and criteria, “shall” indicates mandatory actions for a program or 
institution. 

Should: In official LAAB standards and criteria, “should” indicates prescriptive recommendations for a 
program or institution. 

Standards: Standards are qualitative statements of the essential conditions an accredited program must 
meet to achieve accreditation. 

Standard Met:  A “Standard Met” designation indicates that overall program performance in the relevant 
area meets LAAB minimum standards.  LAAB may judge a standard as met even though one or more 
indicators within the standard are not minimally met. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 2 



	 

Standard Met with Recommendation: A “Standard Met with Recommendation” designation indicates 
that deficiencies exist in an area directly bearing on accreditation. The problem or problems have 
observable effects on the overall quality of the program. 

Standard Not Met: A “Standard Not Met” designation means that a cited deficiency is so severe that the 
overall quality of a program is compromised and the program’s ability to deliver adequate landscape 
architecture education is impaired. 

Minimum Requirements for Achieving and Maintaining Accredited Status 

1. 	 The program title and degree description must incorporate the term "landscape architecture." 

2. 	 An undergraduate first-professional program must be a baccalaureate program of at least four 
academic years' duration. 

3. 	 A graduate first-professional program must be a master's program equivalent to at least three 
academic years' duration. 

4. 	 Faculty instruction full-time equivalence (FTE) requirements are as follows: 
a.  	 An academic unit that offers a single first-professional degree program at the emerging or 

Initial Accreditation status has at least three FTE instructional faculty who hold professional 
degrees in landscape architecture, at least one of whom is full-time. 

b. 	 An academic unit that offers a first-professional degree program at both the bachelor’s and 
master’s levels at the emerging or Initial Accreditation status has at least six FTE 
instructional faculty, at least five of whom hold professional degrees in landscape 
architecture, at least two of whom are full-time in the department. 

c.  	 An academic unit that offers a single first-professional degree program at the continuing full 
accreditation status has an FTE of at least five instructional faculty, at least four of these 
faculty members hold a professional degree in landscape architecture, at least three of whom 
are full-time in the department. 

d. 	 An academic unit that offers first-professional degree programs at both the bachelor’s and 
master’s levels with continuing full accreditation status has an FTE of at least seven 
instructional faculty, at least five of whom hold professional degrees in landscape architecture 
and are full-time in the department. 

Program Status 

Number of Full-time 
Equivalent Instructional 
Faculty* 

Number of Faculty with a 
Professional Degree in 
Landscape Architecture (could 
be part-time or adjunct) 

Number of Full-time Faculty 
with a Professional Degree 
in Landscape Architecture 

Programs seeking Initial 
Accreditation 

Single Program 3 3 1 

Bachelor’s & Master’s 
Program 

6 5 2 

Programs seeking re-
accreditation 

Single Program 5 4 3 

Bachelor’s & Master’s 
Program 

7 5 

5. The parent institution must be accredited by a recognized institutional accrediting agency (such as 
the U.S. Department of Education or CHEA). 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 3 



	

	

	 

	 

	 

	 

6. There must be a designated program administrator responsible for the leadership and management 
functions for the program under review. 

7. The program must provide a comprehensive public information disclosure about the program’s 
status and performance within a single-click link from the program’s website. 

8. The program must: 
• continuously comply with accreditation standards, 
• pay the annual sustaining and other fees as required, and  
• regularly file complete annual and other requested reports. 

The program administrator shall inform LAAB if any of these factors fail to apply during an accreditation 
period. The program administrator is responsible for reporting any substantive changes to the program 
when they occur. (Substantive changes are those that may affect the accreditation status of the program, 
addressed on page 16 of the LAAB Accreditation Procedures.) 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 4 



STANDARDS 

Standard 1: Program Mission and Objectives 
The program shall have a clearly defined mission supported by goals and objectives 
appropriate to the profession of landscape architecture and shall demonstrate progress 
toward their attainment. 

INTENT: Using a clear, concise mission statement, each landscape architecture program shall 
define its core values and fundamental purpose for faculty, students, prospective students, and 
the institution. The mission statement shall summarize why the program exists and the needs 
that it seeks to fulfill. It shall also provide a benchmark for assessing how well the program is 
meeting the stated objectives. 

A. Program Mission. The mission statement expresses the underlying purposes and values of the 
program.  

Assessment: The program has a clearly stated mission reflecting its purpose and values, which relate to 
the institution’s mission. 

B. Educational Goals. The program shall have clearly defined and formally stated academic goals 
that reflect the mission and demonstrate that attainment of the goals will fulfill the program mission. 

Assessment: The program has an effective procedure to determine progress in meeting its goals and is it 
used regularly. 

C. Educational Objectives. The program shall have educational objectives that specifically 
describe how each of the academic goals will be achieved. 

Assessment: The program has clearly defined, achievable educational objectives and an effective, 
regularly used procedure to determine progress in meeting them. 

D. Long-Range Planning Process. The program shall engage in an effective long-range planning 
process. 

Assessment 1: The long-range plan describes how the program mission, goals, and objectives will be met, 
and the program documents the review and evaluation process. 

Assessment 2: The long-range plan (along with the mission, goals and objectives) is reviewed and revised 
periodically, and it presents realistic and attainable methods for advancing the program’s academic 
mission. 

Assessment 3: The program’s SER responds to recommendations and considerations for improvement 
from the previous accreditation review (if applicable), and it reports on efforts to rectify identified 
weaknesses. 

E. Program Disclosure. Program literature and promotional media shall accurately describe the 
program’s mission, objectives, educational experiences, accreditation status, goals, student achievement, 
costs for a full-time student per academic year, estimated housing costs per year, average costs of books 
and materials per year, student retention and graduation rates, number of degrees granted per year, and 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 5 



percentage of students with timely graduation (master’s students graduating within four years, bachelor’s 
students graduating within six years). 

Assessment 1: The program information is accurate, understandable, and accessible to the public. 

Assessment 2: The public disclosure information can be found with a single-click link from the program’s 
website. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 6 



Standard 2: Program Autonomy, Governance, and 
Administration 
The program shall have the authority and resources to achieve its mission, goals and 
objectives. 

INTENT: Each landscape architecture program shall be recognized as a discrete professional 
program with the resources, institutional support, and authority to enable achievement of the 
stated program mission, goals and objectives. 

A. Program Administration. The landscape architecture program shall be administered as an 
identifiable, discrete program within its institution. 

Assessment 1: The program is seen as a discrete and identifiable program within the institution. 

Assessment 2: The program administrator holds a faculty appointment in landscape architecture. 

Assessment 3: The program administrator exercises effective leadership of and management functions for 
the program. (Where the program administrator is not the primary administrator for the academic unit, 
as in a landscape architecture program within a multidisciplinary department or school, the landscape 
architecture leader has the authority to significantly influence the management of resources, including 
budget, faculty review, tenure and promotion outcomes, and the direction of the program.) 

B. Institutional Support. The institution shall provide sufficient resources to enable the program to 
achieve its mission and goals, and it supports individual faculty members’ development and advancement. 

Assessment 1: Funding is available to assist faculty and other instructional personnel with continued 
professional development, including support in developing funded grants and attendance at conferences. 
Funding is sufficient to maintain computers and appropriate software, other types of equipment, and 
technical support. 

Assessment 2: Funding is adequate for student support, such as scholarships and work-study jobs. 

Assessment 3: Adequate support personnel are available to accomplish the program’s mission and goals. 

C. Commitment to Diversity. The program shall demonstrate a commitment to diversity through 
its recruitment and retention of faculty, staff, and students. 

Assessment: The program demonstrates its commitment to diversity in the recruitment and retention of 
students, faculty, and staff. 

D. Faculty Participation. The faculty shall participate in program governance and administration. 

Assessment 1: The faculty makes recommendations on the allocation of resources and has the 
responsibility to develop, implement, evaluate, and modify the program’s curriculum, and to contribute to 
operating practices. 

Assessment 2: The faculty participates, in accordance with institutional guidelines, in developing criteria 
and procedures for annual evaluation, promotion, and tenure of faculty members. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 7 



	 

Assessment 3: The faculty participates, in accordance with institutional guidelines, in developing and 
applying criteria and procedures for the appointment and assessment of program and academic unit 
leadership. 

Assessment 4: The program or institution adequately communicates and mentors faculty regarding 
policies, expectations, and procedures for annual evaluations, tenure, and promotion to all ranks. 

E. Faculty Number. The faculty shall be of a sufficient size to accomplish the program’s goals and 
objectives; to teach the curriculum; to support students through advising and other functions; to engage in 
research, creative activity, and scholarship; and to be actively involved in professional endeavors such as 
presenting at conferences. The faculty FTE shall be assessed by the institutional culture for faculty 
development across the closely related academic units (such as other departments and programs within a 
college). The workload (number, type, and sizes of courses assigned) and responsibilities (such as a split 
of time for teaching, research, and service activities) for a typical tenured or long-term faculty member 
within the college shall be considered the template for assessing the FTE resources assigned to the 
landscape architecture program. Where landscape architecture faculty members have their responsibilities 
split between programs (such as bachelor’s and master’s or between landscape architecture and another 
discipline), the FTE assessment must be prorated. 

Faculty instruction full-time equivalence (FTE) shall be as follows: 
a.  	 An academic unit that offers a single first-professional degree program at the emerging or 

Initial Accreditation status has at least three FTE instructional faculty who hold professional 
degrees in landscape architecture, at least one of whom is full-time. 

b. 	 An academic unit that offers a first-professional degree program at both the bachelor’s and 
master’s levels at the emerging or Initial Accreditation status has at least six FTE 
instructional faculty, five of whom hold professional degrees in landscape architecture, at 
least two of whom are full-time. 

c.  	 An academic unit that offers a single first-professional degree program at the continuing full 
Accreditation status has an FTE of at least five instructional faculty.  At least four of these 
faculty members hold a professional degree in landscape architecture and at least three of 
them are full-time. 

d. 	 An academic unit that offers first-professional degree programs at both the bachelor’s and 
master’s levels with continuing full Accreditation status has an FTE of at least seven 
instructional faculty, at least five of whom hold professional degrees in landscape architecture 
and are full-time 

Program Status 

Number of Full-time 
Equivalent Instructional 
Faculty* 

Number of Faculty with a 
Professional Degree in 
Landscape Architecture (could 
be part-time or adjunct) 

Number of Full-time Faculty 
with a Professional Degree 
in Landscape Architecture 

Programs seeking Initial 
Accreditation 

Single Program 3 3 1 

Bachelors & Masters 
Program 

6 5 2 

Programs seeking re-
accreditation 

Single Program 5 4 3 

Bachelors & Masters 
Program 

7 5 

* In determining FTEs and the pro-rata contribution some faculty may make to teaching in a program, we 
acknowledge that variations do exist among institutions regarding how standard teaching loads are determined. 
Please provide in the SER any commentary that you believe appropriate to demonstrate how your program achieves 
the required faculty numbers within your institution’s particular administrative and staffing model. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 8 



Assessment 1: Student/faculty ratios in studios are typically not greater than 15:1. 

Assessment 2: There are sufficient faculty FTE to carry out the mission of the program (such as duties in 
teaching, research, service, program administration, academic advising, and creative professional 
development). 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 9 



	 

	 

	 


 

 


 

 


 


 

 



 


 

 




	 

Standard 3: Professional Curriculum 
The first-professional degree curriculum shall include the core knowledge, skills, and 
applications of landscape architecture. 

a. In addition to the professional curriculum, a first-professional degree program at 
the bachelor’s level shall provide an educational context enriched by other 
disciplines, including but not limited to liberal and fine arts, natural sciences, and 
social sciences, as well as opportunities for students to develop other areas of 
interest. 

b. In addition to the professional curriculum, a first-professional degree at the 
master’s level shall provide instruction in and application of research and scholarly 
methods. 

c. A first-professional degree at the master’s level that does not require all students to 
have an undergraduate degree before receiving the MLA shall meet the 
requirements for both a and b, above. 

INTENT: Each landscape architecture curriculum shall be designed to achieve the learning goals 
stated in the mission and specific educational objectives of the program. The curriculum shall 
encompass both coursework and other co-curricular opportunities intended to develop students’ 
knowledge and skills in landscape architecture. 

A. Curricular Expression of the Mission and Objectives. The program’s curriculum shall 
address and express its mission, goals, and objectives. (This criterion is directed not toward the evaluation 
of the mission and objectives, but rather toward the way the curriculum is developed and delivered in 
carrying out the expectations of the mission and objectives.) 

Assessment: The program identifies the knowledge, skills, abilities, and values it expects students to 
possess at graduation. 

B. Professional Curriculum. The program curriculum shall be guided by, but not limited to, 
coverage of: 

History, theory, philosophy, principles, and values 
design history 
design theory 
criticism 
sustainability, resiliency, stewardship 
health, safety, welfare 

Design processes and methodology 
critical thinking 
analysis 
ideation 
synthesis 
site program 
iterative design development 
design communication 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 10 




 

 







 

 


 




 

 


 

 


 


 




 

 


 

 


 

 


 

 

Systems and processes—natural and cultural (related to design, planning, and management) 
plants and ecosystems sciences 
built environment and infrastructure 
human factors and social and community systems 
human health and well-being 

Communication and documentation 
written communication 
oral communication 
visual and graphic communication 
design and construction documents 
numeracy, quantitative problem-solving, and communication 
community and client engagement 

Implementation 
construction technology and site engineering 
site materials 
use and management of plants and vegetation 
policies and regulation 

Computer applications and advanced technologies 
visualization and modeling 
communication (conceptual and construction drawings) 
geospatial analysis 

Assessment and evaluation 
site assessment 
pre-design analysis 
landscape performance 
post-occupancy evaluation 
visual and scenic assessment 

Professional practice  
values 
ethics 
practice 
construction administration 

Research and scholarly methods (for master’s-level degree programs) 
quantitative and qualitative methods 
establishing a research hypothesis 
framing research questions 
literature/case study review/precedent review 
research integrity and protection of human subjects 
communication of research 

Assessment 1: The curriculum addresses the designated subject matter in a sequence that supports the 
degree program’s goals and objectives. 

Assessment 2: Student work and other accomplishments demonstrate that the curriculum is providing 
students with the appropriate content to enter the profession. 

Assessment 3: Curriculum and program opportunities enable students to pursue academic interests 
consistent with institutional requirements and entry into the profession. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 11 



	

	
	 

	 

C. Syllabi. Appropriate syllabi shall be maintained for courses. 
Assessment 1: Syllabi include educational objectives, course content, and the criteria and methods that 
will be used to evaluate student performance. 

Assessment 2: Syllabi identify the various levels of accomplishment students need to achieve to 
successfully complete the course and advance in the curriculum. 

D. Curriculum Evaluation. At both the course and curriculum levels, the program shall evaluate 
how effectively the curriculum is helping students achieve the program’s learning objectives in a timely 
way. 

Assessment 1: The program demonstrates and documents ways of: 
a. assessing students’ achievement of course and program objectives within the length of time to 

graduation stated by the program; 
b. reviewing and improving the effectiveness of instructional methods in curriculum delivery; and 
c. maintaining currency with the evolving technologies, methodologies, theories, and values of the 

profession. 

Assessment 2: Students participate in evaluation of the program, courses, and curriculum. 

E. Augmentation of Formal Educational Experience. The program shall provide 
opportunities for students to participate in co-curricular activities, internships, off-campus studies, 
research assistantships, or practicum experiences. 

Assessment 1: The program provides opportunities for students to augment the formal educational 
experience and documents students’ use of these opportunities. 

Assessment 2: The program identifies the objectives of co-curricular activities and evaluates the 
effectiveness of these opportunities. 

Assessment 3: Student participants are given the opportunity to report on their cocurricular experiences 
to their fellow students. 

F. Coursework (Bachelor’s Level). In addition to the professional curriculum, students shall also 
pursue coursework in other disciplines in accordance with institutional and program requirements. 

Assessment: Students take courses in the humanities, arts, technologies, mathematics, natural sciences, 
social sciences, and/or other disciplines. 

G. Areas of Interest (Bachelor’s Level). The program shall provide opportunities for students to 
pursue special interests. 

Assessment 1: The program provides opportunities for students to pursue independent projects, focused 
electives, optional studios, certificates, minors, and the like. 

Assessment 2: Student work incorporates academic experiences reflecting a variety of pursuits beyond the 
basic curriculum. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 12 



H. Research/Scholarly Methods (Master’s Level). The program shall provide an introduction 
to research and scholarly methods. 

Assessment 1: The curriculum provides instruction in research and scholarly methods and their relation 
to the profession of landscape architecture. 

Assessment 2: The program requires that theses or terminal projects exhibit creative and independent 
thinking and contain a significant research/scholarly component. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 13 



Standard 4: Student and Program Outcomes 
The program shall prepare students to pursue careers in landscape architecture. 

INTENT: Each landscape architecture program shall prepare students—through educational 
programs, advising, and other academic and professional opportunities—to pursue careers in 
landscape architecture upon graduation. The program shall foster knowledge and skills in 
creative problem solving, critical thinking, communications, design, and organization. 

A. Student Learning Outcomes. The program shall qualify students to pursue careers in 
landscape architecture. 

Assessment 1: Student work demonstrates the competencies required for entry-level positions in the 
profession of landscape architecture. 

Assessment 2: Students demonstrate their achievement of the program’s learning objectives, including 
critical and creative thinking, and their ability to understand, apply, and communicate the subject matter 
of the professional curriculum as evidenced through project definition, problem identification, 
information collection, analysis, synthesis, conceptualization, and implementation. 

B. Student Advising. The program shall provide students with effective advising and mentoring 
throughout their educational careers. 

Assessment 1: Students receive effective advising regarding academic development. 

Assessment 2: Students receive effective advising regarding career development. 

Assessment 3: Students are made aware of professional opportunities, advanced educational 
opportunities, licensure requirements, and continuing education requirements associated with 
professional practice. 

Assessment 4: Students are satisfied with academic experiences and their preparation for the landscape 
architecture profession. 

C. Participation in Extracurricular Activities. The program shall encourage students to 
participate in professional activities and institutional and community service. 

Assessment 1: Students participate in institutional/college organizations, community initiatives, or other 
activities. 

Assessment 2: Students participate in events such as LABash, ASLA Annual Meeting, local ASLA chapter 
events, and the activities of other professional societies or special-interest groups. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 14 



Standard 5: Faculty
The program shall advance its academic mission and objectives by means of promoting 
the qualifications, academic position, professional activities, and individual professional 
development of its faculty and instructional personnel. 

INTENT: Each landscape architecture program shall have qualified, experienced faculty and 
other instructional personnel to instill the knowledge and skills that students will need to pursue 
a career in landscape architecture. Equitable faculty workloads and compensation, and overall 
support for career development contribute to the success of the program. 

A. Credentials. The qualifications of the faculty, instructional personnel, and teaching assistants shall 
be appropriate to their roles. 

Assessment 1: The faculty has a balance of professional practice and academic experience appropriate to the 
program mission. 

Assessment 2: Faculty assignments are appropriate to the course content and program mission. 

Assessment 3: Adjunct and/or part-time faculty (if present) are integrated into the program’s administration 
and curriculum evaluation/development in a coordinated and organized manner. 

Assessment 4: Faculty qualifications are appropriate to responsibilities of the program as defined by the 
institution. 

B. Faculty Development. The faculty members shall be continuously engaged in activities leading 
to their professional growth and advancement, the advancement of the profession, and the effectiveness of 
the program.  

Assessment 1: Faculty activities such as scholarly inquiry, research, professional practice, and service to the 
profession, university, and community are documented, peer-reviewed, and disseminated through appropriate 
media such as journals, professional magazines, community, and university publications. 

Assessment 2: Teaching and administrative assignments allow sufficient opportunity for faculty to pursue 
advancement and professional development. Expectations for faculty workload and distribution of 
responsibilities (of teaching, research, service, and professional engagement) are similar to expectations in 
related academic units. 

Assessment 3: The development and teaching effectiveness of faculty and instructional personnel are 
systematically evaluated, and the results are used for individual and program improvement. 

Assessment 4: Faculty seek and make effective use of available funding for conference attendance, equipment, 
technical support, and other professional needs. 

Assessment 5: The activities of faculty are reviewed and recognized by faculty peers. 

Assessment 6: Faculty participate in university and professional service, student advising, and other activities 
that enhance the effectiveness of the program. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 15 



C. Faculty Retention. The faculty shall hold academic status, have workloads, and receive 
compensation, mentoring, and support that promote productivity and retention. 

Assessment 1: Faculty salaries and support are evaluated and are appropriate to promote faculty retention 
and productivity. 

Assessment 2: The rate of faculty turnover does not undermine the mission and goals of the program. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 16 



Standard 6: Outreach to the Institution, Communities, Alumni, 
and Practitioners 
The program shall have a plan for and a record of interaction with its alumni, the larger 
institution, the professional community, the local community, and the public at large. 

INTENT: Each landscape architecture program shall establish an effective relationship with the 
larger institution, its alumni, practitioners, the local community, and the public at large in order to 
provide a source of service learning opportunities for students, scholarly development for 
faculty, and professional guidance and financial support. Documentation and dissemination of 
successful outreach efforts shall enhance the image of the program and educate its 
constituencies regarding the program and the profession of landscape architecture. 

A. Interaction with the Profession, Institution, and Public. The program shall represent 
and advocate for the profession by interacting with the larger institution, the local community, 
practitioners, and the public at large. 

Assessment 1: Service-learning activities are incorporated into the curriculum. 

Assessment 2: Service activities are documented on a regular basis. 

Assessment 3: The program community interacts with the institution, practitioners, the local community, 
and the public at large. 

B. Alumni and Practitioners. The program shall recognize alumni and practitioners as a resource. 

Assessment 1: The program maintains or has access to a current registry of alumni that includes 
information pertaining to current employment, professional activity, post graduate study, and significant 
professional accomplishments. 

Assessment 2: The program engages its alumni and other practitioners in activities such as service on a 
formal advisory board, student career advising, potential employment, curriculum review and 
development, fundraising, and continuing education. 

Assessment 3: The program acknowledges and celebrates the significant professional accomplishments of 
its alumni and benefactors. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 17 



Standard 7: Facilities, Equipment, and Technology 
The program shall provide faculty, students, and staff access to facilities, equipment, 
libraries, and other resources necessary for achieving the program’s mission and 
objectives. 

INTENT: Each landscape architecture program shall occupy space in designated, code-
compliant facilities that support the achievement of the program’s mission and objectives. 
Students, faculty, and staff shall have the required tools and facilities to enable achievement of 
the program’s mission and objectives. 

A. Facilities. The program shall provide designated, code-compliant, adequately maintained spaces to 
serve the professional requirements of the faculty, students, and staff. 

Assessment 1: Faculty, staff, and administration are provided with appropriate office space. 

Assessment 2: Students are assigned permanent studio workstations adequate to meet the program’s 
needs. 

Assessment 3: Facilities are adequately maintained and in compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA), the Life Safety Code, and applicable building codes. (Acceptable documentation 
includes reasonable-accommodation reports from the university ADA-compliance office and/or facilities 
or risk-management office.) 

B. Information Systems and Technical Equipment. The program shall provide information 
systems and technical equipment needed to achieve its mission and objectives to students, faculty, and 
other instructional and administrative personnel. 

Assessment 1: The program’s participants have sufficient access to computer equipment and software. 

Assessment 2: The frequency of hardware and software maintenance, updating, and replacement is 
sufficient. 

Assessment 3: The hours of use of information systems and equipment are sufficient to serve faculty and 
students. 

C. Library Resources. The program shall provide library collections and other resources sufficient 
to support its mission and educational objectives. 

Assessment 1: Collections are adequate to support the program. 

Assessment 2: Courses integrate library and other resources. 

Assessment 3: Library hours of operation are convenient and adequate to serve the needs of faculty and 
students. 

LAAB ACCREDITATION STANDARDS - 2016 page 18 



Agenda Item J 

DISCUSS AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON DRAFT CONSUMER’S GUIDE TO HIRING A 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT 

As part of its 2015-16 Strategic Plan, the Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) 

identified an objective to “Adopt new methods and identify new resources to effectively educate 

consumers regarding health, safety, and welfare issues.”  Over the last year, staff and Committee 

members worked in collaboration on the development of a new Consumer’s Guide to Hiring a 

Landscape Architect. 

At its November 17, 2015 meeting, staff presented a draft Guide, which was based on the Board’s 

Consumer’s Guide to Hiring an Architect. Following discussion, the Committee created a 

subcommittee to complete revisions to the Guide. During discussion at its February 10, 2016 

meeting, the Committee suggested editions to the Guide including a chart for professional 

qualifications within the profession, as well as information on drought conditions and the Model 

Water Efficiency Landscape Ordinance (MWELO).  The subcommittee worked with staff to revise 

the Guide and create a chart on the professional qualifications of landscape architects, landscape 

contractors, and other related professions.  At its May 24, 2016 meeting, the Committee approved 

the Guide with minor edits to be made to the professional qualifications chart.  Staff completed the 

edits and worked with the Department of Consumer Affairs’ Office of Publications, Design & 

Editing to prepare the Guide. 

At the November 4, 2016 meeting, the LATC was asked to review the revised Guide and take 

action. During the meeting, a member of the public expressed concern that the photographs and 

plant materials depicted in the draft Guide show water features, high water use plant pallets, and 

lawn dominated designs that do not support water conservation.  The LATC agreed that the 

publication should contain pictures of compelling low water landscapes with California plant 

material and asked staff to obtain images.  

Staff is continuing to secure additional images and releases.  A new draft of the Guide will be 

presented to the members for consideration once the images have been incorporated into the 

design. 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Agenda Item K 

REVIEW TENTATIVE SCHEDULE AND CONFIRM FUTURE LATC MEETING DATES 

February 

20 President’s Day Office Closed 

March 

TBD Board Meeting TBD 

10-11 National Council of Architectural Registration Boards (NCARB) Jersey City, NJ 

Regional Summit 

31 Cesar Chavez Day Office Closed 

April 

5 LATC Meeting TBD 

May 

29 Memorial Day Office Closed 

June 

TBD Board Meeting TBD 

21-24 NCARB Annual Meeting Boston, MA 

July 

4 Independence Day Office Closed 

13 LATC Meeting TBD 

September 

TBD Board Meeting TBD 

4 Labor Day Office Closed 

October 

TBD LATC Meeting TBD 

November 

10 Veterans Day Observed Office Closed 

23-24 Thanksgiving Holiday Office Closed 

December 

TBD Board Meeting TBD 

25 Christmas Day Office Closed 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Agenda Item L 

RECESS 

Time: __________ 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Agenda Item M 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 

Roll is called by the Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) Vice Chair or, in his/her 

absence, by an LATC member designated by the Chair. 

LATC MEMBER ROSTER 

Patricia Trauth, Chair 

Marq Truscott, Vice Chair 

Andrew Bowden 

David Allan Taylor, Jr. 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 



Agenda Item N 

STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION 

At this meeting, the Committee is scheduled to update its Strategic Plan, which will be facilitated 

by the Department of Consumer Affairs’ Strategic Organization, Leadership, and Individual 

Development staff. Attached is an agenda for the session and the 2015-2016 Strategic Plan. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Strategic Planning Session Agenda 

2. 2015-2016 Strategic Plan 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 




 

 

Attachment N.1 


Landscape Architects Technical 
Committee 

Strategic Planning Session Agenda 

January 18, 2017 8:30 am to 5:00 pm 

 Introductions 

 Environmental Scan and Objective Building Overview 

 Goal Area Discussion: Regulation and Enforcement 

 Break 

 Goal Area Discussion: Professional Qualifications 

 Lunch 

 Goal Area Discussion: Public and Professional Awareness 

 Goal Area Discussion: Organizational Relationships 

 Break 

 Goal Area Discussion: Organizational Effectiveness 

 Wrap up and Conclusion 



 

Attachment N.2 


Landscape Architects 
Technical Committee 

Department of Consumer Affairs 

PUBLIC PROTECTION THROUGH EXAMINATION, LICENSURE, AND REGULATION 2015-2016 

Strategic 
Plan 
Approved: June 10, 2015 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=https://earthworkstudios.wordpress.com/landscape-architectur/&ei=Id02VbPML9H4yQSW5YFY&bvm=bv.91071109,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGPAl5acTo3mGZMjMqeoZ43CC69rA&ust=1429745282873158



 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 

1
2

3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14

Table of Contents 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS.......................................................................................... 
MESSAGE FROM THE COMMITTEE CHAIR.............................................................. 

ABOUT THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE ............................ 
HOW THE LATC ACHIEVES ITS MISSION ................................................................. 
2014 LATC ACCOMPLISHMENTS............................................................................. 
MISSION, VISION, & VALUES.................................................................................. 
STRATEGIC GOALS .................................................................................................. 
GOAL 1: REGULATION AND ENFORCEMENT .......................................................... 
GOAL 2: PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS............................................................. 
GOAL 3: PUBLIC AND PROFESSIONAL AWARENESS ............................................. 
GOAL 4: ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS........................................................ 
GOAL 5: ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS ........................................................ 
STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS .......................................................................... 
APPENDIX A: ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE ...................................................... 



Committee Members 

David A. Taylor, Jr., Chair | Landscape Architect Member 

Katherine Spitz | Landscape Architect Member 

Andrew Bowden | Landscape Architect Member 

Nicki Johnson | Landscape Architect Member 

Trish Rodriguez | Program Manager 

Douglas R. McCauley, Executive Officer 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 1 



Message from the Committee Chair 
The Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) is pleased to present its 
2015-2016 Strategic Plan. The strategic planning process has been a collaborative 
effort between LATC members, staff, and the public. 

2014 marked the completion of the LATC’s Occupational Analysis (OA), a 
significant project that measures the current knowledge, skills, and abilities that 
are necessary in the profession.  Conducted every five to seven years, the OA 
surveys the profession as to what tasks are required, how often they are 
performed, and how important they are to protect the public health, safety, and 
welfare.  That data is then formatted into a “test plan” that is the basis for the 
content of the California Supplemental Examination. 

The Sunset Review process was a major undertaking in 2014.  This endeavor takes 
place every four years.  It commences with the preparation of a major report, 
which was submitted in October 2014, describing the LATC’s programs, metrics, 
and recommendations for improvement.  The process fosters a healthy self-
examination, and an opportunity to showcase innovations and learn from best-
practices.  LATC’s Sunset hearing was March 18, 2015, and the LATC did not 
receive additional questions during the hearing.  Written responses were 
submitted to the Legislature on April 16, 2015. 

The outcomes from the Sunset Review will help drive future strategies.  In 
addition, the 2015-2016 Strategic Plan reflects the LATC’s second multi-year 
planning process.  This enabled the LATC to focus on robust issues to ensure we 
are proactive, preventive, and a leader in consumer protection. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 2 



About the Landscape Architects Technical 
Committee 
The Landscape Architects Technical Committee (LATC) was created via Assembly 
Bill 1546, which became effective January 1, 1998. The Committee was statutorily 
established under the jurisdiction of the California Architects Board. The 
Committee’s purpose is to act in an advisory capacity to the Board on 
examination and other matters pertaining to the regulation of the practice of 
landscape architecture in California. 

The activities of the LATC benefit consumers in two important ways.  First, 
regulation protects the public at large.  Second, regulation protects the consumer 
of services rendered by landscape architects. It is imperative to ensure those who 
hire landscape architects are protected from incompetent or dishonest landscape 
architects. 

The LATC is one of the boards, bureaus, commissions, and committees within the 
Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) and is part of the Business, Consumer 
Services and Housing Agency.  DCA is responsible for consumer protection 
through the regulation of licensees.  While DCA provides administrative oversight 
and support services, the LATC further sets its own policies, procedures, and 
regulations. 

The LATC is composed of five members who are licensed to practice landscape 
architecture in this state. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 3 



How the LATC Achieves its Mission 
Regulation 

The LATC establishes regulations for examination and licensing of the profession 
of landscape architecture in California, which today numbers approximately 3,500 
licensed landscape architects, as well as approximately 1,200 candidates who are 
in the process of meeting examination and licensure requirements. 

Licensing 

A candidate must have six years of qualifying education and training experience* 
to be eligible for the Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE). 
Candidates must complete the LARE prior to receiving eligibility for the California 
Supplement Examination (CSE). Successful completion of the CSE is required to 
fulfill the LATC’s requirements of licensure. 

* Credit for education and training is outlined in the Table of Equivalents 
contained in California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 26, section 2620. 

Enforcement 

The LATC has an active enforcement program designed to ensure the laws 
governing the practice of landscape architecture are enforced in a fair and 
judicious manner. The program consists of consumer education and professional 
information outreach designed to prevent and assist in the early detection of 
violations. The LATC enforces legal compliance for licensees by taking disciplinary 
actions against those in violation of the Practice Act. 

The LATC’s enforcement program works to address three main goal areas: 

1. Establishing regulatory standards of practice for those licensed as landscape 
architects 

2. Increasing public awareness of the LATC’s mission, activities, and services 

3. Protecting consumers by preventing violations, and effectively enforcing laws, 
codes, and standards when violations occur 

The LATC is responsible for investigating complaints against licensees and 
unlicensed individuals. The Board retains the authority on behalf of the LATC to 
make final decisions on all enforcement actions. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 4 




 

 

2014 Landscape Architects Technical Committee 
Accomplishments 

1. Completed 2014 Sunset Review Report. 

2. Completed 2014 Occupational Analysis (OA), including a focus group. 

3. Completed 2014 Linkage Study between the Landscape Architectural 
Registration Examination, and the California Supplemental Examination. 

4. Concluded the Exceptions and Exemptions Task Force. 

5. Completed University of California Extension Certificate Program Reviews. 

6. Continued success on enforcement performance measures. 

7. Effectively managed fiscal resources and requested a reduction in spending 
authority (Negative Budget Change Proposal). 

8. Improved communication through the effective use of social media 
(Twitter). 

9. Extended candidate application filing period. 

10.Created additional pathways to licensure, including early entrance to the 
LARE. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 5 



	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

Mission 
The LATC regulates the practice of landscape architecture through the 
enforcement of the Landscape Architects Practice Act to protect consumers, and 
the public health, safety, and welfare while safeguarding the environment. 

Vision 
The LATC will champion a better, healthier, and safer built environment for 
California. 

Values 
The LATC will strive for the highest possible quality throughout all of its programs, 
making it an effective and efficient landscape architectural regulatory body. 
To that end, the LATC will: 

• Protect consumers, by making effective and informed decisions in the best 
interest, and for the safety of Californians 

• Be prevention oriented, by providing information and education to consumers, 
candidates, clients, licensees, and others 

• Be proactive, by continuously scanning the field of landscape architecture for 
changes in practice and legislation that may affect consumers, candidates, 
clients, and licensees 

• Be effective, by making informed decisions that make a difference and have a 
positive, measurable impact 

• Strive for excellence and quality, by continuously improving our programs, 
services, and processes through employee empowerment and professional 
development 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 6 



Strategic Goals 

1 REGULATION AND ENFORCEMENT

Protect consumers through effective regulation and enforcement of 
laws, codes, and standards affecting the practice of landscape 
architecture. 

2 PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

Ensure that landscape architects are qualified to practice by setting and 
maintaining equitable requirements for education, experience and 
examinations. 

3 PUBLIC AND PROFESSIONAL AWARENESS

Increase public and professional awareness of LATC’s mission, 
activities, and services. 

4 ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS

Strengthen effectiveness of relationships with related organizations in 
order to further LATC mission, goals and services. 

5 ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

Provide accessible and responsive quality services to consumers and 
licensees. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 7 



	

	

	 

	 

	

GOAL 1: REGULATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
Protect consumers through effective regulation and enforcement of laws, codes 
and standards affecting the practice of landscape architecture. 

1.1 Create and disseminate printed document(s) to educate the public on the 
differences between landscape architects, landscape contractors, and 
landscape designers. 

1.2 Partner with Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards 
(CLARB) to enhance CLARB’s national enforcement database with California 
data to strengthen consumer protection during the licensing process. 

1.3 Finalize and implement regulations and procedures pertaining to the 
extension certificate programs and the approval process to maintain 
consistency, as well as concurrency with accreditation standards. 

1.4 Disseminate information regarding extension programs per the California 
Code of Regulations, section 2620.5 to other states to encourage 
reciprocity. 

1.5 Amend regulations to incorporate the updated Disciplinary Guidelines to 
maintain consistent decisions in disciplinary cases. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 8 



	

	

	

	 

	 

	 

GOAL 2: PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS 
Ensure that landscape architects are qualified to practice by setting and 
maintaining equitable requirements for education, experience and examinations. 

2.1 Inform/communicate with schools regarding areas of the LARE with low 
pass rates in order to recommend areas of improvement in education. 

2.2 Establish equitable reciprocity guidelines, without altering the entry 
standards of the profession, to widen path to licensure. 

2.3 Review California Code of Regulations, section 2620 to clarify credit and 
experience combinations and provide justification for consistent staff 
interpretation of exam eligibility for potential licensees. 

2.4 Review California Code of Regulations, section 2620 to expand credit for 
education experience to include degrees in related areas of study, i.e., 
urban planning, environmental science or horticulture, etc., and credit for 
teaching. 

2.5 Review California Code of Regulations, sections 2624 and 2624.1 and assess 
whether any revisions are needed to the regulations, procedures, and 
instructions for expired license requirements 

2.6 Reclassify the CSE item bank upon the results of the 2014 Occupational 
Analysis (OA) in order to ensure the item content reflects the critical tasks 
and knowledge related to newly-licensed landscape architects as identified 
by the OA and to maintain relevance with contemporary practice. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 9 




 

	

	

	

	

GOAL 3: PUBLIC AND PROFESSIONAL AWARENESS 
Increase public and professional awareness of LATC’s mission, program, and 
services. 

3.1 Develop a plan to communicate with licensees and stakeholders about new 
or revised regulations and upcoming laws to be proactive in reducing 
violations. 

3.2 Establish LATC’s presence at the Landscape Architects Expo and other 
industry shows to increase exposure and communicate LATC’s mission with 
stakeholders. 

3.3 Review and update the LATC website to ensure information is current, 
accurate, and accessible. 

3.4 Adopt new methods and identify new resources to effectively educate 
consumers regarding health, safety and welfare issues. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 10 



	

	

	

	

GOAL 4: ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS 
Strengthen effectiveness of relationships with related organizations in order to 
further LATC mission, goals and services. 

4.1 Develop relationships with other regulatory boards and provide input 
where needed so that future legislation and regulations are compatible 
with LATC’s mission and mandate. 

4.2 Explore methods for developing a teleconferenced Educator’s Roundtable 
comprised of school representatives to increase collaboration and 
communication for future LATC strategic plans. 

4.3 Develop/research methods to share information with school faculty 
regarding issues such as newly revised language for California Code of 
Regulations, section 2620 and future testing. 

4.4 Increase the LATC’s participation in CLARB. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 11 



	

	

	

	

	

GOAL 5:  ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS 
Provide accessible and responsive quality service to consumers and licensees. 

5.1 Identify ways, means and methods to increase office efficiencies by 
assessing existing workload allocation, processes and procedures. 

5.2 Review LATC’s organizational chart to identify upward mobility 
opportunities through promotion and education in order to increase staff 
retention. 

5.3 Contract with a part-time licensed Landscape Architect Subject Matter 
Expert in order to encourage consistency for enforcement, regulatory and 
statute interpretation. 

5.4 Partner with DCA to successfully implement BreEZe1 to improve consumer, 
candidate, and licensing services. 

5.5 Complete the Sunset Review process and implement recommendations to 
comply with the legislature’s directives. 

1 BreEZE is DCA’s new enterprise-wide licensing and enforcement system that replaces legacy 
systems. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 12 



	 

	 

	 

Strategic Planning Process 
To understand the environment in which the Committee operates and identify 
factors that could impact the Committee’s success, the Department of Consumer 
Affairs’ SOLID unit conducted an environmental scan of the internal and external 
environments by collecting information through the following methods: 

• Telephone interviews with Committee identified representatives of 
stakeholders in December 2014 and January, 2015.  

• Telephone interviews with Committee members in December 2014 and 
January 2015.  

• Telephone interviews with the Program Manager in January 2015.  

The most significant themes and trends identified from the environmental scan 
were discussed by the Committee during a strategic planning session facilitated 
by SOLID on February 11, 2015. This information guided the Committee in the 
development of its mission, vision and values, while directing the strategic goals 
and objectives outlined in this 2015 – 2016 Strategic Plan. 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 13 



Appendix A: Organizational Structure 
The Committee’s organizational structure is provided below: 

BOARD 

JON A. BAKER, PRESIDENT 
PASQUAL GUTIERREZ, VICE PRESIDENT 

TIAN FENG, SECRETARY 
DENISE CAMPOS 

SYLVIA KWAN 
EBONY LEWIS 

MATT MCGUINNESS 
NILZA SERRANO 
BARRY WILLIAMS 

DOUG MCCAULEY, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

DAVID A. TAYLOR, JR., CHAIR 
KATHERINE SPITZ, VICE CHAIR 

ANDREW BOWDEN 
NICKI JOHNSON 

TRISH RODRIGUEZ, LATC PROGRAM MANAGER 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee Strategic Plan 2015-2016 | Page 14 



















~ solid 
planning solu ions 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

.1 ___ 1 ·•--·=· -.i::::=I= 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

Landscape Architects Technical Committee 

2420 Del Paso Road, Suite 105 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

(916) 575-7230 
fax: (916) 575-7285 

email: latc@dca.ca.gov 

Prepared by: 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
1747 N. Market Blvd., Suite 270 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

This strategic plan is based on stakeholder information and discussions 
facilitated by SOLID for the Landscape Architects Technical Committee in 
December 2014 and January 2015. Subsequent amendments may have 
been made after Committee adoption of this plan. 

mailto:latc@dca.ca.gov


Agenda Item O 

ADJOURNMENT 

Time: __________ 

LATC Meeting January 17-18, 2017 Sacramento, CA 


	LATC Meeting Agenda
	Agenda A - Call to Order
	Agenda B - Chair's Remarks
	Agenda C - Public Comment
	Agenda D - LATC Meeting Minutes Final
	Agenda D.1 - November 4 2016 LATC Meeting Minutes DM's Edits FINAL
	Agenda E - PM Report Final
	Agenda E.1 - Program Manager's Report FINAL
	Agenda E.2 - BOARD 12-15-16 NOTICE - Final
	Agenda F - CLARB Final
	Agenda F.1 - Attachment 1 - LARE California and National Pass Rates
	Agenda F.2 - CLARB E-News December 2016
	Agenda G - Related degrees FINAL
	Agenda G.1 - CCR 2620
	Agenda G.2 - LATC Ed Sub Report JAN 2010
	Agenda G.3 CLARB Member Board Degrees FINAL
	Agenda H - CCR 2615 Reciprocity Requirements FINAL
	Agenda H.1 - Requirements for Initial Licensure
	Agenda H.2 - Landscape Architects - Initial Licensure and State Specific Reciprocity Requirements
	Agenda H.3 - National Landscape Architects - Eligibility and Reciprocity Requirements
	Agenda H.4 - CCR 2615 - Proposed Language
	Agenda H.5 - Notice of Proposed Changes - CCR 2615 FINAL
	Agenda H.6 - CCR 2615 - ISOR FINAL
	Agenda H.7 - Public Comment Letters.pdf
	Agenda H.8 - LATC Ed Sub Report JAN 2010
	Agenda H.9 - CLARB determinants-of-success-report-final-report
	Agenda H.10 - CLARB Standards of Eligibility for Council Certification
	Agenda I - CCR 2620.5  Final
	Agenda I.1 - CCR 2620.5 OAL Decision of Disapproval
	Agenda I.2- Proposed CCR 2620.5 - Denied by OAL
	Agenda I.3 - Proposed Language to Adopt CCR 2620.2, 2620.3, and 2620.4 Provided to LATC on February 10, 2015
	Agenda I.4 - WORKING DRAFT OF PROPOSED LANGUAGE Final
	Agenda I.5 - LAAB_ACCREDITATION_STANDARDS_March2016
	Agenda J - Consumer's Guide Final
	Agenda K - Future Meetings Final
	Agenda L - Recess
	Agenda M - Call to Order
	Agenda N - Strategic Planning Session VM'S EDITS FINAL
	Agenda N.1 - Attachment 1 - Strategic Planning Session Agenda
	Agenda N.2 - Attachment 2 - LATC 2015_16 Strategic Plan
	Agenda O - Adjournment



Accessibility Report



		Filename: 

		2017_01_17-18_latc_meeting_packet.pdf






		Report created by: 

		


		Organization: 

		





[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.



		Needs manual check: 2


		Passed manually: 0


		Failed manually: 0


		Skipped: 0


		Passed: 30


		Failed: 0





Detailed Report



		Document




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set


		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF


		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF


		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order


		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified


		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar


		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents


		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast


		Page Content




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged


		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged


		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order


		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided


		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged


		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker


		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts


		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses


		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive


		Forms




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged


		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description


		Alternate Text




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text


		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read


		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content


		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation


		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text


		Tables




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot


		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR


		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers


		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column


		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary


		Lists




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L


		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI


		Headings




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting







Back to Top


